Strategic Sites Committee Agenda

Date: Thursday 11 February 2021
Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: MS Teams

Membership:

S Broadbent, N Brown, S Chhokar, Mr C Clare, P Jones, JJordan, L Monger, R Newcombe,
C Paternoster, G Sandy, A Turner (Chairman) and J Waters (Vice-Chairman)

Webcasting notice

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
being filmed.

You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s
published policy.

Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

Agenda Item Page No
1 Apologies for absence

2 Declarations of interest

3 Minutes 3-6

To agree the minutes of the strategic sites committee meeting held on
17 December 2020.


mailto:monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Applications

4 CM/0037/20 - Proposed Building for Fresh Cooking Oil Packing & Used 7-44
Cooking Oil Processing - Olleco, Samian Way, Aston Clinton,
Buckinghamshire, HP22 5WJ

5 CC/0015/20 - New dual carriageway link road including: roundabout 45 - 210
junction B4443 Lower Road, roundabout junction at A413 Wendover
Road, railway bridge, footway/cycleways, noise attenuation barrier,
street lighting, earthworks and landscaping between B4443 Lower
Road and A413

If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support
in place.

For further information please contact: Sally Taylor on 01296 531024, emalil
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.



Agenda Item 3

Strategic sites committee minutes

Minutes of the meeting of the Strategic sites committee held on Thursday 17 December
2020 in MS Teams, commencing at 2.00 pm and concluding at 4.36 pm.

Members present

S Broadbent, N Brown, S Chhokar, C Clare, P Jones, L Monger, R Newcombe, C Paternoster,
G Sandy, A Turner (chairman) and J Waters (vice-chairman).

Apologies
J Jordan.
Agenda Item

1 Declarations of interest
None.

2 Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 19 November were agreed as correct record.

3 CM/0036/20 land adjacent to Hollybush Lane, Denham, Uxbridge,
Buckinghamshire
Proposal: planning application made under Section 73 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 to vary Condition 2 (Time Limit) attached to Planning Consent
CM/62/15 at land adjacent to Hollybush Lane, Tatling End, Denham,
Buckinghamshire.

Speaking as local unitary ward member, Councillor Guy Hollis.
Speaking as representative of Denham Parish Council, Jagjit Brar.
A written statement was read out by the clerk on behalf of objector, John Coleman.

It was proposed by Councillor S Chhokar and seconded by Councillor L Monger that
the application be rejected on the grounds that insufficient evidence/ special
circumstances had been presented to allow an extension. Further, that the impact to
residents outweighed the benefits of allowing the applicant to continue works to
remediate the land by granting an extension.

On being put to a vote the motion was declared to be lost.

.
Page 3



It was then proposed by Councillor R Newcombe and seconded by Councillor J
Waters that the decision be deferred and delegated to officers with a view to
approving the application, subject to the conditions as per the officer’s report, as
well as the additional condition as proposed by the committee. This was agreed
unanimously at a vote.

Resolved:

to defer and delegate the decision to officers with a view to approving the
application subject to the conditions as per the officer’s report, as well as
e an additional condition to enable comprehensive monitoring of progress of
works at the site; and
e to facilitate completion of the development within the new end date for
restoration.

Members also agreed that a letter be sent to the relevant cabinet member by the
chairman on behalf of the committee to stress the importance of enforcement and
monitoring progress of works at mineral and waste sites in the County and the need
for it to be resourced.

Councillor N Brown did not participate in the vote as he was absent for a significant
portion of technical questions and member debate.

Note 1: Councillor R Newcombe left the meeting at 15.44.
Note 2: Councillor N Brown re-joined the meeting at 15.47.

CM/0022/19 Hangar 5 and adjoining land, Westcott Venture Park, Westcott,
Buckinghamshire

Proposal: part retrospective application for waste recycling storage and transfer
operations within Hangar 5 and on adjoining land including ancillary activities, plant,
building and offices.

Speaking as local unitary ward members, Councillors Ashley Waite and Paul Irwin.

Speaking as an objector, Sue Lacey. A written statement was also read out by the
clerk on behalf of objector Anthony Wilkinson.

Speaking as the applicant, Tricia Murray.

It was proposed by Councillor S Broadbent, seconded by Councillor C Paternoster
and agreed unanimously at a vote that the application be approved as per the
officer’s report, subject to an additional condition as proposed by the committee.

Resolved:

that the application be approved and authority delegated to the Service Director for

Page 4



Planning and Environment to grant planning permission subject to detailed
conditions to be finalised including those set out in Section 8, as well as
e an additional condition requiring that advance notification be given to
Buckinghamshire Council and Westcott Parish Council ahead of any concrete
crushing.

Members also agreed that this application be referred to in the chairman’s letter to
the cabinet member stressing the importance of the enforcement team’s ability to

monitor works at waste sites in the County.

Note 3: Councillor S Chhokar left the meeting at 16.00.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



] Agenda ltem 4 .
Buckinghamshire Council

www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to Strategic Planning Committee

Application Number:

Proposal:

Site Location:

Applicant:
Case Officer:
Ward(s) affected:

Parish-Town Council:

Date valid application received:

Statutory determination date:

Recommendation

CM/0037/20

Proposed Building for Fresh Cooking Oil Packing & Used
Cooking Oil Processing

Olleco

Samian Way
Aston Clinton
Buckinghamshire
HP22 5W)

Olleco

James Suter

Aston Clinton, Bierton

Aston Clinton Parish Council / Buckland Parish Council
22nd July 2020

21st October 2020

Subject to the applicant entering in to an appropriate S.
106 Planning Obligation to apply the requirements with
regard to routing the Strategic Sites Committee
INDICATES SUPPORT for application CM/0037/20 and
DELEGATES Authority to the Service Director for Planning
and Environment to grant planning permission subject to
detailed conditions to be finalised including the
conditions set out in Section 8 of this report.


http://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

Application CM/0037/20 seeks permission to construct a building for fresh oil packing
and used cooking oil processing. The building would create approximately 4170 sqm
gross external floor space.

The site has an extant permission to erect a material recycling facility (MRF) on the
proposed footprint under planning permission no CM/78/14. The MRF was permitted
to receive a mixture of food waste and packaging (predominantly card, paper, food
and plastic). A MRF separates and prepares recyclable materials to obtain a
maximum recovery of materials. The MRF has not been built and now the applicant is
proposing an alternative use for the space (a used cooking oil processing facility).

This application has been reported for determination by the strategic planning
committee as Cllr Carole Paternoster has exercised her right to call in applications on
material planning grounds and this has been agreed to by the chairman of the
committee.

It is recommended that the application is approved subject to the applicant entering
in to an appropriate S. 106 Planning Obligation to apply the requirements with regard
to routing the Strategic Sites Committee INDICATES SUPPORT for application
CM/0037/20 and DELEGATES Authority to the Service Director for Planning and
Environment to grant planning permission subject to detailed conditions to be
finalised including the conditions set out in Section 8 of this report.

2.0 Site Description

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Olleco Anaerobic Digestion Facility comprises 2.3 hectares of land located to the
north east end of Samian Way, opposite the Arla Dairy Facility. Samian Way runs to
the north east off College Road North parallel to the A41 Aston Clinton Bypass. The
site is a triangular parcel of land between the Arla Dairy and the Aylesbury Arm of the
Grand Union Canal. The canal’s towpath runs west to east along the site’s northern
boundary which is separated from the site by a 3m bund with 2m acoustic fencing on
the top. The towpath parallel to the Grand Union Canal itself is a public right of way
(ACL/40/2 & BLD/27/1).

Aylesbury is located approximately 4km to the west, Aston Clinton 1.5km to the
south and Buckland approximately 1.25km to the south east, separated by the A41.
The site is accessed from the north eastern end of Samian Way opposite the main
gated entrance to the Arla Dairy plant. College Road North serves a number of
industrial / commercial uses including, but not limited to: a HWRC site, Mercedes-
Benz Retail Park, Jaguar Buckinghamshire and Aylesbury Trade Centre.

To the north east is Monks Court and Monks Farm both of which are approximately
200m from the site. The nearest residential property is Canal Farm which is located
approximately 190 metres away from the north eastern corner of the site. Rectory

Farm is located further to the north east approximately 750m away. Residential

Page 8



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

properties in the wider locality include College Farm which is situated along College
Road North (approximately 750m away), and Merrymead Farm which is located over
the canal bridge to the west of College Road North (approximately 850m away).
Cherry Farm is a residential property sited south of the over bridge on Buckland Road
and there are properties south of the A41 on College Road South approximately
800m away. There are also some moorings on the canal adjacent to the site and
these are screened by the existing landscaping bund.

The character of the surrounding area is contrasting with the area to the south being
dominated by large developments including the Symmetry Park and the HWRC and
the north of the Grand Union Canal being characterised by a number of agricultural
fields. To the north west approximately 750m away is the College Road North
Business Park which accommodates a number of industrial buildings.

The Chilterns AONB and Metropolitan Green Belt are located approximately 2.5km
beyond the site and beyond Aston Clinton to the south and south east. There are
views of the site from the Chilterns AONB including views from the Upper Icknield
Way. There is a Grade Il listed bridge roughly 30m from the site boundary.

The site is on the boundary of Aston Clinton CP and Buckland CP. The boundary with
Dacorum Borough Council is located some 800m to the east of the Site; Within
Dacorum Borough Council to the east of the site is Tring Woodlands SSSI
(approximately 5.25km away to the south east) and Tring Reservoir SSSI
(approximately 2.5km to the east). The location of the site is shown in Appendix B.

The documents submitted with this application are set out in Appendix C.

3.0 Relevant Planning History

Reference Development Decision Decision
Date

CM/78/14 Proposed Anaerobic Digestion | Permitted 15 July
Plant/Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) 2015
together with associated plan and
landscaping

AOC/0078/1503 | Allocation of condition 3 for proposed | AOC Approved 28t
Anaerobic Digestion Plant/Materials October
Recycling Facility (MRF) together with 2015
associated plan and landscaping

AOC/0078/1504 | Allocation on Condition 4 (Materials) | AOC Approved 24%
Proposed Anaerobic Digestion November
Plant/Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) 2015
together with associated plan and
landscaping

Page 9




AOC/0078/1506 | Approval of Condition 6 (Cycle Storage) for | AOC Approved 17t

Proposed Anaerobic Digestion September
2015

AOC/0078/1508 | Approval of Condition 8 (Surface Water | AOC Approved 17t
Drainage) for Proposed Anaerobic Digestion September
Plant/Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) 2015
together with associated plan and
landscaping

AOC/0078/1516 | Approval of Condition 16 (Noise Monitoring) | AOC Approved 17t
Proposed Anaerobic Digestion September
Plant/Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) 2015
together with associated plan and
landscaping

AOC/0078/1518 | Approval of Condition 18 (Odour Control) for | AOC Approved 17t
Proposed Anaerobic Digestion September
Plant/Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) 2015
together with associated plan and
landscaping

AOC/0078/1519 | Approval  of  Condition 19  (Dust | AOC Approved 17t
Monitoring/Mitigation for Proposed September
Anaerobic Digestion Plant/Materials 2015
Recycling Facility (MRF) together with
associated plan and landscaping

AOC/0078/1524 | Approval of Condition 24 (Landscape Details) | AOC Approved 15t
for Proposed Anaerobic Digestion October
Plant/Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) 2015
together with associated plan and
landscaping

CM/62/16 Application for the approval of Unilateral | Permitted
Undertaking agreement dated 13 July 2015
Schedule 2 (Lorry Routing), clauses 1.1, 1.2
and 1.3 in relation to consent CM/78/14 for
proposed Anaerobic Digestion
Plant/Materials Recycling Facility (MRF)
together with associated plan and
landscaping

CX/02/19 Hazardous substance consent to store and | Permitted 18" June
use an inventory of hazardous substances at 2020
the Olleco Anaerobic Digestion Facility,
Samian Way, Aston Clinton, Aylesbury, HP22
5WI

CM/0022/20 Section 73 planning application to vary | Resolved at committee

wording of Condition 9 pursuant to planning

to approve subject to

Page 10




application CM/78/14 at Anaerobic Digestion | officer’s report and an
Plant, Samian Way, Aston Clinton operated | additional condition.

by Olleco. Pending updated S106
agreement.
20/03869/APP Odour Abatement Plant and stack Pending Consideration

3.1

The development has been screened under the Environmental Impact Assessment
Regulations and the local planning authority concluded that an environmental impact
assessment was required. The applicant subsequently sought a screening direction
from the Secretary of State which concluded that the proposal does NOT constitute
EIA development.

4.0 Description of the Development

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Application CM/0037/20 seeks to gain permission for the construction of a building
14.825m in height which will create approximately 4170sgm in gross external floor
space across two floors. The proposed building would operate 24 hours a day, 7 days
a week. The building would include areas for: filtration and storage, staff welfare
areas, lab areas, office spaces, engineer stores and meeting space. In addition to this,
the application also seeks to reconfigure the existing parking at the Olleco site to gain
a further 22 spaces (69 total with 11 electric charging spaces). Cycle parking is also
included in the proposed site layout.

The application also seeks to regularise several revisions to the site plan approved
under the original 2014 CM/78/14 application. These changes include: the energy
centre to east of the car park being outside plant, recycled water SBR buffer or post
digester tanks have not been constructed, solid separation building now shown in the
as built position, the propane tanks being shown located by the car park as opposed
to the approved underground tank and there is no vehicle wash/ weighbridge in the
road around the tank farm.

It is proposed that the building would be used to receive, store and pack fresh and
used cooking oil. The facility would also process used cooking oil which when
processed can be used in renewable fuel operations. The filtrate matter removed
from waste oil would be transferred to the onsite anaerobic digestion feed hopper
for treatment.

The used cooking oil facility (UCO) has a proposed throughput of 20,800 tonnes per
annum of used cooking oil. The extant MRF had a throughput of 80,000 tonnes per
annum of a mixture of wastes but predominantly card, paper, food and plastic.

Fresh oil will be delivered to the site in 30,000 litre tankers which will park in a
bunded parking/unloading area before discharging into the storage tanks. Fresh oil
will then be piped into a filling room where oil will be packaged and palletised before

Page 11




4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

being transferred to the warehouse space. The palletised oil will be loaded into
vehicles each evening ready for next day dispatch.

Each morning the vehicles will leave loaded with fresh oil returning with used oil. This
used oil will then be pumped into a filtration and settlement tank. A centrifuge will
be used to remove any food waste which will be processed within the onsite
anaerobic digester. This would then be processed and turned into gas, this in turn is
converted to electricity which is used on site and for the adjacent Arla Facility and the
onsite electric vehicle charging points. Bio-methane from the digesters can also be
provided directly. More tankers then arrive to load the used cooking oil for dispatch.
The total throughput is 20,800 tonnes of used cooking oil per annum.

It is proposed the development will be operated 24 hrs a day and 7 days a week
creating a proposed 64 new jobs at the site. Operatives are unlikely to be on site
between 00:00 and 03:00 but may work late or carry out emergency or maintenance
works. Levels of activity at the site will drop during the night, but the site will not shut
down given the nature of the operation. The proposed development would generate
vehicle movements predominantly from 04:00 to 18:00. The permitted MRF which
has materiality as a fallback is also a 24hr facility.

As set out in the Transport Statement, the oil processing facility would generate a
maximum of 68 additional daily two-way HGV movements above the current limit set
by permission CM/78/14 (126 two-way movements). The Highway Authority has
requested a condition setting a maximum of 194 two-way HGV movements (97 in, 97
out).

The development is located within the existing site at Olleco which already has
boundary treatments, bunding and landscaping.

As aforementioned, the proposed scheme is alternative use for the space designated
for a Material Recycling Facility (MRF) under planning application CM/78/14 and
subsequent Section 73 application CM/0022/20. The approved MRF building has a
gross floor area of 2,942sgm and a height of 14.825m at its highest point. The
proposed development would therefore provide an additional 1,228sgm of gross
floor space.

The proposed building will be clad in profiled sheeting which is designed using a
‘strike and miss’ design approach similar to that on the adjacent Arla Dairy. This
approach helps minimise potential impacts upon views from the AONB. The details of
the colouring are upon the submitted plans but are essentially a mixture of light grey,
sage green and dark grey green matching the existing buildings on the Olleco site.
The roofing will be comprised of Kingspan roof panelling in a basalt grey colour.
There would be translucent panels in the roof to allow in natural light. A small section
of timber panelling on the eastern elevation will be used to denote the office area.

With regards to lighting, the only location where upward lighting is used is to the
south facing glazed entrance facade, however it has been stated that these can be

Page 12



replaced with downward emitting fittings upon request. In its current arrangement
minimal light (5-7 lux) was found to overspill the first perimeter fence line by 5m but
not the secondary perimeter fencing. On site lighting will also utilise passive infrared
sensors in combination with dimmable lighting. This is to ensure enough lighting is
provided to allow safe operation of vehicles and to facilitate CCTV coverage.

4.13 The development also requires a boiler which is to be fired by natural gas with odour
free emissions.

4.14 In support of the application the applicant also submitted an odour statement dated
25™ June 2020. The odour statement notes that fresh oil is odourless and would be
utilised in a closed system from tanker to storage tank to filling line. The statement
also explains that used cooking oil arrives in sealed drums which are opened and
poured into a sump within the building. The waste matter extracted from the used
cooking oil is stated to not produce an identifiable additional odour when fed into
the onsite anaerobic digesters. The containers which used cooking oil is delivered in
are washed for reuse. The vapours produced will contain a small amount of residual
odour, but this will be first condensed and then the residual air passed through a
carbon filter block, before being emitted to the outside of the plant.

4.15 This statement was supplemented by an odour impact assessment dated 9%
November 2020 completed by Ricardo Energy and Environment. The objective of this
report was to determine whether the release of carbon filtered odour emissions will
cause an exceedance of the appropriate odour benchmark. The assessment states
that the character, or hedonic tone, of odour is important in conjunction with
concentration of odour. Odours from a facility handling fresh cooking oil would
typically fall within the less offensive category, a facility processing used cooking oil
for recycling will fall within the moderately offensive category in terms of the tone of
the hedonic odour.

4.16 The assessment adds that the FIDOR acronym is important for considering the degree
of odour pollution (Frequency of detection, Intensity as perceived, Duration of
exposure, Offensiveness, Receptor sensitivity). The assessment included reference to
the Environment Agency’s guidance with respect to odour management that states
moderately offensive odours, such as odours arising from the operation of a used oil
processing facility, will be unacceptable should they exceed 3.0 OUE/m3 in odour

exposure level beyond the site boundary.

Odour Exposure Level R&nepﬁ;i:rll:sﬂivﬂy
=10 OUg/m?® Moderate Moderate
5-10 OUg/m? Slight Moderate Moderate
3-5 OUe/m?® MNegligible Slight Moderate
1.5-3 OUg/m?3 Megligible Meqgligible Slight
0.5-1.5 OUg/m?® Negligible MNegligible Megligible
<0.5 OUg/m?* Negligible Megligible MNegligible

Figure 1: Table showing odour effect with associated odour exposure level for ‘moderately offensive’ odours.

Page 13



5.0

4.17

4.18

4.19

The assessment also included the below figure which sets out the Institute of Air
Quality Management’s (IAQM) guidance with regards to impact associated with
calculated odour exposure levels.

A modelling exercise was undertaken to model potential odour impacts upon the
surrounding area from the proposed development. The model predicted the odour
concentration arising from the oil processing facility at a number of named receptors.
Discussion of the results will be set out in section 5 of this report.

Further to this a letter from a Principal Odour consultant from Ricardo was submitted
which considered cumulative odour impacts from the proposed development. This
letter concludes that there will be no cumulative or synergistic effects from having
the UCO and the existing digesters operating side by side and the odour will remain
negligible.

Policy Considerations and Evaluation

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
planning applications are determined in accordance with the development plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The development plan for this area comprises of:

e Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2016-2036 (BMWLP)
e Adopted Aylesbury Vale District Local Plan 2004 (AVDLP)

e Buckland Neighbourhood Plan

e Aston Clinton Neighbourhood Plan

Both the Buckland Neighbourhood Plan and the Aston Clinton Neighbourhood plan
have limited relevance to this proposal as neighbourhood plans cannot include
policies for ‘county matter’ i.e. minerals and waste development.

Other documents that need to be considered in determining this development
include:

e National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
e National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW)
e  Buckinghamshire Countywide Parking Guidance 2015

The following policies are considered to be relevant to this development:

Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (2016-2036) (BMWLP)

Policy 10: Waste Prevention and Minimisation in New Development
Policy 11: Waste Management Capacity Needs
Policy 13: Spatial Strategy for Waste Management

Policy 14: Development Principles for Waste Management Facilities

Page 14



Policy 16: Managing Impacts on Amenity and Natural Resources
Policy 17: Sustainable Transport

Policy 18: Natural Environment

Policy 19: Historic Environment

Policy 20: Landscape Character

Policy 22: Chilterns AONB

Policy 23: Design and Climate Change

Policy 24: Environmental Enhancement

Policy 26: Safeguarding of Minerals Development and Waste Management
Infrastructure

Adopted Aylesbury Vale District Local Plan 2004 (AVDLP):

5.6

5.7

Policy GP.8 Protecting Residential Amenity

Policy GP.24 Car Parking Guidelines

Policy GP.35 Design of new development proposals

Policy GP.38 Landscaping of new development proposals

Policy GP.39 Existing trees and hedgerows

Policy GP.40 Retention of existing trees and hedgerows

Policy GP.45 Secured by Design considerations

Policy GP.95 Unneighbourly uses

Policy RA.36 Development causing traffic adversely affecting rural roads

The draft Vale of Aylesbury Local Plan (2013-2033) (VALP) is considered to be at an
advanced stage of preparation and is a material consideration for the determination
of planning applications.

Emerging policies from the draft Vale of Aylesbury Local Plan (2013-2033) considered
to be relevant to the proposed development include:

S1 Sustainable development for Aylesbury Vale
C4 Protection of PROW

NE2 Biodiversity and geodiversity

NE4 The Chilterns AONB and setting

NE6 Pollution, air quality and contaminated land
NE9 Trees, hedgerows and woodlands

BE1 Heritage asset

Page 15



e BE2 Design of new development
e BE3: Protection of the amenity of residents
e T5 Vehicle Parking
e T7 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure
e T4 Delivering transport in new development
e |4 Flooding
e |1 Green Infrastructure
Evaluation

5.8 The main issues for consideration in relation to application CM/0037/20 are considered
to be:

e Principle of the Development
e Access, Vehicle Movements and Parking
e Design and Built Form

e Amenity

Principle of Development

Policy 11: Waste Management Capacity Needs

Policy 13: Spatial Strategy for Waste Management

Policy 14: Development Principles for Waste Management Facilities

Policy 26: Safeguarding of Minerals Development and Waste Management Infrastructure

5.9 Policy 11 of the BMWLP sets out the waste management capacity needs for
Buckinghamshire for the plan period. There is an indicative gap for the preparation of
the proposed waste stream for reuse or recycling. The development would move waste
up the waste hierarchy with waste filtered out of the oil being anaerobically digested
on site with the gas produced being converted to electricity (recovery). In addition, it
would allow for the re-use of used cooking oil in renewable fuel applications such as
the manufacture of bio-diesel (preparing for re-use). The application is therefore in
accordance with the above policy.

5.10 Policy 13 of the BMWLP sets out the spatial strategy for waste management within
Buckinghamshire. The policy states that the growth of Buckinghamshire’s sustainable
waste management network will be delivered by primarily focusing development of
facilities for the preparation of wastes for reuse and recycling and other recovery on
the main urban areas and growth locations of High Wycombe, Aylesbury and
Buckingham within existing general industrial and employment areas along with urban
extensions. The policy adds that opportunities to co-locate waste management

Page 16



facilities together and with complementary activities will be supported where
compliant with relevant BMWLP policies. The site is identified within the BMWLP as a
primary area of focus for waste management. The proposal would also facilitate the co-
location of two complementary waste management facilities and therefore is
supported in principle by this policy.

5.11 Policy 14 of the BMWLP states that proposals for waste management facilities must
demonstrate that the development: is in general compliance with the spatial strategy,
facilitates delivery of the waste management capacity requirements, identifies waste
streams to be treated, catchment area for the waste to be received on-site and end
date of any outputs, is complementary to the current or planned economic role, status
and uses of the employment area and enables communities and businesses to take
more responsibility for their own waste and supports management of waste in line with
the proximity principle and the waste hierarchy. Policy 14 also adds that proposals for
the development of facilities for recycling, treatment or other forms of recovery must
demonstrate that: energy, heat generated and residues are re-used where possible, the
proposed treatment process facilitates the efficient collection and recovery of waste
materials further up the waste hierarchy; and waste intended for recovery has
undergone prior-treatment.

5.12 In consideration of this policy, the development is thought to be compliant with the
spatial strategy and helps facilitate the waste management capacity requirements. The
applicant has stated that the oil processing facility will collect used oil from
Buckinghamshire through to west London and the surrounding counties and has
provided indicative drawings for this. The BMWLP accepts that some wastes are of a
nature that tend to require a regional catchment. It is considered that the proposed
catchment is acceptable due to the nature of the waste being processed.

5.13 The facility will supplement the provision of fresh oil which Olleco already provides at
another site and therefore will allow businesses to take more responsibility for their
waste oil via the processing at the proposed site. The proposed development also
collects food waste residues which would be re-used in the anaerobic digestion plant.
The proposed treatment process facilitates the efficient collection and recovery of
waste materials further up the waste hierarchy by processing waste oil to allow it to be
re-used. In addition to this, as set out in the original 2014 application CM/78/14 the
Olleco site is partnered with Arla to provide energy to help meet sustainability aims.
This relationship allows for the potential use of waste digestate to be used for fertilizer.
The proposed development would have a throughput of 20,800 tonnes (permitted MRF
had a throughput of 80,000 tonnes). A condition restricting the site as a whole
(including the anaerobic digesters) to a throughput of 130,000 tonnes of waste will be
attached to control the development similar to that under the extant CM/78/14
permission. In consideration of the above it is considered the development is in
accordance with policy 14 of the BMWLP.

Page 17



5.14 Policy 26 of the BMWLP seeks to safeguard existing waste management sites with
extant planning permission and associated infrastructure from other forms of
development. Whilst this development would result in the MRF not being built it is not
considered this development conflicts with Policy 26 as the use remains as a waste
development, albeit for a different waste stream. Whilst not directly linked to policy 26,
Appendix 2 to the BMWLP sets out waste development commitments at the end of
2016 and includes this site. As aforementioned, this site is identified as a primary area
of focus for waste management. As such, the proposed development is considered to

be supported by this policy and acceptable in principle in this location.

Transport matters and parking

Policy 17: Sustainable Transport

Policy GP.24 Car Parking Guidelines

Policy RA.36 Development causing traffic adversely affecting rural roads

T5 Vehicle Parking

T7 Electric Vehicle Infrastructure

T4 Delivering transport in new development

5.15

5.16

5.17

Policy 17 of the BMWLP requires proposals for waste development to include a
Transport Assessment addressing the following matters: identification and viability
for alternatives for road transport, identification of likely traffic flows, catchment
areas for waste and the destination of outputs, capacity of local highway network to
accommodate proposal, identification of any improvements to the transport network
necessary to reduce impact to an acceptable level, identification of any adverse
impacts from transporting waste on the community and any measures required to
minimise and/or avoid such impacts, emission control measures. Policy T4 of the
emerging VALP which should be attributed limited weight makes similar provision
and states development will only be permitted where the necessary mitigation is
provided against any unacceptable transport impacts.

Policy RA.36 states the council shall have regard to the desirability of protecting the
characteristics of the countryside from excessive traffic generation, including the
need to avoid traffic increases and routeing unsuited to rural roads.

With regards to transport matters and parking the application seeks to gain approval
for HGV movements generated by the oil processing plant and to rearrange the car
parking already at the site. The application included a transport assessment which set
out the additional trips that would be generated by the proposal. This has been in
turn reviewed by the Highway Authority who hold no objection subject to the
entering of the applicant into a S106 agreement to route HGVs via the A41 and other
strategic roads and two conditions. The conditions proposed set a limit of 194 two-
way HGV movements (97 in, 97 out) per day and seek to secure the proposed parking

Page 18



5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

scheme prior to the occupation of the development. It is considered that the
aforementioned condition limiting daily HGV movements and the securing of a
routeing agreement would address these matters adequately and therefore the
proposal is in accordance with policy 17 of the BMWLP, T4 of the emerging VALP and
Policy RA.36 of the AVDLP.

Policy GP.24 of the AVDLP sets out the car parking provision guidelines for the
Aylesbury Vale area. The aim of the policy is to promote more sustainable transport
options establishing maximum levels of parking appropriate to the development.
Policy T5 of the emerging VALP which should be attributed moderate weight makes
similar provision stating development must provide an appropriate level of parking
taking into account the accessibility of the site and the type, mix and use of the
development.

A proposed 69 spaces (22 new spaces) would be provided for a total of 82 staff (64
associated with the UCO facility) which equates to 1 space per 0.84 staff. As the
facility would run 24hrs a day there would of course be associated shift changes to
provide for this. The increased parking provision has largely been provided via a
rearrangement of areas already used for parking on the site.

The transport assessment contains a breakdown of the shift pattern for workers. This
submission demonstrates the proposed car park would have enough capacity to cope
with shift changes. Olleco also encourage ‘green travel’ as part of their wider
corporate objectives regarding climate change. The measures include:
encouragement to use the companies ‘cycle to work’ scheme, requiring employees to
apply for car permits, consideration of providing a bus for employees similar to Arla
and encouraging flexible working where possible. Also, any issues with regards to
parking can be addressed as they arise as the site will take time to reach capacity.

It is considered that the parking proposed is appropriate for the proposed use and
therefore in accordance with policy T5 of the emerging VALP and GP.24 of the
AVDLP.

Policy T7 of the emerging VALP which should be attributed moderate weight sets out
the requirements for electric infrastructure at employment sites. The policy states
fast charge electric vehicle charging points must be provide at employment sites and
provided at a minimum rate of 1 point per 25 parking spaces. The proposed
development includes 69 spaces (2 disabled) with 11 having access to charging
points, this exceeds the requirements of this policy and is therefore considered to be
in accordance.

Covered parking for 16 cycles is also to be provided. The Buckinghamshire
Countywide Parking Guidance 2015 advises 1 cycle parking spot per 500m2. This
exceeds the requirement. There is also 6 spaces for motorcycles. The guidance states
there should be 1 space per 30 car parking spaces. This proposal exceeds this
recommendation.

Page 19



Design and Built Form

BE2 Design of new development

NE4 The Chilterns AONB and setting

Policy 22: Chilterns AONB

Policy 23: Design and Climate Change

Policy GP.35 Design of new development proposals

Policy GP.45 Secured by Design considerations

5.24 Policy 23 of the BMWLP seeks to secure high quality design which minimises adverse

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

effects on and from climate change. The policy requires proposed development:
incorporates design elements that are visually attractive and add to the overall
quality of the area, reflects local character respecting designated areas including
Areas of Outstanding National Beauty and Green Belt, incorporates safety and
security measures, complies with principles of sustainable design and construction,
applies SUDs where possible, minimises greenhouse emissions and ‘climate proofs’
development and utilises native species in planting schemes. Great weight is to be
given to outstanding and innovative design.

Policy GP.35 of the AVDLP states the design of new design proposals should respect
and complement: the physical characteristics of the site and the surroundings, the
building tradition, ordering, form and materials of the locality, the historic scale and
context of the setting, the natural qualities and features of the area and the effect on
important public views and skylines. Policy BE2 of the VALP should be attributed
moderate weight and makes similar provision.

Policy 22 of the BMWLP states waste development should conserve and enhance the
AONB. Policy NE4 of the emerging VALP makes similar provision.

The overall design of the building is similar to the other buildings in the area including
the Symmetry Park development and Arla facilities. It is proposed that the oil
processing facility will have ‘strike and miss’ patterning with coloured cladding
varying from light grey to dark green. This helps break up the visual appearance of
the building and protect views from the AONB of the site. The building is 14.825m at
its highest point which is 1.825m taller than the existing buildings it adjoins at its
highest point but is not dissimilar to the other buildings contained within the
industrialised area north of the A41. The footprint of the building is modest in
comparison to the scale of the other facilities in the surrounding area. The colouring
and design of the building is considered to be appropriate in consideration of the site
and its surrounding. The permitted MRF which has materiality as a fallback is
14.825m in height and occupies a similar footprint.

The site has permission to erect a similar building in scale and with regards to design
is considered to be material. This new scheme incorporates the ‘strike and miss’
patterning and has a coloured roof which should reduce visual impacts.

Page 20



5.29

5.30

Consideration with regards to sustainable design will be set out in paragraphs 5.70-
5.75.

Policy GP.45 states that the design and layout of all planning applications should
incorporate measures to assist crime prevention and help reduce risks to personal
safety. The majority of the site is already functioning under planning permission
CM/78/14 and the boundaries secured accordingly. No comments have been
received from the Crime Prevention Officer and therefore | consider that the
proposed development is in compliance with this policy too.

Amenity of existing and future residents

Policy 16: Managing Impacts on Amenity and Natural Resources

Policy GP.8 Protecting Residential Amenity

Policy GP.95 Unneighbourly uses

NE6 Pollution, air quality and contaminated land

BE3: Protection of the amenity of residents

5.31

5.32

5.33

5.34

5.35

Policy 16 of the BMWLP seeks to manage impact upon amenity and natural
resources. The policy requires minerals and waste development to demonstrate the
development is environmentally feasible, secures a good standard of amenity and
would not give rise to unacceptable adverse impacts.

Policy GP.8 of the AVDLP states that planning permission will not be granted where
the proposed development would unreasonably harm any aspect of the amenity of
nearby residents when considered against the benefits of the proposal. It also advises
the council use conditions to ensure adverse impacts are appropriately controlled.
Policy BE3 of the emerging VALP which should be attributed considerable weight
makes similar provision and Policy GP.95 of the AVDLP supplements this requiring
development pays regard to the protection of the amenities of existing uses.

Policy NE6 of the emerging VALP which should also be attributed considerable weight
sets out requirements for development which generates significant noise pollution,
light pollution and/or impacts upon air quality and/or is affected by contaminated
land.

Representations from the public and from the local parish councils and councillors
largely centred around the topic of odour emissions from the existing anaerobic
digester.

Considering the issue of odour, it is important to state that the anaerobic digester at
the Olleco site has planning permission (CM/78/14) and a current s73 application is
to be approved in accordance with a resolution from the Strategic Sites Committee
(CM/0022/20). The resolution includes that a condition be attached to the planning
permission to be issued which requires the Odour Management Strategy for the site

Page 21



5.36

5.37

5.38

5.39

to be reviewed every 5 years to ensure the strategy is reflective of operations and
any updates in odour technology / best practice.

The development before committee is an application for an oil processing facility
largely in the footprint of the approved materials recycling facility building. In support
of the application the applicant submitted an odour statement and an odour impact
assessment. The objective of the assessment was to determine whether the release
of carbon filtered emissions from the oil processing facility would exceed odour
benchmarks. The assessment identified potential receptors to odour within the site’s
vicinity and assigned them a sensitivity in accordance with IAQM guidance. High
sensitivity receptors may include dwellings, hospitals and schools, medium sensitivity
receptors may include workplaces and commercial premises, low sensitivity
receptors may include industrial uses, farms and footpaths.

As shown in Figure 1 above, more sensitive receptors have more significant impacts
associated with odour exposure levels. For example, ‘moderately offensive odours’ at
an odour exposure level of 3.0 OUE/m3 is ascribed a slight effect descriptor at a
highly sensitive receptor but is ascribed negligible effects for medium and low
sensitive receptors.

214500 +=gr—rrsymarmeie— A ;
hASS L\ Farm S '\ 1\ p A\
MR ’ ' = : Y \/ B
k lf\:-‘.-‘:u-" ,'/ ¢ / h ,v) » A” : k:\
R PN " ) A o AN
mcad\{n\; r® 19 5 % « .‘,J.-: \\\\
m o \ ) N
e Ropt ©
e -

214000t

2 ‘
E Point D
\ V4 +
21350041 Al \\l k
\ bt??cherry F;’m- -:‘ ""«\_ 1
487000 487500 488000 488500 489000

Figure 2: Odour concentrations for the oil processing plant. (contours 0.2,0.5,1.5 and 2
OUE/m3
Full results are set out within the assessment but for clarity a few key conclusions will
be set out in this report. Figure 2 shows the odour exposure contours the model
predicted for the oil processing plant.

As shown by figure 2, as would be expected the further from the source the lower
the expected concentration. All the identified receptors are modelled to experience
‘negligible’ effects as per the IAQM guidance. An odour exposure level between 1.5-3

Page 22



5.40

541

5.42

5.43

5.44

5.45

OUE/m3 at a high sensitivity receptor would be ascribed a slight odour impact as per
the IAQM table in Figure 1.

From the results it is evident that at the closest receptors the odour produced from
this development would be thought to be negligible. As per the assessment, a
negligible condition is where odour is unlikely to cause any harm to amenity. It is
noted that there are moorings along the canal near the footpath receptor modelling
point (Point Kb). At point Kb the modelled odour concentration is set at 1.7 (OUE/m3
, 98th%ile 1 hr). As per figure 1, at a high sensitivity receptor an odour concentration
of that nature might have a slight impact upon amenity.

As aforementioned, a letter from a Principle Odour Consultant at Ricardo has
considered any risk of cumulative impacts from this development and concluded the
odour beyond the boundary would remain negligible. The consultant adds that Olleco
have not been in breach of their permit for nearly two years including with regards to
controls on odour. Control of odour is principally addressed by the site’s
Environmental Permit and therefore the Environment Agency is the primary
regulator with respect to odour. It is also noted that an odour management strategy
is required of the site under the extant permission and the review of said document
is to be required every 5 years under application CM/0022/20 upon determination. It
is considered that a condition requiring an odour management strategy for this
development should be attached to any planning permission that may be granted.

In consideration of policy, it is clear the development plan seeks to ensure waste
development secures a good standard of amenity and would not give rise to
unacceptable adverse impacts. Where development would unreasonably harm any
aspect of the amenity of nearby residents when considered against the benefits of
the proposal, it should be refused. This application is not considered to give rise to
unacceptable adverse impacts upon amenity with regards to odour.

The Environment Agency were consulted on this application but did not offer any
significant comment but included guidance with regards to pollution control. The
Aylesbury Vale area Environmental Health Officer was also consulted on this
application and responded holding no objections on the basis it was unlikely that
with the suggested controls in place (carbon filtering) this development will give rise
to any significant odour issues for adjacent occupiers

With regards to noise, the primary generation of noise from the site will be from the
operation of vehicles. The extant permission CM/78/14 established that the overall
site noise including site transportation noise sources must not exceed 53dBLAeq
16hrs during the day and 43 dBLAeq 8hrs during the night. It is considered that a
condition to this effect should be attached to this permission to safeguard the
amenity of the local area. To supplement this, a condition requiring white noise
reversing alarms will be attached.

With regards to lighting to safeguard amenity and biodiversity in the local area, in
accordance with policy NE6 of the VALP and Policy 16 of the BMWLP, a condition

Page 23



5.46

5.47

requiring the approval by the Local Planning Authority of any additions to the lighting
scheme shall be attached. A condition securing the implementation of the lighting
control strategy detailed within the Lighting Statement, Ridings Consulting Engineers
Ltd (dated 11t January 2020) will be attached, and a condition requiring the use of
only downward lighting will also be attached.

With regards to visual amenity, the extant permission has permission for a materials
recycling facility with similar dimensions. It is not considered this scheme is any more
impactful than the fallback.

In consideration of the above it is considered that this development might have a
minor amenity impact upon the surrounding area. This should be balanced against
the merits of the proposal.

Flooding and drainage

Policy 16: Managing Impacts on Amenity and Natural Resources

|4 Flooding

5.48

5.49

5.50

5.51

5.52

Policy 16 of the BMWLP states all proposals for minerals and waste development
must demonstrate the proposed development would not give rise to unacceptable
impacts on the quality and quantity of water resources (including ground and surface
wasters), Source Protection Zones and flood risk.

Policy 14 of the emerging VALP looks to manage and reduce flood risk through the use
of site-specific flood risk assessments and demonstration of surface water discharged
rates in storm events with allowances for climate change. The policy also seeks to
ensure new development designs and utilises sustainable drainage systems (SuDs) for
the effective management of surface water off and on site. As well as seeking to
reduce flood risk, these systems should also seek to reduce pollution and provide
landscape and wildlife benefits.

The site benefits from underground tanks which capture rainwater for use on the site
which provides a sustainable use for the water generated by this area of the
development.

The LLFA hold no objection to the development subject to conditions securing the
drainage layout and the submission of a maintenance plan and accept the above
approach to runoff which will be re-used and discharged to overflow in more
extreme events. The aforementioned condition should be attached to any planning
permission.

It is considered the development would not give rise to unacceptable impacts on the
guality and quantity of water resources, Source Protection Zones or Flood Risk and
does make use of SuDs as appropriate. The development is therefore considered to
be in accordance with the above policies.

Ecology, Biodiversity and Landscape

Policy 18: Natural Environment

Page 24



Policy 20: Landscape Character

Policy 24: Environmental Enhancement

Policy GP.38 Landscaping of new development proposals

Policy GP.39 Existing trees and hedgerows

Policy GP.40 Retention of existing trees and hedgerows

NE2 Biodiversity and geodiversity

NE9 Trees, hedgerows and woodlands

11 Green Infrastructure

5.53

5.54

5.55

5.56

5.57

5.58

5.59

Policy 18 of the BMWLP seeks to protect and enhance natural assets and resources
and states developments should provide net gains in biodiversity.

Policy 20 of the BMWLP seeks to ensure Minerals and Waste development protects
and enhances valued landscape in a manner commensurate with their status. This is
often through a Landscape Impact Assessment which considers a number of factors.

Policy 24 of the BMWLP states proposals for new or extensions to existing waste
development must incorporate measures on-site and/or off-site to enhance
Buckinghamshire’s environmental assets and green infrastructure networks. This
includes opportunities to deliver net gains for biodiversity net gain and the positive
integration of the site within the wider landscape.

Policy GP.38 of the AVDLP states new proposals should include landscaping proposals
designed to help buildings fit in with and complement their surroundings, and
conserve existing natural and other features of value as far as possible

Policy GP.39 of the AVDLP requires that for applications affecting trees and hedges an
arboricultural report is made and conditions on planning permissions should be
imposed to ensure the retention and protection of trees and hedgerows of
landscape, amenity or wildlife importance. Policy GP.40 of the AVDLP supplements
this stating that in dealing with applications the council will oppose loss of trees in
particular black poplars and hedgerows of amenity, landscape or wildlife value.

Policy NE2 of the emerging VALP states protection and enhancement of biodiversity,
geodiversity and the natural environment will be achieved by: securing a net gain in
biodiversity on greenfield sites, international important sites and species are to be
protected, and development likely to have impact on nationally important sites
(SSSls) will not normally be permitted. Policy NE9 makes similar provision to the
aforementioned policies and states development resulting in a loss of trees is
resisted.

Policy 11 of the emerging VALP which should be attributed moderate weight makes
similar provisions to the above policies and seeks to ensure that the green
infrastructure network is maintained and enhanced where appropriate.

Page 25



5.60 As previously noted, the proposed building would be constructed instead of the
materials recycling facility approved under permission CM/78/14. The landscaping
scheme planted as part of the 2011 Arla Dairy consent is well established and issues
with regards to ecology and flood risk were considered at that stage. It is therefore
considered a Landscape Impact Assessment is not necessary.

5.61 The footprint where the building would be erected is noted by the applicant to have
no ecological value and therefore no biodiversity would be lost via this proposal. The
council’s ecologist disagrees with the statement from the applicant as the ‘summary
sheet’ (dated January 2021) includes photos which indicate the site supports habitat
with potential to support protected species. The council’s ecologist states that
government guidance sets out that the presence of protected species and the extent
to which they may be harmed should be considered prior to consent. However, on
this occasion it is not considered necessary for a reptile survey to be carried out for
the rationale outlined in the following paragraph. It is instead recommended that a
condition be attached which ensures any nesting birds and/or reptiles that may be
present within the site are protected from harm during construction and site
clearance. This will require a Method Statement being submitted prior to
commencement.

5.62 The unbuilt area of the Olleco site is small and relatively isolated from other semi-
natural habitats which means this habitat will have limited importance to any
reptiles, if present. As such the council’s ecologist holds no objection subject to the
aforementioned condition being attached to any permission.

5.63 The council’s Ecologist also considered the potential impacts from artificial lighting
which can impact upon wildlife and upon receiving clarification, has no further
comments with regards to lighting but requests upward fittings should be replaced
with downward light fittings.

5.64 The changes to the car parking would remove some small grassed areas but this is
considered to be de minimis.

5.65 Itis therefore considered that the development is in accordance with policies 18 and
24 of the BMWLP, policies GP.38, GP.39 and GP.40 of the AVDLP and policies NE2,
NE9 and |1 of the emerging VALP.

Historic Environment
Policy 19: Historic Environment
BE1 Heritage asset

5.66 Policy 19 of the BMWLP and policy BE1 of the emerging VALP (which should be
attributed moderate weight) both seek to ensure the preservation of the historic
environment and where possible enhance it.

Page 26



5.67

5.68

5.69

Paragraph 190 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities should identify and
assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by the
proposal (including by development affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking
account of the available evidence and any necessary expertise. They should take this
into account when considering the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid
or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of
the proposal.

Paragraph 193 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should
be given to the asset’s conservation. The same paragraph states that this great
weight should be applied irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to
substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.

There is one listed Grade Il listed bridge to the north east of the site roughly 30m
from the site boundary. This is the only heritage asset within the vicinity of the site. It
is considered the existing bunding and landscape planting is sufficient to mean any
harm upon the heritage asset and its setting would not be considered to be
substantial. In addition to this, the fallback permission includes provision for a
building of similar scale. Therefore, it is considered the application is in accordance
with the above policies.

Sustainability

Policy S1 Sustainable development for Aylesbury Vale

Policy 10: Waste Prevention and Minimisation in New Development

Policy 23 Design and Climate Change

5.70

5.71

5.72

Policy S1 of the VALP which should be attributed considerable weight states all
development must comply with the principle of sustainable development set out in
the NPPF i.e. that achieving sustainable development has three overarching
objectives, economic, social and environmental. It also states that when assessing
proposals consideration should be given to minimising impacts on local communities,
minimising impacts on heritage assets, sensitive landscapes and biodiversity.

With regards to sustainability policy 23 of the BMWLP adds developments should
comply with principles of sustainable design and construction, minimise greenhouse
emissions and ‘climate proof’ development.

The proposed development utilises translucent roof panels to allow natural light into
the facility reducing lighting use within the building. LED lighting is also used within
the building to reduce energy consumption. The development is also proposed to
utilise 11 electric car parking spaces which exceeds policy requirements. These
spaces would be powered by energy generated on site by the anaerobic digestion
plant. The development also helps to reuse waste and is sustainable in this way.

Page 27



5.73 Policy 10 of the BMWLP seeks to ensure that developments include design principles
and construction methods that minimise the use of primary minerals, make use of
recycled and alternative materials and use construction methods that minimise
waste production and maximise re-use and recovery of materials on-site.

5.74 In consideration of Policy 10 of the BMWLP the applicant is happy to accept a
condition requiring the submission of a waste management plan which can minimise
waste during construction.

5.75 In consideration of the above the application is considered to be in accordance with
the above policies.

Other matters
C4 Protection of PROW
Policy 24: Environmental Enhancement

5.76 Policy C4 of the emerging VALP which should be given moderate weight seeks to
ensure the Council will enhance and protect public rights of way to ensure the
integrity and connectivity of this resource. Policy 24 of the BMWLP also seeks to
retain routes where possible.

5.77 This application does not seek to close or redirect any footpaths, nor does it appear
to cause unacceptable harm upon the routes. It is noted that the Council’s Rights of
Way Officer held no objection but suggested a contribution from the applicant
towards works along the canal route. Considering this, it is not considered that a
contribution is necessary to make the development acceptable, it is not relevant to
the development proposed and therefore a requirement should not be attached to
any S.106 agreement.

5.78 As mentioned, the site is adjacent to the Aylesbury Arm of the Grand Union Canal.
When being consulted upon the application, the Canal and River Trust noted the site
is close to a lock that has collapsed previously. As the applicant confirmed the
building would use pile driven foundations, citing paragraphs 178 and 179 of the
NPPF, the Canal and River Trust requested a pre-commencement condition to secure
details of works and a monitoring methodology. The condition also requires that a
condition survey is conducted after completion of piling works to demonstrate that
no damage to the structural integrity of the canal has been caused by the works and
that any remedial work necessary shall be carried out as agreed before the
development is brought into use. It is considered a condition to the effect of the
above is necessary.

5.79 Compliance with the Human Rights Act (1998) is a material planning consideration
and has been taken into consideration in making this decision.

6.0 Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment

6.1 In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in accordance

Page 28



7.0

6.2

6.3

with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In
addition, Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the Town and Country
Planning Act relating to the determination of planning applications and states that in
dealing with planning applications, the authority shall have regard to:

a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,

b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application
(such as CIL if applicable), and,

c. Any other material considerations

As set out above it is considered that the proposed development broadly complies
with the policies referenced in this report. In consideration of this and any other
relevant material considerations it is recommended the application should be
granted planning permission subject to conditions as set out in section 8 of this
report.

Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must have
due regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which may result
from socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not considered that this
proposal would disadvantage any sector of society to a harmful extent.

Working with the applicant / agent

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

The applicant and agent put forward revisions to the original proposal in October
2020. Through discussions with the council, a scheme which was acceptable under
the current application was progressed.

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach decision-
taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to development
proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with applicants to secure
developments.

The Council has worked with the applicant/agent in a positive and proactive manner
and as appropriate updated them of any issues that arose in the processing of their
application.

In this instance:

e the applicant/agent was updated of any issues after the consultation period

e throughout the determination of the application officers and the agent engaged
to create a better design in receipt of consultee comments. This included new
‘strike and miss’ patterning and the inclusion of electric car charging spaces.

e The applicant was provided the opportunity to submit amendments to the
scheme/address issues and provide further information.

e The application was determined without delay.

e The application was considered by the Planning Committee where the
applicant/agent had the opportunity to speak to the committee and promote the
application.

Page 29



8.0

Recommendation

8.1 Subject to the applicant entering in to an appropriate S. 106 Planning Obligation to
apply the requirements with regard to routing the Strategic Sites Committee
INDICATES SUPPORT for application CM/0037/20 and DELEGATES Authority to the
Service Director for Planning and Environment to grant planning permission subject
to detailed conditions to be finalised including the conditions set out in Section 8 of
this report.

8.2 Proposed Conditions:

1. The development shall commence no later than three years from the date of
this consent. No later than seven days before the date of commencement,
written notification shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning
permissions, to enable the Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of
the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the
provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended).

2. Unless agreed otherwise in writing by the County Planning Authority, the
development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in
complete accordance with the following details submitted with the
application:

e Planning Statement — Revised Scheme (dated November 2020)

e Proposed Site Layout, Drawing No 28813-(01)-001 Rev P04 (dated 30t
November 2020)

e Proposed Elevations and Sections, Drawing No. 001 Rev P03 (dated
25% January 2021)

e Proposed Ground Floor Plans, Drawing No. 002 Rev P01 (dated 29t
October 2020)

e Proposed First Floor, Drawing No.003 Rev P01 (dated 29t October
2020)

e Site Location, Drawing No. OLL-HP22-02 (dated 10t June 2020)

e Odour impact assessment for the Synergy Project, Ricardo (dated 9t
November 2020)

e Boiler Emissions Details

e External Lighting Layout, Drawing No. 20125-RCE-LTG-XX-DR-E-0001
Rev P02 (dated 9t" November 2020)

Page 30



e External Lighting Information, Project Number 28813 (dated 29t
October 2020)

e Lighting Statement, Ridings Consulting Engineers Ltd (dated 11t
January 2020)

e Drainage Statement. Project Ref: 28783/DJC/DCR (dated September
2020)

e Proposed Drainage Layout Drawing No. 28783-101 P3 (dated 26™"
January 2021)

e Proposed Area Run Off Volume, prepared by Micro Drainage (dated
26% January 2021)

e SUDS Information Email (dated 4t January 2020)

e Letter from GCP Consulting Engineers RE: Foundations (dated 14t
September 2020)

e Optima Highways ES Scope Technical Note (dated June 2020)
e Cover Letter (dated 25 June 2020)

e Odour Statement (dated 25 June 2020)

e Planning Application Description (dated 8t June 2020)

e Further information from Agent (dated 15 January 2021)

e Cumulative Odour Impact Letter, prepared by Ricardo Ref:
ED12482187

e Summary Sheet (dated January 2021)

e Hydrogen Sulphide Monitoring Assessment, prepared by Ricardo for
Application CM/0022/20 (dated 30t January 2019)

e Application Form

e Transport Statement Rev 2, Optima (dated November 2020)

Reason: To define the development permitted and to control the operations
in accordance with Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan Policy 16.

Construction of the development shall not occur other than between the
hours of 07:30 — 18:00 Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 — 13:00 Saturdays, and with
no work on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the local area

and to comply with policies 16 and 17 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and
Waste Local Plan.

Page 31



4. The combined maximum annual waste throughput from this site, including
waste imported under planning permission CM/78/14 or any subsequent
variations, shall not exceed 130,000 tonnes per annum.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the local area and to comply with
policy 16 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan.

5. The combined maximum total HGV movements accessing and egressing the
site, including movements associated with planning permission CM/78/14 or
any subsequent variations, shall not exceed 194 (97 in, 97 out) per day.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the local area
and to comply with policies 16 and 17 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and
Waste Local Plan.

6. Prior to the occupation of the development the proposed parking
arrangements set out on the Proposed Site Layout, Drawing No 28813-(01)-
001 Rev P04 (dated 30" November 2020) shall be completed. This includes
the provision of disabled parking, electric vehicle parking, and cycle parking in
accordance with plan. These arrangements shall be retained for the lifetime
of the development unless an alternative scheme is approved by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway to
minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining
highway, and to provide suitable parking to encourage sustainable travel to
and from the development in accordance with policies 16 and 17 of the
Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan.

7. A combined record of the number of daily vehicle movements and the
tonnage of waste being imported to the site, including movements associated
with planning permission CM/78/14 or any subsequent variations, shall be
maintained for the duration of the development hereby permitted and shall
be made available to the Local Planning Authority no later than one week
after any request to view them has been made.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the local area
and to comply with policies 16 and 17 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and
Waste Local Plan.

8. The overall site noise including site transportation noise sources must not
exceed 53dBLAeq 16hrs during the day and 43 dBLAeq 8hrs during the night.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the local area and to comply with
policy 16 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan.

9. Vehicles, plant and machinery operating within the site shall be maintained

and fitted with silencers in accordance with manufacturers’ specification at all
times.

Page 32



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the local area and to comply with
policy 16 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan.

No additional lighting shall be erected or otherwise provided on the site
without prior written approval from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of biodiversity and the amenities of the local area and
to comply with policy 16 and 18 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste
Local Plan.

No upward lighting shall be installed on site. Any existing upward lighting shall
be replaced with direct downward emitting fittings prior to the first use of the
used cooking oil facility.

Reason: In the interests of biodiversity and the amenities of the local area and
to comply with policy 16 and 18 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste
Local Plan.

Lighting shall be controlled in accordance with the provisions set out within
Lighting Statement, Ridings Consulting Engineers Ltd (dated 11th January
2020).

Reason: In the interests of biodiversity and the amenities of the local area and
to comply with policy 16 and 18 of the Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste
Local Plan.

Within 3 months of the date of this planning consent an Odour Management
Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning
Authority. The strategy shall include reference to the following aspects:

- Specific odour sources within the waste streams presented in the
used cooking oil facility, respectively

- Measures in place at the site in order to identify, isolate and/or
restrict inherently odorous waste streams

The Odour Management Strategy shall be implemented thereafter in
accordance with the approved details for the duration of the development

Reason: To protect occupants of nearby residential premises from loss of
amenity from odour and in accordance with Buckinghamshire Minerals and
Waste Local Plan Policy 16 and Aylesbury Vale District Council Local Plan
Policies GP.8 and GP.95.

The odour management strategy, pursuant to condition 13 of this decision,

shall be reviewed every 5 years from the date of its approval by the Local
Planning Authority. This review shall ensure that the strategy is reflective of

Page 33



15.

16.

any operational changes at the site and any updates in odour technology/
best practice.

Reason:

To protect occupants of nearby residential premises from loss of amenity
from odour and in accordance with Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste
Local Plan Policy 16 and Aylesbury Vale District Council Local Plan Policies
GP.8 and GP.95.

No development shall take place (including any ground works or site
clearance) until a Method Statement for reptiles and nesting birds has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
content of the method statement shall include the:

i purpose and objectives for the proposed works;

ii. detailed design(s) and/or working method(s) necessary to achieve
stated objectives (including, where relevant, type and source of
materials to be used);

iii. extent and location of proposed works shown on appropriate scale
maps and plans;

iv. timetable for implementation, demonstrating that works are aligned
with the proposed phasing of construction;
V. persons responsible for implementing the works;
Vi. initial aftercare and long-term maintenance (where relevant);
vii. disposal of any wastes arising from works.

The works shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
approved details and shall be retained in that manner thereafter.

Reason: For the protection of breeding birds and reptiles (European Protected
Species) and in accordance with Buckinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local
Plan Policy 18.

No work shall be carried out on site until details of the methodology, risk
assessment and schedule of works for the piled foundations have been
submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. These
details shall include a suitable method of vibration monitoring to ensure that
the nearby canal infrastructure is not damaged as a result of the works as well
as a pre-commencement condition survey of the waterway infrastructure.

Following completion of the piling works a further condition survey shall be
carried out and the details submitted to the Local Planning Authority to
demonstrate that no damage to the structural integrity of the canal has been
caused by these works. Any remedial work necessary shall be carried out as
agreed before the development is brought into use.

Reason: To ensure that the structural integrity of the Aylesbury Arm of the
Grand Union canal is protected and to prevent harm to the canal during the
demolition and construction phases, in compliance with the NPPF 2019, para
178 & 179.

Page 34



17.

18.

19.

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved Proposed Drainage Layout (28783-101 P3,
25.01.2021, GGP Consult Ltd.)

Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory disposal and storage
of surface water from the site and to ensure that surface water is managed in
a sustainable manner, in accordance with Paragraph 163 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019).

Prior to commencement a Waste Management Plan shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Waste Management
Plan shall demonstrate sustainable design and construction methods to be
employed which minimises use of primary minerals, makes use of recycled
and alternative materials, minimises waste production and maximises re-use
and recovery of materials on-site.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the particulars so
approved.

Reason: To secure sustainable design and construction methods which
minimise use of primary minerals, make use of recycled and alternative
materials and use construction methods that that minimise waste production
and maximise re-use and recovery of materials on-site in accordance with
Policy 10 of the BMWLP.

Prior to the first use of the development a whole-life maintenance plan for
the site must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The plan shall set out how and when to maintain the full drainage
system (e.g. a maintenance schedule for each drainage/SuDS component),
with details of who is to be responsible for carrying out the maintenance. The
plan shall also include as as-built drawings and/or photographic evidence of
the drainage scheme carried out by a suitably qualified person. The plan shall
subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that arrangements have been arranged and agreed for the

long-term maintenance of the drainage system as required under Paragraph
165 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019).

Page 35



APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations

Councillor Comments

Clir Allison Harrison — No comments received.
Clir Mary Stamp — No comments received.
Clir Julie Ward — No comments received.

Clir Bill Chapple OBE — | am one of the local members for this area where Olleco is situated so | would like
to object to this as they have not solved the odours coming from this site since they first occupied these
buildings

When they first applied for the original planning permission they said there would be no odour outside
their boundary, the residents in the area will tell you a totally different story.

I’'m afraid | cannot attend the virtual meeting so please take this letter as my objection to this application

| am objecting as local member and ask that this is dealt with at an open committee to allow local people to
attend

Many thanks

Bill Chapple OBE

Clir Michael Collins - No comments received.
Clir Carole Paternoster —

19% January 2021

Yes, | do want this application to be decided by the Strategic Sites Committee due to the fact that the
continued release of odours from this site has a harmful effect on the amenity of neighbours. This problem
still exists and fails to show any improvement.

These odours affect both residential and commercial properties in the area, and it is important that an
application which could make the odour problem even worse is debated in public and decided by
Members.

| have objected to this application and therefore have a personal interest, but not a prejudicial interest.
Because | am predetermined | will not sit as a Member of the Strategic Sites Committee when this
application comes before that Committee.

11" December 2020
| object to this planning application for the following reasons:

There have been problems with the escape of odours from this waste food processing site since it opened,
to the detriment of local residents who have to live with these foul odours pervading their homes and

gardens. When the initial planning application was submitted, Olleco stated that there would be no odours
outside the site boundary. This has definitely not been the case, and odour spillage seems to be worsening.

There have been many meetings between Olleco, local residents, parish councils and Local Members.
Promises are made by Olleco that the problem will improve, but this has never been the case. When

Page 36



complaints are made to Olleco, excuses are found for the odours escaping, such as problems with the
doors, or even a bird in the depackaging building, and yet no improvement takes place. In fact some
complaints are dismissed by Olleco as not having taken place due to the wind blowing in the opposite
direction. Those local residents, walkers, cyclists, and others using the Lower Buckland road know this is
definitely not the case.

This current planning application is to process cooking oil, which will only increase the odour pollution
surrounding the Olleco site. The odour impact survey submitted with this application states: 'The ultimate
objective is that they operate their site to prevent offensive odours being perceived beyond the site
boundary. This objective does not equate to their being the complete absence of odour. ... the operator
must ensure that they employ appropriate measures to control the site emissions.' Therefore Olleco now
admit that there will be foul odours outside the site boundary to the detriment of local residents, the
general public and canal users, not to mention commercial premises nearby.

The odour impact survey looks at odour outside the site boundary. It looks at odour impact remaining
constant for an hour: 'at some distance from a source it would be unusual if an odour concentration
remained constant foran hour."......... 'A population may be exposed to short term concentrations that
are higher than the hourly average.' In other words, there will be odours and local residents and others will
just have to put up with it.

The receptors taken into consideration in the odour impact survey do not reflect the true picture. Canal
Farm, the nearest property to the Olleco site at only 180m, is described as an agricultural building, not a
residential property which it is. Workmen already on that site have complained about having to work in the
foul odours from Olleco. Houses in College Road South are classed as 'high', and yet houses in Buckland
Village, which is closer to the site, are completely ignored. Canal boats are also ignored. The odour impact
survey concludes: 'Changes to odour levels would be negligible'. .. .. i.e. odour should not be detectable'.
If only this were the case, but sadly it is not!

Olleco have failed to operate the current plant without allowing foul odours to escape beyond their site
boundary to the detriment of local residents and other people. Therefore no further development should
be allowed to take place on the site until the current odour problem has been eliminated. Since design
changes may be required to make the current buildings odour-tight, no further construction should take
place on this site until that work has been carried out and there are no further odours detectable outside
the site boundary.

This planning application for further processing of oil and waste is contrary to planning policies G8 and
GP95 of AVDLP, para 170(e) of the NPPF and policy BP9 of the Buckland Neighbourhood Plan. The proposed
development will have a detrimental effect on residential amenity, the local environment, including the
Grand Union Canal, and should be refused.

If, in spite of this, the application is permitted, then | support the request by the Canal & Rivers Trust that a
pre-commencement condition is attached to any planning consent requiring details of proposed works to
be submitted to and approved by the Trust in order to ensure the structural integrity of the Aylesbury Arm
canal.

17 August 2020

| object to this planning application for the following reasons: This application is to increase the activities on
the current Olleco site by erecting a further building for the processing of cooking oil.

Page 37



Ever since this site first went into production there have been major problems with odours escaping
beyond the boundary, to the detriment of local residents, users of the canal facility and walkers and cyclists
trying to enjoy the countryside in Lower Buckland. Buckland Parish Council and local residents (and there
are residential properties within 200m of this site) have had numerous meetings with Olleco to try to stop
this odour problem, but without success. Before planning consent was granted local residents were
promised on several occasions by Sandra Pugh of Olleco that there would be no odours outside the site
boundary.

Despite all these meetings and the involvement of the Environment Agency, as well as promises given by
Olleco, these sickening odours continue to this day. These odours have made passers-by physically sick, and
| have had to go home and wash all my clothes and hair, and still been unable to get rid of the stench. As
Councillors we receive numerous complaints from ramblers, families trying to enjoy the countryside,
cyclists, walkers and residents. On bad days the odours even reach Buckland and Aston Clinton village
centres.

Every time complaints are made to Olleco, the staff always find excuses. A recent example, when a local
resident complained that the stench was even inside his house, the response from Olleco was that they
'had an issue with the depack hall doors'. If an airlock is needed on this existing building, then room must
be found for it. Either there is a major problem with the design of this site or with the way in which the site
is currently being used. Whatever the problem is, it must be put right so as to cause no odour problems
outside the site boundary, as already promised, before any consideration can be given to any further
planning applications.

Bringing further waste processing operations onto this site is contrary to planning policies GP8 and GP95 of
AVDLP, which deal with residential amenity and unneighbourly uses, as well as para 170 (e) of the NPPF
which deals with 'preventing new and existing development from contributing to . . ., ., or being adversely
affected by unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution . . ., as well as being contrary to policy
BP9 of the Buckland Neighbourhood Plan concerning the redevelopment of existing businesses and their
effect on residential amenity.

Given the history of the continued release of obnoxious odours from this site, | agree with the request to
Olleco made by the Local Planning Authority for an Environmental Impact Assessment. Olleco argue in
paragraph 8.11 in their Screening Opinion Request to the Secretary of State that odours previously
reported by residents are'historic and no longer an issue for the site'. If this is the case, why did the number
of odour complaints from residents to the Environment Agency increase substantially in July 2020? Could it
have something to do with the fact that odours outside the site also increased substantially in July - a bad
month for local residents?

The Odour Statement submitted by Olleco with this planning application states categorically that 'there will
be no detectable odour immediately outside the building and therefore zero odour at the site boundary.'
Where have we heard this before? From Olleco before their AD plant received planning consent.
Regrettably this promise is yet to be fulfilled.

Granting the current planning application for a building in which to process cooking oil would only result in
a significant increase in the odour pollution currently suffered by residents of Aston Clinton and Buckland,
contrary to local and national planning policies. The number of complaints made to the Environment
Agency continues to increase even for the current AD plant operating on the site. Therefore, until that
building can prove it can be operated with zero odour pollution outside the site boundary, as promised by
Olleco, no further planning consents should be granted.

Cllr Carole Paternoster

Page 38



Aston Clinton & Bierton Ward

AS LOCAL MEMBER | CALL IN THIS APPLICATION TO BE DECIDED BY THE PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR THE
REASONS GIVEN ABOVE

Parish/Town Council Comments

Aston Clinton Parish Council — 30" December 2020: Aston Clinton Parish Council has no objection to this
application on the condition that no excessive odours are caused, as per the expectation of the
Environment agency in their statement of 17th July.

Buckland Parish Council -
17t December 2020

Buckland Parish Council agreed to object to the planning application CM/0037/20 during their Parish
Council Meeting of 14th December, 2020. The comments agreed are set out below.

OLLECO CM/0037/20

Since the opening of the site in Samian Way, There have been problems with the escape of odours from the
waste food processing site. Local residents have had to live with terrible smells in their homes and gardens.
These smells permeate everywhere, including soft furnishings and clothing. When the initial planning
application was submitted, Olleco stated that there would be no odours outside the site boundary. This has
definitely not been the case, and odour spillage seems to be worsening.

Over the years, there have been countless meetings between Olleco, local residents, parish councils and
Local Members. During these meetings, which are minutes by Olleco, promises are made by Olleco that the
problem will improve, but this has never been the case.

Complaints trigger excuses for the odours escaping, such as problems with the doors, or even a bird in the
de-packaging building, and yet no improvement takes place.

The most upsetting reactions are the ones that are dismissed by Olleco as not having taken place due to the
wind blowing in the opposite direction. Those local residents, walkers, cyclists, and others using the Lower
Buckland road know this is definitely not the case.

Members feel that this current application to process cooking oil, will only increase the odour pollution
surrounding the Olleco site.

The odour impact survey submitted with this application states: 'The ultimate objective is that they operate
their site to prevent offensive odours being perceived beyond the site boundary. This objective does not
equate to their being the complete absence of odour. ... the operator must ensure that they employ
appropriate measures to control the site emissions.' Therefore, Olleco now admit that there will be foul
odours outside the site boundary to the detriment of local residents, the general public and canal users, not
to mention commercial premises nearby.

The odour impact survey looks at odour outside the site boundary. It looks at odour impact remaining
constant for an hour: 'at some distance from a source it would be unusual if an odour concentration
remained constant foran hour."......... " A population may be exposed to short term concentrations that
are higher than the hourly average.' In other words, there will be odours and local residents and others will
just have to put up with it.

The receptors taken into consideration in the odour impact survey do not reflect the true picture. Canal
Farm, the nearest property to the Olleco site at only 180m, is described as an agricultural building, not a
residential property which it is. Workmen already on that site have complained about having to work in the

Page 39



foul odours from Olleco. Houses in College Road South are classed as 'high', and yet houses in Buckland
Village, which is closer to the site, are completely ignored. Canal boats are also ignored. The odour impact
survey concludes: 'Changes to odour levels would be negligible'. .. .. i.e. odour should not be detectable'.
Already the odours are above any reasonable level

Olleco have failed to operate the current plant without allowing foul odours to escape beyond their site
boundary to the detriment of local residents and other people. Therefore no further development should
be allowed to take place on the site until the current odour problem has been eliminated.

Since design changes may be required to make the current buildings odour-tight, no further construction
should take place on this site until that work has been carried out and there are no further odours
detectable outside the site boundary.

This planning application for further processing of oil and waste is contrary to planning policies G8 and
GP95 of AVDLP, para 170(e) of the NPPF and policy BP9 of the Buckland Neighbourhood Plan. The proposed
development will have a detrimental effect on residential amenity, the local environment, including the
Grand Union Canal, and should be refused.

17™ August 2020
The Parish Council objects to this application for the following reasons:

This application is to process cooking oil on a site which has failed to stop odours escaping from the current
food waste processing already taking place there. When the initial planning application was submitted by
Olleco for processing food waste local residents and Parish Councillors were told on several occasions that
there would be zero odours outside the site boundary. This has not been the case. There have been major
problems for local residents, walkers, cyclists, etc. caused by the continual escape of foul odours from this
development. Despite complaints to Olleco and the Environment Agency no improvement has taken place.
In fact, odour escape has increased recently, especially during July 2020, as can be seen from the
Environment Agency's own figures for the number of complaints received. Whenever complaints are made
to Olleco - and this is a very regular occurrence - the staff at Olleco always find excuses, but no
improvement follows.

In this current planning application Olleco maintain in their odour statement that there will be no odour
immediately outside the building and therefore zero odour at the site boundary. They have failed over the
years to achieve this with their existing food waste processing on this site, despite original promises being
given that there would be zero odours outside the site boundary. This site has a history of odour pollution,
which gets worse, not better, as time goes by.

This planning application for further processing of oil and food waste on this site is contrary to planning
policies G8 and GP95 of AVDLP, para 170 (e) of the NPPF and BP9 of the Buckland Neighbourhood Plan. The
development proposed will have a detrimental effect on residential amenity over a wide area and on the
local environment, including the Grand Union canal, and therefore this application must be refused.

Consultation Responses

BC Ecology — No objection subject to conditions to ensure protection of nesting birds and reptiles.

LLFA - No objection subject to condition securing a maintenance plan via condition.

Page 40



AV Planning Landscape — No written comments to planning officer however a short meeting was held in
which the following was raised:

- Previous landscape requirements for planting were tied up in previous applications.

- The roofing should be a matte coloured panel ideally with similar design to that of Arla Facilities
- ‘Hit and Miss’ design should be applied as per the neighbouring Arla Facilities

Waste Management — No comments received.

AV Environmental Health Officer — No environmental health objections to this application (does not
include comments on contaminated land).

Highways Development Management — No objection subject to conditions and a s106 obligation.
Condition 1: The maximum total number of HGV movements shall not exceed 194 (97 in, 97 out) per day.
Reason: In the interests of the operation and safety of the highway.

Condition 2: Prior to the occupation of the development, space shall be laid out within the site for parking
including disabled parking, electric vehicle parking, and cycle parking in accordance with the approved
plans. This area shall be permanently maintained for this purpose.

Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway to minimise danger, obstruction
and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway, and to provide suitable parking to encourage
sustainable travel to and from the development.

$106 Obligation

A Lorry routing agreement is required to route larger vehicles via the A41 and other strategic roads, and
this should be secured via legal agreement, as was the case for the previous planning permission
CM/78/14.

Minerals and Waste Policy Team - The location around Samian Way and College Road has been identified
in the Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2016 as a primary focus for a sustainable waste management
network. Despite the loss of the permitted MRF, they have no objections for the proposal of an oil
processing site as it complies with the waste management use intended for this location.

Buckinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service — Advice was provided regarding design considerations with
regard to fire mains and hydrants, access for emergency services and the safe storage of waste. Further
comment will be made via Building Control as and when detailed plans are submitted.

Thames Water - The application indicates that SURFACE WATER will NOT be discharged to the public
network and as such Thames Water has no objection, however approval should be sought from the Lead
Local Flood Authority. Thames Water would advise that with regard to FOUL WATER sewerage network
infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the above planning application, based on the
information provided.

Environment Agency - Due to increased workload prioritisation the EA are unable to make a detailed
assessment of this application, they did provide guidance however regarding potential polluting activities.

Canal and River Trust —

The development is in close proximity to the Aylesbury Arm of the Grand Union Canal, close to a lock that
has collapsed previously. Therefore, in compliance with the NPPF 2019, paragraphs 178 and 179, we
requested further details of the design and installation method for the foundations of the structure to
understand the likely level of vibration and whether it could be detrimental to the canal. The trust advised

Page 41



that the applicant/developer contact the Trust's Third-Party Works team should any works be necessary
which are likely to impose vibrations at any level on waterway infrastructure (including site investigations).

The trust also requested a pre-commencement condition to seek further details and to ensure that if
necessary, suitable monitoring measures are put in place during the course of building work.

The trust advised that the applicant enter into the Trust's 'Code of Practice for Works affecting the Canal &
River Trust' to enable this vibration monitoring to take place on our structures throughout the construction
phase and suggested that the applicant discusses this matter with the Trust's Infrastructure Services Team
prior to further submissions to ensure that suitable information is provided.

1. No work shall be carried out on site until details of the methodology, risk assessment and schedule of
works for the piled foundations have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning
authority. These details shall include a suitable method of vibration monitoring to ensure that the nearby
canal infrastructure is not damaged as a result of the works as well as a pre-commencement condition
survey of the waterway infrastructure. Following completion of the works a further condition survey shall
be carried out and the details submitted to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that no damage to
the structural integrity of the canal has been caused by these works. Any remedial work necessary shall be
carried out as agreed before the development is brought into use.

Reason: To ensure that the structural integrity of the Aylesbury Arm of the Grand Union canal is protected
and to prevent harm to the canal during the demolition and construction phases, in compliance with the
NPPF 2019, para 178 & 179.

Informative

The applicant should contact Infrastructure Services Manager, John Pryer on 07884 277804 or by email to
john.pruer@canalrivertrust.org.uk to ensure that the work complies with the Canal & River Trust's 'Code of
Practice for works affecting the Canal & River Trust'.

Crime Prevention for Aylesbury — No comment received.
AV Design and Conservation Team — No comment received.

Buckinghamshire ROW — No objection. Suggested contribution via s.106.

Representations

No comments have been received supporting the proposal, 3 comments neither supporting nor objecting
and 31 comments objecting to the proposal. In general, the comments raised the following matters:

e Highways Impacts

e Impact upon amenity

e Pollution

e Glare from roofing

e Noise from the Gas Boiler

e Odour emissions from the site

Page 42



APPEDIX B: Site Location Plan

Page 43



Appendix C: List of Submitted Documents

Planning Statement — Revised Scheme (dated November 2020)

Proposed Site Layout, Drawing No 28813-(01)-001 Rev P04 (dated 30" November 2020)
Proposed Elevations and Sections, Drawing No. 001 Rev P03 (dated 25 January 2021)
Proposed Ground Floor Plans, Drawing No. 002 Rev P01 (dated 29" October 2020)
Proposed Images, Drawing No. 002 Rev P02 (dated 30" October 2020)

Proposed First Floor, Drawing No.003 Rev P01 (dated 29" October 2020)

Site Location, Drawing No. OLL-HP22-02 (dated 10 June 2020)

Odour impact assessment for the Synergy Project, Ricardo (dated 9" November 2020)
Boiler Emissions Details

External Lighting Layout, Drawing No. 20125-RCE-LTG-XX-DR-E-0001 Rev P02 (dated 9" November
2020)

External Lighting Information, Project Number 28813 (dated 29" October 2020)
Lighting Statement, Ridings Consulting Engineers Ltd (dated 11t January 2020)
Drainage Statement. Project Ref: 28783/DJC/DCR (dated September 2020)
Proposed Drainage Layout Drawing No. 28783-101 P3 (dated 26 January 2021)
Proposed Area Run Off Volume, prepared by Micro Drainage (dated 26" January 2021)
SUDS Information Email (dated 4™ January 2020)

Letter from GCP Consulting Engineers RE: Foundations (dated 14" September 2020)
Optima Highways ES Scope Technical Note (dated June 2020)

Cover Letter (dated 25™ June 2020)

Odour Statement (dated 25 June 2020)

Planning Application Description (dated 8% June 2020)

Further information from Agent (dated 15 January 2021)

Cumulative Odour Impact Letter, prepared by Ricardo Ref: ED12482187

Summary Sheet (dated January 2021)

Hydrogen Sulphide Monitoring Assessment, prepared by Ricardo for Application CM/0022/20
(dated 30" January 2019)

Application Form

Transport Statement Rev 2, Optima (dated November 2020)

Page 44



] Agenda I:[em 5 ]
Buckinghamshire Council

www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report Strategic Sites Committee

Application Number:

Proposal:

Site Location:

Applicant:
Case Officer:

Ward(s) affected:

Parish Council:

Date valid application received:

Statutory determination date:

Recommendation

CC/0015/20

New dual carriageway link road including: roundabout
junction B4443 Lower Road, roundabout junction at A413
Wendover Road, railway bridge, footway/cycleways,
noise attenuation barrier, street lighting, earthworks and
landscaping between B4443 Lower Road and A413

Land Between The A413 Wendover Road And The B4443
Lower Road In The Parishes Of Stoke Mandeville, Weston
Turville And Aylesbury

Buckinghamshire Council

Sue Pilcher

Wendover, Halton and Stoke Mandeville
Aston Clinton and Bierton

Stoke Mandeville and Weston Turville

15t April 2020

It is recommended that permission be deferred
and delegated to the Director of Planning and
Environment to GRANT permission subject to
conditions as considered appropriate by Officers
and completion of a memorandum of
understanding regarding the delivery of the
transport mitigation


http://www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk/

1.0 Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

The proposed development is for a 1.2km dual carriageway road with a 40mph speed
limit located between the B4443 (Lower Road) and A413 (Wendover Road) on
agricultural land to the south east of the existing built up area of Aylesbury.

The application is reported for determination by the Strategic Sites Committee in line
with the Buckinghamshire Council Constitution and Planning Protocol as it comprises
strategic development, major infrastructure fundamental to the implementation of
VALP, and an application for the Council’s own development.

Special regard has been given to the desirability of preserving the setting of listed
buildings as required in the statutory tests contained in Section 66 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. With regard to the listed buildings
and their settings it is considered that the impact of the built form itself, would preserve
and not harm the setting of the listed buildings. There is therefore no clear reason to
refuse permission on this basis.

The scheme has also been considered acceptable with mitigation outlined above in
terms of its impact to achieving well-designed places, promoting sustainable transport
(cycling and footpath links), meeting the challenge of climate change and flooding,
archaeology and conserving and enhancing the natural environment, however these do
not represent benefits of the scheme but rather demonstrate an absence of harm to
which weight should be attributed neutrally. There is also the recognised potential harm
to bats which can be appropriately mitigated to address the harm as outlined above and
thus neutral weight is given to this.

There would be harm to the character of the landscape and on visual impacts which
having regard to mitigation would be a significant negative impact and the development
would result in loss of BMV agricultural land which would be of very limited negative
impact.

In respect of residential amenities, having regard to the residual impact of noise through
the operation of the SEALR on a number of properties there would be a significant
adverse effect.

There would be significant benefits to the delivery of a key section of strategic link road
both in terms of the existing highway network and reducing congestion and significant
benefits in delivering the strategic growth at Aylesbury Garden Town, providing mode
choice and delivering the council’s sustainable spatial strategy. In addition there would
be considerable benefits from investment in construction and the local economy. There
would be limited benefits in terms of air quality in respect of the town and residential
amenities and limited benefits in providing biodiversity net gain.

It is recommended that permission be deferred and delegated to the Director of
Planning and Environment to GRANT permission subject to conditions as considered
appropriate by Officers and completion of a memorandum of understanding regarding
the delivery of the transport mitigation.

Page 46



2.0

Description of Proposed Development

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

The site lies on the southern edge of the built up areas of Aylesbury mainly within the
parish of Stoke Mandeville, but the proposed roundabout on the Wendover Road falls
partly within Weston Turville Parish. A number of residential properties are to the north
as well as several residential properties that also lie off Wendover Road to the east and
Lower Road to the west. The area south of the site is predominantly agricultural land,
beyond which lies Stoke Mandeville village and a number of residential properties.
Nearby commercial property includes the existing Stoke Mandeville Autocentre and
Fountain Business Centre on the B4443.

There are a number of local Public Rights of Way including:

SMA1/2, a bridleway which starts at Wendover Road immediately north of the Stoke
Grange roundabout, briefly heads west before turning south away from the alignment
of the proposed scheme towards Stoke Mandeville.

SMAZ2/1-2/3, a footpath which runs through the site in a broad east to west direction
closely following the alignment of the SEALR linking Lower Road with Wendover Road.
This footpath crosses the Aylesbury to London Marylebone railway line at an
uncontrolled level crossing. Stiles are provided either side of the railway to control
access to the Network Rail land.

SMA3/1-3/2, a footpath which runs through the Site in a broad north to south direction
bisecting the alignment of the SEALR.

There are also two cycle routes near the site, the Jetway, which starts at Aylesbury town
centre and heads towards the Stoke Mandeville vicinity and adjacent the Stoke
Mandeville Hospital on Lower Road; and the Amberway, which starts at Aylesbury town
centre and then heads towards Wendover Road.

There are seven bus stops located within 400 metres of the proposed scheme and three
within the site area. These are on Wendover Road at Silver Birch Way and Ranch House
on Lower Road. The closest railway station on this line is Stoke Mandeville which is
located approximately one kilometre south of the proposed scheme on Station Road.
The station is operated by Chiltern Railways with services generally operating seven
days a week.

The site does not form part of a conservation area, nor is it adjacent to one. There are
also no listed buildings within the site, the closest being 71 Lower Road (Grade IlI), Hall
End Farmhouse (Grade Il) and Magpie Cottage, Lower Road (Grade Il) to the south of the
site. The site does have potential for impact on matters of archaeology and these are
discussed in the heritage section below.

The proposed development is for a 1.2km dual carriageway road with a 40mph speed
limit located between the B4443 (Lower Road) and A413 (Wendover Road) on

Page 47



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Main

2.11

agricultural land to the south east of the existing built up area of Aylesbury. It would
cross the Chiltern Railway line, via a bridge, around its mid-point.

The road will be accessed by a new roundabout at the junction of the B4443/A4010 to
the west, tying into the proposed Stoke Mandeville relief road, and a new roundabout at
the junction with the A413, with the ability to tie into the Southern Link Road (which
would serve the proposed Hampden Fields development) to the east.

The development of High Speed Two (HS2) will sever the A4010 Risborough Road south
of Stoke Mandeville. As part of the proposals for HS2, a new link road will be developed
to divert the A4010 around the west of Stoke Mandeville, connecting with the B4443
Lower Road further north, via a new roundabout. This scheme is referred to as the Stoke
Mandeville relief road. Traffic modelling has indicated that this re-alignment will cause
congestion at the Stoke Road gyratory leading to increased traffic queuing and delays.
Increased traffic on the B4443 arising from the proposed Stoke Mandeville relief road is
also likely to result in worsening air quality issues at the Stoke Road gyratory which is a
designated Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) due to high traffic levels and
emissions related to idling vehicle engines and queueing. So the SEALR will provide a
new road to connect the B4443 Lower Road with the A413 Wendover Road and will aim
to address these issues.

It is anticipated that the SEALR will open at a similar time as the Stoke Mandeville relief
road to address the congestion issues. This is expected to be 2023/2024.

The applicants consider that the proposed development will address congestion issues
whilst also enabling part of the Council’s long term vision to deliver an orbital route
around the town of Aylesbury. Aylesbury is a key growth area for the region but suffers
from limited connectivity to the strategic road network which this application, with
others, seeks to address.

aims:

To enable satisfactory levels of network performance at the Stoke Road gyratory and
the A413, A4010 and B4443 arterial roads after the A4010 realignment is completed;
To support the overall quantum of growth within Aylesbury and the surrounding area;

To increase the effectiveness of the realigned A4010 as a key north / south corridor; and

To secure good local connectivity for all road users for movements to, from, within and
around Aylesbury.

Furthermore the Proposed Scheme will help relieve pressure on a key blue light route
(access to Stoke Mandeville Hospital); and increase provision for walking and cycling.

The application is accompanied by an Environmental Impact Assessment and includes a
number of drawings and supporting information. These were reviewed as part of
determining the application and following comments from members of the public and
consultees, further information was sought and a second consultation under Regulation
25 of the 2017 EIA Regulations was carried out.

Page 48



2.12 The schedule of submitted documents is available in Appendix D and EIA summary is
available in Appendix E.

2.13 The additional information submitted with regard to the Environmental Statement (ES)
includes an update to reflect the requirements of the 2017 Regulations and
consideration of the following topics:

® Preparation of a Statement of Competence

e Consideration of major accidents and disasters

e Preparation of a human health impact assessment
* Preparation of a climate change impact assessment

In addition, there have also been subsequent design amendments to address comments
raised and as such the ES addendum also addresses where these scheme changes affect the
environmental topics set out within the March 2020 ES. The proposed scheme amendments
are set out below:

* Revisions to roundabout geometries in response to revised traffic flows and amendments to
the Southern Link Road (SLR) tie in at Hampden Fields;

¢ Incorporation of new three span bridge arrangement as a result of ground conditions and
value engineering;

¢ Widening of the southern 2m footway to provide a 3m footway/cycleway through
narrowing/removal of verge;

e Passive provision for a future Public Right of Way (PRoW) diversion over the SEALR bridge
(should the PRoW over the railway be required to be diverted in the future as part of
other proposals in the AGT1 allocation; surfacing of the route onto the bridge is not
included within the scope of the scheme);

e Incorporation of replacement public open space;
* Landscape planting
. Minor flood attenuation area and drainage amendments;

e The Armillary Sphere will no longer be installed as part of the scheme (previously to be
installed on Lower Road roundabout); and

e Addition of an agricultural access off Lower Road roundabout.

3.0 Relevant Planning History
3.1 Previous applications include:

- AV.1036.85 Residential development comprising 151 dwellings (Stoke Grange Farm):
Approved

3.2 Applications of relevance on nearby sites:

Page 49



18/04346/A0P: South-West Aylesbury - Outline planning application (with all matters
reserved except for principal means of access to the highway) for mixed-use development
including up to 1,400 residential dwellings

16/00424/A0P: Hampden Fields - Outline planning application (with all matters reserved)
for a mixed-use sustainable urban extension comprising: up to 3,000 dwellings and a 60
bed care home/extra care facility (Use Class C2/C3); provision of land for a Park and Ride
site; a total of 6.90ha of employment land (comprising of up to 29,200 sq.m. B1c/B1/B2/B8
uses); provision of two primary schools (one 2 form entry and one 3 form entry); a mixed
use local centre (3.75ha) with provision for a foodstore of up to 1,200 square metres (GFA),
further retail (including a pharmacy), restaurant and café units, a doctor's surgery, gym,
public house with letting rooms, professional services, multi-functional community space
and a day nursery, and live work units; multi-functional green infrastructure (totalling
108.43ha) including parkland, sports pitches, sports pavilions, children's play areas, mixed
use games areas, including a skate park/BMX facility, informal open space, allotments,
community orchards, landscaping; extensions to domestic gardens at Tamarisk Way
(0.22ha); strategic flood defences and surface water attenuation; vehicular access points
from New Road, Marroway, A413 Wendover Road and A41 Aston Clinton Road; a dualled
Southern Link Road between A413 Wendover Road and A41 Aston Clinton Road and a
strategic link road between the Southern Link Road and Marroway; internal roads, streets,
lanes, squares, footpaths and cycleways and upgrades to Public Rights Of Ways (PRoWs);
and car parking related to the above land uses, buildings and facilities. Considered by
Committee October 2017 and resolution to grant subject to satisfactory completion of a
legal agreement- pending consideration.

16/01040/A0P: Woodlands - Outline application with means of access (in part) to be
considered for up to 102,800 sqg m employment (B1/B2/B8), up to 1,100 dwellings (C3), 60
residential extra care units (C2), mixed-use local centre of up to 4,000 sq m (A1/A2/A5/D1),
up to 5,700 sq m hotel and Conference Centre (C1), up to 3,500 sq m Leisure facilities
(A1/A3/A4), up to 16 ha for sports village and pitches, Athletes Accommodation (10 x 8 bed
apartments), and up to 2 ha for a primary school (D1), with a strategic link road connecting
with the ELR (N) and the A41 Aston Clinton Road, transport infrastructure, landscape, open
space, flood mitigation and drainage. Considered by Committee October 2017 and
resolution to grant subject to satisfactory completion of a legal agreement— pending
consideration.

19/01628/A0P: Part of AGT1 allocation by Land Improvement Holdings - Outline planning
application, for the proposed development of up to 750 dwellings, safeguarded land for
delivery of South-East Aylesbury Link Road, Primary school, community hub, vehicular and
pedestrian access off Lower Road, pedestrian and emergency access, new internal road
and pedestrian footpath network and provision for green infrastructure - Pending
consideration.

16/04608/A0P: Land off Lower Road (now Crest Nicholson site) - Outline planning
application with access to be considered and all other matters reserved for residential

Page 50



development of up to 125 dwellings, open space, landscaping, drainage features and
associated infrastructure — Approved.

18/00913/ADP: Land off Lower Road (Crest Nicholson) Application for approval of Reserved
Matters pursuant to Outline Planning Permission (16/04608/A0P) for the residential
development of 125 dwellings, open space, landscaping, drainage features and associated
infrastructure: Approved

20/01372/APP: Land off Lower Road (Crest Nicholson) Erection of 34 no. dwellings and
associated development works — Approved (total on site of 132 dwellings, this application
included a re-plan of part of the 18/00913/ADP site to include an uplift of 7 dwellings).

4.0 Representations

4.1

Stoke Mandeville Parish Council has objected. A significant number of representations
(187 in total) have been received, 164 objecting and 11 in support. Whilst these
representations have been clearly set out in detail below in Appendix A, the key concerns
are impact on landscape, impact on traffic and congestion, on ecology, on residential
amenities, loss of open space and rights of way. In terms of support the representations
consider that the link road would help congestion in and around the town.

5.0 Policy Considerations and Evaluation

5.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning
applications are determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Development Plan:

Ayl

esbury Vale District Local Plan 2004 (AVDLP). The report will identify where policies are not
consistent with the NPPF and the weight to be afforded if the policy does not attract full
weight.

Other material considerations:

5.2

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

Emerging Vale of Aylesbury Local Plan (2013-2033)
Aylesbury Garden Town Masterplan July 2020
Aylesbury Transport Model 2017

The draft Vale of Aylesbury Local Plan (2013-2033) (VALP) is now at an advanced stage
and weight can be given to the relevant policies in the plan in accordance with the NPPF.
The overall approach as a guide is:

Limited weight: if there is a new and untested policy introduced by a main modification
and subject to consultation.

Page 51



e Moderate weight :where there are objections and the Inspector has requested main
modifications and therefore objections can be regarded as being “resolved”. The context
being that the Inspector has considered the proposed modifications and in agreeing them
for consultation, has confirmed that he is reasonably satisfied that they remedy the
points of unsoundness identified in the examination process so far (as set out in
Inspector’s note ED185).

e Considerable weight : where there are objections but the Inspector has not requested
main modifications (and as such the policy will not be changed in a material way) and the
objections can therefore be regarded as being “resolved”.

e Significant weight :where there are no objections and no modifications. These policies
are not going to be changed and the next step will be adoption and very significant
weight.

The report will identify the weight to be given to the relevant emerging policies.

There is currently no made neighbourhood plan for Stoke Mandeville. A neighbourhood plan
area has been identified and work is being carried out preparing for the pre submission
document, including work on the background evidence for the plan and the emerging policies.
A Regulation 14 consultation will be carried out in due course once this stage of the plan is
submitted to the Council.

There is a made Neighbourhood Plan for Weston Turville and part of the roundabout on the
Wendover Road falls within the neighbourhood plan area but it lies outside one of the three
settlement boundaries identified in the plan.

Principle of Development

5.3 Aylesbury Vale District Local Plan saved policies: GP35 (Design of new development
proposals); RA2 (Loss of open gaps and consolidation of settlements); AY1 (considerations
for traffic generating proposals), AY2 (Additional contributions to the ALUTS), AY3
(Phasing of transport development),

5.4 Weston Turville Neighbourhood Plan: Policy H1 (Weston Turville Settlement Boundaries).

Emerging Vale of Aylesbury District Local Plan (VALP): S1 (Sustainable development for
Aylesbury Vale) (considerable weight); S2 (Spatial strategy for growth) (moderate weight),
D1 (Delivering Aylesbury Garden Town), D-AGT1 (South Aylesbury), T1 (Delivering the
sustainable transport vision) (moderate weight); Policy T2 (Supporting and protecting
transport schemes), T3 (Supporting local transport schemes) (moderate weight) and
BE2(Design of new development) ( moderate weight).

5.5 Part of the proposed roundabout on the Wendover Road falls within the Weston Turville
neighbourhood plan area but it lies outside one of the three settlement boundaries
identified in the plan. Policy H1 (Weston Turville Settlement Boundaries) states that
development proposals (other than for rural housing exception schemes, or development
as part of the growth of Aylesbury as defined in the emerging Vale of Aylesbury Local
Plan), will not be permitted on land outside the Settlement Boundaries unless it complies
with a number of criteria. In this instance the SEALR forms part of the growth of
Aylesbury and it is referred to in emerging policy D-AGT1 since this allocation requires the
safeguarding of land Safeguarding the land required for the delivery of a dual carriageway

Page 52



5.6

5.7

distributor road between B4443 Lower Road and A413 Wendover Road to cross the
railway line (the SEALR), with sufficient land for associated works including but not limited
to earthworks, drainage and structures.

Policies AY1-3 of AVDLP relate to the now superseded Aylesbury Land Use Transportation
Strategy on sustainable travel and funding infrastructure. These are out of date as they
are based on the ALUTS strategy for the plan period up to 2011 and the evidence relating
to the former Aylesbury Vale District’s need has changed significantly since these policies
were adopted and are not consistent with the NPPF policies to identify and protect sites
and routes which could be critical in developing infrastructure to realise opportunities for
large scale development, based on up to date evidence.

The VALP Proposed Submission sets out strategic sites within Policy D1 (Delivering
Aylesbury Garden Town). These include:

e South Aylesbury (D-AGT1)

South West Aylesbury (D-AGT2)

e Aylesbury North of A41 (D-AGT3)
¢ Aylesbury South of A41 (D-AGT4)
e Berryfields, Aylesbury (D-AGT5)
» Kingsbrook, Aylesbury (D-AGT6)

5.8

5.9

Emerging policy D-AGT1 (South Aylesbury) as referred to in the further main
modifications to the plan (November 2020) includes safeguarding the land required for
the delivery of a dual carriageway distributor road between B4443 Lower Road and A413
Wendover Road to cross the railway line (the SEALR), with sufficient land for associated
works including but not limited to earthworks, drainage and structures.

Within the transport policies, of particular relevance to the proposed development are
Policy T1 (Delivering the sustainable transport vision), Policy T2 (Supporting and
protecting transport schemes) and Policy T3 (Supporting local transport schemes). Policy
T2 highlights that “the Council will continue to work with HS2 Ltd with the aim of
influencing the design and construction of the route through Aylesbury Vale to minimise
adverse impacts and maximise any benefits that arise from the proposal”. Policy T3 states
that the “Council will actively support key transport proposals including those identified
in both the Aylesbury Transport Strategy”.

5.10 The SEALR is identified in Table 16 of emerging policy T3 (Supporting local

transport schemes) in the VALP as a protected and supported transport scheme. Delivery
was anticipated for 2021 and funding would be provided by HS2, developer funding and
local government funding. The delivery of the SEALR has been delayed as a result of the
Covid-19 impact on staff, including staff redeployment, transport modelling, HS2
infrastructure delays and Department of Transport input.

5.11 Having regard to the above matters, it is considered that the principle of the

development of the SEALR would accord with the Weston Turville Neighbourhood Plan,
emerging VALP policies and the Aylesbury Transport Strategy and that it would enable the
Council’s long term vision to deliver key part of an orbital route around the town of
Aylesbury to progress noting that Aylesbury is a key growth area for the region but suffers
from limited connectivity to the strategic road network. This is also reflected in the AGT

Page 53



masterplan. The detail of the provision of the SEALR is considered in the remainder of the
report below.

Transport Matters

WTNP policies T1 (Improvements to road safety and ease traffic congestion), Policy T2 (Strategy
for improving pedestrian and cycle connections within the Parish and to surrounding area)

Emerging VALP policies D-AGT1 (South Aylesbury), T1 (Delivering the sustainable transport
vision); Policy T2 (Supporting and protecting transport schemes), T3 (Supporting local transport
schemes) (all preceding have moderate weight)

5.12 WTNP Policy T1 (Improvements to road safety and ease traffic congestion) states
that development proposals should demonstrate that they can deliver appropriate site
access and traffic mitigation through agreement with the Highways and Planning
Authorities to minimise adverse effects on the local traffic network. WTNP Policy T2
(Strategy for improving pedestrian and cycle connections within the Parish and to
surrounding area) states that development proposals must demonstrate how existing
sustainable transport links can be accessed from the site and where necessary, secure
improvements to ensure safe access for pedestrian and cyclists in line with current
industry standards and the Highways Authority policies.

5.13 Emerging Policy D-AGT1 in the VALP includes the provision of land for at least
1,000 dwellings at South Aylesbury and includes the SEALR in the site specific
requirements. Emerging VALP Policy T1 ‘Delivering the Sustainable Transport Vision’
states that the Council will assist in delivering the pedestrian, cycle, public transportation
and public realm improvements identified in Aylesbury town centre through the
Aylesbury Garden Town initiative and Aylesbury Transport Strategy. Emerging Policies T2
‘Protecting Transport Schemes’ and T3 ‘Supporting transport schemes’ of the VALP
include HS2 and state that the Council will continue to work with High Speed 2 Ltd with
the aim of influencing the design and construction of the route through Aylesbury Vale
to minimise adverse impacts and maximise any benefits that arise from the proposal.

5.14 The Aylesbury Transport Strategy (ATS) was developed with the aim of improving
transport connectivity and accessibility within Aylesbury town and to accommodate the
VALP growth.

5.15 The application is accompanied by a Transport Assessment (TA) dated March
2020 which was submitted in April 2020. Buckinghamshire Council’s (BC) Highways
Development Management team considered the TA in detail and issued a Highways
response on the TA on 10" June 2020 that requested further information.

5.16 The Aylesbury Transport Model (ATM) has been updated since the SEALR TA was
submitted in April 2020, to align growth assumptions to be consistent with other
strategic development site updates and to include an end of VALP assessment. A TA
Addendum (TAA) was submitted in December 2020 by the applicant which provides
updated junction assessments following changes to the design of SEALR, including the
roundabout junctions, as well as revised traffic flows for 2036 due to the ATM updates.

Page 54



5.17 The full comments of Highway Officers can be found at Appendix B.

Requirement for the scheme

5.18 The requirement for the SEALR scheme is twofold: Firstly, the scheme has been
developed to mitigate the traffic impact of High Speed Two (HS2) as set out in the
description of the development above.

5.19 The plan extract below shows HS2 and the SMRR in relation to the proposed
SEALR.

Buckingham Fark I
| Aylesbury East

Broughtan

Woodlands
Arla

e | - . ampden Fields
i dhe : X Scheme Location| ‘\
>>>>> . ‘.\ L
. | g 1
o6 [} 1 1 22 |} . b

Figure 1:Scheme Location

5.20 The second reason for the scheme is to accommodate the VALP growth and
contribute to the transport improvements identified in the Aylesbury Transport Strategy.
The VALP identifies Aylesbury as a major growth location for approximately 8,000 new
homes.

5.21 The ATS includes “Transport Improvement 1: Implement Outer Road Links”. It
explains that an outer link road network helps remove traffic and congestion from key
arterial routes allowing other transport improvements to progress. The proposed SEALR
scheme contributes to this long-term vision to deliver a partial orbital route around
Aylesbury, together with proposed link roads that will be delivered through large housing
projects to the south east of Aylesbury, which are allocated in the emerging VALP.

5.22 When fully opened, the road is expected toaccommodate 2,500 to
3,000 vehicles each peak hour (two-way) and 36,400 vehicles a day (two-way).

Funding

Page 55



5.23 The scheme is estimated to cost £35.5m and will be funded through a mixture of
Government grants and S106 developer contributions. The developer contributions
element is forward funded through the Housing Infrastructure Fund. HS2 are providing
funding for the crossing of the Railway Line. If HS2 did not proceed then the Council
would need to consider further funding sources although there is a Secretary of State
Assurance for the provision of this funding.

Design

5.24 A four arm roundabout connecting Lower Road (B4443), the Stoke Mandeville
Relief Road and the SEALR will represent the western extents of the scheme. This
roundabout will feature an Inscribed Circle Diameter (ICD) of 69m and two circulatory
lanes with two lane approaches on all arms. The roundabout and all approaches will be
street lit.

5.25 The Jetway cycleway runs along the eastern side of Lower Road. Pedestrian and
cycle provision will be provided around the northern and eastern sides of the junction
to tie in with existing Jetway cycle facilities. Toucan signalised crossing points will also
be provided on the northern and eastern arms. There are currently no footway facilities
along the western side of Lower Road, there is therefore no requirement for a
signalised crossing point on the western side.

5.26 The road will include two 3.65m wide lanes in each direction with a 1.8m wide
central reserve. A shared 3m wide footway / cycleway will run along the northern side
of the carriageway and a 3m wide footway/cycleway will also run along the southern
side. No street lighting is proposed along the link, although illuminated solar studs will
be provided along the footway/cycleway on the northern and southern sides of the
carriageway.

5.27 A new bridge structure is proposed across the London to Aylesbury railway line
which will bisect the SEALR approximately mid-way along its length. Maintenance
access will be provided on either side of the bridge. The structure itself features three
spans; one main span of 36.6m between centre lines of intermediate piers and two side
spans to the west and east of the railway track. These side spans will be 25m and 20m
respectively. The main span was developed to cross the entire Network Rail corridor
and the west side span to provide space for a north-south ecology corridor to the west
of the railway line. The east side span was developed to reduce potential settlement of
the Network Rail corridor produced by constructing high embankments adjacent to the
railway line. Adjacent to the bridge abutments space has been reserved for
maintenance access and to facilitate the movement of pedestrians and cyclists. This will
also continue to permit the future aspiration for a cycle link between Stoke Mandeville
Village and Stoke Mandeville Hospital.

5.28 The SEALR will terminate at a roundabout junction to the east. This four arm
roundabout will connect Wendover Road (A413), the Southern Link Road (through
Hampden Fields) and the SEALR. This roundabout will feature an ICD of 81m and three

Page 56



circulatory lanes with three lane approaches on all arms to accommodate the traffic
flows anticipated within the future forecast year of 2036. The roundabout and all
approaches will have street lighting.

5.29 Pedestrian and cycle provision will be located around the northern and western
arms of the junction to tie in with the existing Amberway cycleway on the western side
of Wendover Road. Pedestrian only facilities will continue to be provided around the
eastern arm. Toucan signalised crossing points will be provided on the northern and
western arms and a signalised pedestrian crossing will be provided on the eastern arm.

5.30 Due to the new road alignment and location of the junction on Lower Road,
residential property nos. 8 - 30 Lower Road will now be served by two cul-de-sacs that
run parallel to the main carriageway. Swept path analysis have been submitted to
demonstrate that both cul-de-sacs can be serviced by an 11.2m long refuse vehicle.

5.31 A Stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA) has been undertaken of the scheme and this
audit revealed a number of issues. These included concerns regarding the straight
alignment of the proposed link road, which may result in vehicles travelling at excessive
speeds, concerns regarding existing accesses, excessive widths on the roundabout
entry and exit lanes, and lack of cycle facilities.

5.32 A Designers Response (to deal with matters raised in the safety audit and a
standard procedure in responding to the issues raised) was prepared to address the
issues raised in the RSA. With regards to the road being too straight the response
explained “The road has been curved as far south as possible and further speed
restriction introduced through the vertical alignment. It is therefore considered that the
design has responded to the potential for high vehicle speeds as much as possible within
the constraints of the project. No further change to the horizontal alignment of the
scheme is considered feasible.” We understand that the alignment of the road is fixed
to a certain extent by the need to tie into junctions with connecting roads at either end
and the location of the bridge over the railway line.

5.33 The RSA stated that “the existing access to County Farm Cottages is located
approximately 35m to the south of the proposed southern exit from the eastern
roundabout. This may result in rear end shunt type collisions between vehicles slowing
down to turn left into the farm access and other road users continuing southbound on
Wendover Road within the nearside lane, unless a sufficient level of forward visibility is
provided. Additionally, overhanging or excessive vegetation in this location may block
visibility splays for vehicles approaching and exiting the access, resulting in collisions
between emerging vehicles and main line traffic. As vehicles exiting the roundabout will
be concentrating on merging from two lanes to one at this point this could exacerbate
this concern.”

5.34 The Designers Response states that the forward visibility will be maximised in
this location to assist motorists assessing turning vehicles ahead. Consideration will be
given to signing when the signing strategy is developed at detailed design.

Page 57



5.35 The updated design drawing includes forward visibility splays. The drawing
shows that a 105m forward visibility splay can be achieved for vehicles exiting the
roundabout. A second splay shows that the stop line for the roundabout can be seen
from a distance of 127.8m away. The third splay shows that the pedestrian crossing is
visible from a distance of 110m.

5.36 Table 2.10 of CD 109 Highway Link Design (DMRB) indicates that the desirable
stopping sight distance for a design speed of 50kph is 70m which is the distance that is
required at this location. The forward visibility splays on the northern arm of the
junction therefore exceed the DMRB stopping site distance requirements and are
therefore acceptable.

5.37 The RSA mentions that “the proposed roundabout circulatory at this location is to
have three circulating lanes, with all exit arms only having two lanes. This may lead to
conflicting manoeuvres between circulating vehicles when attempting to exit the
roundabout circulatory.” The Designers Response explains that the roundabout
geometry has been informed by junction capacity assessments. The number of entry
lanes is dictated by this modelling. At the detailed design stage a signing and lining
strategy will be developed and it is considered that this issue can be addressed as part
of that strategy.

5.38 The RSA states that “off-road shared cycle facilities are provided north, east and
west of the proposed roundabout as part of the scheme. However, there are no such
facilities proposed to the south of the western roundabout alongside the southbound
carriageway.” The design of the western roundabout has now been amended to
include a cycle facility at the southern section of the roundabout which is acceptable.

5.39 Highway Officers are satisfied that the remaining issues in the RSA will be
considered at the detailed design stage.

Traffic Impact Scenarios

5.40 The planning application was accompanied by a TA dated March 2020 and
included the following three traffic impact scenarios:

e 2021a Scenario: The ‘Standalone’ Assessment. This scenario includes the SMMR and the
Eastern Link Road (North) and Stocklake Link Road which are both currently being
constructed. The impact assessment compares the operation of the local road network
without SEALR (2021a Do Nothing) with the operation of the road network with SEALR
(2021a Do Something).

e 2021b Scenario: This scenario includes the Eastern Link Road (South) and the Southern Link
Road as well as 74% of employment at Woodlands and 60 dwellings in Hampden Fields. The
assessments compare 2021b Do Nothing (without SEALR) with 2021b Do Something (with
SEALR).

e 2036 Scenario: This scenario includes the Eastern Link Road (South), the Southern Link Road
and the South West Aylesbury Link Road. It includes the full development of Woodlands and

Page 58



Hampden Fields as well as South West Aylesbury, South of Aylesbury, Broughton, Halton,
Berryfields and Aylesbury East.

541

The TAA was submitted in December 2020 by the applicant and provides

updated junction assessments following changes to the design of SEALR, including the

roundabout junctions, as well as revised traffic flows for 2036. The TAA submitted for

this application has utilised these revised 2036 flows and updated the network impact

assessments accordingly.

Traffic Impact

5.42

The original review of the difference plots from the ATM revealed the need to

assess 15 existing junctions as follows:

5.43

A41 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesbury Road three-arm roundabout;

A41 Aston Clinton Road / New Road priority junction;

A41 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove signalised junction
incorporating Broughton Lane;

A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 / King Edward Avenue signalised junction;

A41 Aston Clinton Road / Park Street / Tesco / Walton Road five-arm
roundabout;

A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road gyratory;

A413 Wendover Road / Camborne Avenue three-arm roundabout;

A413 Wendover Road / Silver Birch Way three-arm roundabout;

A413 Wendover Road / A4010 Station Road three-arm roundabout;

A4010 Station Road / A4010 Risborough Road / B4443 Lower Road three-arm
roundabout;

B4443 Lower Road / Winterton Drive / Stoke Mandeville four-arm roundabout;
B4443 Lower Road / B4443 Mandeville Road / Stadium Approach / Churchill
Avenue four-arm roundabout;

A418 Oxford Road / Ellen Road / Thame Road South four-arm roundabout;
A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way three-arm roundabout;

A413/ Eastcote Road priority junction.

Of these 15 junctions, consideration of more detailed ATM data indicated that a

total of 4 of the junctions had no increase in peak hour traffic flows of more than 5% at

any arm on the junction. The impact was therefore considered to be acceptable at

these 4 junctions and they were excluded from further assessment. This left 11 existing

junctions that required more detailed assessments of impact. In addition to the 11

existing junctions a total of 9 proposed junctions were identified for assessment. These

were:

B4443 Lower Road / Stoke Mandeville Relief Road three-arm roundabout,
(incorporating the SEALR in the Do Something scenario);

Page 59



Proposed A413 Wendover Road / Eastern Link / SEALR four-arm roundabout;
A418 / ELR (North);

ELR (North) North Roundabout;

ELR (North) South Roundabout;

ELR (South) North Roundabout;

ELR (South) South Roundabout;

SLR / New Road;

SLR / Marroway.

The following section provides more information on the assessments of those junctions that are

new, sensitive or experienced impacts that should be considered for mitigation.

Lower Road/SEALR/ Stoke Mandeville Relief Road Roundabout

5.44

This junction does not currently exist on the network; however, it will come

forward as a three-arm roundabout once the HS2 delivered Stoke Mandeville Relief
Road is open, and as a four-arm roundabout following the opening of the SEALR. The

junction has been assessed as the four-arm roundabout proposed for the SEALR as it is
currently intended that SMRR and SEALR will be constructed at similar times. Traffic
flows for the eastern arm (SEALR) have been removed in the Do Nothing Scenarios. A
drawing extract showing the proposed junction layout is set out below:

OUTH EAST
AYLESEURY LINK
ROAD (SEALR)

} BUCKINGHAMSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 60



5.45 In the 2021 scenarios the junction will operate with a significant amount of spare
capacity as show in the following table (Max RFC below 0.85).

Table 22 - Junction 15: B4443 Lower Road / Stoke Mandeville Relief Road/ SEALR
AM Peak PM Peak

Scenario

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing 0.61 1.5 0.54 1.2

2021(a) Do Something 0.63 1.7 073 2.7

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.63 1.7 0.56 1.3

2021(b) Do Something 0.77 3.4 0.79 3.7

5.46 The junction has been modelled in standard format and in lane simulation format,
which includes simulation of the operation of individual lanes, in the 2036 scenario. The
results are summarised in the following table:

Table 21. Junction 15: B4443 Lower Road / Stoke Mandeville Relief Road / SEALR
AM Peak PM Peak

Scenario

Max RFC Max Q Max RFC MaxQ

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.59 1.4 0.63 1.7

TA 2036 Do Something  0.68 2.1 0.71 2.4

2036 Do Nothing 0.64 1.8 0.65 1.9

2036 Do Something 0.84 5.0 0.83 4.4

Lane Simulation Results

2036 Do Nothing 0.99 162.2 1.00 248.8

2036 Do Something 0.97 58.5 0.88 1.1

5.47 The 2036 standard analysis shows that the junction can operate within capacity.
However, the results for the lane simulation version show queuing in the AM peak
hour, although it also shows a significant improvement compared to the 2036 Do
Nothing scenario (ie with SMRR and without SEALR). It is therefore considered that the
proposed roundabout operation is adequate as the operation improves with SEALR.

A413 Wendover Road/SEALR Roundabout

5.48 It has previously been agreed that this junction will be modelled as a three-arm
roundabout with just SEALR and a four-arm roundabout in a cumulative scenario with
Hampden Fields and the Southern Link Road. The proposed junction arrangement in
the four-arm scenario is shown below:

Page 61



+

A
NN

) PR
- o4 o4 o+ 4 NF
3 +oFTE o+ D
- K, +

i - -
AR =

+ + o+ 4 PR
L I
+odmt o+ 4 il
T T s
+ 4+

Figure 3: Proposed Wendover Road / SEALR Roundabout

5.49 The 2021a AM peak (no SLR through Hampden Fields) shows a maximum Ratio of
Flow to Capacity (RFC) of 0.98 with a queue of 26 vehicles. However, this reduces to an
RFC of 0.70 and queue of 2.2 in the 2021b scenario (with SLR and ELR(s)). It is
considered that 0.98 is acceptable as an interim scenario as the operation of the
junction improves in all other scenarios. The results are summarised below for ease of
reference:

Table 30 - Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road / SEALR

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ
2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021 (a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something  0.98 26.0 0.72 2.6

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.71 2.5 0.56 1.3

2021(b) Do Something  0.70 2.2 073 2.6

5.50 The 2036 standard analysis shows that the roundabout can operate within
capacity. However, the 2036 lane simulation results show that the junction is
approaching capacity in 2036 with developing queues. In determining the acceptability
of the junction operation it should be noted that this scenario includes the entire VALP
development along with background traffic growth, which may not fully materialise,

Page 62



given the changes to working habits and travel patterns for example as a result of
Covid. As such, it is therefore considered to be a worse case which may not materialise.
The capacity assessment results are summarised below for ease of reference:

Table 22. Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road / SEALR
AM Peak PM Peak

Scenario
Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Max Q

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.76 3.1 0.66 1.9

TA 2036 Do Something  0.68 2.1 0.70 2.3

2036 Do Nothing 0.57 1.3 0.61 1.6

2036 Do Something 0.84 50 0.87 6.0

Lane Simulation Results

2036 Do Nothing 0.70 3.8 0.63 42

2036 Do Something 0.96 86.2 0.93 50.2

A413 Walton Street / Wendover Road / Stoke Road (Walton Street Gyratory)

5.51 This existing junction takes the form of a signalised gyratory. The model that was
agreed with the Highway Authority in December 2020 has been used for both the 2021
and 2036 analyses. All flows have been checked and are correct. The junction layout is

shown below:

Figure 4: Walton Street Gyratory

Page 63



5.52 The results of the 2021 capacity assessments are summarised in the following
table:

Table 3. Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road
AM Peak PM Peak

Scenario

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS Max Q

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021 (a) Do Nothing  114.5% 910 1026% 47.2

2021 (a) Do Something 112.9% 748 97.0% 29.4

2021 (b) Do Nothing  108.8% 69.8 97.9% 29.1

2021 (b) Do Something 101.6% 352  92.8% 19.6

5.53 Table 3 demonstrates that the junction currently operates over capacity with the
maximum degree of saturation in excess of 100%. The results also show that the
addition of SEALR in the “Do Something” scenarios provides an improvement at the
junction in 2021 with a significant reduction in the maximum queue. The capacity
assessment results in the 2036 scenarios are summarised in the following table:

Table 13. Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road

Scenario AM Peak PM Peak

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS Max Q

TA 2036 Do Nothing  122.7% 758 117.8% 69.8

TA 2036 Do Something 1148% 80.4 112.1% 86.9

2036 Do Nothing 121.6% 133.7 1052% 54.0

2036 Do Something 116.0% 974 993% 29.8

5.54 The 2036 “Do Something” results with SEALR continue to show that the scheme
will provide an improvement in queueing and delay at the gyratory when compared to
the 2036 Do Nothing scenario. The scheme therefore achieves its aims of offsetting the
impacts of HS2’s SMRR as well as contributing to the broader aims of the VALP and the
Aylesbury Transport Strategy.

A41/ Bedgrove / Broughton Lane/Richmond Road

5.55 Bedgrove/ A41 is currently a staggered junction with Broughton Lane. A
mitigation scheme is proposed to divert Richmond Road to connect with Broughton
Lane, as shown on the plan below. This mitigation is to be provided by SEALR and 2
other planning applications which recently received permission, Westonmead Farm
(17/04819/A0P) and Land South of Aston Clinton Road (18/02495/APP). Should other
planning applications receive planning permission which require this scheme to

Page 64



mitigate their own impacts, it is anticipated that those applications will also

significantly contribute to this mitigation scheme.

5.56 Table 16 shows that in the 2021(a) Do Nothing scenario, the junction exceeds
capacity and the opening of SEALR worsens the operation of the junction slightly. With
the proposed mitigation scheme, the junctions perform within capacity and SEALR
improves the operation of the junction.

Page 65



Table 16 - Junction 3: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (incorporating Broughton

Lane)
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak
MaxDoS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ
2018 Base 126.3% 71.2 130.8% 102.2
2021 (?' Do 247.2% 240.0 170.1% 195.5
Nothing
2021(a) Do 259.2% 2547  1966% 2300
Something
Changes tojunction layout
2021(b) Do 66.0% 14.8 59.2% 15.3
Nothing
2021(b) Do 58.5% 12.7 51.8% 11.5
Something

5.57 The modelling of 2036 shows an improvement in the operation of the junction
with the SEALR in place, especially in the PM peak period with the RFC reducing from
101.8% (exceeding theoretical capacity) to 77.5%.

Table 10. Junction 3: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (incorporating
Broughton Lane)

Scenario AM Peak PM Peak

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS Max Q

Changes to junction layout

TA 2036 Do Nothing 102.4% 45.0 84.0% 26.6
TA 2036 Do Something 72.0% 15.9 69.4% 19.2
2036 Do Nothing 80.2% 22.9 101.8% 58.9

2036 Do Something 79.2% 20.8 77.5% 17.6

5.58 The capacity assessment results above show that the mitigation scheme has
benefits to the operation of the highway network that offset the impacts of the SEALR
scheme. Some representations have questioned the deliverability of this improvement
scheme due to land availability and other consenting requirements. However, the
Councils’ legal team have confirmed that the land in question has neither been
registered under the Commons Act, nor recorded as a Town or Village Green. Legal
have further confirmed that the highways scheme is deliverable.

Junction 4: A41 / A4157/ King Edward Avenue

5.59 This is a staggered signalised junction that was implemented as part of the ARLA
mitigation works in c2013 and is identified below for ease of reference.

Page 66



Figure 6: A41 / King Edward Avenue

5.60 In the 2021(a) scenario the junction would operate within capacity in the AM
peak hour but there would be a slight worsening in the Degree of Saturation (DoS) in
the PM peak which is already over capacity. However, in the 2021 (b) scenario with
cumulative development the SEALR significantly reduces saturation and queues,
especially in the PM peak where the RFC reduces from 104.6% to 96%. Any
improvements to this junction are not considered necessary for limited interim
impacts, the justification for which falls away as additional link roads come on line.
Whilst there is an increase in DoS the capacity results suggest that the maximum queue
reduces. As such, the impact on this junction is considered acceptable.

Table 2. Junction 4: A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 / King Edward Avenue

) _ AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS MaxQ

2018 Base 94 .2% 353 88.7% 224

2021 (a) Do Nothing 79.6% 24.9 110.8%  78.1

2021 (a) Do Something 82.1% 29.6 118.6% 474

2021 (b) Do Nothing 83.2% 16.8 1046% 57.3

2021 (b) Do Something 717.8% 20.8 96.0% 344
5.61 In the 2036 assessment scenario, the results illustrate that the implementation

of SEALR in the 2036 Do Something scenario will provide an improvement in queueing
and degree of saturation at the junction compared to the 2036 Do Nothing scenario.
Mitigation measures are therefore not required.

Page 67



Table 12. Junction 4: A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 / King Edward Avenue

AM Peak PM Peak

Scenario

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS MaxQ

2036 Do Nothing  132.5% 205 157.7% 2323

2036 Do Something 121.4% 142.3 149.9% 1982

A413 / Eastcote Road Junction

5.62 The 2021 modelling for this A413 / Eastcote Road ghost island priority junction
shows that the junction operates over capacity in the existing situation and will
deteriorate further in future years with or without the addition of SEALR.

Table 30. Junction 24: A413 Wendover Road / Eascote Road

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
MaxRFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ
TA 2021 (a) Do Nothing 8.02 176.0 1.49 56.2

TA 2021 (a) Do Something 999999999 223.0 999999999 155.0

TA 2021 (b) No Nothing 3.07 215.6 2.29 1246

TA 2021 (b) Do Something 3.1 178.9 11.45 2328

5.63 The results show that in all the 2021 scenarios assessed, some form of
improvement works would be required. A number of arrangements were considered
during the preparation of the TA and due to the heavy northbound flows along the
A413, it was considered that retaining a priority junction but in the form of a left-in left-
out arrangement would provide the best results within the land available. This
arrangement, shown on the plan below, would result in the use of both the Camborne
Avenue and SEALR roundabouts for the purposes of u-turning. The results of the left
in/left out junction arrangement assessments are summarised in the following table:

Table 31. Junction 24: A413 Wendover Road / Eascote Road - Left In/ Left Out Arrangement

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

TA 2021 (a) Do Something 1.50 117.3 1.15 35.2

TA 2021 (b) Do Something ~ 0.71 24 079 36
2036 Do Something 152 1254 161  143.1
5.64 The modelling shows that the left in left out arrangement would result in the

junction operating significantly better than in the Do Nothing scenarios in the 2021
scenarios. It is therefore considered that this arrangement would provide an
improvement and would mitigate the impacts of SEALR.

Page 68



/////////z:.

/

Avod YIAOANIM

Figure 7: A413 / Eastcote Road Mitigation Option 1

5.65 In order to respond to 2036 traffic demands it is considered that both the A413

Wendover Road/Cambourne Avenue and A413/Eastcote Road Junctions could be
signalised and linked such that they operate as one large junction rather than two
independent junctions. An indicative preliminary design has been derived by the
applicants and assessed using the 2036 Do Nothing and Do Something flows. An
indicative layout is shown in the following extracts:

Page 69



| [ For nFormaTION

H o

H SOUTHEAST
AYLESBURY LINK
ROAD (SEALR)

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE
COUNCIL

FOR INFORMATION

’ L

Figure 8: A413 / Eastcote Road Mitigation Option 2

5.66 Modelling has demonstrated that the indicative preliminary signalised junction
design would be sufficient to cater for the level of traffic identified for the 2036 Do
Something scenario and would therefore be an adequate mitigation should traffic flows

Page 70




reach the levels identified for 2036 or a change of layout at the Camborne Avenue
junction be required.
Table 32 - Junction 7 & 24: A413 Wendover Road / Camborne Avenue signalised three-arm junction
and A413/ Eascote Road three-arm junction
Junction 7 Junction 24
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak AM Peak PM Peak

Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ Max DoS MaxQ

2036 Do Nothing 77.5% 16.2 839% 216 73.0% 16.7 71.3%  15.0

2036 Do Something 85.8% 24.4 83.6% 20.8 87.5% 23.0 88.7% 24.4

5.67 The TAA states that the 2036 flows are very robust and with changes in working
practices it is unlikely that the levels of traffic identified by 2036 would come forward in

the future. The applicant has committed to consult with residents regarding any
changes to the Eastcote Road junction before they take place. As such, whilst the TAA

has identified mitigation measures that could be introduced, the applicants propose to:

Eastcote Road:

1. Consult with residents on the proposed Left in Left Out junction prior to opening of SEALR
2. If positive response, proceed to implement the Left in Left Out arrangement ahead of

opening of SEALR

3. If negative response, no mitigation will be provided prior to opening and a further
consultation will be held regarding a signalisation scheme within 12 months of the opening

of the ELR and SLR

4. |If positive the Council will agree to implement the signals scheme within 24 months of

opening of ELR and SLR
5. If negative no further action will be required.

Cambourne Avenue:
To be signalised within 24 months of opening of the ELR and SLR

B4443 Lower Road/Winterton Drive/Stoke Mandeville Hospital & B4443 Lower Road / B4443

Mandeville Road / Stadium Approach / Churchill Avenue

5.68 The Lower Road / Winterton Drive / Hospital and the Lower Road / Mandeville
Road / Stadium Approach / Churchill Avenue junctions are currently roundabouts
located very close to each other. The TA assessed the impacts of the scheme on the
basis of a series of improvements that were originally proposed by others. However,
the applicants have adopted these improvement works which are shown in the
following drawing extract:

Page 71



L]
%
4~ AR
L
X
%
P
 nh
@
5
e
5
Y
——— i H
H
AL
| E..I
! |I'_§§
'l
(¥
T TE O (A
L |1
gy
f ) ,"- Mo
e o :
..'.T R T‘ g ”—u_,f-
i /% o
i 7 A &
[ — J i
LA T
AT = -".-\ I)I ' ]
jrpi= iy WL W
e /ﬁﬁ" - -c"":'.\‘\.
: o - = x\\\\
gy R - oo e
P ) _\"\ ,
T A __,_.F’_,.-""'_:- o R
B Sy
- i
i :" ~ -F': .id_i.-"' L
N LT e T
e S R wncci na B
- -— W snca v o
— - = A P P T R =1 N ——
— - e T2 PRCPRRTID e LY 1+
1 T " VR
T R LI
e
- W,
N A
\ '}\x“
| B r - L
i =
¥
&
il
-~ -
-
~ = X
‘..’-\.-
L b B i i,"‘ ~
WFORMATION
R T R T2 e
LSRR ACLSACISE T TR LB S
-
= T% [ ===
- - = =
- e = T
narm s | 3 1 S5 1004 | - g
Figure 9: Proposed Lower Road roundabouts Mitigation Scheme

5.69 Section 5, page 26 of the TA assessed the impacts of the scheme on this

improved network in 2021 and concluded that the mitigation measures would offset

the impacts of SEALR. As such the mitigation scheme would need to be implemented to
address the standalone impacts of SEALR.

5.70 In 2036 with cumulative development the applicants have provided a

comparison of the Hampden Fields 2036 Do Minimum scenario (without junction
improvements) with the 2036 SEALR Do Something scenario (without junction
improvements). This comparison is shown in Table 16 below:

Page 72



Table 16. Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road / Winterton Road Stoke Mandeville Hospital - Hampden
Fields Do Minimum Comparison

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max RFC Max Q MaxRFC Max Q

Existing Roundabout - HF 2036 Do Minimum 112 187.4 113 166.5

2036 Do Something 0.90 8.9 1.03 65.8

5.71 The table above shows that the existing roundabout in 2036 without SEALR will
operate worse than the 2036 Do Something scenario with SEALR and without network
improvements. This is because the 2036 Do Something scenario includes the SW
Aylesbury link road as cumulative development which would negate the need for
improvements to this part of the network. The mitigation scheme proposed would
therefore be required only to mitigate the standalone impacts of with SEALR.

Construction

5.72 The main construction compound would be located to the west of the A413 and
accessed from a new access on the A413 via a new haul road. Secondary site
compounds will be provided adjacent to the railway line. These will be accessed via
haul roads within the site boundary. Further smaller site compounds will be provided
adjacent to the roundabouts. bThe core construction of the SEALR would take place
over a 12 month period, preceded by a period of enabling works.

Conclusion on transport matters

5.73 In acknowledging the significant local objection to the development of the site,
the Council have spent considerable time in assessing the details and impacts relating
to transport matters. Further information was requested by Highways Officers and has
been provided to their satisfaction. It is acknowledged that construction traffic on the
road network will impact on access to homes, healthcare services and other social
infrastructure during the construction phase, however, these effects will be mitigated
through the implementation of traffic management measures and a CTMP can be
secured by condition to ensure that the details are acceptable.

5.74 The 2021a standalone assessment has demonstrated that SEALR would deliver
its proposed aim of mitigating the traffic impacts of HS2 created by the construction of
the SMMR. The 2021b and 2036 assessments have demonstrated that it will also
provide further benefits to the transport network and fulfil part of the aims of the
Aylesbury Transport Strategy and provide essential VALP mitigation. The traffic impact
of the SEALR is therefore considered acceptable subject to the following mitigation
measures:

e Commitment to the mitigation works to the Bedgrove / Broughton Lane junction;

Page 73



A413 / Eastcote Road leftin / left out consultation with possible implementation to deal with
interim impacts;

A413 Wendover Road/Cambourne Avenue and A413/Eastcote Road Junction signalisation
subject to further consultation and implementation within 24 months of opening of SLR and
ELR(s);

Commitment to the Lower Road improvements to mitigate standalone traffic impacts
without the SW Link Road.

5.75 The ES concludes that the SEALR would have a positive effect on traffic
congestion. Having regard to the above matters it is considered that overall the
development would be acceptable on transport grounds, that it would significantly
address the congestion problems locally in the town and that subject to the imposition
of conditions as appropriate, the development would accord with policies T1 and T2 of
the WTNP, emerging policies D-AGT1, T1, T2 and T3 of the VALP and with the NPPF. As
such it is considered that this matter should be afforded significant positive weight in
the planning balance.

Impact on Public Rights of Way Railway Crossing

WTNP Policy T2 (Strategy for improving pedestrian and cycle connections within the Parish
and to surrounding area)

AVDLP — GP84 (Public rights of way)

Emerging policy T7 (Footpaths and cycle routes) (moderate weight)

5.76 WTNP Policy T2 (Strategy for improving pedestrian and cycle connections within
the Parish and to surrounding area) states that development proposals must
demonstrate how existing sustainable transport links can be accessed from the site and
where necessary, secure improvements to ensure safe access for pedestrian and
cyclists in line with current industry standards and the Highways Authority policies.
Policy GP84 of the AVDLP states that in considering applications for development
affecting a public right of way the Council will have regard to the convenience, amenity
and public enjoyment of the route and the desirability of its retention or improvement
for users, including people with disabilities and these aims are carried through into the
emerging VALP policy T7.

5.77 A number of PRoOWs pass through the site and include:

* SMA1/2, a bridleway which starts at Wendover Road immediately north of the Stoke
Grange roundabout, briefly heads west before turning south away from the alignment
of the SEALR towards Stoke Mandeville.

* SMA2/1-2/3, a footpath which runs through the site in a broad east to west direction
closely following the alignment of the SEALR linking Lower Road with Wendover Road.
This footpath crosses the Aylesbury to London Marylebone railway line at an
uncontrolled level crossing. Stiles are provided either side of the railway to control
access to the Network Rail land.

Page 74



* SMA3/1-3/2, a footpath which runs through the site in a broad north to south
direction bisecting the alignment of the SEALR.

5.78 The Transport Assessment provides survey results on pedestrian flows for the
PRoWs within the vicinity during the weekdays and weekends showing that usage
during the weekend was found generally higher than during the week, although
generally, the pedestrian flow in this area is low.

5.79 The proposed development will involve the temporary diversion of PRoW SMA
2/2 around the proposed construction compound adjacent to the Aylesbury-London
railway line for approximately 500m. This route is part of three connected segments of
PRoWs which connects users between Lower Road and Wendover Road. The route has
on average 25 users per day and the diversion would lead to an increase in journey
length of some 200m. The development would require the permanent diversion of
PRoW SMA3/1 (between the hospital and towards the station) onto Lower Road for
approximately 1.1km. Users of this route would be required to travel near to extensive
construction works and could therefore discourage its use at this time.

5.80 Once the SEALR is operational the application includes a shared cycle/footway of
three metres to the north and south sides of the link road. Pedestrians are likely to use
this footway to travel between Lower Road and Wendover Road. However, pedestrians
seeking amenity value are more likely to use the network of PRoWs located to the
south which transverse through agricultural fields. As discussed above the
development will require the permanent diversion of PRoW SMA3/1 onto Lower Road
for approximately 1.1km and therefore whilst it currently runs through agricultural
fields it would as part of the development be required to cross the SEALR. Following
construction and once the SEALR is operational, PROW SMA1/2, SMA2/2 and SMA/2/3
will not be affected.

5.81 It is clear that during the construction phase users of the local PRoW will be
significantly affected by the development but following completion this will be less so
for the majority of the footpaths. It is not considered that in the longer term the SEALR
would result in significant numbers of people being discouraged from using the
footpaths and it must be born in mind that these rights of way also transverse through
the emerging allocation within VALP of AGT1, South Aylesbury and so it must be
anticipated that there would be some change.

5.82 During the construction phases the development would also involve the
temporary disruption of cycle routes known as Jetway and Amberway on Lower Road
and Wendover Road which connect Aylesbury Town centre with Stoke Mandeville rail
station. The application details state that these routes will remain accessible however
they will be disrupted and diverted during the construction of the new junctions.
However, the applicants consider that this should not discourage users from travelling
on these cycling routes as traffic mitigation measures will ensure minimal journey
delays between the rail station and the town centre.

Page 75



5.83 Once the SEALR is open users of the Amberway cycle route would be required to
cross a new junction on Wendover Road. Toucan crossings will be provided on the
western and northern arms of this junction to enable cyclists to cross the junction
safely. Users of the Jetway cycle route will also be required to cross a new junction on
the A413 Lower Road which would comprise a controlled crossing. In addition, the
designated shared cycle/footway around the western and northern arms of the A413
Lower Road roundabout will be a minimum width of three metres. The new
shared/cycle footway along the length of the proposed dual carriageway would also
connect the existing cycle routes creating an east-west cycle route. This would enhance
users connectivity when cycling in the local area.

5.84 In the wider context, a walking and cycling route is planned linking Stoke
Mandeville Stadium and Stoke Mandeville train station which runs along the west side
of the railway and can link to the cycle path along the SEALR. The aim is to complement
the rehabilitation of spinal injury patients’ by providing a disabled accessible route into
the countryside via the Garden Way and onto Stoke Mandeville village and train
station. In addition, it combines as a sustainable transport route into the AGT-1 housing
areas and possible green infrastructure provision.

5.85 The Council’s Rights of Way Officer has considered the details of the
development and is content with the proposals for the provision of pedestrians
crossing the SEALR to make their onward connections along the rights of way network
and arrangements for a footway / cycleway on north and south sides of the new road
complement existing walking and cycling networks. The provision of maintenance
access tracks within areas dedicated as ‘highway maintained at public expense’ allows
future connectivity for public walking and cycling routes onto the proposed Stoke
Mandeville Hospital to Stoke Mandeville train station walking and cycling route from
the SEALR. Provision of areas south of the SEALR as highway land allows for a choice of
future walking and cycling links from the SEALR footway / cycleway into new housing
areas, as the AGT1 allocation design evolves.

5.86 Most, if not all, of the area up to the red edge flanking the SEALR (the
embankments and surrounding land), are to be dedicated as public highway land,
which allows a choice of routes to be provided along the embankments at appropriate
desire-line points into AGT1 housing areas. Steps can be provided during construction
directly up to the SEALR cycleway at points close to the bridge structure to allow
convenient access from south-west and south-eastern AGT1 areas. Disabled accessible
provision can be made further east and west as the embankments disappear and the
ground flattens. The north eastern parcel of land between SEALR and the built-up area
of Aylesbury becomes public open space.

5.87 With regards to the railway crossing, Network Rail initially had concerns
regarding the safety of pedestrians crossing the railway. Further work was undertaken
by the applicant in this regard and evidence provided to indicate that users would not
be distracted by moving traffic movements when they were supposed to be looking left

Page 76



and right for trains coming. Safety would not be compromised. Moreover, evidence
was provided that the bridge abutments didn’t impact on pedestrian sight lines looking
north from the footpath crossing. There is no evidence therefore to support the closing
of this crossing.

5.88 The ES concludes that the SEALR would disrupt and divert the existing PRoW
network and cycling routes during the construction phase but that during the operation
phase the scheme would provide high quality walking and cycling facilities which will
improve accessibility to open spaces in the local area which would have a positive
effect and that overall there would not be a significant effect. In summary it is
considered that the impact on existing PRoW and cycle routes would not be significant
having regard to the overall scheme. In addition the new shared/cycle footway will
connect the existing cycle routes creating an east-west cycle route which will enhance
users experience of cycling in the local area. As such it is considered that the
development would accord with policy GP84 of the AVDLP and with emerging policy T7
of the VALP and with the NPPF in this regard.

Landscape Impact
WTNP Policy H2: Development Design in the Neighbourhood Area

AVDLP Policies GP.35 (Design of new development proposals)and GP.38 (Landscaping of
new development proposals)

Emerging VALP policies BE2 (Design of new development) D1 Delivering AGT, and NE4

(Landscape character and locally important landscape) (moderate weight)

5.89 The NPPF sets out that the Government attaches great importance to the design
of the built environment and that good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development. WTNP policy H2 amongst other things states that proposals for
development in the neighbourhood area will be supported provided that the scale,
density, height, massing, landscape design, layout and materials, reflect the character
and scale of the surrounding buildings and of distinctive local landscape features and
that it retains and enhances natural boundaries, including hedgerow and water
courses, which contribute to visual amenity or are important for their ecological value.

5.90 AVDLP policy GP35 is consistent with the objectives of the NPPF and states that
the design of new development proposals should respect and complement; the
physical characteristics of the site and surroundings, the building tradition, ordering,
form and materials of the locality; the historic scale and context of the setting; the
natural qualities and features of the area; and the effect on important public views and
skylines. AVDLP policy GP38 is also in conformity with the NPPF and states that new
development schemes should include landscaping proposals designed to help buildings
fit in with and complement their surroundings and conserve existing natural and other
features of value as far as possible.

5.91 Emerging Policies D1 and BE2 of VALP reflect these. Policy NE4 of the VALP seeks
to ensure that scheme respect the local context and landscape character of the area.

Page 77



5.92 The applicant has submitted an Environmental Statement (ES) in support of the

application. Chapter 7 of the ES presents a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
(LVIA) of the proposed scheme. The LVIA sets out the applicant’s assessment of the
landscape and visual ‘baseline’ and also the applicant’s conclusions on the potential
landscape and visual effects of the proposed development on that baseline. Following
comments from the Council’s Landscape officer, that the applicant had unreasonably
failed to identify additional Significant Residual Effects on identified ‘representative
receptors’ and thereby reaches conclusions that somewhat underplay the extent of the
residual (permanent) effects that would result from the proposed development, further
assessments were undertaken and updated plans and details (to also address design
changes) were submitted. Nineteen representative viewpoints were considered as part
of the updated details including points along the PRoW'’s, residential boundaries,
recreational users and road users.

Landscape and Settlement Character and Visual Impacts:

5.93 Landscape character: The site is located within the Southern Vale Landscape

Character Area which is characterised by flat landscape in the north rising gently to a
rolling land form on the southern edge. There is evidence of parliamentary enclosure
with streams and ditches draining off the chalk scarp to the south marked by belts of
mature black poplar. The landscape continuity is interrupted by development and
communication corridors but there is a predominance of large open arable fields,
pockets of grazing land and smaller field parcels associated with settlements.
Distinctive features comprise mature black poplar, historic moated sites and former fish
ponds, the Aylesbury Arm of the Grand Union Canal on the northern boundary,
vernacular buildings in Weston Turville, Manor House, Motte and Bailey Site and
Church at Weston Turville, moated sites at Aston Clinton, Buckland and Broughton,
ancient co-axial trackways and neutral grassland. Intrusive elements in this character
area include the Aston Clinton bypass and associated infrastructure, traffic on the A41
and A413, the Aylesbury to Marylebone Railway, ribbon development and associated
commercial development along main highway corridors.

5.94 The ES Addendum describes the existing baseline of the landscape being

generally flat topography which does not afford many opportunities for long distance
or panoramic views across the wider landscape or expansive views towards the site
although there are views out from the site southwards towards the Chilterns. A number
and range of field boundaries including groups of woodlands or tree belts beyond the
site boundary also go some way to screening and filtering views.

5.95 Within the original ES and the ES Addendum the effects on landscape character

have been considered during the construction phase, upon the assumed opening of the
SEALR in 2022 and after 15 years of operation (residual effects) in 2037.

5.96 During the construction phase of the SEALR the effects on the Southern Vale

character area (LCA8.10) are assessed as being moderate adverse, which is considered

Page 78



significant. The effects on the neighbouring Haddenham Vale (LCA 8.9) are assessed as
being slight adverse, but not significant owing to the location of the LCA beyond the
boundary of the site.

5.97 With regard to the operational phase, the LVIA in the ES identifies that there will
similarly be a moderate adverse effect on the Southern Vale Character area (LCA8.10)
which will be significant but concludes that by year 15 the residual effect (taking into
account the proposed mitigation) will have lessened to the extent that it will no longer
be significant on the wider Southern Vale. It is noted however that there will remain a
significant residual effect on the landscape character of the site and its immediate
setting.

Visual effects:

5.98 Whilst there are relatively few places where the whole of the proposed
development will be visible there are a number of places where sections will be visible
in relative proximity to the viewer and this includes in particular, residents on the
southern edge of Aylesbury along Diane Walk and surrounding residential streets and
users of the existing open space opposite.

5.99 With regards to the visual impacts during the construction phase, a range of
operations will be carried out, with the potential to result in effects on visual amenity.
In order to mitigate the impact of construction of the SEALR the applicant is proposing
to incorporate a number of measures which will be incorporated in to the design and
will be contained within a construction environmental management plan.

5.100 Landscape proposals for the scheme were developed alongside the proposed
highway alignment as part of the design process and were informed by a site survey
and the analysis of the existing landscape in terms of landscape elements and species
composition within existing tree, woodland and hedgerows in the immediate
landscape. The applicants have advised that this process informed the overall approach
and mitigation strategy which was developed to reduce the effects of the scheme on
the landscape in parallel with and responding to the engineering and highways layout
so that the proposals respond to visibility, earthworks, infrastructure and drainage
requirements for the successful operation of the site in addition to improving the
overall amenity and ecological value of the landscape.

5.101 The landscape proposals would include the following within a landscape
management plan:

- All existing trees and shrubs to be retained shall be protected;

- Planting to screen the development to be consistent with that of the adjacent
retained or lost landscape elements and will provide an opportunity to improve the
diversity of species and age ranges of trees on site to increase the future resilience and
amenity contribution of the tree and shrub stock, with hedgerow planting to create a
network of habitat corridors

Page 79



- Woodland planting is intended to provide visual screening from adjacent areas of
housing, from footpaths or places of work and reinforce boundary vegetation
structure;

- Planting to attenuation features as grassland to provide easy access to the
features and low maintenance;

- Public open space to create an area of recreation with trees, margins of
wildflower and hedgerow planting for the benefit of local wildlife and biodiversity;

- Heavy standard trees are proposed in several sensitive locations adjacent to
existing houses to replace boundary vegetation lost and provide more immediate
visual screening to adjacent residential properties;

5.102 The visual impact assessment set out in the ES has been undertaken on the basis
of nineteen selected ‘representative’ viewpoints. The ES has again assessed the
potential effects of the proposed development during the construction phase of the
project, after one year of operation and the ‘residual’ effects after fifteen years.

5.103 During the construction phase the ES identifies significant visual effects at
seventeen of the viewpoints. These significant effects are also identified at the same
seventeen viewpoints at ‘year 1’, however by ‘year 15’ the proposed mitigation will
have taken effect and the number of representative viewpoints that will experience any
significant ‘residual’ effects will have reduced to five, these being to users of the public
right of way to the south of the scheme (SMA/2/3), and residents facing the
development along Dalesford Road, Diane Walk, Charles Close and Patrick Way.

5.104 The night time assessment identified no likely significant effects during
construction, the first year of operation or at year fifteen. The development would be
seen in the context of the built up area of Aylesbury and the existing lighting columns
on Wendover Road and Lower Road, adding to the existing suburban district
brightness. It is noted that only the roundabouts are to have lighting with the dual
carriageway being unlit apart from solar studs to the footpath/cycleway. Details of the
lighting to be used and illuminance and light spill can be reasonably secured by
condition having regard to the local and wider impact that the lighting could have.

Impact on the setting of the AONB :

5.105 The site is a low lying and generally flat landscape located to the south of the
town of Aylesbury with near views available from surrounding housing and footpaths
within the site. The Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) rises abruptly
from the foothills of the Chilterns between 4.2km and 4.6km to the south. The ES
identifies that one of the special qualities of the Chilterns AONB is that the main ridge
of the escarpment provides long panoramic views across the lower lying values to the
north and west towards the application site which is barely discernible in the context of
Aylesbury and surrounding settlements and existing vegetation. Large agricultural fields
at the base of Coombe Hill stretch into the middle distance with boundary vegetation
and woodland groups punctuated by buildings. Large, open skies are an important part

Page 80



of the view as a result of the elevated position. The view from Coombe Hill within the
Chilterns AONB is acknowledged as of regional value.

5.106 Reference to key views identified in the AONB Management Plan are made and
the ES acknowledges the cumulative assessment of impacts and the cumulative work
includes planning permissions in proximity of the new road. Looking at the longer term
cumulative impacts, the Chilterns Conservation Board have commented that weight
should be given to the longer term agglomeration of impacts, especially lighting and
the need for maximum mitigation of lighting impacts and design innovations to avoid
top-lit columnar lighting and commented that the cumulative impact of 10m/12m top
lit columnar lighting will be far greater upon completion of the anticipated outer road
to the south and south-east of Aylesbury. Conditions to address the details of the
lighting and its design could be reasonably imposed to ensure that appropriate details
of lighting are secured.

Cumulative Impact:

5.107 The cumulative impact of the development in association with the other
developments being considered in the vicinity of the site have been assessed by the
applicant. In terms of landscape effects, there will be a range of potential effects arising
for the proposed mixed-use development, Hampden Fields, and associated Southern
Link Road to the east of the site, where the landscape and its underlying character will
be substantially different to the existing baseline and one which will be a largely built
up suburban setting. As such, it will no longer comprise a setting consisting of fields and
tree lined field boundaries but will comprise large areas of new development. This will
also be the case for the land allocation areas directly to the north and south of the site.
The land at South West Aylesbury would also no longer consist of fields and tree lined
field boundaries but will comprise a large area of new development extending the
existing edge and urban influences of Aylesbury towards the site.

5.108 While these developments and land allocations will bring a range of effects, the
applicants consider that the contribution of the SEALR to these effects will not be a
significant factor, given the scale and spread of development proposed. In visual terms,
these cumulative developments would affect the views from all defined viewpoints.
The viewpoints would contain a mix of built and natural features, which would replace
the current agricultural fields and field boundaries. This would result in the site forming
part of an urban setting, although the applicants considered that for cumulative
landscape effects, the contribution of the SEALR to these effects would not be a
significant factor, given the scale and spread of development proposed. When
considered in relation to the additional infrastructure developments including the
Southern Link Road through Hampden Fields to the east and Stoke Mandeville relief
road to the west of Lower Road, the SEALR would form a short section of a
wider aspirational Aylesbury orbital route, which will be set within a wider built up
area. The additional sections of link road will provide further changes and effect to the
landscape character of the area and upon views around the western sections of the

Page 81



site. The applicants consider that the SEALR would not form the significant factor given
the separate context of this infrastructure project to the west and the separate context
of landscape character and visual receptors to the west of Lower Road.

5.109 Overall the additional cumulative effect resulting from the development, in
combination with other built, approved and developing proposals is not considered to
be significant and while a range of cumulative effects can be anticipated, these will be
attributed to the wider context of the large mixed use developments and separate
sections of the wider Aylesbury orbital route noted above which will bring about
substantial change to the landscape and visual amenity resource surrounding the site.

5.110 Following construction and completion of the proposed scheme it will likely have
a range of effects on landscape character, for example through removal of
characteristic landscape elements and the introduction of uncharacteristic elements
that contrast with or are incongruous in the context of the existing landscape
character. Changes in views will also give rise to a range of visual effects through
obstruction in views, alteration of the components of the view and opening up of new
views by the removal of screening. It is likely that changes in view will be experienced
from residential properties, businesses, public rights of way and public receptors during
the day and at night time.

Conclusions on landscape impact

5.111 It is clear that, given the scale of the development, the SEALR will result in
significant adverse residual landscape and visual effects to the both the receiving
landscape and to visual receptors (including users of PROW’s, recreation areas and
residents) along the southern edge of Aylesbury that lies to the north of the application
site as well as to other similar receptors to the north east, south east, south west and
south of the application site and this is acknowledged in the ES. Overall it is considered
that the proposal would result in significant adverse residual landscape and visual
effects to both the landscape character and visual receptors including users of the
PROW, open space and residents along the southern edge of Aylesbury town within
Stoke Mandeville Parish in the short to medium period. In cumulative terms the
proposed development would be viewed in the context of the wider development as
part of the development of AGT1 and wider growth of Aylesbury, coming forward as
part of the VALP allocations, to a moderate adverse longer term effect. However,
there will remain adverse impacts and on this basis it is considered that the
development would conflict with AVDLP Policies GP.35 (Design of new development
proposals) and GP.38 (Landscaping of new development proposals), emerging policies
BE2 and NE4 of the VALP and with the NPPF and as such the impact on the landscape
and visual effects of the development are accorded significant negative weight in the
balance. In respect of WTNP Policy H2 only the eastern part of the Wendover Road
roundabout falls with the neighbourhood plan area and given that the roundabout
would be viewed in the context of the adjacent existing carriageway and other
development it is not considered that there would be a conflict with this policy.

Page 82



Agricultural Land

Emerging policy NE7 Best and most versatile agricultural land (moderate weight)

5.112 Paragraph 170 of the NPPF advises that Local Planning Authorities should take
into account the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile
agricultural land (BMV) and, where significant development of agricultural land is
demonstrated to be necessary, local planning authorities should seek to use areas of
poorer quality land in preference to that of a higher quality. There is no definition as to
what comprises ‘significant development’ in this context but the threshold above which
Natural England are required to be consulted has been set at 20 hectares so the site
falls below this threshold.

5.113 Policy NE7 of the emerging VALP states that subject to the development
allocations set out in the VALP, the council will seek to protect the best and most
versatile farmland for the longer term. The development has been accompanied by an
assessment of the land as required by the policy. The policy states that where
significant development would result in the loss of best and more versatile agricultural
land, planning consent will not be granted unless:

a. There are no otherwise suitable sites of poorer agricultural quality that can
accommodate the development, and

b. The benefits of the proposed development outweighs the harm resulting from the
significant loss of agricultural land.

5.114 The predominant land use within the site is agricultural; the majority consists of
arable farming with small fields of pasture used for sheep grazing east of Lower Road.

5.115 Within Chapter 12 of the ES it is stated that the proposed scheme will require
approximately 16.69ha of land, of which approximately 2.68ha is Subgrade 3a BMV
land. The remaining land is Subgrade 3b land, which is not of BMV land. It is stated that
most of the effects on agricultural land and farm holdings will take place at the start of
the construction period and will be permanent.

Subgrade 3a 268 16
Subgrade 3b 10.81 65
Other 3z 19
Total 16.69 100

5.116 The primary potential direct effect on soil would be a loss of quality and function
if it were handled inappropriately (for example, being handled or trafficked when wet
and by the mixing of topsoil and subsoil on stripping). The indirect adverse effect on the
soil resource would accrue mainly from the re-use of soil off-site in a manner
inappropriate to its quality. The construction phase of the scheme will displace the soil
resource over an area of approximately 13.49ha and will result in the in-situ capabilities

Page 83



being lost. As such, it is acknowledged that the scheme would have a significant local
impact on the soil generally, noting that a smaller proportion is BMV land.

5.117 The impacts on farm holdings relate primarily to the loss of land and other key
farm infrastructure. The scheme will result in the loss of approximately 13.49ha of
agricultural land that is currently in agricultural production. It is farmed on short-term,
non-secure arrangements by local farmers who are therefore not reliant on this land
for the long term viability of their businesses. Having regard to the findings of the
agricultural assessment within the ES, it is accepted that the development would result
in the loss of 2.68ha of best and most versatile (bmv) agricultural land. Consideration
has been given the to the development of this agricultural land as required by the
NPPF, however, having regard to the size of the site and the extent of BMV land lost, it
is not considered that this would represent a significant loss when considered in the
context of the wider Aylesbury Vale area and that therefore there would not be
significant loss of BMV land.

5.118 The ES concludes that there would not be a significant impact on agricultural
matters. Having regard to the above comments it is not considered that the
development would conflict with the emerging policy in the VALP or with the aims of
the NPPF in this regard. However, having regard to the loss of some BMV land, this
should be afforded limited negative weight.

Trees and hedgerows

WTNP Policy H2 (Development Design in the Neighbourhood Area)

AVDLP GP39 (Existing trees and hedgerows) and GP40 (Retention of existing trees and
hedgerows)

Emerging AVDLP NES8 (Trees, hedgerows and woodlands) (moderate weight)

5.119 WTNP Policy H2 amongst other things states that development will be supported
provided that their scale, density, height, massing, landscape design, layout and
materials, including alterations to existing buildings, reflect the character and scale of
the surrounding buildings and of distinctive local landscape features and that it retains
and enhances natural boundaries, including hedgerow and water courses, which
contribute to visual amenity or are important for their ecological value. Policies GP39
and GP40 of the AVDLP seek to preserve existing trees and hedgerows where they are
of amenity, landscape or wildlife value and this is also reflected in emerging policy NES.
The NPPF also states that planning permission should be refused for development
resulting in the loss of veteran trees found outside ancient woodland, unless the need
for, and benefits of, the development in that location clearly outweigh the loss.

5.120 A hedgerow survey and assessment and tree survey including a black poplar
survey have been undertaken.

Page 84



5.121 With regard specifically to black poplars, a total of 24 black poplars were
recorded within the site, 17 of which were immature. No black poplars will be impacted
as a result of the proposed scheme.

5.122 With input from ecology, the landscape design includes linear tree and shrub
planting on either side of the road link, which will contribute to restoring severed
ecological corridors across the site as a result of hedgerow removal. In addition to this,
new hedgerows will be created that connect to existing habitat within the landscape in
order to compensate for the loss of ecological connectivity as a result of the
development.

5.123 Of the 15 hedgerows surveyed, four were species-rich and the remaining
species-poor. None were classified as ecologically ‘Important’ in accordance with the
guidance outlined in the Hedgerow Regulations (1997). It is anticipated that nine
hedgerows will require complete or partial removal as a result of the development.

5.124 In order to maintain the enhancement of hedgerows once the SEALR is
constructed, a five-year monitoring and management programme will be implemented
post-construction. This will include weed management, litter, rubbish and debris
removal; use of protective fencing, and trimming the hedge each autumn until the
required height is reached (minimum of 1.4m).

5.125 The arboricultural officer considers that from an arboricultural perspective there
are no major recommendations to oppose the application. It is recommended that an
Arboricultural Method Statement forms part of the planning conditions as referenced
within the existing AIA report and such a condition could be reasonably secured.

5.126 The ES concludes that the removal of hedgerows and trees would not result in a
significant effect overall.

5.127 With regard to the impact on trees and hedgerows, it is considered that the
development would accord with policies GP38-40 of the AVDLP and with emerging
policy NE8 of the VALP and with the NPPF and as such this factor should therefore be
afforded neutral weight in the planning balance.

Amenity of Local Residents

WTNP Policy H2 (Development Design in the Neighbourhood Area)

AVDLP - GP.8 (Protection of the amenity of residents)
Emerging VALP policy BE3 (Protection of the amenity of residents) and NE5 Pollution, air
guality and contaminated land (both considerable weight)

5.128 The NPPF in its core planning principles seeks to secure a good standard of
amenity for all existing and future occupants. WTNP Policy H2 states that, amongst
other things, proposals for development in the neighbourhood area will be supported
provided that it does not adversely affect neighbouring properties by way of loss of
privacy, daylight, noise, visual intrusion or amenity. In addition, that any new
development does not result in the loss of any existing publicly accessible open space.

Page 85



5.129 Policies GP8 and GP95 of the AVDLP seeks to protect the amenities of residents
and policy GP8 in particular states that planning permission will not be granted where
the proposed development would unreasonably harm any aspect of the amenity of
nearby residents when considered against the benefits arising from the proposal, and
emerging policy BE3 reflects this.

5.130 As discussed above one of the main aims of the SEALR in association with the
other link roads is to relieve traffic congestion and this will be reduced along the B4443
and A413. The application details advise that the B4443 will experience a 9% reduction
in traffic towards Stoke Mandeville Hospital and the A413 will experience a reduction
of 40% reduction in traffic towards the Stoke Mandeville Rail station. This will enable
residents of surrounding settlements to have improved access to Aylesbury, including
Stoke Mandeville Hospital and community resources in the town centre.

Air Quality

5.131 In terms of air quality, Officers are satisfied that a sufficient assessment of
potential air quality impact has been carried out with due regard to residential
properties closest to the construction, along adjacent traffic routes and the impacts on
Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA) in Aylesbury. During construction there are
potential impacts on both air quality and dust emissions for properties closest to the
construction itself but these will be mitigated through controls agreed in the
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP). There are also minor impacts
due to construction traffic on the Stoke Road AQMA, however, these will only be short
term and are not judged to be significant. Once the road is in operation the greatest
change in air quality will be in those properties adjacent to the new road but will not
result in exceedances of air quality standards. Depending on other road developments
being completed there are a range of beneficial effects on the three AQMA’s in
Aylesbury and some small benefits and dis-benefits to other properties on adjacent
roads.

5.132 The ES concludes that the updated assessment of air quality based on traffic data
for the year 2036 concludes that the scheme will not result in any significant effects.

5.133 Overall, on air quality, it is considered that this scheme has a positive benefit so
there are no environmental health objections to the scheme. As such on these grounds
the development would accord with ADVLP policies GP8 and GP95, emerging policies
BE3 and NE5 of the VALP and with the NPPF and as such it should be afforded neutral
weight in the planning balance.

Noise and Vibration
5.134 The impacts of noise and vibration have been modelled for a number of

operational scenarios over a period of time. Detailed modelling of construction noise is
not possible at this stage but will be completed during development of the CEMP
although it is likely that some of the impacts will be significant on residential dwellings
close to the construction site. The local authority also has a degree of control over
construction noise through the provisions of Sections 60 and 61 of the Control of
Pollution Act 1974 and the contractors will have to employ ‘best practicable means’ to
reduce these impacts.

Page 86



5.135 In terms of noise from the operation of the new highway up to 227 properties
are forecast to be significantly affected by increased noise levels, the majority on the
Wendover Park Estate and around the junctions with the new road. Mitigation in the
form of a 3m high noise barrier is to be included in the development. Balancing these
negative impacts there are smaller decreases in noise levels for some 600+ properties
on surrounding roads due to changes in traffic flows in the opening year. Additional
mitigation measures have been considered but confer little benefit compared with the
costs involved in implementing them. The only other potential mitigation is the use of a
low noise road surface. At the design speed of the proposed road the contributions to
the total noise generated from the engine/drivetrain/exhaust and the wheel/road
generated noise are approximately equal with engine noise being slightly higher.
Engine noise becomes more prominent at lower speeds whilst at higher speeds
wheel/road noise becomes increasingly dominant. Theoretically, at 40 mph, no matter
how much wheel/road noise is reduced the overall reduction in noise levels can be no
more than 3dB. The ES reports an estimated reduction of 2.5dB. However this
reduction is based on the current mix of vehicles which are predominantly petrol/diesel
driven. In the future year scenario it is highly likely that an increasing percentage of
road vehicles will be electrically driven which do not produce the same level of
engine/drivetrain/exhaust noise. This reduction means that the full benefits of the
reduction in wheel/road noise using a low noise road surface can be realised and this
may result in overall reductions greater than the 2.5dB quoted. The second aim of the
Noise Policy Statement for England 2010 is to mitigate and minimise the adverse effect
of noise (within the context of Government policy on sustainable development). Given
that the use of a low noise road surface would contribute towards meeting this second
aim the Council’s Environmental Health Officer suggest that further consideration
should be given during the detailed design phase to utilising low or ultra low noise road
surfaces on the proposed road. Such consideration will need to include an assessment
of the costs/benefits over the long term of such a solution. It is considered that such a
condition would be reasonable to ensure that residential properties are adequately
protected from noise and vibration. Such a solution would also ensure that any noise
and vibration would not unduly prejudice the delivery of the future development
comprising the AGT1 allocation in the emerging VALP.

5.136 The ES concludes that noise and vibration is expected to result in a negative
health and wellbeing effect on nearby residential receptors and that for a number of
properties the effect would be significant. Further mitigation would be required to
reduce the significant noise and vibration effects, to include potential noise insulation
packages to dwellings most affected by the scheme and low noise road surface
treatment.

5.137 Overall in respect of noise and vibration it is considered that subject to the
mitigation outlined above, including the imposition of conditions regarding additional
noise reduction relating to the road surface and which will also require the approval of
a CEMP, there would be conflict with ADVLP policies GP8 and GP95, emerging policies

Page 87



5.138

5.139

BE3 and NE5 of the VALP and with the NPPF. As such this element should be afforded
significant negative weight in the planning balance.

Loss of privacy/overlooking

The above diagram shows the distances between the embankment and
residential properties (blue) and between the carriageway and the residential
properties (red). This plan also illustrates how the route of the SEALR, through the
amendments, has been moved further away from the existing properties (grey and pink
annotations). The nearest properties on the Wendover Road lie approx 40m distant to
the east of the proposal with the County Farm Cottages being approx. 30m distance,
though the alterations to the north and south of the proposed roundabout would be
largely along the existing carriageway. There are a number of properties to the north of
the proposal which would be affected such as those on Charles Close which would be
45m from the embankment and 52m from the carriageway; Dalesford which would be
30m from the embankment and 61m from the carriageway and Edward Close which
would be 37m from the embankment and 59m from the carriageway; the properties to
the mid point of the SEALR to the north being more affected by the bridge. The bridge
would have a long span of 78m at a maximum height of 10m. The Lower Road
properties to the north and south of the proposed SEALR would be accessed via new
cul de sacs. As discussed above, a 3m wide footpath and cycleway will be provided on
the north and south sides of the SEALR. Where the link road rises up over the bridge
across the railway there could be a potential for overlooking into the residential
properties to the north. However, in order to mitigate against the noise generated
through the use of the SEALR a 3m high acoustic fence is proposed along much of the
northern side and this would effectively block any views into the properties and
gardens of the nearby properties.

A number of representations objecting have referred to the loss of a view,
however, there is no right to a view and this is not a material planning consideration.
With regards to outlook, mitigation is proposed in the form of landscaping, including
tree planting, but it is not considered that the proposed development would be so
close to dwellings that the occupiers would be unduly affected by loss of light or
outlook.

Page 88



Conclusions on residential amenity

5.140 The Council’s Environmental Health Officers have carefully considered the
proposal. A draft Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been
submitted with the application and this will need to be developed into a full CEMP by
the contractors during detailed design. The controls in relation to working hours, dust
and air quality and noise and vibration contained in the draft CEMP appear satisfactory
but will need to be finalised at a later date. A condition is therefore recommended to
require the submission of a CEMP and its approval by the Council prior to the
commencement of any construction and this would be a reasonable requirement.

5.141 In summary it is considered that the proposed development would not unduly
harm the residential amenities of nearby properties in terms of their light, outlook or
privacy. Although there will be some impact from construction traffic a condition can
require the submission of a Construction Environmental Traffic Management Plan
(CEMP) to ensure that amenities are adequately protected as set out above. Once
operational the development would result in improved air quality overall through the
reduction in congestion on the local road network and movement of traffic away from
a significant number of dwellings overall. In respect of air quality the ES notes a
cumulative significant beneficial impact on the Stoke Road AQMA and no significant
effect on the Tring Road or Friarage Road AQMA or other sensitive receptors. In terms
of noise and vibration it is accepted that there would be a negative impact in particular
to dwellings closest to the site and that the ES concludes in respect of a cumulative
impact that there would be a significant effect for a number of properties (major
adverse impact for 98 properties and moderate adverse effect for 129 properties).
Whilst mitigation is proposed through acoustic fencing and noise limiting construction
and adherence to a CEMP, there would still be significant effects. It is accepted that the
proposed development would have a negative impact on some properties and whilst
some mitigation can be secured it is not considered that this would completely mitigate
the impact, notwithstanding that a condition can require a scheme to be submitted to
further reduce the effects through design (in respect of the noise reduction surface). As
such there would be some conflict with Policies GP8 and GP95 of the AVDLP, emerging
policies BE3 and NE5 of the VALP and NPPF advice and it is considered that overall this
matter should be afforded significant negative weight in the planning balance.

Healthy and safe communities
AVDLP: GP45 (Secure by Design considerations )
Emerging VALP: policy 11 (green infrastructure) (moderate weight)

Public open space
5.142 NPPF paragraph 97 requires that the ‘loss resulting form the development would

be replaced by equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a
suitable location’. In emerging policy |1 of the VALP it is stated that the Council will only
accept the loss of ANGSt (accessible natural greenspace standard) if:

- The ANGSt has been subject to an assessment which shows it to be surplus to
requirements

Page 89



- The land does not fulfil a useful purpose in terms of its appearance, landscaping,
recreational use or wildlife value

- The land does not host an element of semi-natural habitat or any other feature of
value to wildlife to a greater extent than would be the case if it were planted as a
garden

- The loss of publicly accessible green infrastructure would not set a precedent for
other similar proposals which could cumulatively have an adverse effect on the locality
or the environment

- The continued maintenance of the land for publicly accessible green infrastructure
would be impractical or unduly onerous

- Publicly accessible green infrastructure lost will need to be replaced by equivalent or
better following an assessment justifying this need.

5.143 Part of the land within the site has been maintained as public open space under
planning permission AV/1036/85, comprising approximately 1,550 sqm which would be
lost to provide the new roundabout at Wendover road and associated landscaping and
ecological mitigation including new grassland, shrubs, trees and native hedgerow. The
land lost to the proposed development is directly adjacent to Wendover Road (A413)
on the western side, with residential development on the northern and eastern sides. It
is currently an area of managed grassland, hedgerows and trees forming an amenity
area to the south of Patrick Way. It is understood that the existing open space is well
used for dog walkers and recreation and is potentially used by residents as a link to the
local footpath network situated to the south of the open space. There are no other
open space amenity facilities provided within this land.

5.144 The applicants are proposing to provide open space close to the open space to
be lost, approximately 180m to the south west at its nearest point. It would be
approximately 10,420 square metres in size. Existing access points through the tree belt
north of the proposed open space will be maintained and where possible enhanced.
Therefore, a minimal amount of hedgerow, will be required to be removed in order to
facilitate access. Maintenance access will be from a proposed access point passing
under the bridge and this will also be able to provide future pedestrian access in this
location if and when required responding to potential future growth as per Policy D1
and allocation AGT1 of the emerging VALP. The access points are close to the
Wendover Park/Stoke Grange estate which is immediately to the north.

5.145 The proposed open space currently comprises arable land with hedgerow and
hedgerow trees and is not subject to any land use or environmental designations other
than its agricultural use and it would be re-seeded to grassland in order to become a
usable open space. In addition, the design of the replacement open space includes
areas of wildflower meadow/species, rich grassland and shrubs therefore providing
biodiversity benefits and an attractive area for recreational users including dog walkers.
Along the inside edge of the southern boundary, the existing hedgerow is in poor
condition, therefore it is proposed to provide a wide hedgerow/thicket which would
create a new hedgerow to define the extent of the open space and reduce risk of visual
impact of the dual carriageway to the south. In addition, the landscape design

Page 90



incorporates the planting of individual trees to become features of the open space and
noise barriers provide screening from potential road noise.

5.146 It is considered that the proposed development would provide a quality open
space greater in size to that being lost and in close proximity to the existing open space
and the housing development that it serves. Through the implementation of a number
of landscape improvements a multifunctional, accessible, and connected open space
with biodiversity benefits would be created. Whilst it is noted that users of the
replacement open space south of Diane Walk may experience noise pollution from the
dual carriageway, this would be mitigated through landscaping and the acoustic fencing
along the SEALR itself such that the provision of this new open space would be
acceptable as a replacement for that lost. This would accord with emerging VALP policy
I1 and represent a limited benefit in the overall planning balance.

Crime prevention

5.147 Policy GP45 of the AVDLP requires that the design and layout of all planning
proposals should incorporate measures to assist crime prevention and help reduce risks
to personal safety.

5.148 The Crime Prevention Design Advisor has raised concerns about the culverts in
that if they are of a sufficient height to allow access into or through, there would be
significant concerns that these could attract crime and anti-social behaviour. As such
they have advised that these should be appropriately secured to prevent access to an
area that lacks surveillance, light and legitimate activity to safeguard them from crime
and anti-social behaviour.

5.149 In response to this the applicants have advised that the ~80m long box culvert

beneath the bridge embankment to the west of the railway has been over-sized from
hydraulic drainage requirements in order to facilitate safer access and egress for
inspection and maintenance personnel. Security galvanised steel screens with lockable
gates are therefore proposed to discourage access by people, permit wildlife to use the
culvert as a crossing between the land on either side of the SEALR and would be less
likely to attract debris accumulation. Having regard to these matters it is considered
that the development would not unacceptably attract antisocial behaviour and as such
would be acceptable on these grounds. This afforded neutral weight in the planning
balance.

Conclusions on healthy and safe communities

5.150 The ES concludes that there would not be a significant effect on these grounds.
Having regard to the above matters it is considered that whilst there would be some
loss of open space this would be mitigated through the provision of some replacement
open space, larger in size than that lost, which would also be landscaped. Matters of
crime prevention have been addressed. It is considered that the development would
accord with policy GP45 of the AVDLP, emerging VALP policy I1 and with the NPPF in
this regard (weighting has been given above).

Flooding

Page 91



Emerging VALP policies 14 (Flooding) and I5 (water resources and wastewater

infrastructure) (both moderate weight)

5.151Paragraph 163 of the NPPF requires new development to consider the risk of flooding

to the site and elsewhere. Developments need to demonstrate resilience to climate
change and support the delivery of renewable and low carbon energy which is seen
as central to the economic, social and environmental dimensions of sustainable
development. This will not only involve considerations in terms of design and
construction but also the locational factors which influence such factors.
Development should be steered away from vulnerable areas such as those subject to
flood risk whilst ensuring that it adequately and appropriately deals with any impacts
arising.

5.152 The application site is located within Flood Zone 1 which is defined by the
Environment Agency as being at low risk of flooding. A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has
accompanied the application and the Council as the Local Lead Flood Authority has
considered the information provided

" 'Stoke Broo!vg__;

Surface water flood risk

5.153 The Flood Map for Surface Water (FMfSW) shows that there are areas of the site

at low, medium and high risk of surface water flooding associated with the Southcourt
Brook, Bedgrove Brook and surface water overland flow routes within the wider
catchment. The FRA provides an overview of surface water flood risk and fluvial flood
risk from ordinary watercourses, with detailed modelling presented in the Surface
Water Hydraulic Modelling Assessment and the Flood Risk Addendum. The reports
identify that flood risk mitigation measures are required.

5.154 Within the western catchment, there is an overland surface water flow route

which flows south to north on the site boundary of Lower Road as well as the
Southcourt Brook which flows in the same direction on land near to the railway line.
The proposed alignment of the SEALR is perpendicular to both the overland surface
water flow route and the brook. At each location, the SEALR is on a raised embankment
and therefore in the absence of any mitigation measures the proposals would alter the
catchment characteristics and ultimately flood risk.

Page 92



Overland Flow Route Mitigation

5.155 The Flood Risk Assessment Addendum proposes a culvert to enable conveyance
of a surface water overland flow route under the proposed dual carriageway. The
minimum size for the culvert is 1.2m x 1.2m for conveyance purposes; however the
future asset owner, Transport for Buckinghamshire, has requested a 1.5m x 1.5m box
culvert for ease of maintenance.

5.156 The Depth Difference Map shows that there is a reduction in flood risk to the
land to the north of the road alignment, which forms part of AGT1 site allocation. A
reduction in flood risk is also identified on the Stoke Mandeville Hospital site and Stoke
Mandeville Stadium site. The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) encourages developers
and local authorities to seek opportunities to reduce the overall level of flood risk in the
area and beyond. The LLFA views the reduction in flood risk in the area downstream of
the SEALR positively.

5.157 The Flood Risk Assessment Addendum highlights that despite the addition of the
culvert to allow for conveyance of flow, some ponding of surface water will occur
upstream of the culvert for the 1 in 100 year plus climate change event as shown on
Depth Difference Map. The anticipated depth is up to 0.5m reducing to below 0.1m
within three hours. The Surface Water Hydraulic Modelling Assessment sets out that
the current ditch in this area is represented solely by LiDAR data and therefore, the
flow capacity is likely to be underestimated. Notwithstanding any data limitations, the
proposals do indicate a change in flood risk at this location. As a result, the applicant
has liaised with the adjacent landowner to seek an in-principle acceptance of the
localised increase in flood risk. This in-principle acceptance has been obtained and
therefore, the steps outlined in the Flood Risk Assessment Addendum and Surface
Water Hydraulic Modelling Assessment which seek to address the localised area of
increased flood risk at detailed design include:

¢ Landscaping of land on the approach to the culvert to improve collection of flow
by the culvert to minimise this ponding depth.

e Additional landscaping could be undertaken to reduce the maximum water
depth by storing this flood water over a wider area at the toe of the
embankment.

e More detailed modelling of the ditch on the downstream side of the
embankment could show that water would flow away from the outlet of the
culvert which would prevent upstream flooding

e Increase capacity in the ditch to minimise the backwater effect through the
culvert

Southcourt Brook Mitigation
5.158 The proposals will cross the Southcourt Brook and to allow for a continuation in

flow, the FRA proposes the use of a culvert, 1.5m x 1.8m for maintenance
requirements. The Surface Water Hydraulic Modelling Assessment identifies that there
is a predicted 0.05m increase in peak flood depth on the upstream side of the culvert.

Page 93



This is proposed to be contained within the redline boundary, however the Depth
Difference Map shows an increase outside of this area. As with the above change in
flood risk, agreement has been reached with the relevant landowner. The LLFA
acknowledges the in-principle agreement from the adjacent landowner and in
combination with the wider benefits of the proposals in terms of flood risk reduction in
the locality; the LLFA is in agreement that further work to seek to reduce the flood risk
in the upstream area of the culvert is a reasonable approach.

Bedgrove Brook Mitigation
5.159 Turning to the eastern catchment, there is an existing flood risk associated with

the Bedgrove Brook and the associated backing up of flows from the existing culvert
under the A413 Wendover Road. In order to reduce flood risk to the SEALR junction and
A413 Wendover Road, the Flood Risk Addendum proposes a flood storage area (FSA)
adjacent to Bedgrove. The proposed flood storage will have an anticipated depth of
1.2m and will provide up to 7,000m3 of storage. The provision of the flood storage area
will result in an anticipated reduction in peak flow in the A413 culvert from 2.53m3/s to
2.4m3/s.

5.160 The Depth Difference Map indicates that the proposals will provide a reduction
in flood risk areas outside of the red line boundary, namely, Stoke Grange housing
estate and land to the south of the FSA which falls within the AGT1 site allocation. In
these areas, the SEALR provides a positive contribution to reducing flood risk
elsewhere. However, there is an area to the south of the proposed roundabout on the
A413 that shows an increase in flood risk as shown on the Depth Difference Map. As
with the above, the applicant has liaised with the adjacent landowner to seek an in-
principle acceptance of the localised increase in flood risk, and in-principle acceptance
from the relevant landowner has been obtained.

Groundwater flood risk

5.161 The Infiltration SuDS Map provided by the British Geological Survey 2016,
indicates that the water table is anticipated to be within 5m of the ground surface in
the area around Southcourt Brook and Bedgrove Brook. The concerns of high
groundwater has been supported by the results of the ground investigations which
identified groundwater at varying depths across the site; with a trial pit to the east of
Wendover Road recording the highest groundwater level at a depth of 0.2m below
ground level. The Surface Water Drainage Strategy confirms that the surface water
drainage system will be lined to prevent groundwater ingress.

Surface water drainage

5.162 A Surface Water Drainage Strategy has been provided by the applicant to
support the above proposals. The surface water drainage scheme is split into two
catchments, western and eastern both draining via gravity to strategic attenuation
basins prior to discharging to nearby watercourses, Southcourt Brook and Bedgrove
Brook at a rate of 2I/s/ha up to the 1 in 100 year storm event plus an allowance for

Page 94



climate change. Compliance with the drainage hierarchy has been demonstrated,
ground investigations found that the infiltration as a means of surface water disposal
was not viable due to low permeability rates and observed high groundwater levels.
Therefore discharging to nearby watercourses is the next most practicable solution.
5.163 The restricted discharge rate of 2I/s/ha for each of the catchments provides

betterment on the existing discharge rate from the greenfield site. As mentioned, prior
to discharging surface water runoff will be attenuated in basins, these will have a side
slope of 1:3 and a vegetated shelf which is set to the 1 in 30 year water level. The
basins will also include a 300mm freeboard for exceedance events.

5.164 Calculations which demonstrate the runoff volumes for the 1 in 100 year plus
40% climate change allowance have been provided as previously requested. The
calculations demonstrate that there will not be an increase in runoff volume at this
return period and therefore complies with Defra guidance.

5.165 The drainage is designed to accommodate the 1 in 100 year plus 40% allowance
for climate change event. The Surface Water Drainage Strategy identifies that for the 1
in 100 year plus 40% allowance for climate change event there is flooding of the
drainage system, this is isolated to the carriageway. The Surface Water Drainage
Strategy suggests that ‘this caused by throttling of upstream pipes and is considered to
remain within the carriageway prior to re-entering the proposed drainage system’, it is
advised that at detailed design this is investigated further and the hazard associated
with these flood events is investigated so as to understand and provide mitigation to
highway users.

5.166 As previously discussed, high groundwater levels were observed on site and
therefore it is proposed to line the basins to ensure that storage capacity is not reduced
in the event of a period of high groundwater. The associated flotation calculations will
need to be revised once the required storage volumes are confirmed in detailed design.
An indicative Exceedance Plan for overland flow routing has been provided in the event
that a storm event occurs that is greater than the 1 in 100 year plus an allowance for
climate change or there is a system failure.

Ditch Diversions

5.167 As part of the surface water drainage two ditch diversions are proposed. The
ditch parallel to the proposed SEALR will be diverted north and around the proposed
surface water pond before being discharged into the Southcourt Brook, 60m north of
the existing discharge point. The Ditch Diversion Plan Arrangement appears to show
the Overland Flow Culvert discharging into the existing ditch north of the proposed
culvert and confirmation of this formal connection to the ditch network is required.

5.168 The second ditch diversion is proposed to the ditch which runs along the A413 to
the east of the proposed SEALR. Due to the proposed roundabout it has been proposed
to divert the ditch west and into Culvert C which will also take flows from the new ditch
to the south SEALR. At detailed design the impacts of the proposed ditch diversions
should be investigated to demonstrate that they will not cause an increase in flood risk.

Page 95



5.169 In summary the LLFA has carefully considered the proposed development and
Officers consider that having regard to the FRA and the drainage scheme proposed that
the development would be acceptable. This would be subject to conditions to ensure
that development does not begin until a surface water mitigation strategy and
accompanying surface water drainage strategy based on the principles set out in the
FRA and also a maintenance scheme for these have been submitted to and approved by
the Council and these conditions are considered to be required to make the scheme
acceptable.

5.170 The ES concludes that there would not be a significant effect on flooding. Having
regard to the above matters it is considered that the development would accord with
emerging policies |4 and I5 of the VALP and with the NPPF and is accorded neutral
weight in the planning balance.

Ecology
WTNP Policy H2 - (Development Design in the Neighbourhood Area) and
Emerging VALP policy NE1 (Biodiversity and geodiversity) (moderate weight)

5.171 Paragraph 170 of the NPPF requires new development to minimise impacts on
biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity. WTNP Policy H2 states amongst
other things that proposals for development in the neighbourhood area will be
supported provided that it provides a biodiversity net gain for the parish. Policy E3 of
the WTNP states that new development will be expected to conserve and enhance
biodiversity and wildlife to include providing net gains to biodiversity; the safeguarding
or protection of designated sites, protected species, priority species and habitats,
ancient or species rich hedgerows, grasslands and woodlands; where appropriate
development will contribute to the green infrastructure connecting the green spaces
within the parish and to wider landscape; the use and adoption of sustainable drainage
facilities and a restrictive use of storage lagoons or similar retentive systems
discharging to surface or ground water receptors; and development proposals that will
cause the loss of or damage to trees, woodland or hedgerows (including hedgerows of
importance) that contribute positively to the character and amenity of the area must
provide for appropriate replacement planting together with a method statement for
the ongoing care and maintenance of that planting; all suitable buildings bordering
open spaces will be required to incorporate integrated bat and swift boxes; lighting
within and around development is expected to respect the ecological functionality of
wildlife movement corridors and landscaping schemes will be expected to maximise
opportunities for wildlife, including the planting of trees to maximise diversity of
wildlife species. Policy NE1 of the emerging VALP requires new development to deliver
a net gain in biodiversity.

5.172 Ecology survey work has been carried out and the additional submissions
include updated reports on bats, water vole, otter, reptiles, great crested newt, badger,
birds and the Council’s ecologists have no further comments or concerns relating to the
assessments made for the other species/species groups and welcome the updates to
each of the individual reports.

Page 96



5.173 The site predominantly comprises arable habitat with species-poor intact
hedgerows typically dominated by hawthorn primarily forming field boundaries. Based
on the criteria, none of the hedgerows qualify as important under The Hedgerows
Regulations 1997. Improved grassland and species poor semi-improved grassland
habitat was recorded to the north and north-east of the site in publicly accessible
areas. Mature and semi mature trees were recorded intermittently across the site
along with dense bramble, with some smaller areas of broadleaved plantation and tall
ruderal habitat also featuring. Seasonally wet ditches were recorded intermittently
across the site. A total of 24 black poplar trees were recorded within or nearby the site
and will not be impacted as a result of the proposed development. No rare or notable
plant species were recorded during the botanical survey. These habitats comprise
common and widespread species which are not of any significant conservation value
other than adding to the mosaic of habitats for wildlife within the site and the wider
area.

5.174 In terms of protected and notable species there are records of six bat species
within 5km of the Site, and records of great crested newt, badger, 35 species of bird
including barn owl and 24 protected and/or notable species of invertebrate within 2km
of the Site in the last 10 years.

5.175 With regards to bat roosts, in 2017, two hybrid black poplar trees were identified
as having moderate suitability to support roosting bats; two trees (T44 and T45) within
the site were assessed as having high suitability for roosting bats and 16 trees within
the site were assessed as having low suitability for roosting bats, although no bats were
recorded roosting suggesting likely absence of roosting bats. Bats were recorded
commuting and foraging along the hedgerows and field margins throughout the site;
with levels of bat activity being higher in the east of the site.

5.176 In respect of Great Crested Newts (GCN) wet ditches across the site and
Bedgrove Brook to the north east of the site were assessed to be unsuitable for this
species. Whilst two ponds were identified within the site during review of aerial
mapping, these were found to be dry/no longer present. One waterbody (Pond 1) was
identified within 500m of the site, approximately 245m south-west of the Site (at Hall
End Farm) and surveys identified the presence of a small population. The assessment
concludes that a European Protected Species License is not required as negative
impacts on GCN are unlikely given the distance of the site from the pond and quality of
habitat. The assessment and rationale for this conclusion are supported. It is
considered unlikely that the scheme would result in significant adverse impacts on the
favourable conservation status of GCN. It is recommended that a non-licensed method
statement (NLMS) will minimise potential impacts on any individual great crested
newts and that this should be secured through a suitably worded planning condition,
should permission be granted and Officers consider this to be an appropriate
recommendation.

5.177 No badger setts were recorded within the survey area; however several badger
field signs, including sightings of badger, were recorded within the site and a used, two-
hole outlier sett was recorded adjacent to the site.

5.178 A range of common wintering birds were recorded across the site. No significant
gathering of roosting or foraging birds were recorded, or any species or particular
conservation significance. A range of common breeding birds were also recorded across
the site during the 2017 breeding season and the 2020 breeding season (with a

Page 97



breeding assemblage of 27 species recorded in 2020). No significant populations or
species of particular value were recorded. Several notable species were recorded
breeding, including Species of Principal Importance under Section 41 of the NERC Act
2006, and BOCC Red and Amber listed species. No species afforded special protection
under Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) were
recorded breeding within or in close proximity to the site, although red kite (Milvus
milvus) was considered likely to be breeding near to the site (at least 500m from the
site boundary), and therefore having a home range overlapping with the site. The Site is
only considered to be subject to occasional use by foraging and commuting barn owls,
although arable fields and rough grassland remain suitable for use by foraging and
commuting barn owls.

5.179 No signs of water vole or otter or reptiles were recorded during the surveys in
2017 and 2020. The Council’s ecologists have noted that the Landscape and
Environment Management Plan (LEMP) lacks reference to ecological mitigation and
compensation and this will need to be secured to address the matters set out in the
Ecology chapter of the ES. The scheme has been designed to mitigate and minimise and
compensate for ecological impacts on bats, barn owl and badgers in particular but
there is no reference in the LEMP to barn owl or badger and limited mention of bats
and birds (reference to habitat boxes only, not planting/landscaping). The assessment
of significance of likely residual ecological impacts provided in the Ecology Chapter is
based on the design of the scheme, with strong reference to landscaping. It follows that
the importance of the landscaping, and the appropriate receptor-specific measures,
should be included in the LEMP.

5.180 Similarly the LEMP does not set out the design, function and actions for
waterbodies and associated plants as has been described for other habitat types and
there is also no detail on what species will be planted. As such the Council’s Ecologists
recommend that the LEMP is updated to include wetland species planting and
management. The ES chapter refers to the proposed waterbodies as being suitable for
great crested newt and therefore it is recommended these features are designed and
planted appropriately. Also the Landscape and Ecology Maintenance Schedule should
be updated to include inspections of the bat and bird boxes. The outline Environmental
Management Plan submitted sets out measures which are considered appropriate.

5.181 In terms of biodiversity net gain, a revised BNG report has been submitted and
reviewed and it is notable that the proposed scheme has the potential to deliver an
overall net gain of approximately 14.07% in habitat units and 12.51% in hedgerow units
(this is also welcomed by the Chilterns Conservation Board). The delivery of biodiversity
net gain will be dependent on the implementation of the LEMP and the BNG calculation
is dependent on the proposed landscape scheme and therefore the BNG assessment
will need to be revised in line with any changes in the scheme.

5.182 Based on the assessments provided, the ecological features with the potential to
be impacted by the development (either from construction impacts or operational
impacts), either alone and/or in combination with nearby developments have been
identified. These include potential impacts on habitats (notably hedgerows), roosting
and foraging/commuting bats, great crested newt, badger and birds (including barn
owl). Overall the development has had regard to the need to address ecology and
exceeds the emerging VALP NE1 policy to achieve biodiversity net gain (which states
percentage of net gain to meet any nationally-set minimum standard and or as detailed
in an SPD). This is a benefit that would meet the draft British Standard for biodiversity

Page 98



and emerging Bill. A number of design measures to minimise effects on ecology have
been set out in the ES and these include implementation of good practice construction
methods within a CEMP (including adoption of precautionary working methods for
works within 500m of a pond found to contain great crested newt, precautionary felling
methods for trees suitable for roosting bats, and sensitive clearance of suitable nesting
bird habitat), retaining existing habitat where possible, sensitive lighting design, and
habitat creation and enhancement (to include habitat connectivity). Taking into
consideration the CEMP, the required protected species monitoring and non-licensed
method statement for GCN which are to be addressed by conditions it is considered
that the impact on ecology is acceptable.

5.183 The ES concludes that there would not be a significant effect on ecology. It would
deliver a net gain which would be a benefit. Having regard to the above matters, it is
considered that the development would accord with emerging policy NE1 of the VALP
and with the NPPF and that this should be afforded limited positive weight in the
planning balance.

Historic environment

AVDLP policy GP59 (Archaeology)
Emerging VALP policy BE1 (Heritage Assets) (moderate weight)

5.184 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
places a duty on local authorities to pay special regard to the desirability of preserving
the setting of a listed building.

5.185 There are no listed buildings within the site but there are some nearby, all to the
south and south-west of the site. Lone Ash is a grade Il listed building located on the
west side of the B4443. It is a 17th century cottage with later alterations. Stoke Cottage
is a grade Il listed building located on the west side of the B4443. It is a small house of
17th century date which has been altered and heavily restored in the 20th century. Hall
End Farmhouse is a grade |l listed building located to the west of the B4443. It is a 17th
century house which has been subject to later alterations. Magpie Cottage is a grade |l
listed building located to the east of the B4443. It is a 17th century cottage which has
been altered and extended, followed by restoration in the 20th century.

5.186 During the construction of the SEALR the road embankment and bridge over the
railway line may be visible in views from Magpie Cottage and potentially the other
listed buildings but these views would be across the fields and across the B4333. It is
accepted that the proposed link road could have the visual effect of bringing built
development and the urban edge of Aylesbury appear closer to the listed buildings
than at present. However these long distance views and wider fields are considered to
considered to make a very limited contribution to the importance of the rural setting of
the listed building. As such it is not considered that the development would have an
impact on the overall heritage significance of the listed buildings or their settings and
preserve this heritage asset and its setting. During the operation of the SEALR it is not
considered that there would be any further impacts on these heritage assets.

5.187 In respect of archaeology, the Historic Environment Records show that to the
south of Stoke Grange, Roman ditches, pits and gullies with pottery and animal bones

Page 99



found in trial trenching have been recorded. To the South East of Red House Farm a
late Bronze Age curved ditch and Roman ditches, pits, gullies and inhumation
associated with pottery and animal bone has been recorded in trial trenching. In a
field north of Stoke Mandeville a scatter of late prehistoric, Roman, medieval and
post-medieval artefacts found in field-walking survey and in a field West of Hampden
Hall a scatter of artefacts including a prehistoric flint flake, medieval and post-
medieval pottery and finds have been recorded in field-walking survey.

5.188 The cultural heritage documents included with the application recognise that an
archaeological excavation will be required. The Council’s Archaeologist considers that
the development is likely to harm a heritage asset’s significance and therefore
recommends a condition to require the developer to secure appropriate investigation,
recording, publication and archiving of the results and it is considered that this
condition would ensure that due regard is had to the historic environment in respect
of archaeology.

5.189 The ES concludes that for Bronze Age and Roman remains the development
would have a significant effect, but that for other archaeological matters there would
not be a significant effect. In respect of the setting of Magpie Cottage it concludes that
there would not be a significant effect. Having regard to the above matters, it is
considered that the settings of the listed buildings would be preserved and therefore
the development would accord with Section 66 of the Act. In addition the
development would accord with policy BE1 of the emerging VALP in respect of
heritage assets (including setting of listed buildings and archaeology) and with the
NPPF and as such this should be afforded neutral weight in the planning balance.

6.0 Other matters

Prematurity:

6.1

Government policy emphasises the importance of the plan led process, as this is the
key way in which local communities can shape their surroundings and set out a shared
vision for their area. Paragraph 49 states in the context of the Framework —and in
particular the presumption in favour of sustainable development —arguments that an
application is premature are unlikely to justify a refusal of planning permission other
than in the limited circumstances where both:

a) the development proposed is so substantial, or its cumulative effect would be so
significant, that to grant permission would undermine the plan-making process by

Page 100



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

predetermining decisions about the scale, location or phasing of new development that
are central to an emerging plan; and

b) the emerging plan is at an advanced stage but is not yet formally part of the
development plan for the area.

Refusal of planning permission on grounds of prematurity will seldom be justified
where a draft plan has yet to be submitted for examination; or —in the case of a
neighbourhood plan — before the end of the local planning authority publicity period on
the draft plan. Where planning permission is refused on grounds of prematurity, the
local planning authority will need to indicate clearly how granting permission for the
development concerned would prejudice the outcome of the plan-making process
(NPPF paragraph 50).

The HFAG consider that the level of objections, Inspector’s interim comments of August
2018, further main modifications and publicity, and Inspector’s document outlining the
hearing sessions mean that there are significant unresolved issues which prevent any
weight to be given to VALP.

The emerging VALP is at an advanced stage in the process as it has reached main
modification stage. The Council prepared preliminary main modifications to remedy the
soundness issues identified in the Inspector's Interim Findings (29th August 2018).
Subsequently, the Council prepared further main modifications which are subject to
consultation expiring on 9 February 2021. The Council would not be seeking to give
weight to the plan as a whole at this stage, however the Council can give weight to the
VALP policies in certain circumstances, as set out in the evaluation above.

In terms of the transport strategy, the Inspector, in his discussion document D8 dated
16 December 2020 says, “The new transport evidence submitted since the earlier
hearing sessions means that | would benefit from a further hearing session.”

In response to the Inspectors interim findings, the Council commissioned a further
iteration of the Countywide Local Plan Modelling (Phase 4) which assesses revisions to
development numbers and a revised set of mitigation options in line with updated
VALP proposals, dated May 2020 as well as a Buckinghamshire Council Countywide
Strategic Transport Model (CSTM) Supporting Statement (October 2020). This provides
the strategic framework for VALP and highway officers advise that Countywide
Strategic Transport Model is fit for the purpose of plan making and that the proposed
transport mitigation is appropriate for the proposed level of development in the VALP.

The CSTM clearly provides sufficient basis for the high level strategic assessment of
future year development scenarios at a Buckinghamshire-wide level, something that a
more detailed geographically specific model, such as the Aylesbury Transport Model
(ATM) could not do. A high level strategic assessment is essential when considering the
implications of a VALP area wide assessment of housing allocation implications. The
CSTM model can be used to identify future transport issues, but the exact scale of the
issues have not been quantified on the basis of the CSTM model data, nor should it be.

Page 101



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

The finer grain traffic impacts have been assessed through the detailed planning
application process, using the detailed and geographically specific ATM. This is in
accordance with NPPG, to determine and mitigate the localised impacts of a specific
development on the local highway network at the time of a planning application. The
ATM is the correct tool for assessing a development proposal within the area it covers
and is validated for.

The highways officers advise that Countywide Strategic Transport Model is fit for the
purpose of plan making, and that the ATM confirms the proposed transport mitigation
is appropriate for the proposed level of development and consideration of this
planning application.

The Aylesbury Transport Strategy adopted by the Council in 2017 sets out a strategy
for accommodating the growth planned for Aylesbury and supports the site allocations
proposed in the Vale of Aylesbury Local Plan. A key part of the strategy is the
implementation of the link roads.

In relation to the representations made on the proposed allocation for AGT1, the
Inspector in his discussion document D8 says “Although the Council gives a thorough
response to representations | would benefit from a brief hearing session to discuss the
matters raised by QUOD representing the D-AGT1 landowners and the Council’s
responses to those matters, particularly in relation to (i) the SEALR and its limitations
and (ii) the sequencing of delivery, matters also raised by Geoff Gardner on behalf of
Arnold White Estates in relation to site D-AGT1 and by Sarah Hamilton- Foyne of
Pegasus Planning Group on behalf of Willis Dawson Holdings in relation to D-AGT2.”

These matters relate to the quantum of development of at least 1,000 dwellings, the
need for a site specific Supplementary Planning Document, phasing of the housing
delivery and the need for the school and retail provision. The delivery of these are not
directly related to this current application.

There were also objections raised in VALP representations regarding lack of provision
for direct access from the SEALR to serve the land north and south. This is now being
accommodated through the design of the bridge to enable vehicular access
underneath to link both the north and south areas of the AGT1 allocation and facilitate
access to Lower Road and Wendover Road. The main consideration of the Council is
the need to preserve and protect the proposed new link roads around Aylesbury and
to ensure that they can perform their main strategic purpose with maximum
efficiency. It is for this reason that the Council, not only through Local Plan site
allocations, but also through dealing with planning applications for strategic
development sites, has been seeking to control the number of accesses created to the
link roads. The addition of junctions to serve development which is capable of being
accessed from a lower category of road, consistent with the comprehensive master-
planning requirements of the site, will unnecessarily detract from its main strategic
purpose. The SEALR itself is just over 1km in length with a major roundabout junction

Page 102



6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

at either end, therefore the Council feel there is sufficient access already at this
location.

With regards to the concerns raised over emerging VALP policy D-AGT1 criterion c)
regarding the responsibility for delivery of the dual carriageway, SEALR is to be
delivered by the Council as Highway Authority and not by the development itself. As
such, it is proposed in the Further Main Modifications that the wording of policy D-
AGT1 criterion c) is changed from ‘prioritising the delivery of’ to ‘safeguarding the land
required for the....’ to clarify this. This is set out in the table of further modifications
(ED243).

In terms of the requirements for the SEALR, the development of this link road is

a strategic highway infrastructure feature that is critical to the delivery of the
Aylesbury Garden Town. The Council has committed in VALP to the delivery of
significant growth (target of 30,100 homes) with the focus at Aylesbury to grow by
16,207 new homes, and development at Buckingham, Winslow, Wendover and
Haddenham supported by growth at other larger, medium and smaller villages. This
development is part of that overall infrastructure strategy critical to that spatial
strategy in that if it is refused, it could impact the delivery of other major sites around
Aylesbury Garden Town and has wider implications to meet the VALP requirements,
and the council’s ability to its 5 year housing land supply.

It is not sufficient to refuse permission for reasons based on the level of objections on
the emerging VALP or that a decision on this application should be delayed until the
Inspector’s report on the VALP has been received. In any reason for refusal, including
prematurity, in the determination of an application, the Council would need to show
that the proposal should be refused permission on its own merits (or demerits) and
identify clearly the harm that would arise from this in planning terms, as well as how
this application would prejudice the outcome of the plan making process.

In this instance the proposal would be consistent with the emerging VALP policies, it is
not in conflict with those emerging policies, it would not conflict with the local
transport scheme T3 as an identified protected and supported scheme in table 16 or
the proposed allocation at D-AGT1. It is therefore considered that it would not
undermine the scale, location and phasing of new development in Aylesbury Town nor
prejudice the delivery of the AGT policies and the local plan making process or
prejudice the allocation at AGT1 and is not premature.

7.0 Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment

7.1

7.2

This section brings together the assessment that has so far been set out in order to
weigh and balance relevant planning considerations in order to reach a conclusion on
the application.

In determining the planning application, section 38(6 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in accordance with the

Page 103



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In addition,
Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning
Act relating to the determination of planning applications and states that in dealing
with planning applications, the authority shall have regard to:

- Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,

- Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application
(such as CIL if applicable , and,

- Any other material considerations

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable
development which for decision taking means approving development proposals that
accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay; or where there are no
relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for
determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission unless the application
of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular importance provides a
clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or any adverse impacts of doing
so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against
the policies in the Framework taken as a whole.

There are relevant development plan policies that apply to this application. Those
policies which are most important for determining this application are AY1, AY2, AY3
and GP35. As set out above AVDLP policies AY1-3 are out of date. Policy G35 is in full
compliance with the NPPF. It is considered that given 3 out of these 4 policies are out
of date taken as a whole the development should be determined in relation to
paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF.

As explained earlier in this report, special regard has been given to the desirability of
preserving the setting of listed buildings as required in the statutory tests contained in
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. With
regard to the listed buildings and their settings it is considered that the impact of the
built form itself, would preserve and not harm the setting of the listed buildings. There
is therefore no clear reason to refuse permission on this basis.

The scheme has also been considered acceptable with mitigation outlined above in
terms of its impact to achieving well-designed places, promoting sustainable transport
(cycling and footpath links), meeting the challenge of climate change and flooding, and
conserving and enhancing the natural environment, however these do not represent
benefits of the scheme but rather demonstrate an absence of harm to which weight
should be attributed neutrally. There is also the recognised potential harm to bats
which can be appropriately mitigated to address the harm as outlined above and thus
neutral weight is given to this.

There would be harm to the character of the landscape and on visual impacts which
having regard to mitigation would be a significant negative impact and the

Page 104



8.0

9.0

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

development would result in loss of BMV agricultural land which would be of very
limited negative impact.

In respect of residential amenities, having regard to the residual impact of noise
through the operation of the SEALR on a number of properties there would be a
significant adverse effect.

There would be significant benefits to the delivery of a key section of strategic link
road both in terms of the existing highway network and significant benefits in
delivering the strategic growth at Aylesbury Garden Town. In addition there would be
considerable benefits from investment in construction and the local economy. There
would be limited benefits in terms of air quality in the town and to residential
amenities and limited benefits in providing biodiversity net gain.

In the terms of applying paragraph 11(d) of the Framework it is concluded that there
are no policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance
that provide a clear reason for refusing the development proposed, and the adverse
effects of the proposal would not significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits.

Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must have due
regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which may result from
socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not considered that this proposal
would disadvantage any sector of society to a harmful extent.

Working with the applicant / agent

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019 the Council approach decision-
taking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to development
proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with applicants to secure
developments.

The Council work with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by
offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating
applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application.

In this instance :

e The agent and applicant were updated of issues and consultee concerns and
provided opportunity to submit further information to address these

e The application was considered by the Planning Committee where the
applicant/agent had the opportunity to speak to the committee and promote the
application.

Recommendation

It is therefore recommended that permission be deferred and delegated to the
Director of Planning and Environment to GRANT permission subject to conditions as

Page 105



considered appropriate by Officers and completion of a memorandum of
understanding regarding the delivery of the transport mitigation.

Page 106



Appendix A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Appendix B: Highway Officer consultation responses
Appendix C: Plans

Appendix D: Schedule of submitted documents

Appendix E: EIA summary

Page 107



APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations

Comments from Councillor:

Clir Roger King — ‘In principle | agree with a link road around the southern part of Aylesbury but |
think this application is premature. It is not yet known whether the Hampden Fields development
together with its spine road will be completed. This link road between the A413 & B4443 road on
its own is an isolated project and will do little to alleviate the congestion on either the A413
Wendover Road or B4443 Lower Road. At the end of the day, going into Aylesbury either way, will
end up at the gyratory system. This link road should be part of a wider project. Currently there is no
plans or approval for the link between the SEALR and Oxford Road and the link from Wendover
Road to the A41 is subject to an appeal.

With regard to the design, | object to the siting of the A413 Wendover Road roundabout. It includes
building on part of open space protected by covenant when Stoke Grange was built. This grass and
woodland area was meant to be a buffer against the proposed road. The loss of trees is particularly
worrying especially as Aylesbury has been designated a so called 'Garden Town'. The residents in
Elizabeth Close and Wendover Road will suffer a loss of amenity and ensuing traffic noise. The
roundabout should be sited further towards Wendover and incorporate the roundabout at
Hampden Hall.”

Parish/Town Council Comments

Stoke Mandeville Parish Council (June 2020): Following a Special Parish Council meeting held on
the 4™ June 2020, Stoke Mandeville PC wishes to object to the SEALR planning application. We
would like it to be noted that the proposed road lies wholly within Stoke Mandeville parish and we
would therefore wish our objection to be given due weight. Our objections are in three parts:

1. We object in principle to the need for the road in its present form

2. We feel the SEALR design is not compliant with the emerging Stoke Mandeville Neighbourhood
Plan,

3. We have other detailed objections to its design.

Objections in Principle 1. The application is premature: the SEALR forms part of a wider Aylesbury
transport strategy and makes no sense as an isolated project. A single planning application for the
entire southern Aylesbury link road should be brought forward when the details for the whole
route are established, including the projected re-diversion of the A4010 by HS2 Ltd. 2. The
application is for a project which is currently undeliverable: there is no approval in place for the
link between the SEALR and Oxford Road and the link from Wendover Road to the A41 is subject
to an appeal. An application should be brought forward only when the link road of which the
SEALR is a part can be delivered. 3. The application is strategically misguided. Firstly, the aspiration
to deliver a north-south bypass for Aylesbury, between the A41 north and south of the town, is
already being delivered to the east of Aylesbury by roads which are either built or for which
planning permission has already been granted. Similarly, the aspiration to deliver an east-west
bypass for Aylesbury, between the Oxford Road and Leighton Buzzard/Milton Keynes is already
being delivered to the north of Aylesbury by roads which are either built or for which planning
permission has already been granted. In the light of these deliverable alternatives, the strategic
need for an east-west link road to the south of Aylesbury needs to be reassessed in accordance
with NPPF principles.

Page 108



Objections based on Departures from Neighbourhood Plan 4. Contrary to the NPPF, the SEALR’s

current design conflicts with the developing policies of the Stoke Mandeville Neighbourhood Plan,

which carries significant weight as part of the development plan. Specifically:
a. The design of the SEALR does not positively contribute to the Neighbourhood Plan goal
of building up a clearer structure and cohesion to the Parish. On the contrary, by creating
a significant physical and visual barrier between the northern and southern settlements
of the Parish, it reduces the clarity of the structure and diminishes the cohesion of the
Parish
b. The design of the SEALR does not meet garden town planning principles and, in
particular, does not positively contribute to the Neighbourhood Plan’s goal of creating a
beautiful green natural environment for local people. On the contrary, as a large urban
road structure in an elevated position, the SEALR is a visual eyesore and environmental
blight, thus actively preventing the maintenance and enhancement of the Parish as a
beautiful green natural environment for local people.
c. The design of the SEALR does not actively contribute to the NP goal of creating good
transport routes, both within the Parish and connecting it to other areas. While the SEALR
offers two access points within the Parish to the strategic road network, thus potentially
improving Parish connections to areas outside the Parish, the SEALR’s design actively
reduces connections within the Parish, and particularly north-south connections, by
forming a barrier between the northern and southern settlements. It also prevents good
connections being made between the 4 existing parish settlements and the two new
settlements proposed by the VALP to be developed within the Parish.
d. The design of the SEALR does not match the SM Corridor NDA (Neighbourhood
Development Area) goal that the area should provide ‘a new focus and hub for the Parish
as a whole by offering a green setting for shared Parish amenities such as retail, health,
education, employment and recreation, sharing these uses with the SEALR link road and
housing development’. The SEALR’s design should facilitate and support this land use
policy but, as a crude elevated dual carriageway with only terminal junctions, it manifestly
does not do so.
e. The design of the SEALR does not match the SM Corridor NDA goal that this area should
‘offer open space and a green landscape which provides separation, avoids coalescence
and protects the setting of the northern wards and the village’. Rather, the SEALR
encroaches upon and, as an elevated highway, blights the setting of Stoke Grange and
Stoke Leys.
f. The design of the SEALR does not match the SM Corridor NDA goal that this area should
provide ‘critical north-south and east-west connectivity for the Parish and connect the
Parish to its adjoining Garden Town settlements and existing villages’. The SEALR provides
east west connectivity only as part of a closed-loop strategic link road; it does nothing to
increase intra-Parish east-west connectivity. Worse, the SEALR is a positive barrier to
north-south connectivity between the northern settlements of Stoke Grange and Stoke
Leys and the projected 6th settlement near Hawkslade, and the southern settlements, i.e.
the projected 5 th settlement within the Corridor NDA and the village settlement.
g. The design of the SEALR conflicts with the NPPF and Neighbourhood Plan in that it fails
to take into account the transport needs of the 3000+ houses adjacent and near its route
envisaged by the VALP and actually projected to be built under outstanding planning
applications.

Objections Based on Detailed Design Considerations 5. The PC objects to the proposed design of

the SEALR on the following grounds:

Page 109



a. There are insufficient mitigation factors proposed for noise, vibration, and light and
atmospheric pollution. As a major dual carriageway link, the SEALR needs extensive
mitigation to protect the interests of neighbouring residents and the parish as a whole,
which are not shown in the proposed design. Neither is there data showing the extent of
these problems.

b. The proposed Wendover Road roundabout involves the use of open grassland and
wooded areas in Stoke Grange which are doubly protected, both by covenant and by
designation

c. There is no information about how construction traffic and plant movement is to be
managed, especially given the congested nature of Lower Road and Wendover Road and
the extensive construction which is planned for adjoining sites.

d. There is insufficient detail as to how surface water drainage from this major highway is
to be managed and how flooding of the adjacent land and houses, especially Stoke
Grange, is to be avoided. The two small balancing ponds do not seem adequate to the
task of containing run-off water in the event of severe weather.

Stoke Mandeville Parish Council (December 2020) Proposed Grounds for Objecting to the SEALR:
1. The application is premature: the SEALR forms part of a wider Aylesbury transport strategy and
makes no sense as an isolated project. A single planning application for the entire southern
Aylesbury link road should be brought forward when the details for the whole route are
established, including the projected re-diversion of the A4010 by HS2 Ltd.
2. The application is for a project which is currently undeliverable: there is no approval in place for
the link between the SEALR and Oxford Road and the link from Wendover Road to the A41 is
subject to an appeal. An application should be brought forward only when the link road of which
the SEALR is a part can be delivered.
3. The application is strategically misguided. Firstly, the aspiration to deliver a north-south bypass
for Aylesbury, between the A41 north and south of the town, is already being delivered to the east
of Aylesbury by roads which are either built or for which planning permission has already been
granted. Similarly, the aspiration to deliver an east-west bypass for Aylesbury, between the Oxford
Road and Leighton Buzzard/Milton Keynes is already being delivered to the north of Aylesbury by
roads which are either built or for which planning permission has already been granted. In the
light of these deliverable alternatives, the strategic need for an east-west link road to the south of
Aylesbury needs to be reassessed in accordance with NPPF principles.
4. Contrary to the NPPF, the SEALR’s current design conflicts with the developing policies of the
Stoke Mandeville Neighbourhood Plan, which carries significant weight as part of the development
plan. Specifically:
a. The design of the SEALR does not positively contribute to the Neighbourhood Plan goal
of building up a clearer structure and cohesion to the Parish. On the contrary, by creating
a significant physical and visual barrier between the northern and southern settlements
of the Parish, it reduces the clarity of the structure and diminishes the cohesion of the
Parish.
b. The design of the SEALR does not meet garden town planning principles and does not
positively contribute to the Neighbourhood Plan’s goal of creating a beautiful green
natural environment for local people. On the contrary, as a large urban road structure in
an elevated position, the SEALR is a visual eyesore and environmental blight, thus actively
preventing the maintenance and enhancement of the Parish as a beautiful green natural
environment for local people.
c. The design of the SEALR does not actively contribute to the NP goal of creating good
transport routes, both within the Parish and connecting it to other areas. While the SEALR

Page 110



offers two access points within the Parish to the strategic road network, thus potentially
improving Parish connections to areas outside the Parish, the SEALR’s design actively
reduces connections within the Parish, and particularly north-south connections, by
forming a barrier between the northern and southern settlements. It also prevents good
connections being made between the four existing parish settlements and the two new
settlements proposed by the VALP to be developed within the Parish.
d. The design of the SEALR does not match the SM Corridor NDA goal that the area should
provide ‘a new focus and hub for the Parish by offering a green setting for shared Parish
amenities such as retail, health, education, employment and recreation, sharing these
uses with the SEALR link road and housing development’. The SEALR’s design should
facilitate and support this land use policy but, as a rather crude elevated dual carriageway
with only terminal junctions, it manifestly does not do so.
e. The design of the SEALR does not match the SM Corridor NDA goal that this area should
‘offer open space and a green landscape which provides separation, avoids coalescence
and protects the setting of the northern wards and the village’. Rather, the SEALR
encroaches upon and, as an elevated highway, blights the setting of Stoke Grange and
Stoke Leys.
f. The design of the SEALR does not match the SM Corridor NDA goal that this area should
provide ‘critical north-south and east-west connectivity for the Parish and connect the
Parish to its adjoining Garden Town settlements and existing villages’. The SEALR provides
east-west connectivity only as part of a closed-loop strategic link road; it does nothing to
increase intraParish east-west connectivity. Worse, the SEALR is a positive barrier to
north-south connectivity between the northern settlements of Stoke Grange and Stoke
Leys and the projected sixth settlement near Hawkslade, and the southern settlements,
i.e., the projected fifth settlement within the Corridor NDA and the village settlement.
5. The design of the SEALR conflicts with the NPPF in that it fails to consider the transport needs of
the 3000+ houses adjacent and near its route envisaged by the VALP and projected to be built
under outstanding planning applications. Appendix one below provides some additional
information on the views of the planning committee.
Appendix One NOTES ON SEALR APPLICATION:
1. The design of the SEALR has been developed in isolation from the design of the AGT1
development which shares its land and of the new Garden Town initiatives such as the
GardenWay. This has led to fragmented planning and a design solution which does not
meet basic requirements.
2. The decision to move the road slightly further from Stoke Grange is welcomed,
although there are still a significant number of houses within 100 metres of what will be a
major dual-carriageway highway. This stands in marked contrast to the treatment of
neighbourhoods along the other sections of the southern link road, eg Hampden Fields
and Woodlands.
3. The decision to attempt to mask the visual, environmental and noise blight of the road
by wider environmental bunds is also welcomed but does not nearly go far enough. At the
least, sound-reducing fencing like that used on the A41 and along HS2 should be used.
4. The road design creates a symbolic, visual, and practical barrier between different parts
of Stoke Mandeville and the wider garden town such as AGT1. At the least, there must be
multiple cycle and accessible underpass foot connections north-south across the line of
the SEALR, connecting land and communities on either side of the road.
5. The bridge design creates a chokepoint for east-west cycle and pedestrian movements
and the incline makes the bridge inaccessible for many users. A design which incorporates

Page 111



accessible cycle and pedestrian crossing points north and south of the main highway
bridge is needed, as seen in Milton Keynes.

6. Critically, the design of the SEALR as a straight elevated highway maximises its visual,
environmental and noise blight and creates a situation where the highway cannot fail to
be a barrier between neighbourhoods and communities. The design of the link roads
within Hampden Fields and AGT2 both show more flexibility and use of space to create
connections and separation between housing, recreation, and roads. This should be done
for the SEALR also — for example, a road design which curved south before crossing the
railway would protect existing neighbourhoods and allow a design which does not create
so great a barrier.

7. For the reasons stated above, the road design does not comply with the emerging
policies of the Stoke Mandeville Neighbourhood Plan.

Aylesbury Town Council - Aylesbury Town Council supports the application as a vital part of the
road network infrastructure. However given the changes the world is seeing as part of the
pandemic and the ongoing need to keep socially distancing we think it would be prudent to
increase the width of the shared cycle/pedestrian and pedestrian paths on the north/south side of
the road respectively.

Consultation Responses (Summary

Arboricultural Officer— (June 2020) A full check of the AIA has been conducted, with cross
referencing the Tree Constraints Plan and Tree Protection Plan. An additional check of the
Landscape Proposals has been checked against the AIA. From an Arboricultural perspective there
is no major recommendations to oppose the application. Appendix C (titled 'Tree Protection Plan')
also shows features to be removed. Consider incorporating 'tree removals' (or similar) into title as
this adds clarity to plans. It is recommend that an Arboricultural Method Statement forms part of
the planning conditions as referenced within the existing AlA report.

Further comments (December 2020): There are no specific documents relating directly to
arboriculture amongst the most recently uploaded additional information documents, however, a
combination of landscape and ecology documents have been reviewed and there are no additional
comments to be made since the previous arboricultural response of 11 June 2020.

HS2 safeguarding (June 2020) - Following the decision to proceed with HS2 earlier this year, on 15
April 2020 HS2 Ltd marked the next step for the project after issuing 'Notice to proceed' to the
companies that will undertake construction on Britain's new high speed railway.

After careful consideration of the independent Oakervee review, the Prime Minister confirmed to
Parliament in February 2020 that the project should go ahead to deliver vital improvements to
capacity and connectivity needed in towns and cities across the country, delivering on the
government's levelling up agenda. 'Notice to proceed' marks the formal approval for the project to
begin the construction phase and HS2 Ltd is now entering Stage 2 of the main works civils
contracts, with each held by a specific joint-venture.

From review of the supporting planning statement produced by Aecom it is noted that the

following references are made HS2:
- p8: the scheme is partially funded by HS2 '(which acknowledges there is likely to be an impact on

Page 112



the A4010)".

- p9: under the heading of what the proposals will deliver: 'Ensuring that the HS2 affected network
will not perform any worse than it would under a non HS2 proposal;'

- p10: The key infrastructure on the road will be an overbridge crossing the Aylesbury line, 'which
will be funded by HS2 (through an assurance negotiated by BCC).'

- p10: Western boundary of the application site is 'Current Agricultural land, forming part of the
proposed HS2 Stoke Mandeville Bypass.'

- p29: under relevant policy section of the emerging local plan - Policy T2 highlights that "the
Council will continue to work with HS2 Ltd with the aim of influencing the design and construction
of the route through Aylesbury Vale to minimise adverse impacts and maximise any benefits that
arise from the proposal".

- p29: under Aylesbury Transport Strategy - relating to the site and proposed development. It
outlines how the local area will be impacted as a result of HS2 and that the proposed realigned
and new link roads in this Sector are key to the continued growth of Aylesbury.

However, the only area of interface identified between the respective programmes is that the
application red line boundary for the roundabout on Lower Road overlaps with HS2 Phase One Act
Limits of Land to be Acquired or Used (LLAU). Following internal consultation with the Area Central
Construction team and our appointed contractor, it is confirmed that HS2 Ltd has no objections to
the proposals in safeguarding terms.

In the event that the Council is minded to grant planning permission for the proposed link road
and associated works, given the application site's interface with the HS2 Phase One proposed
scheme it is advised that dialogue between interested parties continues and ongoing progress of
the HS2 construction programme is followed at: https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com.
With that in mind it is also recommended that the following standard informative is included on
the decision notice for purposes of awareness: The applicant is advised that the application site
lies partially within land that may be required to construct and/or operate Phase One of a high
speed rail line between London and the West Midlands, known as High Speed Two. Powers to
construct and operate High Speed Two were secured on 23 February 2017 when Royal Assent was
granted for Phase One of HS2. More information can be found at:
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com

Archaeology (June 20)- The cultural heritage documents included with the application are
welcomed and the recognition that an archaeological excavation will be required, as is the written
scheme of investigation for archaeological strip map and sample investigation produced by
AECOM, and that Section 1.1 includes: The WSI will be reviewed and approved by the
Archaeological Officer for Buckinghamshire prior to implementation. This review is necessary as it
requires amending in places to be acceptable. Our main area of concern is Section 5.2.7 Public
Engagement, Participation and Benefit which currently does not follow the spirit of NPPF
Paragraph 199. While this section includes: The extent of the engagement will be defined in
advance and agreed with the Client or their representative, and by the County Archaeological
Service. This section should be more along the following lines: The Archaeological Contractor will
consider a number of options for community engagement during and following the fieldwork.
These may include, but need not be limited to, such things as:

e Site Open Day(s) for members of the public during the fieldwork and on completion of the
fieldwork

e Site visits for interested parties such as local archaeological/historic al societies

¢ Direct involvement of volunteers during the fieldwork and/or the post excavation process

Page 113



e Talks to the local community and local interest groups such as schools and local
archaeological/historic al societies

¢ Digital engagement through ‘web blogs’ and video diaries.

Under Section 7 Monitoring, Progress Reports and Meetings it would be expected that the County
Archaeological Service be supplied with the weekly written progress reports and a section on post
excavation assessment which outlines this process and the types of analysis which are likely to be
required. On the reporting the site should be included in Records for Buckinghamshire. If planning
permission is granted for this development then it is likely to harm a heritage asset’s significance
so a condition should be applied to require the developer to secure appropriate investigation,
recording, publication and archiving of the results in conformity with NPPF paragraph 199. With
reference to the NPPF, based on the advice in DOE Circular 11/95, any consent granted for this
development should be subject to the following condition:

No development shall take place, unless authorised by the Planning Authority, until the applicant,
or their agents or successors in title, have secured the implementation of a programme of
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been
submitted by the applicant and approved by the planning authority. The archaeological
investigation should be undertaken by a professionally qualified archaeologist working to the
agreed written scheme of investigation based on the Council’s on-line template briefs and take the
form of an excavation, post excavation analysis, archiving, reporting and where appropriate
publication. The condition would not normally be discharged until all of the stages have been
completed.

Further comments (December 2020)- The cultural heritage documents included with the
application and the recognition that an archaeological excavation will be required is welcomed
along with the updated written scheme of investigation for archaeological strip map and sample
investigation produced by AECOM. If planning permission is granted for this development then it is
likely to harm a heritage asset’s significance so a condition should be applied to require the
developer to secure appropriate investigation, recording, publication and archiving of the results
in conformity with NPPF paragraph 199. With reference to the NPPF, based on the advice in DOE
Circular 11/95, any consent granted for this development should be subject to the following
condition: No development shall take place, unless authorised by the Planning Authority, until the
applicant, or their agents or successors in title, have secured the implementation of a programme
of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been
submitted by the applicant and approved by the planning authority. The archaeological
investigation should be undertaken by a professionally qualified archaeological contractor working
to the agreed written scheme of investigation based on our on-line template briefs and take the
form of an excavation, post excavation analysis, archiving, reporting and where appropriate
publication. The condition would not be discharged until all the stages have been completed.

Ecology Officer — Original comments received June 2020, updated comments below dated January
2021: No objection subject to:

e Update of LEMP — further information is requested to be included in the LEMP although it would
be satisfactory for this to be dealt with through a planning condition, if appropriate.

¢ Planning conditions to protect existing ecological features of interest and secure post
construction monitoring to ensure effectiveness of mitigation and long-term enhancement of
biodiversity. Key points and recommendations are underlined.

Many of the queries from the previous response (dated 15 June 2020) have been addressed in the
ES Addendum and revised appendices.

Page 114



Comments on ES Addendum - Paragraph 7.8.21 of the ES Addendum, on badgers, indicates that
wildlife crossing solutions will be considered if animals become trapped upon the road. There is no
reference to how this will be monitored. To ensure this is monitored it is recommended that a
monitoring strategy for badger fatalities is secured through a suitably worded planning condition,
should permission be granted. See conditions section below.

The addendum now includes reference to monitoring of the use of the north-south corridor by
wildlife as follows: “7.9.16 Monitoring surveys should also be undertaken to confirm the use of the
retained north-south wildlife corridor by foraging and commuting bats. 7.9.17 The retained north
south wildlife corridor located west of the railway will require post construction monitoring to
record the use of this feature by badgers.”

The proposed monitoring is supported and it is recommended that this is secured through a
suitably worded planning condition, should permission be granted.

Comments on great crested newts are set out below. All other comments from our previous
response on the Ecology Chapter have been satisfactorily addressed. See below for comments on
the appendices and other related documents.

Comments of Ecology Reports — Appendix C - At the time of the previous submission in June 2020
much of the ecology survey work had yet to be undertaken. The additional submissions include
updated reports of all anticipated survey work and assessment. These include updated
information on bats, water vole, otter, reptiles, great crested newt, badger, birds. Comments are
made for GCN only. We have no further comments or concerns relating to the assessments made
for the other species/species groups and welcome the updates to each of the individual reports as
previously requested.

GCN survey report - Previously it was advised that planning permission should not be granted until
the presence or likely absence of GCN, and any impacts on this species, is determined. GCN
surveys have since been undertaken and confirmed the presence of a small population in a pond
(Pond 1) located 245m to the south east of the proposed scheme. It is understood the timing of
the surveys deviated slightly from best practice guidelines due to the Covid-19 pandemic,
however, the survey methods and results are considered adequate to inform the assessment. The
assessment concludes that a European Protected Species License is not required as negative
impacts on GCN are unlikely given the distance of the site from the pond and quality of habitat.
The assessment and rationale for this conclusion are supported. It is considered unlikely that the
scheme would result in significant adverse impacts on the favourable conservation status of GCN.
Furthermore, the proposed non licensed method statement (NLMS) will minimise potential
impacts on any individual great crested newts. Appendix C3 - GCN Report includes an outline of
the measures that will be included in the NLMS and these are supported. It is recommended that a
NLMS for GCN is secured through a suitably worded planning condition, should permission be
granted.

Comments on Landscape Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) - It was previously noted that the
LEMP lacked reference to ecological mitigation and compensation. The updated LEMP (December
2020) has not been updated with information requested in our previous response. This is
reiterated below, as follows:

The scheme has been designed to mitigate and minimise and compensate for ecological impacts
on bats, barn owl and badgers in particular. There is no reference in the LEMP to barn owl or
badger. There is limited mention of bats and birds (reference to habitat boxes only, not
planting/landscaping). The assessment of significance of likely residual ecological impacts provided
in the Ecology Chapter is based on the design of the scheme, with strong reference to landscaping.
It follows that the importance of the landscaping, and the appropriate receptor-specific measures,
should be included in the LEMP.

Page 115



It is recommended that the LEMP is amended to include reference to the ecological requirements
of the scheme for maintaining and creating functional habitat for certain species, as per the details
of the Ecology Chapter.

The LEMP does not set out the design, function and actions for waterbodies and associated plants
(LE6.1) as has been described for other habitat types. There is also no detail on what species will
be planted for LE6.1. It is recommended that the LEMP is updated to include wetland species
planting and management. The ES chapter refers to the proposed waterbodies as being suitable
for great crested newt and therefore it is recommended these features are designed and planted
appropriately.

It is recommended that the Landscape and Ecology Maintenance Schedule is updated to include
inspections of the bat and bird boxes as described in the text (section 5).

Comments on Biodiversity Net Gain - A revised BNG report has been submitted and reviewed. It is
notable that the proposed scheme has the potential to deliver an overall net gain of approximately
14.07% in habitat units and 12.51% in hedgerow units. This exceeds the net gain calculated at the
time of the previous submission.

The delivery of biodiversity net gain will be dependent on the implementation of the LEMP. The
BNG calculation is dependent on the proposed landscape scheme and therefore the BNG
assessment will need to be revised in line with any changes in the scheme.

Comments on Outline Environmental Management Plan - The measures outlined in section 10 to
protect ecology are considered appropriate and are supported. It is recommended that a
Biodiversity CEMP is secured through a planning condition, should consent be granted. See section
below.

Suggested Planning Conditions

Protected Species Monitoring: Prior to the operation of the development a biodiversity monitoring
strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The
purpose of the strategy shall be to monitor the effectiveness of the newly created habitats in
mitigating adverse effects on foraging and commuting bats, breeding birds, foraging and
commuting barn owl and badger activity in order to allow for remedial action to be undertaken as
appropriate. The content of the Strategy shall include the following:

a. Aims and objectives of monitoring to match the stated purpose.

b. Identification of adequate baseline conditions prior to the start of development.

c. Appropriate success criteria, thresholds, triggers and targets against which the effectiveness of
the various conservation measures being monitored can be judged.

d. Methods for data gathering and analysis. Page 4 of 5

e. Location of monitoring.

f. Timing and duration of monitoring.

g. Responsible persons and lines of communication.

h. Review, and where appropriate, publication of results and outcomes.

A report describing the results of monitoring shall be submitted to the local planning authority at
intervals identified in the strategy. The report shall also set out (where the results from monitoring
show that conservation aims and objectives are not being met) how contingencies and/or
remedial action will be identified, agreed with the local planning authority, and then implemented
so that the development still delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally
approved scheme. The monitoring strategy will be implemented in accordance with the approved
details.

Non-Licensed Method Statement for great crested newt - No development shall take place
(including any vegetation clearance, ground works, site clearance) until a Non-Licensed Method
Statement for great crested newt has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The content of the method statement shall include :

Page 116



a. purpose and objectives for the proposed works;

b. detailed design(s) and/or working method(s) necessary to achieve stated objectives (including,
where relevant, type and source of materials to be used);

c. extent and location of proposed works shown on appropriate scale maps and plans;

d. timetable for implementation; e. persons responsible for implementing the works. The works
shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details.

Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP for Biodiversity) - No development shall
take place (including demolition, ground works, vegetation clearance) until a construction
environmental management plan for Biodiversity has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. The CEMP shall include but not be limited to measures for
breeding birds, reptiles, badgers, bats and great crested newt. It shall include a sensitive lighting
strategy to minimise impacts on bats during the construction period. The CEMP shall include the
following:

a. Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.

b. Identification of ecological features requiring protection and any “biodiversity protection zones”
as appropriate.

c. Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to avoid or reduce
impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method statements).

d. The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features.

e. The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on site to oversee
works.

f. Responsible persons and lines of communication.

g. The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similarly
competent person.

h. Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period
strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local
planning authority.

Highways— June 2020 and January 2021 — see Appendix B.

Landscape — (July 2020) Summary: Chapter 7 of the ES presents a Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA) of the proposed scheme. The LVIA sets out the applicant’s assessment of the
landscape and visual ‘baseline’ and also the applicant’s conclusions on the potential landscape and
visual effects of the proposed development on that baseline. The LVIA identifies that, in the
applicant’s opinion, the proposed development will result in Significant Residual Effects (i.e.
permanent effects) to the landscape character of the Southern Vale Landscape Character Area
(LCA 8.10) and also Significant Residual Effects (i.e. permanent effects) to the Visual Amenity of
seven sets of ‘representative receptors’ in and around the proposed development (in particular on
PRoW users to the north east, PRoW users and residents to the south east, PRoW users and
residents to the south west, PRoW users to the immediate south and PRoW users to the
somewhat more distant south). Whilst the applicant’s conclusions are agreed with in relation to
these identified receptors, the applicant has unreasonably failed to identify additional Significant
Residual Effects on identified ‘representative receptors’ and thereby reaches conclusions that
somewhat underplay the extent of the residual (permanent) effects that would result from the
proposed development.

Detailed Comments: The applicant is clear that the proposed LVIA has appropriately been carried
out ‘with reference to [amongst others the] Guidelines for Landscape and Visual Impact

Page 117



Assessment, Third Edition. (Landscape Institute and Institute of Environmental Management and
Assessment, 2013) (referred to as GLVIA3 in this assessment)’ (ES para 7.3.4). Following the
guidance within the GLVIA3 would reasonably be regarded as best practice.

With regard to the assessment of the Visual Amenity Effects of the proposed development, the
submitted LVIA identifies four main ‘visual receptor groups’ (‘PRoW Users’, ‘Road Users’,
‘Recreational Users’ and ‘Residents’) that will potentially be effected by the proposed
development and then sets out to assess these potential effects from fourteen identified
‘Representative Viewpoints’ (viewpoints that were agreed with the Council in 2018).

The assessment in the LVIA of the significant visual effects that would result from the proposed
development identifies that visual receptors to the north west, south east, south west and south
will suffer significant adverse residual visual impacts and that these receptors would be both users
of PROW’s and residents.

Interestingly the receptors in closest proximity to the proposed development in all the
representative ‘visual receptor groups’ are those situated in and around the existing residential
area on the edge of Aylesbury immediately to the north of the proposed development (identified
in the LVIA as ‘Residents on the southern edge of Aylesbury: Patrick Way, Charles Close, Diane
Walk, Dalesford Road’ and recreational users of the associated areas of open space that lie
between much of this housing area and the northern boundary of the application site) and yet
despite this proximity these none of these are identified as suffering any significant adverse
residual effects.

The viewpoint identified to be ‘representative’ of these ‘visual receptor groups’ is Viewpoint 6
(‘View from the open space at Diane Walk’). The LVIA identifies that ‘this viewpoint, less than
100m from the boundary of the Proposed Scheme, represents views of the residents at the
southern edge of Aylesbury at Diane Walk’ and that ‘the views of users of the public open space
have also been considered’ (ES para 7.6.9).

The LVIA states that ‘the majority of the tree lined boundary to the Proposed Scheme heavily
screens or filters the views of the Proposed Scheme and the adjacent open space. A small number
of gaps in the vegetation provide glimpses of parts of the Proposed Scheme’. It also notes that
‘this view is considered to be of community value’ (ES para 7.6.9).

With regard to the assessment set out in the LVIA for this viewpoint (see ES para 7.10.26 et. Seq.),
despite this being identified as a viewpoint representative of ‘residents on the southern edge of
Aylesbury’ and users of the open spaces, the author of the LVIA gives the unfortunate impression
that only the residents of Diane Close and the open space within which the viewpoint is located
have been considered when reaching conclusions on the potential effects of the proposed
development (as these appear to be the only representative receptors referred to in the text). If
this is the case then this would be a serious omission as it would appear to be basing an
assessment on a ‘view of community value’ that seeks to represent impacts on a significant
number of receptors along over half a kilometre of the northern boundary of the scheme on a
small and very specific section of this boundary. This is potentially misleading.

By way of example of the problem, the text in the LVIA for Viewpoint 6 states that ‘views are
oblique, mainly from side elevations and they are therefore assessed as having medium
susceptibility to change’ (ES para 7.10.23). Whilst this may be the case for some of the properties
in the western section of this area, it is clearly not the case for the majority of properties
(particularly those in the central and eastern areas) and in particular those on Diane Walk itself as
well as those on Charles Close and Patrick Way. These properties face directly towards the
proposed development at distances of between 25-75m. Whilst it is true that there is a relatively
substantial existing deciduous hedge between the proposed development and these properties
(and that this is capable of being reinforced with additional planting) it is also the case that there
are a number of areas where the existing vegetation is sparser and, perhaps more importantly,

Page 118



both the existing and proposed vegetation is (and appropriately would be) deciduous in character
and as such will have limited efficacy in mitigating the visual impact of the proposed development
and the associated vehicular activity even over the long term.

The GLVIA3 makes it clear that properly conducted assessments must consider the ‘worst case’
scenario and, as such, the assessment of visual impacts must consider winter time scenarios when
leaf cover is minimal.

In addition to a rather curious approach to considering the ‘extent’ of the receptors here, the LVIA
also reaches rather unusual conclusions in relation to the sensitivity of the receptor and the
magnitude of the effect of the proposed development.

In the LVIA’s own methodology it identifies that visual receptors of the highest sensitivity would
include ‘residents or people engaged in outdoor recreation whose attention is focused on the
landscape’ (ES para 7.3.32) this is consistent with advice in the GLVIA3 and would seem to very
accurately describe both the residents and users of the open spaces looking out onto the open
countryside that lies immediately to the south on this edge of Aylesbury apparently being
‘represented’ by Viewpoint 6.

Despite this, and for reasons that are not adequately explained, the LVIA identifies the receptors
here as being of only ‘Moderate sensitivity’ (ES para 7.10.24). This is inconsistent with the LVIA’s
own methodology and is, in my opinion, unreasonable. In line with the methodology (and indeed
common sense) these receptors must reasonably be concluded to be highly sensitive to changes in
the views that they currently enjoy of this green/rural outlook.

With regard to the magnitude of effect of the proposed development, the author of the LVIA
concludes that the change to the existing rural outlook that would occur as result of the
introduction of ‘notable embankments’ topped by ‘acoustic barriers’ and the ‘road and traffic’ that
will pass along the SEALR would constitute only a ‘moderate magnitude of effect’ (described in the
methodology as a project that would only ‘form a noticeable feature or element of the view which
is readily apparent to the receptor’ ES para 7.3.33). Bearing the existing rural outlook of these
receptors, the effect would be at least this and may in fact border on being one where the
‘project, or a part of it, would become the dominant feature or focal point of the view’ (ES para
7.3.33) which is to say a ‘Major’ effect.

In any case, the LVIA concludes that the overall ‘significance of effect’ at this viewpoint would be
‘a moderate adverse effect during the first year of operation, which is not considered significant’
(ES para 7.10.76). This conclusion appears to be largely based on the assessment that the
receptors here are of only ‘moderate’ sensitivity. As explained above, | believe that this is an
unreasonable assessment and thus if the more appropriate ‘high sensitivity’ of these receptors is
taken into account it would be much more reasonable to conclude that the overall residual
significance of effect for the receptors along this southern edge of Aylesbury would be
‘Moderate/large’ and that this would be properly regarded as resulting in a significant adverse
residual effect for these receptors.

Conclusion and Recommendations - For the reasons set out above, the submitted LVIA somewhat
underestimates the level of residual impact of the proposed development. The proposed
development will result in significant adverse residual landscape and visual effects to the both the
receiving landscape and to visual receptors (including users of PRoW'’s, areas of public open space
and residents) along the southern edge of Aylesbury that lies to the north of the application site as
well as to other similar receptors to the north east, south east, south west and south of the
application site. As such the appropriate negative weight should be placed in the balance when
considering the landscape and visual effects of the proposed development in any planning
consideration.

Page 119



Lead Local Flood Authority — (June 2020) The LLFA requests further information in relation to the
surface water drainage scheme prior to the determination of the above proposals and an
amended FRA to include a detailed assessment of groundwater flood risk based on the findings of
the Ground Investigations Report (Ref. 605355364/GEO/GIR/001). Surface water flood risk The
Flood Map for Surface Water (FMfSW) shows that the site is in an area of low, medium and high
risk of surface water flooding associated with the Southcourt Brook, Bedgrove Brook and surface
water overland flow routes within the wider catchment. The FRA provides an overview of surface
water flood risk, with detailed modelling presented in the Surface Water Hydraulic Modelling
Assessment (17th October 2019, AECOM) and the Flood Risk Addendum (Ref. 60535344, March
3rd 2020, AECOM). The reports identify that mitigation measures are required in order to ensure
that there is no increase in surface water flood risk elsewhere as a result of the proposals. In
particular, within the western catchment, a culvert is required to enable conveyance of a surface
water overland flow route under the proposed dual carriageway. In addition, a flood storage area
(FSA) is required in land adjacent to the Bedgrove Brook (eastern catchment) to accommodate the
backing up of flows from the watercourse. In relation to the surface water flood risk associated
with the Southcourt Brook, the FRA (section 3.7) makes the following comments: ‘It is also showed
that a narrow area in the centre of the site is subject to ‘High’ flood risk (greater than 1in 30
(3.3%) annual probability). This is associated with the ditches that through the centre of the site
(including the Southcourt Brook watercourse). The bridge structure will not impede any surface
water flow path, with no development within this medium to high risk area. There is no structure
footprint within this area, so there is no increased risk to surrounding areas.” The above comments
are unclear and require further clarification as the proposed carriageway does encroach in an area
of high surface water flood risk associated with Southcourt Brook. The drawings contained in
Appendix D — Proposed Scheme Plans are out of date as no reference is made to the Bedgrove
Brook FSA.

In relation to the surface water flood risk, clarification is sought on the following matters:

e Further details of the Bedgrove Brook FSA, including maximum water depth, timings of inflows
and outflows and freeboard provided along with cross sections through both the FSA and
Bedgrove Brook.

e Further details of the reduction in flood depths referred to within Section 4.11 of the Surface
Water Hydraulic Modelling Assessment.

e Further explanation on the need for the toe ditch in the eastern catchment to manage surface
water flows as from the model outputs, there does not appear to be any interaction between the
toe ditch and the surface water overland flow route.

e Provide maps which show the difference in depth between the baseline and the proposed
scenario (with mitigation) and sensitivity tests.

e Provide cross-section across the flow routes within the western catchment of the SEALR with
details of water level and peak flows. ® Hydrographs for with and without scheme for the channels
and ditches downstream of the road.

e Clarification on the flooding mechanisms occurring at the upstream side of the culvert in the
western catchment with commentary on any changes from the pre-development scenario to post
development scenario.

e Section 4.11 refers to a reduction in flood depths in the residential area to the north of the
SEALR embankment; further details on the flood depths would be welcomed.

Groundwater flood risk - The Infiltration SuDS Map provided by the British Geological Survey 2016,
indicates that the water table is anticipated to be within 5m of the ground surface in the area
around Southcourt Brook and Bedgrove Brook. Therefore, we advise that the risk of high
groundwater be assessed in relation to the above proposals as this may have implications on
surface water drainage components, such as reduced capacity in periods of high groundwater

Page 120



levels if mitigation measures are not put in place. From reviewing the FRA, it is evident that
groundwater flood risk has not been appropriately assessed as this document has not been
updated to reflect the findings of the Ground Investigations report (Ref.
605355364/GEO/GIR/001). The current assessment within the FRA is as follows:

‘There is some potentially shallow groundwater on the site. Although there is no expected barrier
to groundwater, drainage strategy for the site will consider any groundwater interaction with any
proposed SuDS on the scheme.’

However, the application does not contain a surface water drainage strategy and so it is not
possible to assess if groundwater flood risk has been robustly addressed. There should also be an
assessment on the impact of mitigation measures on the local water table.

Ground investigations identified groundwater at varying depths across the site; with trial pit
WS117 (to the east of Wendover Road) recording the highest groundwater level at a depth of
0.2m below ground level. There are concerns that the attenuation ponds and the FSA are located
in areas of high groundwater. When comparing the surface water drainage drawings to the
locations of the trial pits, it is understood that Attenuation Pond (west) is in an area where
groundwater was measured at 0.47m below ground level. Additionally, groundwater was
encountered at 0.36m below ground level in the location of the Attenuation Pond (east) and the
FSA. From the information presented on the drawings the attenuation ponds are to be a minimum
of 1.75m deep. In periods of high groundwater the attenuation ponds may become inundated
with groundwater and therefore may have reduced capacity to manage surface water.

As stated above, as a surface water drainage strategy has not yet been submitted, it is not known
if the impact of high groundwater upon the surface water drainage scheme has been fully
assessed and if adequate mitigation can be provided. It is assumed that any proposed mitigation
to stop groundwater ingress into the surface water drainage system will involve the lining of the
attenuation ponds. Therefore, it should be noted that floatation calculations will be required at
detailed design stage.

Surface water drainage - Whilst surface water drainage drawings have been provided, as
mentioned above, these require updating to reflect the findings of the supporting technical
reports. In addition, the application must be supported by a surface water drainage statement,
this should include (but not limited to) the information listed below:

e Calculations of the existing pre-development flow rate and volume at the discharge point(s) for a
range of return periods up to the 1 in 100 year. It may be appropriate to use subcatchments.

e Calculations of the post development flow rate and volume at the discharge point(s). It may be
appropriate to use sub-catchments.

e Calculations to determine the size of attenuation and/or infiltration features, to show that what
is in the layout is technically feasible.

e Preliminary assessment of all SuDS methods and their suitability for use in the proposed
development.

e Understanding and consideration of health & safety and maintenance aspects of the design,
including who will be responsible for managing the maintenance throughout the life of the
development.

e Any requirements for temporary drainage features or discharge points during construction. o)
Phasing of development.

e Indicative construction drawings for the surface water drainage scheme.

In absence of the above information, the LLFA are unable to assess the application in relation to
changes in surface water flood risk.

Page 121



Further comments (January 2021) - The LLFA has no objection to the proposed development subject
to the planning conditions listed below being placed on any planning approval.

Surface water flood risk - The Flood Map for Surface Water (FMfSW) shows that there are areas of the
site at low, medium and high risk of surface water flooding associated with the Southcourt Brook,
Bedgrove Brook and surface water overland flow routes within the wider catchment. The FRA provides
an overview of surface water flood risk and fluvial flood risk from ordinary watercourses, with detailed
modelling presented in the Surface Water Hydraulic Modelling Assessment (17th October 2019,
AECOM) and the Flood Risk Addendum (Ref. 60535344, March 3rd 2020, AECOM) as contained in the
above referenced Flood Risk Assessment. The reports identify that flood risk mitigation measures are
required. Within the western catchment, there is an overland surface water flow route which flows
south to north on the site boundary of Lower Road as well as the Southcourt Brook which flows in the
same direction on land near to the railway line. The proposed alighment of the SEALR is perpendicular
to both the overland surface water flow route and the brook. At each location, the SEALR is on a raised
embankment and therefore in the absence of any mitigation measures the proposals would alter the
catchment characteristics and ultimately flood risk.

Overland Flow Route Mitigation - Therefore, the Flood Risk Assessment Addendum proposes a culvert
to enable conveyance of a surface water overland flow route under the proposed dual carriageway.
The minimum size for the culvert is 1.2m x 1.2m for conveyance purposes; however the future asset
owner, Transport for Buckinghamshire, has requested a 1.5m x 1.5m box culvert for ease of
maintenance.

The Depth Difference Map (Proposed Development) 1% AEP (1 in 100 Year) Event +40% Climate
Change Allowance (drawing no. 60535364-SHT-0000-C-0070) shows that there is a reduction in flood
risk to the land to the north of the road alignment, which forms part of AGT1 site allocation. A
reduction in flood risk is also identified on the Stoke Mandeville Hospital site and Stoke Mandeville
Stadium site. The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) encourages developers and local authorities to
seek opportunities to reduce the overall level of flood risk in the area and beyond. The LLFA views the
reduction in flood risk in the area downstream of the SEALR positively.

The Flood Risk Assessment Addendum highlights that despite the addition of the culvert to allow for
conveyance of flow, some ponding of surface water will occur upstream of the culvert for the 1 in 100
year plus climate change event as shown on Depth Difference Map (Proposed Development) 1% AEP (1
in 100 Year) Event +40% Climate Change Allowance (drawing no. 60535364-SHT-0000-C-0070). The
anticipated depth is up to 0.5m reducing to below 0.1m within three hours. The Surface Water
Hydraulic Modelling Assessment sets out that the current ditch in this area is represented solely by
LiDAR data and therefore, the flow capacity is likely to be underestimated. Notwithstanding any data
limitations, the proposals do indicate a change in flood risk at this location. As a result, the applicant
has liaised with the adjacent landowner to seek an in-principle acceptance of the localised increase in
flood risk. This in-principle acceptance has been obtained and therefore, we wish to draw your
attention to the steps outlined in the Flood Risk Assessment Addendum and Surface Water Hydraulic
Modelling Assessment to seek to address the localised area of increased flood risk at detailed design:
° Landscaping of land on the approach to the culvert to improve collection of flow by the culvert
to minimise this ponding depth.

° Additional landscaping could be undertaken to reduce the maximum water depth by storing this
flood water over a wider area at the toe of the embankment.

° More detailed modelling of the ditch on the downstream side of the embankment could show
that water would flow away from the outlet of the culvert which would prevent upstream
flooding

° Increase capacity in the ditch to minimise the backwater effect through the culvert

Page 122



Southcourt Brook Mitigation

The proposals will cross the Southcourt Brook and to allow for a continuation in flow, the FRA
proposes the use of a culvert, 1.5m x 1.8m. The size of the culvert was agreed with by Transport for
Buckinghamshire due to maintenance requirements. The Surface Water Hydraulic Modelling
Assessment identifies that there is a predicted 0.05m increase in peak flood depth on the upstream
side of the culvert. This is proposed to be contained within the redline boundary, however the Depth
Difference Map (Proposed Development) 1% AEP (1 in 100 Year) Event +40% Climate Change
Allowance (drawing no. Figure D-1) shows an increase outside of this area. As with the above change in
flood risk, agreement has been sort with the relevant landowner.

The LLFA acknowledges the in-principle agreement from the adjacent landowner and in combination
with the wider benefits of the proposals in terms of flood risk reduction in the locality; the LLFA is in
agreement that further work to seek to reduce the flood risk in the upstream area of the culvertis a
reasonable approach.

Bedgrove Brook Mitigation

Turning to the eastern catchment, there is an existing flood risk associated with the Bedgrove Brook
and the associated backing up of flows from the existing culvert under the A413 Wendover Road. In
order to reduce flood risk to the SEALR junction and A413 Wendover Road, the Flood Risk Addendum
(Ref. 60535344, March 3rd 2020, AECOM) proposes a flood storage area (FSA) adjacent to the
Bedgrove. The proposed flood storage will have an anticipated depth of 1.2m and will provide up to
7,000ms of storage. The provision of the flood storage area will result in an anticipated reduction in
peak flow in the A413 culvert from 2.53m3/s to 2.4ms/s.

The Depth Difference Map (Proposed Development) 1% AEP (1 in 100 Year) Event +40% Climate
Change Allowance (drawing no. drawing no. 60535364-SHT-0000-C-0070) indicates that the proposals
will provide a reduction in flood risk areas outside of the red line boundary, namely, Stoke Grange
housing estate and land to the south of the FSA which falls within the AGT1 site allocation. In these
areas, the SEALR provides a positive contribution to reducing flood risk elsewhere.

However, there is an area to south of the proposed roundabout on the A413 that shows an increase in
flood risk as shown on the Depth Difference Map (Proposed Development) 1% AEP (1 in 100 Year)
Event +40% Climate Change Allowance (drawing no. drawing no. 60535364-SHT-0000-C-0070). As with
the above, the applicant has liaised with the adjacent landowner to seek an in-principle acceptance of
the localised increase in flood risk, an in-principle acceptance from the relevant landowner has been
obtained.

Groundwater flood risk

The Infiltration SuDS Map provided by the British Geological Survey 2016, indicates that the water
table is anticipated to be within 5m of the ground surface in the area around Southcourt Brook and
Bedgrove Brook. The concerns of high groundwater has been supported by the results of the ground
investigations which identified groundwater at varying depths across the site; with trial pit WS117 (to
the east of Wendover Road) recording the highest groundwater level at a depth of 0.2m below ground
level. The Surface Water Drainage Strategy (Rev. 02, 24th November 2020, AECOM) confirms that the
surface water drainage system will be lined to prevent groundwater ingress.

Surface water drainage

Following the previous consultation response on 8th June 2020, a Surface Water Drainage Strategy has

been provided by the applicant to support the above proposals. The surface water drainage scheme is

split into two catchments, western and eastern both draining via gravity to strategic attenuation basins
prior to discharging to nearby watercourses, Southcourt Brook and Bedgrove Brook at a rate of 21/s/ha
up to the 1 in 100 year storm event plus an allowance for climate change.

Page 123



Compliance with the Drainage Hierarchy (paragraph 080, PPG) has been demonstrated, ground
investigations found that the infiltration as a means of surface water disposal was not viable due to
low permeability rates and observed high groundwater levels. Therefore discharging to nearby
watercourses is the next most practicable solution.

The restricted discharge rate of 2I/s/ha for each of the catchments provides betterment on the existing
discharge rate from the greenfield site as shown in Table 7 of the Surface Water Drainage Strategy. As
mentioned, prior to discharging surface water runoff will be attenuated in basins, these will have a
side slope of 1:3 and a vegetated shelf which is set to the 1 in 30 year water level. The basins will also
include a 300mm freeboard for exceedance events. The drainage layouts for both catchments are
shown on Drainage General Arrangement Sheet 1 and 2 (Drawing no. 60535364-SHT-00-0000-C-0015
and 60535364-SHT-00-0000-C-0016).

Calculations which demonstrate the runoff volumes for the 1 in 100 year plus 40% climate change
allowance have been provided as previously requested. The calculations demonstrate that there will
not be an increase in runoff volume at this return period and therefore complies with S4 of the Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (Defra, 2015).

The drainage is designed to accommodate the 1 in 100 year plus 40% allowance for climate change
event. The Surface Water Drainage Strategy (4.8.10) identifies that for the 1 in 100 year plus 40%
allowance for climate change event there is flooding of the drainage system, this is isolated to the
carriageway. The Surface Water Drainage Strategy suggests that ‘this caused by throttling of upstream
pipes and is considered to remain within the carriageway prior to re-entering the proposed drainage
system’, it is advised that at detailed design this is investigated further and the hazard associated with
these flood events is investigated so as to understand and provide mitigation to highway users.

As previously discussed, high groundwater levels were observed onsite and therefore it is proposed to
line the basins to ensure that storage capacity is not reduced in the event of a period of high
groundwater. The associated flotation calculations will need to be revised once the required storage
volumes are confirmed in detailed design.

The Surface Water Drainage Strategy contains an indicative Exceedance Plan for overland flow routing
in Appendix |. This is in the event that a storm event occurs that is greater than the 1 in 100 year plus
an allowance for climate change or there is a system failure.

Ditch Diversions

As part of the surface water drainage two ditch diversion are proposed. The ditch parallel to the
proposed SEALR will be diverted north and around the proposed surface water pond before being
discharged into the Southcourt Brook, 60m north of the existing discharge point (Drawing no.
60535364-SHT-00-0000-C-0018).

The Ditch Diversion Plan Arrangement (Drawing no. 60535364-SHT-00-0000-C-0018) appears to show
the Overland Flow Culvert discharging into the existing ditch north of the proposed culvert.
Confirmation of this formal connection to the ditch network is required.

The second ditch diversion is proposed to the ditch which runs along the A413 to the east of the
proposed SEALR. Due to the proposed roundabout it has been proposed to divert the ditch west and
into Culvert C which will also take flows from the new ditch to the south SEALR (Drawing no 60535364-
SHT-00-0000-C-0017.

At detailed design the impacts of the proposed ditch diversions should be investigated to demonstrate
that they will not cause an increase in flood risk. Conditions are recommended.

Page 124



Environmental Health — (May 2020) Draft EMP - It is accepted that at this stage of the
development the EMP is only in draft form and will be developed into a full CEMP by the
contractors during detailed design. The controls in relation to working hours, dust and air quality
and noise and vibration contained in the draft EMP appear satisfactory but will need to be
finalised at a later date. It is therefore recommended that the following condition is placed on any
approval granted.

1. Prior to commencement of any construction activity a Construction Environmental
Management Plan CEMP with be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning
authority. Reason: To protect residential amenity of properties closest to the construction site.
Air Quality - A sufficient assessment of potential air quality impact has been carried out with due
regard to residential properties closest to the construction, along adjacent traffic routes and the
impacts on Air Quality Management Areas in Aylesbury. During construction there are potential
impacts on both air quality and dust emissions for properties closest to the construction itself but
these will be mitigated through controls agreed in the CEMP. There are also minor impacts due to
construction traffic on the Stoke Road AQMA, however, these will only be short term and a not
judged to be significant. Once the road is in operation the greatest change in air quality will be in
those properties adjacent to the new road but will not result in exceedances of air quality
standards. Depending on other road developments being completed there are a range of
beneficial effects on the three AQMA’s in Aylesbury and some small benefits and dis-benefits to
other properties on adjacent roads. Overall, on air quality, these scheme has a positive benefit so
there are no environmental health objections to the scheme.

Noise and Vibration - The impacts of noise and vibration have been modelled for a number of
operational scenarios over a period of time. Detailed modelling of construction noise is not
possible at this stage but will be completed during development of the CEMP although it is likely
that some of the impacts will be significant on residential dwellings close to the construction site .
The local authority also has a degree of control over construction noise through the provisions of
Sections 60 &61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 and the contractors will have to employ ‘best
practicable means’ to reduce these impacts. In terms of noise from the operation of the new
highway up to 227 properties are forecast to be significantly effected by increased noise levels, the
majority on the Wendover Park Estate and around the junctions with the new road. Mitigation in
the form of a 3m high noise barrier is assumed to be included in the development. Balancing these
negative impacts there are smaller decreases in noise levels for some 600+ properties on
surrounding roads due to changes in traffic flows in the opening year. Additional mitigation
measures have been considered but confer little benefit compared with the costs involved in
implementing them. The only other potential mitigation is the use of a low noise road surface. At
the design speed of the proposed road the contributions to the total noise generated from the
engine/drivetrain/exhaust and the wheel/road generated noise are approximately equal with
engine noise being slightly higher. Engine noise becomes more prominent at lower speeds whilst
at higher speeds wheel/road noise becomes increasingly dominant. Theoretically, at 40 mph, no
matter how much wheel/road noise is reduced the overall reduction in noise levels can be no
more than 3dB. The ES reports an estimated reduction of 2.5dB. However this reduction is based
on the current mix of vehicles which are predominantly petrol/diesel driven. In the future year
scenario it is highly likely that an increasing percentage of road vehicles will be electrically driven
which do not produce the same level of engine/drivetrain/exhaust noise. This reduction means
that the full benefits of the reduction in wheel/road noise using a low noise road surface can be
realised and this may result in overall reductions greater than the 2.5dB quoted. The second aim
of the Noise Policy Statement for England, 2010, is to mitigate and minimise adverse effect of
noise (within the context of Government policy on sustainable development). Given that the use
of a low noise road surface would contribute towards meeting this second aim it is suggested that

Page 125



further consideration should be given during the detailed design phase to utilising low or ultra low
noise road surfaces on the proposed road. Such consideration will need to include an assessment
of the costs/benefits over the long term of such a solution. It is therefore recommended that the
following condition is placed on any approval granted.

2. During detailed design a cost benefit analysis will be carried out to determine whether or not a
low or ultra low noise road surface should be used in constructing this road. The analysis should
include costs/benefits in the opening year, additional long term maintenance costs and additional
benefits that may occur in future years due to the change vehicle fleet mix (Petrol/diesel v
electric).The analysis will be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure full compliance with the second aim of the Noise Policy statement for England.

Further comments (December 2020) The revised documentation has been reviewed, including the
chapters on air quality and noise and vibration in the ES addendum. There are no additional
comments over and above those made in May 2020.

Contaminated Land Officer - A review of the historical maps available for the site has been
completed within the Preliminary Sources Study. This indicates that the layout of fields present
today and the alignment of the A413 and B4443 were already developed in the earliest map
available for 1878. In addition the most significant development on the site was the construction
of the railway line which occurred by 1899. A walkover of the site was also conducted as part of
the survey. This identified that no major sources of contamination were observed with the
exception of potential contaminated run off from the A413, B4443 and railway line. It is therefore
concluded that due to the presence of the roads and the railway line there is the potential for
localised contamination to have occurred.

A risk assessment has therefore been completed which concludes that the overall potential geo-
environmental risk associated with the site is low. Subsequently a ground investigation was
completed at the site the results of which are contained within the Ground Investigation Report. A
number of boreholes and trial pits were dug across the site mainly concentrating on the location
of the proposed road and the soils sent for chemical analysis. The results conclude that when
compared to the Generic Assessment Criteria (GAC) for a commercial/industrial end use, which it
is agreed is the most appropriate GAC'’s to use in this situation, there are no elevated levels of
contamination present. In addition any long-term risks to future users of the proposed
development are mitigated by the general absence of a receptor. This is because the risk
assessment assumes the site will not be permanently occupied and no public park or public
recreation development is included in the proposed work scheme. After reviewing all of the
contaminated land reports submitted and the results of the soil sampling these conclusions are
agreed. The report also concludes that no remediation is required and based on the results of the
soil sampling this is agreed.

It is recommended that no contaminated land conditions are required on this application. It is
recommended that an informative should be placed on any planning approval granted to contact
the Environmental Health department immediately if during development works contamination is
encountered which has not been previously identified and that works must cease on site until an
appropriate remediation scheme is submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning

Page 126



authority as failure to remediate site contamination during development could result in serious
long-term health impacts to future users of the development.

Crime Prevention Design Advisor - From the submitted documents, culverts are proposed next to
existing prow that will be severed by the new carriageway. Should these culverts be of a sufficient
height to allow access into or through, there would be significant concerns that these could attract
crime and anti-social behaviour. These should be appropriately secured to prevent access to an
area that lacks surveillance, light and legitimate activity to safeguard them from crime and anti-
social behaviour.

Road speed and enforcement - The traffic management department has provided the following
feedback:

- The key design components show that this to be a 1.2km dual carriageway, designed to DMRB
(Design Manual for Roads and Bridges) standards with a design speed of 40mph. It includes a 3m
wide shared cycle/footway on the northern side of the new road.

- Whilst the design speed is set to the standards within DMRB it is suggested that with a dual
carriageway of this length other than at tidal rush hour times speeds are highly likely to be in
excess of the design speed indicated. Without measures such as a signalised junction into the new
developments drivers will have a dual carriageway with good visibility in which they will be able to
travel at much higher speeds than intended by the designers.

- The link road between the A41 and the A413 was designed with a 50mph speed limit and it was
clear that vehicle speeds were highly likely to be in excess of that due to the nature and layout, as
a result locations were identified to provide positions for mobile speed enforcement vans to
operate with good site lines for traffic in both directions. Ideally the SEALR would be self-enforcing
in terms of the speeds for vehicles but it is suggested that with having experience of the previous
link road this is not going to be the case.

- At this time it is requested that some provision is made to accommodate the speed enforcement
vans within the infrastructure of this road so there is some deterrent strategy for vehicles that are
likely to exceed the design speed and posted limit on this proposed link road.’

Network Rail — (June 2020) Network Rail has the following comments.

(1) Network Rail has been in discussion with Bucks council and these are ongoing regarding the
Heads of Terms.

(2) Network Rail’s Asset Protection team will need to agree design and risk assessment and
method statements; the scheme is to be managed via Network Rail Asset Protection.

(3) The bridge is in close proximity to Stoke Mandeville No.2 Level Crossing.

e Will the construction of the bridge have any adverse impact on the sighting at the level crossing.
e Will the noise of the construction works have any adverse impact on a user’s ability to hear the
whistle board that is located 400m from the level crossing.

e Once the bridge is constructed will the road noise have any adverse impact on a user’s ability to
hear the whistle board that is located 400m from the level crossing.

e Once the bridge is constructed will the structure have any adverse impact on a user’s ability to
hear the whistle board that is located 400m from the level crossing.

The whistle board on the up line in the Aylesbury direction provides mitigation for the insufficient
sighting distance in this direction and NR need to fully understand the potential implications the
proposal may have, at present.

Network Rail believes that the promotor and council must include consideration of the impact of
the proposal on the level crossing as part of the planning application process. This duty falls under

Page 127



Schedule 4 (j) of the Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England)
Order 2015, which states that the network operator (Network Rail) should be consulted on any
proposal for: “Development which is likely to result in a material increase in the volume or a
material change in the character of traffic using a level crossing over the railway” The NPPF
underpins this requirement stating: “Considering Development Proposals: 108. In assessing sites
that may be allocated for development in plans, or specific applications for development, it should
be ensured that: b) safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users; 110. Within
this context, applications for development should: c) create places that are safe, secure...which
minimise the scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles.”

Environment Agency — No objections.

Aylesbury Garden Town - Aylesbury was given Garden Town status in 2017. Since then the
Aylesbury Garden Town (AGT) project team have been developing a Masterplan setting out way
the town will evolve over the next few decades. The AGT team has consulted residents and local
businesses, as well as stakeholders, community groups and partners, and the feedback has been
used to shape the Masterplan.

The Masterplan expands on the published 2050 Vision for Aylesbury Garden Town and explains in
more detail how we propose to create an Aylesbury that is designed for everyone. This town wide
Masterplan has inclusion and accessibility at its heart and proposes a wide range of both small and
large projects and initiatives that will help make Aylesbury a greener and more prosperous place
where everyone can enjoy a high quality of life. The Masterplan is due to be adopted at Full
Council in the summer 2020, and once adopted by Buckinghamshire Council, the Masterplan will
carry weight as a material consideration for future decision making and plan making. At the time
of writing this response, the Masterplan has been approved by Cabinet.

The master planning process has identified 8 key projects which have the potential to be truly
transformative in delivering the objectives of the Vision and are to be prioritised for delivery and
investment. The Gardenway is one of these key projects. Encircling Aylesbury, the Gardenway will
deliver an orbital route of fully connected green and blue infrastructure linked to local parks,
woodlands, play grounds, community gardens, natural areas, waterways and heritage sites. It aims
to have a positive and lasting impact on the quality of life of Aylesbury’s residents encouraging
play, active lifestyles, food growing and outdoor leisure as well as being a haven for wildlife. It is
intended to be built on a stewardship model, successfully delivered in a number of garden town
communities across England, engaging residents in the management of the Gardenway.

AGT Masterplan Context and Objectives - The Masterplan includes a number of targets which push
for higher standards in key areas:

® 50% of land to become new public green infrastructure in new garden communities;

e Delivery of biodiversity net gains, rising to a net gain of 20% in the longer term within new
garden communities;

e By 2050 at least 50% of trips originating in the Garden Town will be made by sustainable modes;
e The Garden Town will contribute to the national and local greenhouse gas emission reduction
targets.

Chapter 7 of the AGT Masterplan discusses the aspirations for a connected, inclusive and
sustainable transport and movement network in Aylesbury. The objectives for ‘Aylesbury on the
move’ include the provision of a connected town-wide network of active travel routes, to ensure
that Aylesbury will be an exemplar of inclusive transport.

With regard to the outer link roads, identified as part of the Aylesbury Transport Strategy, the AGT
Masterplan recognises that they are intended to fulfil a number of strategic transport functions:

Page 128



e Interurban roads with potential inclusions in the strategic Major Road Network (subject to
further assessment by the Department for Transport);

e Reducing the amount of through traffic in the town centre by providing an alternative, direct
orbital route around town;

e Provide sufficient road capacity and connectivity into key areas of development around
Aylesbury, to support planning approval for these growth areas.

The AGT Masterplan recognises the role of the outer link roads in achieving some of the Garden
Town objectives, including removing through-traffic from the town centre: The orbital link roads
will have a positive function on other highways in Aylesbury. By reducing the level of traffic on
these roads, the link roads will enable radial roads and ring roads to reduce their role in traffic
movement and adjust more towards street-based ‘place’ functions, for pedestrians and cyclists.
The aspirational sections of the link road should be delivered as a priority, to enable a full bypass
for through traffic. Feasibility studies where routes have not been clearly identified should be
completed to identify the most appropriate routing and identify opportunities for including high-
quality, segregated footways and cycleways. These should seek to minimise the impact of the
highway on green infrastructure and consider associated development opportunities.”

The AGT Masterplan also sets out design aspirations for the outer link roads, including the SEALR:
“The link roads will operate as 40mph roads and are being designed either as dual carriageways
from the outset or with the provision to safequard for dual carriageways. This is in anticipation of
growth within Aylesbury and in the surrounding region. While these roads have a predominantly
‘movement’ function and would sit as ‘major interurban roads’... they will have an effect on the
quality of ‘place’ in their vicinity. Plans for the roads will therefore consider local context in the
design including existing landscapes and townscape, safety of pedestrians and cyclists, and
proposed development sites, so as to minimise negative impacts and create a positive relationship
between the road and the surrounding area as far as reasonably possible and incorporate
comprehensive landscaping wherever possible to soften the visual impact of the highways, support
biodiversity and help mitigate air quality impacts.”

The Gardenway - The ambition to create a linear park of connected green spaces surrounding
Aylesbury was established in the Buckinghamshire Gl Strategy, 2009. The masterplan refines the
original concept and identifies an indicative route for the orbital park called the ‘Gardenway’
which is related closely to the urban area and proposed major development sites, and reflects the
alignment of HS2.

The Gardenway will deliver a fully connected green and blue infrastructure corridor which
encircles the town. It will connect local parks, woodlands, play grounds, community gardens,
natural areas, waterways and heritage sites and new local green spaces which provide points of
interest along the route. A network of secondary Greenway routes connected to the Gardenway is
identified. These connect the Gardenway to the town centre, the wider countryside and
surrounding villages and form part of the proposed town-wide walking and cycling network. The
illustrative route for the Gardenway, uses sections of the existing Round Aylesbury footpath and
existing public green spaces where possible.

The AGT Masterplan states that wherever possible, the Gardenway should be routed to avoid
running immediately alongside the Link Road (where increased levels of noise will be apparent),
but instead take advantage of existing green and blue assets.

The AGT team welcomes the opportunity to comment on the SEALR planning application. AGT
supports the planning application, and note that it aligns with the wider objectives of the AGT
Masterplan to remove through-traffic from the town centre. In addition, AGT supports the
intention to include provision for pedestrians and cyclists as part of the scheme.

The AGT team would encourage consideration of how the scheme can maximise the benefits for
nonmotorised users, in particular how the proposed cycleway / footways can minimise conflict

Page 129



between cyclists, pedestrians and other non-motorised users. Shared space cycleway / footways
can often reduce the attractiveness of such routes, and therefore may not lead to the desired
uptake in cycling or walking. Furthermore, in keeping with the theme of inclusivity as set out
within the AGT Masterplan, shared spaces may present issues for users with impaired mobility,
and we would encourage full consideration of how the scheme can cater for all user groups.

As detailed in the illustrative drawing for the Gardenway (see Figure 1 above), the indicative
alignment for the Gardenway runs along a stretch of the SEALR before veering off towards the
proposed new developments in Stoke Mandeville. Although the Gardenway illustrative drawing
and route is indicative in its nature, and the timeline for scheme development is likely to follow on
from that of the SEALR, due the constraint of crossing the Aylesbury to London railway line, it is
possible that there will be a desire to route a section of the Gardenway along the footway /
cycleway proposed as part of the SEALR, subject to existing constraints.

If the feasibility and outline design study for the Gardenway, planned to commence in the autumn
of 2020, determine that the optimal route for the Gardenway is along the SEALR, the AGT team
would welcome the opportunity to collaborate during the detailed design of the SEALR to explore
opportunities for the two schemes to be integrated. The AGT team would welcome an opportunity
to input with regards to appropriate signage, wayfinding and other relevant features such as
landscaping, which will ensure that this section of the cycleway is coherent with the rest of the
Gardenway. Likewise, at either end of the cycleway, AGT would welcome an opportunity to input
into the proposed signalised crossings to ensure that they are coherent with the design strategy
for the Gardenway, once this has been completed.

Natural England - Natural England has no comments to make on this application. Natural England
has not assessed this application for impacts on protected species. Natural England has published
Standing Advice which you can use to assess impacts on protected species or you may wish to
consult your own ecology services for advice. Natural England and the Forestry Commission have
also published standing advice on ancient woodland and veteran trees which you can use to assess
any impacts on ancient woodland. The lack of comment from Natural England does not imply that
there are no impacts on the natural environment, but only that the application is not likely to
result in significant impacts on statutory designated nature conservation sites or landscapes. It is
for the local planning authority to determine whether or not this application is consistent with
national and local policies on the natural environment. Other bodies and individuals may be able
to provide information and advice on the environmental value of this site and the impacts of the
proposal to assist the decision making process. LPAs should obtain specialist ecological or other
environmental advice when determining the environmental impacts of development and it is
recommended referring to our SSSI Impact Risk Zones (available on Magic and as a downloadable
dataset) prior to consultation with Natural England.

Health and Safety Executive - The proposed development site does not currently lie within the
consultation distance (CD) of a major hazard site or major accident hazard pipeline; therefore at
present HSE does not need to be consulted on any developments on this site.

Chilterns Conservation Board - A number of detailed Chilterns AONB Management Plan policies
are relevant to this application:

DP4 In the setting of the AONB, take full account of whether proposals harm the AONB. For
example, development of land visible in panoramic views from the Chilterns escarpment, or which
generates traffic in or travelling across the AONB, or which increases water abstraction from the
chalk aquifer, thereby reducing flow in chalk streams.

Page 130



DP8 Keep skies dark at night by only using light where and when needed. All new lighting should
be the minimum required and meet or exceed guidance for intrinsically dark zones. Avoid
architectural designs that spill light out of large areas of glazing.

DP14 Avoid new or upgraded infrastructure (roads, railways, airports, pylons, masts etc.) which
harm the AONB landscape, nature, air quality, tranquillity or the visitor experience. Fully assess
impacts on the AONB, including increased recreation pressure, traffic, overflying and severance of
ecological connectivity in the AONB. Avoid, mitigate and compensate to achieve a net gain for the
AONB.

DP15 Seek opportunities to remove or replace existing inappropriate external lighting to restore
dark skies at night.

CCB Summary - The Chilterns AONB is between 4.2 and 4.7km from the application area. Any
assessment here must be based on the Landscape Institutes' Guidance and this methodology is
applied appropriately in Chapter 7 (landscape) of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA
7.3.4). CCB accepts the rationale behind the applicant's assessment of views from Coombe Hill (EIA
7.3.19). This assessment makes reference to key views identified in the AONB Management Plan
(EIA 7.3.30). Panoramic views from and across the escarpment constitutes a special quality (in the
2019-2024 Management Plan this is set out at page 10 on 'the significance of the Chilterns').

CCB supports the completion of a cumulative assessment of impacts (EIA 7.3.39) and CCB has
produced its own Position Statements on the Cumulative Impact of Development (2017) and the
impact of development upon the settings of the AONB (2011). The cumulative work here (EIA
7.3.39) includes planning permissions in proximity of the new road. It does not include the entirety
of the road programme as envisaged by the VALP, when adopted, and as supported by the
Aylesbury Transport Strategy. It has to confine itself to this portion of that greater spatial
ambition. Looking at the longer term cumulative impacts CCB would ask that weight is given here
to the longer term agglomeration of impacts, especially lighting. The EIA (7.3.39) accepts that
impacts arise from sky glow, glare and light spillage.

CCB would seek maximum mitigation of lighting impacts and design innovations to avoid top-lit
columnar lighting. The lighting assessment (at its 3.2) confirms 'higher levels of illumination' at
roundabouts and lighting columns at 10m and 12m height on verges and at the two roundabouts,
respectively. Planning weight should be given to the cumulative 'roll-out' of this design thinking
across the entire outer Aylesbury road, as proposed in the VALP / Aylesbury Transport Strategy.
From Coombe Hill and other elevated locations (potentially Wendover Woods and Pulpit Hill) such
an impact would affect the panoramic views, accepting the distances involved. The EIA reports the
new road 'barely discernible’' from Coombe Hill. While it is not sought to contest that conclusion,
the cumulative impact of 10m/12m top lit columnar lighting will be far greater upon completion of
the anticipated outer road to the south and south-east of Aylesbury. CCB promotes that any
lighting details are the subject of planning condition and that the LPA makes the point, at the
decision making stage now, that a low impact design is required. The submitted details in the
lighting assessment are fairly traditional and not low impact, it is suggested.

We note that the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges does not strictly apply to a 40mph road
and thus adds further support to the adoption of non-traditional lighting treatment.

On bio-diversity net gain, these objectives to exceed DEFRA targets are laudable. Looking at the
wider connectivity issues here (consistent with the draft VALP policy NE 2 (a), albeit still in draft)
CCB promote the maximum level achievable within the red line area. As with lighting, this joined
up approach or rather the establishment of a model design approach should be promoted so that
subsequent additions cumulatively promote bio-diversity connectivity.

Strategic Access Officer - Footpath 2 Stoke Mandeville Parish SMA/2/1 passes generally south-
west to north-east connecting Lower Road with Wendover Road. It also forms part of the ‘Round

Page 131



Aylesbury Walk’ promoted route, and is in the vicinity of the proposed alignment for the Aylesbury
Garden Way. The footpath also crosses the Aylesbury to London railway line where walkers have
to cross the tracks ‘at grade’ in order to make their onward journey. Footpath 3 Stoke Mandeville
Parish (SMA/3/2) passes generally south-east to north-west, parallel with Lower Road and
connects Stoke Mandeville with Aylesbury, though more specifically, with the grounds of Stoke
Mandeville Hospital.

In the wider context, a walking and cycling route is planned linking Stoke Mandeville Stadium and
Stoke Mandeville train station (pink dashed line on Plan 2). The aim is to complement the
rehabilitation of spinal injury patients’ by providing a disabled accessible route into the
countryside via the Garden Way and onto Stoke Mandeville village and train station. In addition, it
combines as a sustainable transport route into the AGT-1 housing areas and possible green
infrastructure provision.

North-west to south-east movements - Movements by foot and cycle are provided alongside
Lower Road (Jetway cycle route) and Wendover Road (Amberway cycle route), as well as the
proposed cycle route alongside and west of the railway line between Stoke Mandeville Stadium
and Stoke Mandeville train station. Footpath SMA/3/2 runs in the same direction and is directly
affected by the new link road. Road safety requirements preclude provision of a crossing on or
close to the existing alignment of Footpath SMA/3/2 so the applicant proposes to divert
pedestrians to a controlled crossing on the eastern arm of the new Lower Road roundabout via
the proposed 3m cycleway (southern side) and 3m cycleway (northern side). This is satisfactory.

It is understood that the applicant spoke with the developer controlling land north and south of
the link road to establish desire-line diversions to avoid right-angle bends at the link road and that
this was possible on the approach from the north, but not from the south. Nevertheless, in the
wider context, it is assumed ‘on street’ routes will eventually be available for walkers travelling
north-west towards the SEALR through the new residential development in the parcel of land
immediately south of the SEALR and east of Lower Road, along which a desire line alternative can
follow. It will be for the AGT1 design process to secure pedestrian and cycling permeability from
those streets onto Lower Road (Jetway cycle route) and the SEALR cycleway close to the
roundabout’s eastern arm crossing.

South-west to north-east movements - The applicant originally proposed a 2m footway (southern
side) and 3m cycleway (northern side), but this has been improved to provide a 3m cycleway both
sides. This is welcome as both will complement the existing roadside cycleway network along
Lower Road and Wendover Road.

Links to the Stoke Mandeville Stadium route - The proposed positioning of the railway bridge
abutments enables provision for the proposed Stoke Mandeville Stadium route to pass
underneath. Additionally, there are surfaced, 3m-wide maintenance tracks located between the
Stoke Mandeville cycle route onto the link road cycleway (yellow highlighting on Plan 3). These can
double-up as publically accessible walking and cycling routes, but can also provide public access to
and from the proposed green infrastructure within new AGT1 housing areas.

The strategic design process for AGT1 can seek to secure more direct access to and from the
housing areas as the design evolves. Moreover, it is understood that most, if not all, of the area up
to the red edge flanking the SEALR (the embankments and surrounding land), are to be dedicated
as public highway land, which allows a choice of routes to be provided along the embankments at
appropriate desire-line points into AGT1 housing areas. Steps can be provided during construction
directly up to the SEALR cycleway at points close to the bridge structure to allow convenient
access from south-west and south-eastern AGT1 areas. Disabled accessible provision can be made
further east and west as the embankments disappear and the ground flattens. The north eastern
parcel of land between SEALR and the built-up area of Aylesbury becomes public open space.

Page 132



At-grade railway crossing - Network Rail initially had concerns regarding the safety of pedestrians
crossing the railway. Further work was undertaken by the applicant in this regard and evidence
provided to indicate that users would not be distracted by moving traffic movements when they
were supposed to be looking left and right for trains coming. Safety would not be compromised.
Moreover, evidence was provided that the bridge abutments didn’t impact on pedestrian sight
lines looking north from the footpath crossing. There is no evidence therefore to support the
closing of this crossing.

Summary - Content with the proposals for the provision of pedestrians crossing the SEALR to make
their onward connections along the rights of way network; arrangements for a footway / cycleway
on north and south sides of the new road complement existing walking and cycling networks; the
provision of maintenance access tracks within areas dedicated as ‘highway maintained at public
expense’ allows future connectivity for public walking and cycling routes onto the proposed Stoke
Mandeville Hospital to Stoke Mandeville train station walking and cycling route from the SEALR;
provision of areas south of the SEALR as highway land allows for a choice of future walking and
cycling links from the SEALR footway / cycleway into new housing areas, as the AGT1 design
evolves. Request an informative regarding keeping open public footpaths unless legally stopped
up or diverted.

Representations:

164 representations have been received objecting to the development on the following grounds:
Transport

- No consultation with residents regarding left out left in proposal for Eastcote Road. Would lead to
increased traffic through Elm Farm estate, increased queues

- Would prefer mini roundabout or traffic lights at Eastcote Road

- Nojustification for size of Wendover Road roundabout

- Properties at western end have new access/service road, those at eastern end should too

- Cambourne Avenue roundabout should be increased in size to allow more traffic to use it

- Impact on local businesses not being able to turn right out of Eastcote Road, delays

- Should be a roundabout at Eastcote Road/Wendover Road

- How will future intention to change roundabout at Wendover Road/Cambourne Avenue to traffic
lights help, presumably no U turn at planned traffic lights?

- How is dual carriageway justified when previously a single carriageway was appropriate, over sized
for its purpose, other link roads are single carriageways, no explanation given

- Will be a hotspot for speeding and accidents, will become a rat run

- Whether the traffic goes via Wendover Road or Lower Road it will still end up at the gyratory

- Additional traffic from west to east from the High Wycombe direction would only be a very small
percentage of the overall volume

- Further housing on this side of Aylesbury will add to congestion

- Lead to unacceptable increase in traffic volume, will just move the problem

- Will encourage car use

- SEALR will disrupt traffic on Wendover Road

- Until the Council build the north-south relief road the traffic will continue to bottleneck at the
gyratory

- Doesn’t take account of additional traffic coming from Wendover Bypass

- No evidence that the link road would reduce traffic congestion and will not solve traffic problems

- Link road between Aston Clinton road and Wendover would enable traffic to avoid town and lessen
impacts

- Change of working habits, less movement of people for work, working from home mean
development not justified

- Concern about new cul de sac/slip road to access property which will be more dangerous

Page 133



- Monitor and manage shouldn’t be relied upon, need to know all of impacts

- Will the speed limit be kept at 40mph? Design will encourage speeding

- Models have not included impact of school runs

- Need long term solution not small link road

- Speed limit on SEALR should be 30mph

- Should take care of current roads before building new ones

- Proposed noise barrier and planter verge would affect visibility to County Farm Cottages

- Insufficient time to give clear indication of intent to leave carriageway and enter County Farm
Cottages leading to accidents

- Realignment of carriageway with County Farm Cottage property reduces length in which a vehicle
may wait out of the flow of traffic which would prevent the erection of gates to reduce noise and
improve safety

- Insufficient width of footpath between A423 and County Farm Cottages

- Road is premature without Hampden Fields being approved

- Alternatives considered and discounted when they are better

- Modelling underestimates capacity

- No mention made of Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) in transport assessments, brings into
guestion the overall assessments

- Shouldn’t western roundabout be enlarged to future proof it?

- Need a plan to show how all of the major projects around Aylesbury are going to be managed so
that major traffic chaos does not result

- SEALR will no solve north-south congestion

- Risk of gridlock between Bedgrove and SEALR East roundabouts not explained

- Potential to give false picture of traffic flows in real life scenarios

- Inconsistent statistical data given in transport assessment

- Monitor and manage approach suggests outcomes not known

Rights of way

- Adverse impact on PRoW

- Walkers will not want to use rights of way with SEALR

- Walking route will become suburban

- Cycle path should be separate from road

- Open Space Society object because they fear it will lead to the closure of the level crossing, an
important route for walkers, alternatives would be significantly longer and less pleasant. Users of
the Round Aylesbury Walk would no longer be able to use route.

- Would be better to incorporate a footpath/cycleway under the eastern side of bridge to strengthen
links to train station

- There should be ramped connections down to the new footpaths/cycle ways under the railway

- New connections should enable level crossing to be closed

- The SEALR design should provide for two service crossings at appropriate points between Lower
Road and the rail line

- Details of provision for pedestrian/cycle access to SEAL at the bridge embankments should be
provided

Landscape
- Harm to landscape, eyesore
- Should have native planting
- Should have evergreen planting so maintained in winter
- Planting will take years to establish and provide mitigation
- Conflicts with Garden Town status and contrary to Garden Town Masterplan
- Road should be set behind a bund
- Other options had lower bridge height and therefore less visual impact
- Ugly urbanisation
- Height of bridge would have unacceptable visual impact, other bridges over railway are lower

Page 134



Roundabout on Wendover Road is too large

Traffic lights instead of Wendover Road roundabout would require less land take

Traffic lights should be used instead of Wendover Road roundabout

Loss of farmland

Loss of greenfield site

Would result in coalescence to Aylesbury, Stoke Mandeville and Weston Turville

Overhead wires should be routed underground

If bridge position moved south the land is lower and the bridge could be lower

SEALR landscaping scheme should have regard to the AGT1 allocation and the delivery of the
overbridge as part of the Land Improvement Holdings development

BC should adopt and maintain all land required for landscaping and drainage as part of the SEALR
mitigation.

Open space

Open space is protected by condition and by covenant, developers aware of this from the start
Section 19 inappropriate for use
Loss of currently quiet recreation facility

Flooding, drainage and climate change

Would disrupt natural drainage

Will increase risk of flooding to dwellings

Lack of sufficient detail of flood mitigation

Concerned about potential of bank erosion and request retaining wall to property

Bedgrove Book already regularly reaches capacity and additional water flows will increase flood risk
Harm to climate change

Field to the east of the eastern roundabout is often flooded with excess flow from the sewer
discharging across it during heavy flooding, not convinced that this has been included in the
modelling

Flooding on third party land

Residential impact

Excessive long term noise and from construction, insufficient mitigation

The road should have motorway style noise reduction barriers

Noise barrier should be sympathetic

Concerns over vibration, insufficient mitigation

At the mid-point from Wendover Road and the railway line the road will be approx bedroom
window height

Light pollution

Adverse impact on air quality, including during construction. Will not reduce air pollution on Lower
Road, health objections

Need clarification on set up time activities and how much night time working is expected

Wind impact on air quality not assessed

Loss of establish open space unacceptable

Proposed open space would be alongside dual carriageway and not acceptable whatever the size
Concerned about width of pavement for eastern roundabout being too narrow

Council do not have rights to the land they require

Open space would not provide any sort of scenic barrier for the road

Other options would not require loss of existing open space

Road should be moved further away from dwellings

It has not been demonstrated that alternative designs would not be possible, revising the road’s
alignment, location and junction design

Tunnel option is preferred design, similar costs

Contrary to Human Rights

Page 135



Wildlife

Why has there been no consultation on the change from routes which were too expensive and
rejected?

Costs have not been completed for other options.

In a press release for Hampden Fields the Council confirmed that Hampden Fields will contribute to
the SEAR but the Council have stated that the SEALR will go ahead regardless of the Hampden Field
project

Harm to outlook

Too close to existing and planned residential development

Finished road is higher than properties

Proposed culverts will attract crime and anti-social behaviour

No evidence and unsubstantiated comments made about mitigation for noise, dust, vibration
Impact of closing Nash Lee Road not properly considered in transport modelling

Noise attenuation and air quality proposals must have regard to future residential receptors at D-
AGTL1. The SEALR GA plans should be amended to include extended acoustic barriers and a
condition included to require detailed design to specifically address residential receptors at D-
AGT1.

Impact on wildlife should be kept to a minimum

Loss of habitats, loss of well established hedgerows and mature trees
Adverse impacts on ecosystems

Harm to variety of wildlife

Question ability to achieve biodiversity net gain without CPO land

Policy, funding, consultation

VALP not approved, so road premature

The SEALR bisects land forming part of allocation AGT1 presents challenges to this coming forward
Contrary to development plan policies

Need to follow legislative framework

Would not accord with NPPF, only economic role, not social or environmental roles

Where will the funding come from if Hampden Fields does not go ahead; applications are linked
Single carriageway 20% cheaper

Local MP Rob Butler states that Councils should not plan development on AONB, Green areas or
swallow up local villages

Concern about consultation process during Covid, insufficient time to comment

Publicity not sufficient, residents should have been contacted by Council

Huge amount of application papers to consider

Benefits do not justify costs

Costs and local disruption will work against the local recovery from covid

Potential high costs of diversions to overhead electricity cables will incur additional costs, could be
offset against other options, including tunnel. Also other bridges along railway can increase in
height to allow for electrification pylons under them

CPO is attempting to include purchase of land ready for Hampden Field stage of the orbital road
which is beyond the requirements of SEALR and is conflict of interest

CPO land take is excessive

Sub optimal solution being used

Conflicts with commitment of government and council to get to zero net carbon by 2050
Enormous waste of money

SEALR has been developed in isolation from AGT1, better permeability could be achieved

The application should include sensitivity testing to reflect the appropriate and realistic yield of
around 1,600 units on the D-AGT1 allocation.

The proposed diversion of the UKPN power line along the south of the SEALR through LIH land is
not acceptable and any such diversion must be discussed and agreed with LIH.

Page 136



- Lack of adequate impact on AGT1 allocation could mean that the required 1000 dwellings could not
be achieved
- DAS not updated

11 representations supporting the development have been received making the following comments:
- Infavour of link road but not more houses
- Link road would be of benefit overall
- Would benefit the emergency services and ease traffic flow around the town
- Link road would make it easier to join Lower Road
- Would reduce congestion on Lower Road
- Realighment of Lower Road would improve visibility
- Link road would join up with others proposed and is in need for the Garden way

Page 137



APPENDIX B: Highway comments

Directorate for Planning Growth & Sustainability
Buckinghamshire Council,

Walton Street Offices,

Walton Street,

Aylesbury

HP20 1UA

highwaysdm.av@buckinghamshire.gov.uk

0129

6 382416
www.buckinghamsh
ire.gov.uk

Development Management

(Aylesbury Area)

Planning, Growth & Sustainability

Buckinghamshire Council 11t January 2021

F.A.O. Sue Pilcher

Dear Sue

Application Number: CC/0015/20

Proposal: New dual carriageway link road including: roundabout junction at
B4443 Lower Road, roundabout junction at A413 Wendover Road,
railway bridge, footway/cycleways, noise attenuation barrier, street
lighting, earthworks and landscaping between B4443 Lower Road
and A413

Location: Land Between The A413 Wendover Road and the B4443 Lower
Road in the Parishes of Stoke Mandeville, Weston Turville and
Aylesbury.

Thank you for your request for comments on the South East Aylesbury Link Road
(SEALR) Transport Assessment Addendum which was submitted on the 3 December
2020.

Background

The Vale of Aylesbury Local Plan (VALP) has been developed and a draft for
submission was issued for consultation in late 2017 and submitted to the Secretary of

Page 138



State in early 2018. An Examination in Public (EiP) was held in July 2018 and the
Inspector’s Interim Findings were published in August 2018. Following the publication
of the Inspector’s Interim Findings, the Council has worked on the required necessary
modifications to make the plan sound. The modifications were then subject to public
consultation which closed in December 2019. This second stage of Main modifications
has been presented to the Inspector. These modifications, along with other
representations, are currently under review. The draft VALP identifies Aylesbury as a
major growth location for approximately 8,000 new homes.

The need for the proposed scheme has arisen through the development of High
Speed Two (HS2). The alignment of HS2 passes Aylesbury to the south west, and in
doing so will sever the A4010 Risborough Road south of Stoke Mandeville.

As part of the proposals for HS2, a new link road will be delivered to divert the A4010
around the west of Stoke Mandeville, connecting with the B4443 Lower Road further
north, via a new roundabout. This scheme is referred to as the Stoke Mandeville Relief
Road (SMRR). Traffic modelling has indicated that this re-alignment will increase
congestion at the A413 gyratory (B4443 / A413 junction Stoke Road / Wendover Road
/ Walton Street) within Aylesbury town centre, leading to increased traffic, queuing and
delays. Increased traffic on the B4443 arising from the proposed SMRR is also likely
to result in worsening air quality issues at the Stoke Road gyratory which is a
designated Air Quality Management Area (AQMA), due to high traffic levels and
emissions related to idling vehicle engines and queueing.

To address this, the proposed South East Aylesbury Link Road (SEALR) scheme will
provide a new road to connect the B4443 Lower Road with the A413 Wendover Road.
The proposed scheme programme anticipates opening at the same time as the
SMRR, to address the congestion issues.

The proposed scheme also contributes to a long-term vision to deliver an orbital route
around Aylesbury, together with proposed link roads that will be delivered through
large housing projects to the south east of Aylesbury, which are allocated in the
emerging VALP.

A planning application for SEALR and an accompanying Transport Assessment (TA)
was submitted in

April 2020. Buckinghamshire Council (BC) issued a highways response on the TA on
the 10" June 2020. This highways response needs to be read in conjunction with the
response issued on the 10" June 2020.

Page 139



Updated Transport Assessment Addendum

The TA Addendum (TAA) provides updated junction assessments following changes
to the design of SEALR and the roundabout junctions as well as revised traffic flows
for 2036.

The transport effects of SEALR have been assessed using the updated Aylesbury
Transport Model (ATM). The ATM is a VISUM based highway model that includes
weekday AM Peak, inter-peak and PM Peak period data. The Future Forecast Year is
2036 and has been developed to account for committed developments and
infrastructure coming forwards in the Aylesbury area and growth outlined within the
VALP.

The ATM has been updated since the SEALR TA was submitted in April 2020, to align
growth assumptions with model runs associated with other strategic development site
updates and to include an end of VALP assessment. The TAA submitted for this
application has utilised these revised 2036 flows and updated the network impact
assessments accordingly.

Previous Highway Comments.

Chapter 2 of the TAA deals with the modelling comments from the 10t June 2020
Buckinghamshire Council (BC) Response for each junction.

The section below addresses the TAA responses dealing with the BC comments from
the June 2020 highways response. Detailed comments on the revised modelling are
provided further down in this response.

Junction 2: A41 / New Road

The previous highways response stated, “this junction has a 5% increase in flows in the
2021A scenario, a junction capacity assessment should be undertaken.”

The TAA response states “In 2021(a), there are two arms with an increase over 5%,
however these account for a difference of 15 trips on the New Road South arm and
seven trips on the MDA North arm. Although the increases are greater than 5%, the
difference in trips on those approaches are low and considered unlikely to impact on
capacity at the junction. Furthermore, the overall flow difference at the junction is 4%,
therefore it has not been considered necessary to undertake a capacity assessment
for this assessment especially given that in future scenarios, the junction form will
change.”

Page 140



It is accepted that the difference in movements is minimal and it is therefore concluded
that an assessment for the 2021A scenario is not required. The 2021B and 2036
scenarios have been modelled and are discussed further down in this response.

Junctions 2 & 3: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (incorporating
Broughton Lane) / New Road

The previous BC response explained that the modelling of Junctions 2 and 3 should
reflect the agreed Hampden Fields and Woodlands mitigation, including the Broughton
Lane link.

The TAA modelling now reflects the agreed Hampden Fields and Woodlands
mitigation. Comments on the modelling of this junction are provided further down in
this response.

Junction 4: A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 / King Edward Avenue

The previous BC response stated, “Some of the flows are incorrect or omitted. This
needs to be corrected”.

This has now been corrected. It should also be noted that Hampden Fields and
Woodlands are no longer proposing to improve this junction as its not required. In
scenarios with the Hampden Fields and Woodlands developments included the
existing layout has therefore now been used, which is correct.

Junction 5: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Park Street / Tesco / Walton Street

The previous BC response stated that some of the flows are incorrect or omitted,
which needs to be corrected.

The TAA explains that there was one HGV percentage which was stated as 3% rather
than 2% and a rerun of the model showed that this did not change the results.

A review of the modelling revealed that the flows are now correct.

Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road (Gyratory)

The BC Response stated “The model for Junction 6 is similar, but not the same as the
model agreed and used to test and assess the Hampden Fields development. This
model needs to be identical to the Hampden Fields model or an explanation as to why
the model is not consistent with the Hampden Fields model is required.”

Page 141



The TAA states “The geometric data for the model has been reviewed and revised
where necessary to accord with that shown in the Hampden Fields assessment. The
model may still have discrepancies with that prepared for the Hampden Fields
assessment as lane lengths and widths were not provided and therefore these have
been derived by AECOM’

Comments on the modelling of this junction are provided further down in this
response.

Junction 7: A413 Wendover Road / Camborne Avenue

BC previously commented that this junction should be modelled as a mini roundabout.
The TAA explains that the junction was not modelled as a mini roundabout as it
resulted in a warning in the software because the junction appears to have
unbalanced flows and may behave like a priority junction and that the results should
be treated with caution. A normal roundabout model was therefore used to ensure that
the results were realistic.

This response is accepted. Comments on the modelling are provided further down in
the response.

Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road/Winterton Road/Stoke Mandeville Hospital

The BC Response stated “The Hampden Fields model was run with lane simulation,
whereas this model has not. To be consistent with the Hampden Fields analysis, it
needs to be run with the lane simulation option as a sensitivity test. “

The TAA has now presented the results of this network using lane simulation as
requested. The results are discussed later in this response.

Junction 14: A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way

BC previously explained that the model geometry is similar, but not identical to that
produced for the Transport Assessment for Land at South West Aylesbury. This
junction needs to be re-modelled with the correct geometry.

The junction has been re-modelled with updated geometry. However, it should be
noted that the applicant for the South West Aylesbury planning application will need to
revisit the design of this junction as part of their application to respond to updated
transport modelling. It is expected that a suitable design will be derived by them to
accommodate all traffic demands given that it forms their primary site access junction.
Notwithstanding this, the results of the modelling undertaken by the SEALR applicants
is discussed later in this response.

Page 142



Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road/SEALR

BC previously commented that a linked ARCADY model should be used to determine
the impact of the u-turning traffic at this junction.

This junction has undergone further design changes and has been re-modelled with a
linked Arcady model. Comments on the modelling are provided further down in the
response.

Junction 17: A418/Eastern Link Road North

BC previously explained that we would like to see the junction modelled with a
pedestrian phase every 3 cycles which is more likely to reflect the use of the
pedestrian crossing.

A review of the modelling reveals that the junction has now been modelled with a
pedestrian phase every 3 cycles and the results of the modelling are discussed later in
this response.

Junctions 18 & 19: ELRn North (Village) roundabout and ELRn South (Stocklake)
roundabout

The previous BC response explained that junctions 18 and 19 needed to be re-
modelled with pedestrian crossings.

The TAA explains that these junctions have now been modelled with zebra crossings
which is considered acceptable.

Junction 22: Southern Link Road / New Road

BC previously commented: "an explanation of why this model differs from the agreed
Woodlands and Hampden Fields models is required’.

Updated design geometries were provided to the applicant and these have been used
for the revised modelling which is discussed later in this response.

Comments on Design

Chapter 2 of the TAA also discusses design comments from the 10" June 2020 BC
Response.

Cul de sac servicing

Page 143



Due to the new road alignment and location of the junction on Lower Road, dwellings
8 to 30 Lower Road will now be served by two cul de sacs that run parallel to the main
carriageway. BC previously stated that a swept path analysis should be provided to
demonstrate that a refuse vehicle can enter and exit the cul de sacs in a safe and
convenient manner.

Appendix B of the TAA includes a swept path analysis of a large car and an 11.2m
long refuse vehicle.

The swept path analysis demonstrates that a large car can turn in the turning heads of
both cul de sacs.

An 11.2m refuse vehicle can access the southern cul de sac in forward gear, reverse
within the cul de sac and egress the cul de sac in forward gear.

A separate drawing has also been submitted demonstrating that a 10m rigid vehicle
can access the northern cul de sac, turn in the turning head, and egress the northern
cul de sac in forward gear. BC requested a further amendment to this service road to
expand the turning area along with additional swept path analysis of a 11.2m refuse
vehicle. This supplementary information is shown on drawing 60535364-ACM-00-XX-
SKE-CE-0053 reproduced below and is now considered acceptable on the basis that
the servicing of the cul de sac by a vehicle of this size will be infrequent. Smaller
vehicles such as cars can enter and exit with greater ease as shown in drawing
60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0050 below.

Page 144



INSET A - REFUSE VEHICLE (LEFT IN, LEFT QUT) \
EXTENDED NORTHERN CUL-DE-SAC

Page 145



I = = .
i | INSET A - LARGE CAR (LEFT IN, LEFT OUT AND TURNING) i | INSET B - LARGE CAR (LEFT IN, LEFT OUT AND TURNING) i m

2 A R

e
A AR 8 s A

30t Lo Pt

o

6

P Bl Lo s i

Stage 1 Road Safety Audit

BC previously stated in the highways response that the Stage 1 Road Safety Audit
(RSA) revealed a number of issues including concerns regarding the straight
alignment of the proposed link road, which may result in vehicles travelling at
excessive speeds, concerns regarding existing accesses, excessive widths on the
roundabout entry and exit lanes and lack of cycle facilities.

A Designers Response was therefore prepared by the applicants to address the
issues raised in the RSA. We reviewed the Designers Response and included
comments in the previous highways response and considered that all points were
adequately addressed and that the remaining issues in the RSA would be considered
at the detailed design stage, which is also explained in the Designers Response.

The TAA explains that to assist with safety and speed, space adjacent to the
agricultural access has been made available for Police enforcement vehicles. This
proposal is welcomed by BC.

Forward Visibility

Page 146



The previous BC highways response explained that the Highway Authority would
require confirmation on the level of forward visibility from Lower Road onto the SEALR
roundabout that can be achieved once it has been maximised.

BC previously stated that “The northern Lower Road arm includes a horizontal
deflection approximately 60m north of the roundabout. This horizontal alignment
includes a 90m radius and localised curve widening. We have concerns that this
alignment is not in line with Table 2.10 of CD 109 Highway Link Design (DMRB) and
we require a justification as to why there is a departure from DMRB standards.” The
updated design drawing includes forward visibility splays. The drawing shows that a
105m forward visibility splay can be achieved for vehicles exiting the roundabout. A
second splay shows that the stop line for the roundabout can be seen from a distance
of 127.8m away. The third splay shows that the pedestrian crossing is visible from a
distance of 110m.

Table 2.10 of CD 109 Highway Link Design (DMRB) indicates that the desirable
stopping sight distance for a design speed of 50kph is 70m which is the distance that
is required at this location. The forward visibility splays on the northern arm of the
junction therefore exceed the DMRB stopping site distance requirements and are
therefore acceptable.

Design Changes

The proposed scheme will deliver a Link Road between the realigned A4010 junction
with the B4443, and the A413 Wendover Road in the form of a two-lane dual
carriageway.

A four arm roundabout connecting Lower Road (B4443), the Stoke Mandeville Relief
Road and the

SEALR will represent the western extents of the scheme. This roundabout will feature
an Inscribed Circle Diameter (ICD) of 69m and two circulatory lanes with two lane
approaches on all arms. The roundabout and all approaches will be street lit.
Pedestrian and cycle provision will be provided around the northern and eastern sides
of the junction to tie in with existing facilities. Controlled crossing points will also be
provided on the northern and eastern arms.

Minor changes to the northern arm’s geometric parameters have been made, which
include changes to the entry widths and flare lengths, to increase capacity.

The link road will consist of a two lane dual carriageway and will be subject to a 40
mph speed limit.

Page 147



The TAA explains that the applicant is in discussions about delivering this roundabout
on behalf of HS2 as the proposed scheme connects into the eastern arm of the Stoke
Mandeville A4010 Realignment scheme. As per the TA, the link road will then follow a
south-westerly to north-easterly alignment and will consist of a two lane dual
carriageway and be subject to a 40-mph speed limit along its extents. A shared three-
metre-wide footway / cycleway will run along the northern side of the carriageway and
now a threemetre-wide footway / cycleway will also run along the southern side in
place of the two-metre footway previously proposed. No street lighting is proposed
along the link, though illuminated solar studs will be provided along the
footway/cycleway on the northern and southern sides of the carriageway.

A new bridge structure continues to be proposed across the London to Aylesbury
railway line which will bisect the SEALR approximately mid-way along its length.
Maintenance access will be provided on either side of the bridge.

With regards to the bridge the TAA states:

“The structure itself features three spans; one main span of 36.6m between
centre lines of intermediate piers and two side spans to the west and east of
the railway track. These side spans will be 25m and 20m respectively. The
main span was developed to cross the entire Network Rail corridor and the
west side span to provide space for a north-south ecology corridor to the west
of the railway line. The east side span was developed to reduce potential
settlement of the Network Rail corridor produced by constructing high
embankments adjacent to the railway line. Adjacent to the bridge abutments
space has been reserved for maintenance access and to facilitate the
movement of pedestrians and cyclists. This will also continue to permit the
future aspiration for a cycle link between Stoke Mandeville Village and Stoke
Mandeville Hospital. “

The scheme will also incorporate passive provision for the future pedestrian
and cycle connections to the footway/cycleway on the southern side of the road
as part of future development connections and/or to facilitate the future closing
of the level crossing.

The SEALR will, as set out in the TA, terminate at a roundabout junction in the
east. This fourarm roundabout will connect Wendover Road (A413), the
Southern Link Road and the SEALR (Drawing 605635364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-
0102-General Arrangement Rev G-0104 and 0103). This roundabout will
feature an ICD of 81m and three circulatory lanes with three lane approaches
on all arms to accommodate the traffic flows anticipated within the future
forecast year of 2036.Changes to geometric parameters have been made to all
arms to increase capacity further including the entry width and flare lengths.
The roundabout and all approaches will have street lighting. Pedestrian and

Page 148



cycle provision will be located around the northern and western arms of the
junction to tie in with existing facilities. Pedestrian only facilities will continue to
be provided around the eastern arm. Controlled crossing points will also
continue to be provided on the northern, western and eastern arms.

We previously stated “We are aware that there have been discussions between the
applicant and the promoters of the Hampden Fields site concerning the alignment of
the road at the connection with the Southern Link Road at the junction with Wendover
Road. Before finalising our review of this application, we will need to see evidence that
any issues associated with the road alignment in this location have been adequately
addressed.”

Taylor Wimpey on behalf of the Hampden Fields Consortium have confirmed in an
email dated 5" January 2021 that the revised alignment as shown on drawing
60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0102General Arrangement Rev G-0104 where it ties
in with the SLR, is now acceptable. This matter is therefore resolved.

Traffic Impact Scenarios

The following strategic modelling Scenarios have been considered by the applicants:

Scenario Committed Infrastructur: Committed Development

2021(a) Do Nothing Stoke Mandeville A4010 Bemyfields (1,501 dwellings)
Realignment Aylesbury East (617 dwellings and 25,45%sgm
Eastern Link Road (Morth) employmeant)

Stocklake Link Road (Rural)
2021(a) Do Something 202 1{a) Do Nothing plus SEALR -
20271(b) Do Nothing 2021{a) Do Nothing plus: 2021{a) Do Nothing plus:

Eastern Link Road (South) Woodlands (74% of employment)
Southern Link Road Hampden Fields (60 dwellings)

Bermryfields (additional 125 dwellings)
Aylesbury East (additional 175 dwellings)

202 1(b) Do Something 2021(b) Do Nothing plus
SEALR

2036 Do Nothing 2021 (k) Do Nothing plus: 2021(bj Do Nothing plus:

A413/8418 Link Road Broughton (Full Build)
Aylesbury South West (Full Build)
South of Aylesbury (Full Build)
RAF Halton (Full Build)
Woodlands (Full Build)
Hampden Fields (Full Build)

Berryfields (Full Build)

Aylesbury East (Full Build)

2036 Do Something 2036 Do Nothing plus SEALR

The 2036 scenarios have now been updated in the Aylesbury Transport Model (ATM)
to ensure that development and background growth assumptions are consistent
across all live planning applications. A summary of the key committed developments
and infrastructure included within the 2036 scenarios is provided in Table 7 of the TAA
which is re-produced below.

Page 149



Table 7. Summary of Scenarios and Infrastructure and Committed Developments

Scenario Committed Infrastructure Committed Development
2036 Do Nothing Stoke Mandeville A4010 Realignment Broughton (Full Build)
Eastern Link Road (North) Aylesbury South West (Full Build)
Stocklake Link Road (Rural) South of Aylesbury (Full Build)
Eastern Link Road (South) RAF Halton (Full Build)
Southern Link Road Woodlands (Full Build)
A413/A418 Link Road Hampden Fields (Full Build)

Berryfields (Full Build)
Aylesbury East (Full Build)

2036 Do Something 2036 Do Nothing plus SEALR (As above)

Junction Modelling

The junctions agreed for assessment in the updated modelling are those that were
assessed in the original TA. These junctions are set out in Table 8 of the TAA which is
reproduced below.

Table B. Summary of Junctions to be Assessed
MNumber Junction 2038

1 A47 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesbury Road ¥
2 A471 Aston Clinton Road £ New Road v
3 A4 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (incorporating Broughton Lana)
4 A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 ( King Edward Avenue ¥
5 A41 Aston Clinton Road 7 Park Street f Tesco/ Walton Road X

6 A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road v
7 A413 Wendover Road / Camborne Avenue X

8 A413 Wendover Road / Silver Birch Way x

9 A413 Wendover Road / A4010 Station Road X

10 A4010 Station Road / B4443 Lower Road / A4010 Risborough Rpad X

11 B4443 Lower Road / Winterton Drive f Stoke Mandeville Hospital v
12 B4443 Lower Road / B444 3 Mandeville Road f Stadium Approach / Churchill Avenue ¥
13 A48 Oxford Road / Ellen Road f Thame Road South ¥
14 A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way v
15 B4443 Lower Road / Stoke Mandeville Relief Road / SEALR v
16 A413 Wendover Road / SEALR ¥
17 A418 / Eastern Link Road North ¥
18 Eastern Link Road North, North Roundabout v
149 Eastern Link Road Morth, South Roundabout ¥
20 Eastern Link Road South, North Roundabout v
21 Eastern Link Road South, South Roundabout v
22 Southem Link Road / New Road v
23 Southemn Link Road / Marroway v
24 A413 / Eascote Rd X

Page 150



The results of the updated modelling of each junction are discussed further below.

e Junction 1: A41 / A41 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesbury Road

This junction is currently a roundabout and has been modelled as a roundabout for
2021 scenarios but for the 2036 assessment year the roundabout is proposed to be
enlarged with additional approaches and signalised as part of the delivery of the
Eastern Link Road South (ELRs) that will be delivered through the Woodlands
development.

The TAA explains that the 2036 design of the A41 junction is being progressed
through detailed design which takes into account the traffic assessed within this TAA.
The A41 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesbury Road junction has been modelled using
TRANSYT for the 2036 assessment year. The TRANSYT model has been revised
since the TA was submitted, in line with the design evolution and is considered
acceptable. Flows have been checked and are correct.

Table 9. Junction 1: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesbury Road

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

MaxRFC ~ MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

Changes to junction layout

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS Max Q

TA 2036 Do Nothing 712.86% 11.50 76.56% 14.21

TA 2036 Do Something  77.82% 13.88 75.36% 12.46

2036 Do Nothing 70.83% 10.12 84.46% 15.27

2036 Do Something 17.77% 12.89 85.87% 14.90

The results shown in Table 9 of the TAA demonstrate that the junction will operate
within capacity in 2036 with the proposed scheme. The assessments have been
checked and are found to be acceptable. No further mitigation is therefore required.

e Junction 2: A41/ New Road/ MDA and Junction 3: A41/ Bedgrove

Both of these junctions are signalised junctions located approximately 400 metres
apart. Bedgrove / A41 is currently a staggered junction with Broughton Lane. A
mitigation scheme is proposed as part of the Hampden Fields and Woodlands
planning applications to divert Richmond Road to connect with Broughton Lane.

Page 151



BC previously stated: “The modelling of Junctions 2 and 3 should reflect the agreed
Hampden Fields and Woodlands mitigation, including the Broughton Lane link and
should be the combined model with the

New Road junction.”

Table 1 shows results of the analysis for 2021b. The TAA states that Junction 3 has
been coded in accordance with the model in the Hampden Fields TA, but lane lengths
and widths were not provided within the Hampden Fields TA therefore these have
been assumed by AECOM. The model is largely consistent with the agreed HF model,
with a slight change in the staging which is accepted. Flows have been checked and
are correct.

Table 1. Junction 2 & 3 A41 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (incorporating
Broughton Lane) / New Road
Junction 2 Junction 3
Scenarios AM Peak PM Peak AM Peak PM Peak

Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ

2021 (b) Do Nothing 68.4% 125 65.5% 255 65.7% 25.5 65.1% 213

2021 (b) Do Something 62.3%  11.0 55.2% 186 633% 227 60.1% 185

Table 1 above demonstrates that the proposed mitigated proposed layout will operate
within capacity in 2021 with the SEALR.

Table 10 below includes summary results for the Junction in 2036 with the mitigation
scheme. The link lengths and saturation flows are similar but not identical to those
used in the HF model. Saturation is generally lower in this model which makes it
robust and the model has therefore been accepted. The flows have been checked and
are correct.

The results show an improvement in the operation of the junction with the SEALR in
place.

Page 152



Table 10. Junction 3: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (incorporating
Broughton Lane)

Scenario AM Peak PM Peak

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS Max Q

Changes to junction layout

TA 2036 Do Nothing 102.4% 45.0 84.0% 26.6

TA 2036 Do Something 72.0% 15.9 69.4% 19.2

2036 Do Nothing 80.2% 22.9 101.8% 58.9

2036 Do Something 719.2% 20.8 77.5% 17.6

The TAA explains that if the improvements at the junction proposed by Hampden
Fields and Aylesbury Woodlands do not come forward as part of those developments,
a review will need to be undertaken to determine whether the SEALR scheme is
required to provide mitigation in this location.

The Highway Authority can confirm that the SEALR scheme would be required to
provide mitigation in this location if Hampden Fields and Woodlands do not come
forward. Any junction mitigation works to the Bedgrove /Broughton Lane junction
should be consistent with the mitigation measures agreed with Hampden Fields and
Woodlands. For clarity the layout of the improvement scheme is set out below;

DO WOT BCALE
1 100 PROFCAED PRIDAITY JUMCTION I OOMTE'T OF WIDER ARTA I VIS0 FROPCAED FRIDAITY JURCTION 15
—
-y
Y
\
b
!
Y
% N
b
"
Y L1
! \
\
%\
=
\ '\' T
s A% \
| u\l'.l
i i \
i G - 1 o
il ~ -~ 4 -
- ’ - 4 \
e ¢ /, i 1 B e ST—
’ # ff/ —
! \
1 / | ! ‘\\ o
; / o
i = -/ :
‘ Ak \
i ;
il i \
i F
§| ‘ortmmncs surewy. @nCram Cazmight 2017, A1 g v Liswncs rambar 100CROD T|||

Page 153



Junction 4: A41 / A4157/ King Edward Avenue

This is a staggered signalised junction. The model is the same as that produced for
the HF assessment and is accepted. The flows have been checked and are correct.

Table 2 demonstrates that in the 2021(a) scenario without Hampden Fields and
Woodlands (and ELRs) the SEALR increases the saturation. However, in the 2021 (b)
scenario with Hampden Fields and Woodlands the SEALR significantly reduces
saturation and queues.

In the 2021(a) scenario the junction would remain in capacity in the AM peak hour but
there would be a slight worsening of DoS in the PM peak which is already over
capacity. However, this scenario is unlikely to materialise as SEALR is likely to come
forward alongside Hampden Fields and Woodlands. The results are therefore
considered acceptable.

Table 2. Junction 4: A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 / King Edward Avenue

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max DoS Max Q MaxDoS Max Q
2018 Base 94.2% 35.3 88.7% 22.4
2021 (a) Do Nothing 79.6% 24.9 110.8% 78.1
2021 (a) Do Something 82.1% 29.6 118.6% 474
2021 (b) Do Nothing 83.2% 16.8 104.6% 57.3
2021 (b) Do Something 17.8% 20.8 96.0% 34.4

Table 12. Junction 4: A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 / King Edward Avenue

AM Peak PM Peak

Scenario

Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS Max Q

2036 Do Nothing  132.5% 205 157.7% 232.3

2036 Do Something 121.4% 142.3 149.9% 198.2

The results using the revised forecast flows illustrate that the implementation of
SEALR in the 2036 Do Something scenario will provide an improvement in queueing
and degree of saturation at the junction compared to the 2036 Do Nothing scenario.
Mitigation measures are therefore not required.

Page 154



e Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / Wendover Road / Stoke Road (Walton Street
Gyratory)

This junction takes the form of a signalised gyratory. The model that was agreed with
the Highway Authority in December 2020 has been used for both the 2021 and 2036
analyses. All flows have been checked and are correct.

Table 3 below demonstrates that SEALR provides an improvement at the junction in
2021.

Table 3. Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS Max Q

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021 (a) Do Nothing  114.5% 91.0 1026% 472

2021 (a) Do Something 1129% 748 97.0% 294

2021 (b) Do Nothing  108.8%  69.8 97.9% 29.1

2021 (b) Do Something 101.6%  35.2 92.8% 19.6

The output file in the TAA Appendices includes an analysis using the old version of the
model, however the results set out in Table 13 reflect the updated and agreed model.

Table 13 shows that, even though the 2036 Do Something scenario is above capacity,
the implementation of the SEALR in the 2036 Do Something scenario will provide an
improvement in queueing and delay at the gyratory compared to the 2036 Do Nothing
scenario. The impact is therefore considered acceptable.

Table 13. Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road

Scenario AM Peak PM Peak

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS MaxQ

TA 2036 Do Nothing  122.7% 758 1178% 698

TA 2036 Do Something 114.8% 804 1121% 86.9

2036 Do Nothing 121.6% 133.7 1052% 54.0

2036 Do Something 116.0% 974 99.3% 29.8

Page 155



Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road/Winterton Drive/Stoke Mandeville Hospital & Junction
12: B4443 Lower Road / B4443 Mandeville Road / Stadium Approach / Churchill
Avenue

The Lower Road / Winterton Drive / Hospital and the Lower Road / Mandeville Road /
Stadium Approach / Churchill Avenue junctions are currently roundabouts located very
close to each other. Section 5, page 26 of the TA assessed the impacts of the scheme
on this network in 2021 and concluded that the mitigation measures previously
proposed by Hampden Fields and Woodlands would offset the impacts of SEALR.

The mitigation scheme is set out again below for ease of reference.

Page 156



1]
' bt
L
%
=
X
i Y,
R
N
v
e W
=R
FAR
IRRILL
1LY
1
[Rr1]
14
R A L (]
R
FEERR!
! A A
i
1) [ g e
f |l¥ AL
"o
g 7 H e
G T 1 H
e LA i
rep i —— 'l.n_"‘ _c;'."._ l“:‘ %
D))/ S\
L - Y
i o 5 mimasnn
o b \\"\ 1
R e -3 -_x‘« i
ot o,
i) y s A= W 'L
\"\ i I;d- b (=%
Rl T W,
e e T AT Wy e
s e e R
i - o A % —
S TR vy R
1. A L Wy o
' - p— Vo
< W
Wiz
e
VR
] “
h s
LR L
Fi
)
il
-
-~
-~ oo
] |
~ i
L T Ll -ﬁ_\
-
DI e WA

The Highway Authority agrees that these works are necessary should SEALR be in
place without the continuation of the links roads through South West Aylesbury.

A 2036 model has been used in the TAA and is the same as that produced for the
Hampden Fields mitigation layout and has been agreed. The flows have been
checked and are correct.

Page 157



The applicant has provided a comparison of the Hampden Fields 2036 Do Minimum
scenario (without junction improvements) with the 2036 SEALR Do Something
scenario (without junction improvements). This comparison is shown in Table 16
below for junction 11.

Table 16. Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road / Winterton Road Stoke Mandeville Hospital - Hampden
Fields Do Minimum Comparison

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenaric

Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Max Q

Existing Roundabout - HF 2036 Do Minimum 112 187.4 1.13 166.5

2036 Do Something 0.90 8.9 1.03 65.8

The table above shows that the existing roundabout in 2036 without SEALR will
operate worse than the

2036 Do Something scenario with SEALR and without network improvements. This is
because the 2036 Do Something scenario includes the SW Aylesbury link road which
would negate the need for improvements to this part of the network.

The mitigation scheme proposed by Hampden Fields and Woodlands would therefore
be required only to mitigate traffic conditions with SEALR and without SW Aylesbury.
This is consistent with the conclusions drawn from the Woodlands and Hampden
Fields modelling. A proportionate contribution towards the mitigation measures should
therefore be provided by the applicant towards the Lower Road mitigation scheme
should it be necessary.

e Junction 13: A418 Oxford Road / Ellen Road

This junction takes the form of a roundabout. The junction geometry has previously
been agreed, the flows have been checked and are correct. The results show a slight
improvement in operation of the junction with the SEALR. The impact of the of the
scheme on this junction is therefore acceptable and no mitigation is therefore required.

Table 19. Junction 13: A418 Oxford Road / Ellen Road / Thame Road South

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.43 0.8 0.63 1.7
TA 2036 Do Something 042 0.7 0.57 1:3
2036 Do Nothing 0.56 1.3 0.73 2.7
2036 Do Something 0.53 1.1 0.69 2.2

Page 158



Junction 14: A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way

This junction is currently a four-arm roundabout but is proposed to come forward as a
five-arm roundabout delivered as part of the planning application for the South West
Aylesbury development (ref: 18/04346/A0P).

The TAA explains that the geometric parameters in this model have been updated
from the model used in the TA. We can confirm that the final layout of this junction has
not been agreed as the junction design will need to be updated by the SW Aylesbury
development. Flows have been checked and are correct.

Table 20. Junction 14: A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way

AM Peak PM Peak

Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Max Q

Changes to junction layot

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.93 12.2 0.98 254

TA 2036 Do Something  0.95 16.3 0.94 14.0

2036 Do Nothing 1.14 712 1.33 344.4

2036 Do Something 1.20 186.0 1.31 314.9

Table 20 shows that the junction will operate over capacity in the 2036 Do Nothing
scenario. The SEALR will slightly worsen the RFC and queue length in the AM peak
period but improve RFC and queue length in the PM peak period.

The junction design will need to be updated by the SW Aylesbury development to
accommodate all traffic demands arising from the VALP cumulative test, given that it
forms the main point of access to their development site. Mitigation by the applicant
for this application is therefore not required and it is expected that the design
produced by SW Aylesbury will operate within capacity.

Junction 15: B4443 Lower Road/SEALR/ Stoke Mandeville Relief Road

The B4443 Lower Road / Stoke Mandeville Relief Road / SEALR four-arm roundabout
does not currently exist on the network and forms part of the Proposed Scheme. It will
come forward as a three-arm roundabout when the Stoke Mandeville Relief Road,

delivered by HS2, is open, and as a four-arm roundabout following the opening of the
SEALR.

Page 159



This junction was previously modelled as a linked junction with the Wendover Road /
SEALR junction but has now been modelled as a single junction. The geometry has
been updated in line with design changes. The geometry has been checked and is
correct. The flows are also correct.

Table 21. Junction 15: B4443 Lower Road / Stoke Mandeville Relief Road / SEALR
AM Peak PM Peak

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.59 1.4 0.63 1.7

TA 2036 Do Something  0.68 2 041 2.4

2036 Do Nothing 0.64 1.8 0.65 1.9

2036 Do Something 0.84 50 0.83 4.4

Lane Simulation Results

2036 Do Nothing 0.99 162.2 1.00 248.8

2036 Do Something 0.97 58.5 0.88 71

We noticed that the lane simulation results in Table 21 do not match the output and
we therefore requested supplementary information which was submitted in a
Technical Note by AECOM on the 8™ January.

The Technical Note states “A review of the lane simulation output results included in
the Transport Assessment Addendum has been carried out alongside the results
stated in Table 21. It is observed that the results in Table 21 do not correlate
completely with the outputs. The output file has been reviewed against the model and
it is confirmed that the output file provided within the Transport Assessment
Addendum is correct and the information within Table 21 for the lane simulation
results are not wholly correct. The correct lane simulation results which should be
stated in Table 21 of the Addendum are set out in Table 1 below. *

Table 1. Junction15: B4443 Lower Road / Stoke Mandeville Bypass / SEALR Revised Lane Simulation Results
Table

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Max Q

2036 Do Nothing 0.99 219.0 1.00 251.8

2036 Do Something ~ 0.97 62.4 0.89 10.5

Table 2 shows larger queues in the Lane simulation 2036 Do nothing scenario and
slightly higher queue lengths in the Lane simulation of the Do Something scenario.

Page 160



The analysis shows that the junction can operate within capacity. However, the results
for the lane simulation version show queuing in the AM peak hour although it also
shows a significant improvement compared to the Do Nothing scenario. It is therefore
considered that the proposed roundabout operation is adequate.

e Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road/SEALR

The geometry has been updated in line with design changes and is accepted. The
flows have been checked and are correct.

A lane simulation version has also been provided, with the same geometry. The lane
allocation for the western junction appears to be consistent with the drawings. For the
eastern junction, the middle lane from the A413 north is coded as an ahead lane,
rather than ahead/left.

The analysis shows that the junction can operate within capacity. However, the lane
simulation results show that the junction is approaching capacity in 2036 with
developing queues. In determining the acceptability of the junction operation it should
be noted that this scenario includes the entire Local Plan development along with
background traffic growth, which may not fully materialise, given the changes to
working habits and travel patterns for example as a result of Covid. As such it is
therefore considered to be a worse case which may not materialise.

Table 22. Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road / SEALR
AM Peak PM Peak

C MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.76 3.1 0.66 1.9

TA 2036 Do Something  0.68 241 0.70 23

2036 Do Nothing 0.57 1.3 0.61 1.6

2036 Do Something 0.84 50 0.87 6.0

Lane Simulation Results

2036 Do Nothing 0.70 3.8 0.63 4.2

2036 Do Something 0.96 86.2 0.93 50.2

e Junction 17: A418/Eastern Link Road North

This junction has recently been constructed and is a three-arm signalised junction
delivered as part of the Aylesbury East Kingsbrook development.

Page 161



The model in the TAA is the same as that provided in May 2020 but is not consistent
with the current plans. We have recently agreed a slightly different model for the
Hampden Fields and Aylesbury Woodlands developments without a crossing on the
A418 North arm and a staggered crossing across the ELR.

The Technical Note submitted by AECOM on the 8" January 2021 provides updated
modelling with amended geometry. A review of the updated modelling shows that the
measurements are slightly different compared to the Hampden Fields model, as is the
coding, but unlikely to materially affect the results. The results for this junction are set
out in Table 2.

Table 2. Junction 17: A418 / Eastern Link Road Revised Results

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max DoS Max Q Max DoS Max Q

2036 Do Nothing 87.6% 24.6 86.3% 22.9

2036 Do Something  88.2% 21.4 83.2% 21.9

The results show that the junction operates within capacity in the 2036 DS scenario
and results in a slight reduction in queue lengths. No mitigation is therefore required
and the impact of the scheme is acceptable to the highway authority

Junctions 18: ELRn North (Village) Roundabout

This junction is proposed to come forward as a four-arm roundabout delivered as part
of the Aylesbury East Kingsbrook development. Hampden Fields have modelled this
junction as a three arm roundabout as they have not included a fourth arm which is
simply an agricultural access which had zero demand in the strategic model. The
remaining geometry of this roundabout is similar to the Hampden Fields model. Flows
have been checked and are correct.

We previously asked for the junction to be re-modelled with a pedestrian crossing. The
model has now been updated with zebra crossings reflecting the proposed design.
Table 6 shows that SEALR has minimal effect on the junction in the 2021(b) scenario.

Page 162



Table 6. Junctions 18 & 19: ELRn North (Village) roundabout and ELRn South (Stocklake)
roundabout
Junction 18 Junction 19

Scenario AM Peak PM Peak AM Peak PM Peak

Max RFC MaxQ Max RFC MaxQ Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Mas

2021 (b) Do Nothing 0.37 0.6 0.37 0.6 0.41 0.7 0.53 11

2021 (b) So Something  0.41 0.7 0.37 0.6 0.40 0.7 0.48 0.9

Table 24 demonstrates that the junction remains within capacity in the 2036 Do
Something scenario. Mitigation measures are therefore not required for this junction.

Table 24. Junction 18: ELRn North (Village) roundabout

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.43 0.8 0.61 1.6

TA 2036 Do Something  0.47 0.9 0.60 1.5

2036 Do Nothing 0.41 0.7 0.59 1.5

2036 Do Something 0.47 0.9 0.57 1.3

e Junction 19: ELRn South (Stocklake) Roundabout

This junction is proposed to come forward as a four-arm roundabout delivered as part
of the Aylesbury East Kingsbrook development. The geometry is similar to the
geometry used for the Hampden Fields application although it only had pedestrian
crossings on 2 arms as opposed to crossings on all four arms with the HF geometry. It
was requested that the model be amended to include crossings on all four arms.

The Technical Note by AECOM on the 8" January 2021 provides an amended
junction assessment and the results are shown in Table 3 below.

Table 3. Junction 19: ELRn South (Stocklake) Roundabout Revised Results

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Max Q

2036 Do Nothing 0.71 2.4 0.81 4.2

2036 Do Something  0.61 1.6 0.89 7.9

Page 163



The results show that the SEALR improves the operation of the junction in the AM
peak hour but there is a slight reduction in capacity in the PM peak hour and the
junction will operate marginally above practical capacity. However, the impact is not
considered significant and queue levels remain low. As such, the impact is acceptable
and no mitigation is required.

e Junction 20: ELRs North Roundabout

Both the ELR North roundabout (Junction 20) and the ELR South roundabout
(Junction 21) are Reserved Matter roundabouts associated with the Woodlands
planning application and no definitive layouts have been prepared. However, AECOM
have done some initial work on their designs and Table 26 shows that the ELRs North
Roundabout junction will operate within capacity in 2036 with SEALR. Mitigation is
therefore not required and the results are acceptable to the highway authority.

Table 26. Junction 20: ELRs North roundabout
_ AM Peak PM Peak
Max RFC MaxQ Max RFC MaxQ

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.83 48 0.72 2.6

TA 2036 Do Something  0.80 39 0.70 2.3

2036 Do Nothing 0.83 47 0.71 2.4

2036 Do Something 0.79 3.6 0.75 2.9

e Junction 21: ELRs South Roundabout

AECOM have carried out initial work on the design of this junction and geometry and
flows have been checked and are correct based on the information provided. Table 27
shows that the junction will operate within capacity in 2036 with the SEALR reducing
the RFC and queue lengths slightly. Mitigation is therefore not required and the results
are acceptable to the highway authority.

Table 27. Junction 21: ELRs South roundabout

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

TA 2036 Do Nothing 0.75 3.0 0.60 1.5

TA 2036 Do Something 0.76 3.1 0.61 1.6

2036 Do Nothing 0.74 2.9 0.58 1.4

2036 Do Something 0.75 3.0 0.60 1.5

Page 164



Junction 22: Southern Link Road / New Road

The junction was proposed to come forward as a four-arm signalised junction
delivered as part of the planning application for the Hampden Fields development.
Due to the capacity issues raised at this junction when using the revised strategic
model flows, the design team for the Hampden Fields application have amended the
junction design. The TAA states that this junction has been re-modelled with the
amended drawings and modelling information from Hampden Fields.

Table 28. Junction 22: Southern Link Road / New Road

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS Max Q

TA 2036 Do Nothing 90.2% 19.7 82.6% 201

TA 2036 Do Something 104.4% 47.0 87.8% 22.8

2036 Do Nothing 61.6% 17 72.5% 26.4

2036 Do Something 74.0% 27.2 88.1% 43.0

The model is largely the same as the Hampden Fields model, with slight differences in
the right turn storage available. There are also small differences in the lane lengths,
widths and radii.

Table 28 shows that, although queue length increases with the SEALR in the 2036 Do
Something scenario, the junction operates within capacity and mitigation is therefore
not required.

Junction 23: Southern Link Road / Marroway

The TAA explains that within the TA this junction was modelled as a roundabout,
which is in line with the proposals contained within the TA for the planning application
for the Hampden Fields development. However, due to the capacity issues with the
revised flows, Hampden Fields have now changed this junction to be a signalised T
junction. Drawings and modelling information have been provided to AECOM and the
junction has been re-assessed with the revised flows in the TAA.

Geometry and flows have been checked and are correct. Table 29 shows that the
junction will operate within capacity in 2036 with the link road. Therefore, no mitigation
is required and the results are acceptable to the highway authority.

Page 165



Table 29. Junction 23: Southern Link Road / Marroway Link Road

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS MaxQ

2036 Do Nothing 57.4% 13.4  448% 10.3

2036 Do Something 88.0% 344 88.8% 334

Junction 24: A413 / Eascote Road

The applicants state that, as part of the process of preparing the TA, comments made
at public consultation events were taken on board including one relating to the A413
Wendover Road / Eascote Road junction whereby concerns were raised in relation to
the impact of the Proposed Scheme on the ability to utilise this junction. Although this
junction had not originally formed part of the study area, an assessment of the impact
of the Proposed Scheme was carried out.

The modelling suggests that the junction operates over capacity in the existing
situation and will deteriorate further in future years with or without the addition of
SEALR.

Table 30. Junction 24: A413 Wendover Road / Eascote Road

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ
TA 2021 (a) Do Nothing 8.02 176.0 1.49 56.2

TA 2021 (a) Do Something 999999999 223.0 999999999 155.0

TA 2021 (b) No Nothing 3.07 215.6 2.29 1246

TA 2021 (b) Do Something 3.1 178.9 11.45 2328

The results show that in all the 2021 scenarios assessed, some form of improvement
works would be required.

A number of arrangements were considered within the TA and due to the heavy
northbound flows along the A413, it was considered that retaining a priority junction
but in the form of a left-in left-out arrangement would provide the best results within
the land available. This arrangement would result in the use of both the Camborne
Avenue and SEALR roundabouts for the purposes of u-turning.

Page 166



Table 31. Junction 24: A413 Wendover Road / Eascote Road - Left In/ Left Out Arrangement

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

TA 2021 (a) Do Something 1.50 117.3 115 35.2

TA 2021 (b) Do Something  0.71 2.4 0.79 36

2036 Do Something 1.52 125.4 1.61 143.1

Table 31 shows that the left in left out arrangement would result in the junction
operating significantly better than in the Do-Nothing scenarios. It is therefore
considered that this arrangement would provide an improvement and would mitigate
the impacts of SEALR.

In order to respond to 2036 traffic demands it is proposed that both the A413
Wendover Road/Cambourne Avenue and A413/Eascote Road Junction would be
signalised and linked such that they operate as one large junction rather than two
independent junctions. An indicative preliminary design has been derived by the
applicants and assessed using the 2036 Do Nothing and Do Something flows.

Page 167



Table 32 - Junction 7 & 24: A413 Wendover Road / Camborne Avenue signalised three-arm junction
and A413 / Eascote Road three-arm junction

Junction 7 Junction 24
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak AM Peak PM Peak

Max DoS Max Q Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS Max Q

2036 Do Nothing 171.5% 16.2 839% 216 73.0% 16.7 713% 150

2036 Do Something 85.8% 24.4 83.6% 20.8 87.5% 23.0 88.7% 24.4

This flows have been checked and are correct.

Page 168



The results illustrate that the indicative preliminary signalised junction design would be
sufficient to cater for the level of traffic identified for the 2036 Do Something scenario
and would therefore be an adequate mitigation should traffic flows reach the levels
identified for 2036 or a change of layout at the Camborne Road junction be required.

The TAA states that the 2036 flows are very robust and with changes in working
practices it is unlikely that the levels of traffic identified by 2036 would come forward in
the future. It is proposed that the traffic flows along the A413 Wendover Road would
be monitored and if flows were to reach the levels set out in the 2036 Do Something
scenario then Buckinghamshire Council would undertake a review to establish the
timing for the implementation of the signalisation schemes.

Summary

In summary the analysis set out in the TAA suggests that the SEALR would deliver
benefits to the transport network and fulfil part of the aims of the Aylesbury Transport
Strategy and VALP mitigation. The traffic impact of the SEALR is therefore considered
acceptable subject to the following mitigation measures;

« Commitment to the mitigation works to the Bedgrove / Broughton Lane junction;

« A413/ Eastcote Road left in Left out;

« A413 Wendover Road/Cambourne Avenue and A413/Eastcote Road Junction
signalising if required subject to monitoring traffic flows;

« Commitment to the Lower Road improvements to mitigate traffic impacts without
the SW Link Road

Response to concerns raised by Network Rail

Chapter 6 sets out a response to the concerns raised by Network Rail to the Public
Rights of Way (PRoW) and level crossing in the vicinity of the SEALR.

An existing PRoW runs east-west between Lower Road and Wendover Road to the
south of the SEALR. This comprises sections SMA 2/1 and SMA 2.2 from Lower Road
to the railway and SMA 2/3 between the railway and Wendover Road, with a
pedestrian level crossing at the railway.

The SEALR does not physically affect the PRoW or change the level of patronage at
the level crossing and Network Rail have not suggested that the SEALR will cause a
severe adverse impact on safety of the level crossing once operational. The TAA
therefore argues that it is not appropriate for the Proposed Scheme to close the level
crossing or to divert this PRoW.

Page 169



However, the TAA explains that passive provision for the future diversion of the PRoW
and closure of the level crossing has been added to the Proposed Scheme. The aim
of this is to reduce the cost and disruption of future diversion of the route by others.

The passive provision allows the PRoW to be diverted to utilise the SEALR bridge to
cross the railway, allowing the level crossing to be closed. Earthworks suitable for a
DDA compliant route for pedestrians and for cyclists have been included from the
maintenance track up to the footway / cycleway on the southern side of the
carriageway.

The passive provision in the form of earthworks is welcomed by BC.

Mindful of the above, | can now confirm that | have no objection to the proposed
development subject to the mitigation measures submitted with the application and
subject to conditions which will be advised.

Yours sincerely

Del Tester

Highways Development Management Planning Growth & Sustainability

Page 170



Directorate for Planning Growth & Sustainability
Buckinghamshire Council,

Walton Street Offices,

Walton Street,

Aylesbury

HP20 1UA

est, 2029

highwaysdm.av@buckinghamshire.gov.uk

0129
6 382416
www.buckinghams
hire.gov.uk
Development Management
(Aylesbury Area)
Planning, Growth & Sustainability
Buckinghamshire Council 10t June 2020
F.A.O. Catherine Kelham
Dear Catherine
Application Number: CC/0015/20
Proposal: New dual carriageway link road including: roundabout junction B4443

Lower Road, roundabout junction at A413 Wendover Road,
railway bridge, footway/cycleways, noise attenuation
barrier, street lighting, earthworks and landscaping
between B4443 Lower Road and A413

Location: Land Between The A413 Wendover Road and the B4443 Lower Road in
the Parishes of Stoke Mandeville, Weston Turville and
Aylesbury.

Thank you for your letter dated 23 April 2020 with regard to the above planning
application.

Background

The Vale of Aylesbury Local Plan (VALP) has been developed and a draft for
submission was issued for consultation in late 2017 and submitted to the Secretary of

Page 171



State in early 2018. An Examination in Public (EiP) was held in July 2018 and the
Inspector’s Interim Findings were published in August 2018. Discussions have
continued since and a decision is expected in 2019. The draft VALP identifies
Aylesbury as a major growth location for approximately 8,000 new homes.

The need for the proposed scheme has arisen through the development of High
Speed Two (HS2). The alignment of HS2 passes Aylesbury to the south west, and in
doing so will sever the A4010 Risborough Road south of Stoke Mandeville.

As part of the proposals for HS2, a new link road will be delivered to divert the A4010
around the west of Stoke Mandeville, connecting with the B4443 Lower Road further
north, via a new roundabout. This scheme is referred to as the Stoke Mandeville
Relief Road (SMRR). Traffic modelling has indicated that this re-alignment will cause
congestion at the Stoke Road gyratory (B4443 / A413 junction Stoke Road /
Wendover Road / Walton Street) within Aylesbury town centre, leading to increased
traffic, queuing and delays. Increased traffic on the B4443 arising from the proposed
SMRR is also likely to result in worsening air quality issues at the Stoke Road gyratory
which is a designated Air Quality Management Area (AQMA), due to high traffic levels
and emissions related to idling vehicle engines and queueing.

To address this, the proposed South East Aylesbury Link Road (SEALR) scheme will
provide a new road to connect the B4443 Lower Road with the A413 Wendover Road.
The proposed scheme programme anticipates opening at the same time as the
SMRR, to address the congestion issues.

The proposed scheme also contributes to a long-term vision to deliver an orbital route
around Aylesbury, together with proposed link roads that will be delivered through
large housing projects to the south east of Aylesbury, which are allocated in the
emerging VALP.

Planning History

There is no previous planning history for the site. The alignment of the road traverses
existing agricultural land between the A413 Wendover Road and B4443 Lower Road.

Proposed Development nearby

There are a number of large residential developments and infrastructure
improvements planned in the south Aylesbury area.

Planning application 19/01628/A0OP, 750 dwellings at Land east of Lower Road, is
located directly north and south of the site. This application is currently under
consideration.

Page 172



Towards the west, the site links to the Stoke Mandeville A4010 Realignment (Stoke
Mandeville Relief Road). The alignment of the proposed HS2 railway line will sever
the existing A4010 Risborough Road to the south of Stoke Mandeville. As part of the
HS2 scheme, an underpass under the HS2 railway line will be provided on the
existing A4010 Risborough Road for access to Stoke Mandeville from the south.

To the east of the development site is Land at Lower Road Stoke Mandeville, which
received outline planning permission for up to 190 residential dwellings in March 2017
and is currently being built.

To the north of the development site is application 16/04608/AOP Land off Lower
Road which received outline permission in November 2017 for 125 dwellings.

The Hampden Fields development, which includes a proposed link road (the Southern
Link Road) that will connect the A413 to the A41, is located east of the SEALR. This
site has a resolution to grant permission for 3,000 dwellings.

Aylesbury Woodlands development (1,100 dwellings) which received a resolution to
grant planning permission in October 2017, is located north of the A41.

To the east of the development site is application 18/04346/A0P, Land at South West
Aylesbury, submitted in December 2018, for 1,400 dwellings.

Pre-application Discussions

A Pre-application process was undertaken between 2017 and 2019. A Scoping Note
was prepared in 2017, and a response was sent out on 7" March 2017. The Highway
Authority commented in October 2018 on the first draft of the Transport Assessment,
which was submitted September 2018. A revised Draft TA was received in February
2019 and a second response was issued on the 19" July 2019. A second revised
Draft TA was received in September 2019 and a further meeting was conducted on
the 17t September 2019.

Comments on Submitted Transport Assessment

A Transport Assessment (TA) dated March 2020 was submitted by Aecom, on behalf
of the applicant, in support of this application.

Site Location and Access

The site is located south of Aylesbury and north of Stoke Mandeville. The alignment of
the road traverses existing agricultural land between the A413 Wendover Road and

Page 173



B4443 Lower Road. The London Marylebone to Aylesbury railway line bisects the site
in a north to south direction.

East of the site is the A413, Wendover Road, a wide two-way single carriageway road
with a shared cycle/footway adjacent to the western verge and a footway adjacent to
the eastern verge. The road is street lit and is subject to a 40 mph speed limit at the
location of the proposed SEALR junction. Immediately to the north of the proposed
scheme the speed limit of the A413 changes to 30mph as it enters the main built-up
area of Aylesbury.

To the west of the site area, the B4443 Lower Road runs in a broad north to south
direction between its junctions with the A413 at the Stoke Road Gyratory near
Aylesbury town centre to the north and the A4010 in Stoke Mandeville to the south.
Lower Road, in the vicinity of the scheme location, is a single carriageway road with
one lane running in each direction. Hatching separates the northbound and
southbound traffic streams. The road is street lit and subject to a 40mph speed limit.

A shared cycle/footway is provided on the eastern side of the Lower Road
carriageway, where a number of residential properties are also located which feature
individual driveway accesses. This footway/cycleway forms part of the Jetway cycle
route between Aylesbury and Stoke Mandeville.

Walking

The TA explains that there are a number of footways in the vicinity of the site.
Wendover Road has footways on both sides of the road with the footway on the
western side of the carriageway being a shared cycle/footway of approximately two
metres wide. The footway on the eastern side is also 2m wide. An uncontrolled
pedestrian crossing is provided on Wendover Road to the immediate north of the
proposed scheme featuring dropped kerbs, tactile paving and a pedestrian refuge
island. A further crossing is available to the south, at the roundabout to Stoke Grange.

On Lower Road, a shared cycle/footway is provided on the eastern side of the
carriageway only and forms part of the Jetway cycle route to Stoke Mandeville. This
footway is approximately 1.5 metres wide.

A number of Public Rights of Way (PRoW) pass through the scheme area. These
include:

Page 174



« SMA1/2, a bridleway which starts at Wendover Road immediately north of
the Stoke Grange roundabout, briefly heads west before turning south away
from the alignment of the proposed scheme towards Stoke Mandeville.

«  SMAZ2/1-2/3, a footpath which runs through the site in a broad east to west
direction closely following the alignment of the proposed scheme linking
Lower Road with Wendover Road. This footpath crosses the Aylesbury to
London Marylebone railway line at an uncontrolled level crossing. Stiles are
provided either side of the railway to control access to the Network Rail land.

« SMAS3/1-3/2, a footpath which runs through the site in a broad north to south
direction bisecting the alignment of the proposed scheme.

Pedestrian surveys of the PRoW network in the vicinity of the SEALR were conducted
in November 2018 to understand the volume of current usage and inform an
assessment of the impact of the proposed scheme on pedestrians. Usage during the
weekends was found generally higher than that during the week. Overall, the surveys
identified a low volume of pedestrians currently utilising the PRoWs in the vicinity of
the proposed scheme.

Aylesbury is one of the original six national Cycling Towns which was chosen by
Cycling England (now defunct) as a demonstration town to increase safety for cyclists
and promote and increase the number of people cycling within the town. This involved
the promotion of events and existing routes within the town as well as upgrading
existing facilities and providing new facilities including parking spaces, routes and
crossings.

As part of this, a network of nine cycleways, named the Gemstone Cycleway Network
were created which connect outlying villages with the residential and employment
areas of Aylesbury. Of the nine routes, two run south from the town centre, one, the
Jetway, runs towards Stoke Mandeville and the second, the Amberway, runs towards
Wendover. Both of these routes pass through the proposed scheme area utilising both
on and off road facilities provided along Wendover Road and Lower Road. In the
immediate scheme area, the routes take the form of shared cycle/footways on the
western side of Wendover Road and on the eastern side of Lower Road.

There are seven bus stops located within 400 metres of the proposed scheme and 3
within the site area. These are on Wendover Road at Silver Birch Way and Ranch
House on Lower Road.

The London-Aylesbury railway line bisects the proposed scheme at its approximate
mid-point. The closest railway station on this line is Stoke Mandeville which is located
approximately one kilometre south of the proposed scheme on Station Road. The
station is operated by Chiltern Railways with services generally operating seven days
a week.

Page 175



Personal Injury Collisions

The TA includes an extensive review of Personal Injury Collision (PIC) data on the
adjoining road network. The review concludes that there are no significant patterns for
the majority of incidents that have occurred when examining the contributory factors.
The recurring contributing factor on most of the links was related to driver error, with
failure to look properly the most commonly occurring factor of accidents that occurred
on the respective links. The TA states that it is not considered likely that the proposed
scheme will materially impact the pattern of collisions that have occurred and due to
their being no evidence of existing specific highway safety issues it is considered that
this assumption is reasonable.

Network Patterns

The existing road network in Aylesbury is formed of three main approaches, the A413,
A41 and A418. All routes meet in the town centre at junctions around the ring road
formed by the A41 and A4157. Traffic data from the countywide Strategic Model
suggests that the majority of arterial routes within Aylesbury are congested during
peak periods leading to poor journey times and reduced journey time reliability. The
most affected area is the Stoke Road gyratory which will be further impacted once the
new link road associated with HS2 comes forward, as without the proposed SEALR
the majority of traffic utilising the new link road would need to travel through the Stoke
Road gyratory.

The SEALR is being proposed to address this congestion as a result of HS2 whilst
forming part of the long term vision for Aylesbury as set out in the VALP and the
Aylesbury Transport Strategy to deliver an orbital route around the town.

Design

The proposed scheme will deliver a Link Road between the realigned A4010 junction
with the B4443, and the A413 Wendover Road, in the form of a two-lane dual
carriageway. The design speed is 70kph and the speed limit is set to be 40mph.

We are aware that there have been discussions between the applicant and the
promoters of the Hampden Fields site concerning the alignment of the road at the
connection with the Southern Link Road at the junction with Wendover Road. Before
finalising our review of this application, we will need to see evidence that any issues
associated with the road alignment in this location have been adequately addressed.

A four arm roundabout connecting Lower Road (B4443), the Stoke Mandeville Relief
Road and the

Page 176



SEALR will represent the western extents of the scheme. This roundabout will feature
an Inscribed Circle Diameter (ICD) of 69m and two circulatory lanes with two lane
approaches on all arms to accommodate the traffic flows anticipated within the future
forecast year of 2036. The roundabout and all approaches will be street lit. Pedestrian
and cycle provision will be provided around the northern and eastern sides of the
junction to tie in with existing facilities. Controlled crossing points will also be provided
on the northern and eastern arms.

The northern Lower Road arm includes a horizontal deflection approximately 60m
north of the roundabout. This horizontal alignment includes a 90m radius and
localised curve widening. We have concerns that this alignment is not in line with
Table 2.10 of CD 109 Highway Link Design (DMRB) and we require a justification as
to why there is a departure from DMRB standards.

Due to the new road alignment and location of the junction on Lower Road, dwellings
8-28 Lower Road will now be served by a cul de sac which runs parallel to the main
carriageway. No swept path drawings have been provided within the TA to
demonstrate that a refuse vehicle can enter and exit the cul de sac in a safe and
convenient manner. This will need to be provided in order to demonstrate that this is
an acceptable situation.

The link road will consist of a two lane dual carriageway and will be subject to a 40
mph speed limit. A shared use three metre wide footway / cycleway will run along the
northern side of the carriageway and a two metre footway will be provided along the
southern side. llluminated solar studs will be provided along the footway/cycleway on
the northern side of the carriageway.

A new bridge structure is proposed across the London to Aylesbury railway line which
bisects the SEALR approximately mid-way along its length. The structure itself will
feature a single span of 46.5m. This span has been developed to cross the entire
Network Rail corridor as well as to provide a north-south ecology corridor to the west
of the railway line. Adjacent to the bridge abutments space has been reserved for
maintenance access and to facilitate the movement of pedestrians and cyclists. This
will also permit the future aspiration for a cycle link between Stoke Mandeville Village
and Stoke Mandeville Hospital.

The SEALR will terminate at a roundabout junction on Wendover Road to the east.
This four arm roundabout will connect Wendover Road (A413), the Southern Link
Road (Through Hampden Fields) and the SEALR. This roundabout will feature an ICD
of 80m and three circulatory lanes with three lane approaches on all arms. The
roundabout and all approaches will be street lit. Pedestrian and cycle provision will be
provided around the northern and western arms of the junction to tie in with existing
facilities. Pedestrian only facilities will be provided around the eastern arm.

Page 177



Controlled crossing points will also be provided on the northern, western and eastern
arms.

Road Safety Audit

A Stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA) has been undertaken of the scheme and this
audit revealed a number of issues. These included concerns regarding the straight
alignment of the proposed link road, which may result in vehicles travelling at
excessive speeds, concerns regarding existing accesses, excessive widths on the
roundabout entry and exit lanes and lack of cycle facilities.

A Designers Response was prepared to address the issues raised in the RSA. With
regards to the road being too straight the response explained “The road has been
curved as far south as possible and further speed restriction introduced through the
vertical alignment. It is therefore considered that the design has responded to the
potential for high vehicle speeds as much as possible within the constraints of the
project. No further change to the horizontal alignment of the scheme is considered
feasible.” We understand that the alignment of the road is fixed to a certain extent by
the need to tie into junctions with connecting roads at either end and the location of
the bridge over the railway line.

The RSA stated that “the existing access to County Farm Cottages is located
approximately 35m to the south of the proposed southern exit from the eastern
roundabout. This may result in rear end shunt type collisions between vehicles
slowing down to turn left into the farm access and other road users continuing
southbound on Wendover Road within the nearside lane, unless a sufficient level of
forward visibility is provided. Additionally, overhanging or excessive vegetation in this
location may block visibility splays for vehicles approaching and exiting the access,
resulting in collisions between emerging vehicles and main line traffic. As vehicles
exiting the roundabout will be concentrating on merging from two lanes to one at this
point this could exacerbate this concern.”

The Designers Response states that the forward visibility will be maximised in this
location to assist motorists assessing turning vehicles ahead. Consideration will be
given to signing when the signing strategy is developed at detailed design. The
Highway Authority wold like to see confirmation on the level of forward visibility that
will be achieved once it has been maximised and we are satisfied that the issue of
signing can be dealt with as part of the development of the signage strategy.

The RSA mentions that “the proposed roundabout circulatory at this location is to have
three circulating lanes, with all exit arms only having two lanes. This may lead to
conflicting manoeuvres between circulating vehicles when attempting to exit the
roundabout circulatory.”

The Designers Response explains that the roundabout geometry has been informed
by junction capacity assessments. The number of entry lanes is dictated by this

Page 178



modelling. At the detailed design stage a signing strategy will be developed and it is
considered that this issue can be addressed as part of that strategy.

The RSA states that “off-road shared cycle facilities are provided north, east and west
of the proposed roundabout as part of the scheme. However, there are no such
facilities proposed to the south of the western roundabout alongside the southbound
carriageway.” The design of the western roundabout has now been amended to
include a cycle facility at the southern section of the roundabout which is acceptable.

BC is satisfied that the remaining issues in the RSA will be considered at the detailed
design stage as explained in the Designers Response.

Traffic Impact

It was previously agreed that the following strategic modelling Scenarios needed to be
considered:

Table 11 - Summary of Scenarios and Infrastructure and Committ Jevelopments

nario Committed Infrastructure Committed Development

2021(z) Do Nothing Stoke Mandeville A4010 Bemryfields (1,901 dwellings)
Realignment Aylesbury East (617 dwellings and 25,45%sgm
Eastern Link Road {Morth) employment)

Stocklake Link Road (Rural)
2021(2) Do Something 202 1{a) Do Mothing plus SEALR -
2021(b) Do Nothing 2021{a) Do Nothing plus: 2021(a) Do Nothing plus:

Eastern Link Road (South) Woodlands {74% of employment)
Southern Link Road Hampden Fields (60 dwellings)

Bemyfields (additional 125 dwellings)
Aylesbury East (additional 175 dwellings)

2021(b) Do Something 2021(b) Do Mothing plus
SEALR

2036 Do Nothing 2021(b) Do Mothing plus: 2021{b) Do Mothing plus:

A413/4418 Link Road Broughton {Full Build)
Aylesbury South West (Full Build)
South of Aylesbury (Full Build)
RAF Halton (Full Build)
Woodlands (Full Build)
Hampden Felds (Full Build)

Berrytields (Full Build)

Aylesbury East (Full Build)

2036 Do Something 2036 Do Nothing plus SEALR

The TA explains that a two stage assessment methodology has been adopted. Initially
an assessment has been undertaken to determine where changes in traffic flows on
the highway network are anticipated as a result of the proposed scheme. Where an
increase in traffic flow at an arm of a junction is anticipated to be more than 5% in the
peak hours assessed, a junction capacity assessment has been identified as being
required to be undertaken.

The TA explains that this work has been conducted and is attached in Appendix H of
the TA.

Page 179



Table 13 on page 58 of the TA shows a summary of the impact. The table has been
compared with Appendix H of the TA. Although not shown on the table, Junction 2:
A41/ New Road also has a more than 5% increase in the 2021A scenarios and these
should therefore also be subject to an assessment, although the AM and PM flows are
identical so it is likely that there is a mistake in the Appendix H Table here. The
applicant is therefore requested to review the flows and make any necessary
corrections.

Following discussions between the Highway Authority and the Applicant, the
percentage impact at the junctions on the Southern Link Road and Eastern Link Road
was also assessed.

Junction 1: A41 / A41 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesbury Road

The base year junction has been modelled using the ARCADY module of the
Junctions9 suite, and the future year junction has been modelled using TRANSYT.
The geometry for the base year model appears to be reasonable, while the future year
model appears to be the same as that produced for the Aylesbury Woodlands
development. The flows have been checked and are correct.

Table 15 in the TA summarises the results of the analyses and suggests that the
junction can operate within capacity in all situations. Mitigation measures are therefore
not required.

n 1: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesh

2018 Base 0.65 1.9 0.63 1.7
2021(a) Do Nothing 0.70 2.4 0.75 30
2021(a) Do Something 0.72 2.5 0.75 3.0
i i v
2021(b) Do Nothing 49.73% 6.65 61.58% B.29
2021(b) Do Something 56.83% 7.50 73.10% 12.85
2036 Do Nothing T2.86% 11.50 T6.56% 14.21
2036 Do Something  77.82% 13.88 75.36% 12.46

Page 180



Junction 2: A41/ New Road/ MDA and Junction 3: A41/ Bedgrove

The TA states that “within the Hampden Fields TA, the A41/Broughton Lane/Bedgrove
and A41/New Road junctions are all modelled within a single Linsig model. This
approach has been replicated within this TA.”. However, the TA is slightly confusing
as Junction 3 is modelled separately with the mitigation in Table 16 and as a linked
Linsig model with New Road in Table 17. Both models do not have the new link road
to the north off Broughton Lane included. The modelling of Junctions 2 and 3 should
reflect the agreed Hampden Fields and Woodlands mitigation, including the
Broughton Lane link and should be the combined model with the New Road junction.

With regards to the model of the existing situation, no flows are shown from Richmond
Road in the 2021b and 2036 model runs, although it does have a stage for the phase,
so the model provides capacity for some vehicles to use this approach. The flow from
Broughton Lane (C) to the A41W (D) has been coded as 161 rather than 261 in the
2036 DS AM peak model. This needs to be amended and the modelling needs to be
re-submitted.

The 2021b and 2036 future year scenarios have been modelled using the proposed
layout that is secured as part of the planning permissions for the Aylesbury
Woodlands development (ref:16/01040/AOP) and Hampden Fields development
(16/00424/A0P). This is acceptable.

[able 16 - Junction 3: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (incorporating Broughton
Lane)
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak
Max DoS Max Q Max DoS Max Q
2018 Base 126.3% 17.2 130.8% 102.2
e @ b 247.2% 240.0 170.1% 195.5
Nothing
02 Nallo 259.2% 2547  1966% 2300
Something
Changes tojunction layout
2021(b) Do 66.0% 14.8 59.2% 15.3
Nothing
2021(b) Do 58.5% 12.7 51.8% 115
Something

2036 Do Nothing  102.4% 45.0 84.0% 26.6

2036 Do 72.0% 15.9 69.4% 19.2
Something

Table 16 shows that in the 2021(a) scenarios (no Woodlands), the junction exceeds
capacity, but the mitigation model improves the situation. The junction is forecast to

Page 181



operate over-capacity in the 2036 Do Nothing scenario with performance improving as
a result of implementing the SEALR.

The model of the mitigation proposed as part of the Hampden Fields and Aylesbury
Woodlands development is based on the agreed LINSIG model but does not include
the new link road to the north off Broughton Lane. The flows have not been included
in the output file, so it has not been possible to check them. However, it is not
necessary to re-model this option as the junction needs to be assessed as a
combined model with the New Road junction.

The combined model includes the New Road / MDA junction but again it does not
include the new link road to the north off Broughton Lane. The modelling of Junctions
2 and 3 should reflect the agreed Hampden Fields and Woodlands mitigation,
including the Broughton Lane link and should be the combined model with the New
Road junction.

Table 17 shows that in both the 2021(b) scenarios, the junctions are forecast to
operate within capacity. The junction is forecast to operate near capacity in the 2036
Do Nothing scenario with performance improving as a result of implementing the
SEALR. The TA states that it is therefore considered that no mitigation is required at
this location.

Table 17 - Junction 2 & 3 A41 Aston Clinton Road / New Road (including S278 improvement) and A41
Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (excluding Broughton Lane improvement)
Junction 2 Junction 3
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak AM Peak PM Peak
Max DoS Max Q Max DoS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ

2021(b) Do 70.7% 12.3 64.5% 23.7 73.9% 25.3 75.5% 20.1

Nothing
2021(b) Do 62.3% 11.0 56.7% 8.2 70.9% 23:9 69.2% 19.2
Something

2036 Do 84.2% 25.2 83.9% 26.6 89.3% 42.0 87.1% 457

Nothing

2036 Do 70.4% 17.0 68.5% 13.8 79.1% 35.2 71.1% 40.5
Something

There appears to be some discrepancies with the traffic flows in the LINSIG model.
For instance, for the 2021b DM AM Peak, the model has the flow from Bedgrove (C)
to A41W (F) as 119, with Bedgrove (C) to New Road (G) as 14. The right turn from C,
which includes both of these movements is 394 on the stick diagram. Similarly, the
flows from Broughton Lane to the A41W and New Road appear to be low. The flows
from the A41 west also appear to be high. There are similar discrepancies in the PM
peak flows.

Page 182



Total flows from F (A41 east approach) in the model are 1011 for the 2021b DS AM
Peak model, whereas the stick diagrams suggest it should be 684.

The traffic flows used in the model should therefore be reviewed and updated as
appropriate.

The March 2020 Transport Assessment produced a different set of results for the
combined model than those presented in the previous Transport Assessment.
Clarification needs to be provided to confirm what changes have been made to the
model in order to achieve the improved results set out below.

The TA explains that if the improvements proposed at the junction by Hampden Fields
and Aylesbury Woodlands do not come forward as part of the developments
mentioned, a review will need to be undertaken to determine whether the SEALR
scheme is required to provide mitigation in this location.

The Highway Authority can confirm that the SEALR scheme would be required to
provide mitigation in this location if Hampden Fields and Woodlands do not come
forward. Any junction mitigation works to the Bedgrove /Broughton Lane junction
should be consistent with the mitigation measures agreed with Hampden Fields and
Woodlands.

Junction 4: A41 / A4157/ King Edward Avenue

The LINSIG model is the same as that produced for the Aylesbury Woodlands
planning application, although there is a different cycle time. The geometry and flows
have been checked and are correct.

The mitigation model is also the same as that produced for the Aylesbury Woodlands
and Hampden Fields applications. The flows appear to be generally correct, although
the 2021b DM PM flow from D to C is coded as zero and should be 15. This needs to
be updated.

Table 18 in the TA demonstrates that the junction currently operates near capacity
and is forecast to do so in both 2021(a) scenarios (No Woodlands). In the 2021(b)
scenarios, the change in layout results in an improvement of performance in both the
AM and PM peak hours, with overall capacity below 90%. Junction performance
operates above capacity with 92.2% saturation in the AM peak hour and 91%
saturation in the PM peak hour in the 2036 Do Something scenarios but the SEALR
does not affect queues.

Page 183



It is agreed that the results show that if the junction improvements are not brought
forward by the Aylesbury Woodlands or Hampden Fields development then they will
need to be brought forward as part of the SEALR instead.

Table 18 - Junction 4: A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 / King Edward Avenue
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak
Max DoS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ
2018 Base 97.6% 252 88.6% 16.9
2021(a) Do Nothing 97.4% 254 85.0% 14.4
20271(a) Do Something 99.3% 29.5 85.1% 14.0
Changes to junction layout

2021(b) Do Nothing 83.6% i i 85.0% 12.3
2021(b) Do Something 83.2% 10.5 83.5% 10.9
2036 Do Nothing 88.8% 11.9 91.2% 25.2
2036 Do Something 92.2% 109 91.0% 25.2

e Junction 5: A41 Aston Clinton Road/Park Street/Tesco/\Walton Road

The junction has been modelled using the ARCADY module of Junctions 9. The
model is consistent with that produced for the Aylesbury Woodlands development.
The flows have been checked and are generally correct, although the flow from Park
Street to Walton Road in the 2021a DS PM is coded as 276 instead of 254, giving a
robust result.

The results are summarised in Table 19 of the TA, copied below, and show that the
junction can operate within capacity in 2021. Mitigation measures are therefore not
required. Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a single arm and
were therefore not assessed.

Table 19 - Junction 5: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Park Street / Tesco / Walton Road
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak
Max DoS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ
2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(a) Do Nothing 0.76 3.0 0.63 7
2021(a) Do Something 0.80 4.0 0.59 1.4

2021(b) Do Nothing

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Something

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2036 Do Nothing

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2036 Do Something

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

Page 184



Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / Wendover Road / Stoke Road (Walton Street
Gyratory)

The model is similar, but not the same as the model agreed and used to test and
assess the Hampden Fields development. The Hampden Fields LINSIG network
includes Walton Green and a two lane exit to the south on Wendover Road. However,
the saturation flows and signal data in the model appear to be broadly consistent with
the agreed Hampden Fields model, although they use different cycle times. An
explanation as to why the model is not consistent with the Hampden Fields model is
required.

The traffic flows have been checked and some appear to have been omitted from the
model, specifically those relating to arrivals and departure from Walton Green and u-
turning flows from Walton Street. This will result in the model overestimating the
capacity of the junction and therefore needs be corrected to ensure a robust result.

The summary table included below shows that the junction is anticipated to operate
over capacity in all scenarios. In 2021 (a) and 2036 the Do Something scenario is an
improvement on the Do Nothing scenario. In the 2021 (b) scenario the addition of the
proposed scheme results in an improvement of performance in the AM peak but a
slight worsening in the PM peak. Junction performance improves in the 2036 Do
Something scenario with saturation decreasing although queues increase slightly.
Overall, the results demonstrate that the SEALR contributes to relieving congestion in
this location, which leads to the conclusion that mitigation measures are therefore not
required. We do however require the explanation as to why the model is not
consistent with the Hampden Fields model, as detailed above, before we can be
satisfied with these results.

Table 20 - Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road

Scenario AM Peak PM Peak

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing 1354% 1676 1258% 1257

2021(a) Do Something 124.4% 1193 116.9% 98.5

2021(b) Do Nothing 128.5%  142.1 126.7%  131.7

2021(b) Do Something 107.3% 49.0 1283% 136.3

2036 Do Nothing 122.7% 75.8 117.8% 69.8

2036 Do Something ~ 114.8% 804  1121%  86.9
Junction 7: A413 Wendover Road/Cambourne Avenue

The junction has been modelled using the ARCADY module of Junctions 9. The
model is the same as that used for the Hampden Fields development.

Page 185



The results illustrate that the junction is operating within capacity in the AM and PM
peak hours in 2018 with minimal queuing. In the 2021(a) Do Nothing scenario, the
junction is shown to be operating at or close to capacity. In the Do Something
scenario, the RFC and queueing increases and the junction exceeds capacity.

In the 2021(b) scenario, following the opening of the Eastern Link Road (South) and
the Southern Link Road, the performance of the junction improves and is further
improved with the opening of the SEALR in the AM peak hour.

Should the Hampden Fields and Aylesbury Woodlands developments not come
forward, additional mitigation will be required in this location to accommodate the
SEALR on the highway network.

Table 21 - Junction 7: A413 Wendover Road / Camborne Avenue
AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ
2018 Base 0.56 13 0.71 2.4

2021(a) Do Nothing 0.84 5 0.85 5.6

2021(a) Do Something 0.92 10.7 1.02 63.5

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.68 2.1 0.67 2.0

2021(b) Do Something 0.62 16 0.72 2.6

2036 Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2036 Do Something Not Assessed Not Assessed

e Junction 8: A413 Wendover Road/Silver Birch Way

The junction has been modelled using the ARCADY module of Junctions9 and the
model is the same as that used for the Aylesbury Woodlands application. The flows
have been checked and are correct. The results of the analysis show that the junction
can operate within capacity in the two situations that have been modelled with the
SEALR providing an improvement. Mitigation measures are therefore not required.
Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a single arm and were
therefore not assessed.

Page 186



Table 22 - Junction 8: A413 Wendover Road / Silver Birch Way

Scenario

PM Peak

Vax RFC  Max Q

Max RFC

Max Q

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(a) Do Nothing 0.80 4.0 0.66 1.9
2021 (a) Do Something 0.74 2.9 0.62 1.6

2021(b) Do Nothing

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Something

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2036 Do Nothing

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2036 Do Something

e Junction 9: A413 Wendover Road/A4010 Station Road

The junction has been modelled using the ARCADY module of Junctions9 and the
model is broadly the same as that used for the Aylesbury Woodlands application. The
model has been set up for the flows to be input as vehicles. This has been done for
the 2018 scenarios but flows for the 2021 Do Nothing and Do Something models have
been input in PCU’s. This will result in the model overestimating the traffic volumes for
these scenarios. It is likely that the junction will operate with more capacity than has
been modelled for both of the 2021 situations. The results suggest that the SEALR will
improve the operation of the junction and mitigation measures are therefore not
required.

Table 23 = Junction 9: A413 Wendover Road / A4010 Station Road

Scenario AM Peak PM Peak
Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Max Q

2018 Base 0.83 4,6 0.87 6.1

2021(a) Do Nothing 0.93 10.6 1.14 77.8

20217(a) Do Something 0.80 3.9 0.82 4.4
2021(b) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021 (b) Do Something Not Assessed Not Assessed
2036 Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed
2036 Do Something Not Assessed Not Assessed

e Junction 10: A4010 Station Road/B4443 Lower Road/A4010 Risborough Road

The junction has been modelled using the ARCADY module of Junctions9. The
junction has been modelled as a standard roundabout, whereas it is a mini

roundabout.

Page 187



Table 24 demonstrates that SEALR would improve the operation of the roundabout.
Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a single arm and were
therefore not assessed.

Table 24 - Junction 10: A4010 Station Road / B4443 Lower Road / A4010 Risborough Road
AM Peak PM Peak
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2018 Base 0.64 1.7 0.56 1.3
2021(a) Do Nothing 0.37 06 0.33 05
2021(a) Do Something 0.25 03 0.24 0.3
2021(b) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(b) Do Something Not Assessed Not Assessed
2036 Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed
2036 Do Something Not Assessed Not Assessed

e Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road/Winterton Road/Stoke Mandeville Hospital

The B4443 Lower Road / Winterton Road / Stoke Mandeville Hospital junction has
been modelled for the 2021b and 2036 scenarios as a reduction in traffic flow is
anticipated in the other scenarios considered. For these scenarios, the junction has

been modelled using a proposed layout that has been secured as part of the planning

permissions for the Aylesbury Woodlands development and Hampden Fields
development.

It should be noted that The Hampden Fields model was run with lane simulation,
whereas this model has not. To be consistent with the Hampden Fields analysis, it
needs to be run with the lane simulation option as a sensitivity test.

The results of the analysis are summarised in Table 18 of the TA and show that in
2036 with the SLR and ELR complete, the junction will be able to operate within
capacity. However, in 2021b the junction will go significantly over capacity in the PM

peak hour. This is the scenario with the Southern and Eastern Link Roads but without

the A413/ A418 link. As planning permission for this link and associated development
is not imminent a suitable additional mitigation measure (on top of the HF mitigation)
is required.

Page 188



Table 18 - Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road / Winterton Road / Stoke Mandeville Hospital

’.'_[“'] :‘ a L" F."‘l F'I‘:
Scenario
Max RFC MaxQ Max RFC MaxQ

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2027 (a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something  Not Assessed Not Assessed

Changes to junction layout

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.83 4.9 0.99 30.6

2021(b) Do Something 0.90 8.4 1.07 105.7

2036 Do Nothing 0.77 3.3 0.72 2.6

2036 Do Something 0.80 3.9 0.73 2.6

Junction 12: B4443 Lower Road / B4443 Mandeville Road / Stadium Approach /
Churchill Avenue The base and 2021a scenarios have been modelled with the
existing junction, while the 2021b and 2036 have been modelled with the proposed
improvement measure proposed as part of the Aylesbury Woodlands and Hampden
Fields developments.

The base model of the northern junction is the same as that modelled in the Hampden
Fields and Aylesbury Woodlands cumulative assessment, except for the fact that the
flare length on the B4443 N is 52 metres rather than 63.9 metres. As this is lower than
the agreed model, it will provide a robust analysis. The Hampden Fields model
included lane simulation; this needs to be included as a sensitivity test.

The results illustrate that the junction is anticipated to operate above capacity in both
the 2021(a) scenarios, with the existing layout. With the proposed layout
implemented, the junction is anticipated to operate within capacity in both the AM and
PM peak hours in the 2021(b) and 2036 scenarios assessed with minimal queuing.

Should the Hampden Fields and Aylesbury Woodlands developments not come
forwards additional mitigation will be required in this location to accommodate the
SEALR on the highway network.

Page 189



Table 19 - Junction 12: B4443 Lower Road / B4443 Mandeville Road / Stadium Approach / Churchill
Avenue

) AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Max Q
2018 Base 0.66 2.0 0.76 3.1
2021(a) Do Nothing ~ 9999899999.00 51.3 1.02 41.0
2021(a) Do Something 2.16 24.4 0.99 253
Changes to junction layout
2021(b) Do Nothing 0.80 4.0 0.78 3.6
2021(b) Do Something 0.73 2.7 0.75 3.0
2036 Do Nothing 0.63 1 0.63 1
2036 Do Something 0.67 2.0 0.55 12

e Junction 13: A418 Oxford Road / Ellen Road

The A418 Oxford Road/Ellen Road/Thame Road south junction was modelled using
the ARCADY module of Junctions9. The geometry appears to be appropriate. The
flows have been checked and appear to be correct.

The results are summarised in Table 20 of the TA and show that the junction can
operate within capacity in the situations modelled. Mitigation measures are therefore
not required. Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a single arm
and were therefore not assessed.

Table 20 - Junction 13: A148 Oxford Road / Ellen Road / Thame Road South

AM Peak PM Peak

Scenario

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2018 Base

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.58 14 0.71 25
2021(b) Do Something 0.51 1.1 0.68 2.1
2036 Do Nothing 0.43 0.8 0.63 1.7
2036 Do Something 0.42 0.7 0.57 1.3

e Junction 14: A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way

The existing junction is a four-arm roundabout, but it is proposed to come forward as a
five-arm roundabout delivered as part of the planning application for the South West
Aylesbury development (ref: 18/04346/A0P). This proposed layout has been used to
assess the junction in 2036.

Page 190



The model geometry is similar, but not identical to that produced for the Transport
Assessment for Land at South West Aylesbury. There is a discrepancy with the ICD
values, which appear to have been input alongside the wrong approaches to the
junction. This junction needs to be re-modelled with the correct geometry.

The results show a slight worsening of performance in the AM peak with an
improvement in performance in the PM peak, however at stated above, the junction
needs to be remodelled with the correct geometry.

Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a single arm and were
therefore not assessed.

Table 21 - Junction 14: A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

xRFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something  Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Something  Not Assessed Not Assessed

Changes to junction layout

2036 Do Nothing 0.93 12.2 0.98 254

2036 Do Something 0.95 16.3 0.94 14.0

Junction 15: B4443 Lower Road/SEALR/ Stoke Mandeville Relief Road

This junction does not currently exist on the network; however, it will come forward as
a three-arm roundabout once the HS2 delivered Stoke Mandeville Relief Road is
open, and as a four-arm roundabout following the opening of the SEALR. The junction
has been assessed as the four-arm roundabout proposed for the SEALR as it is
currently intended that HS2 would deliver the SEALR proposed roundabout as part of
the Stoke Mandeville Relief Road. Traffic flows for the eastern arm (SEALR) have
been removed in the Do Nothing Scenarios.

The junction has been modelled as a linked ARCADY model with Junction 16 SEALR/
A413 Wendover Road. The geometry has been checked and generally looks
appropriate and the junction has now been modelled with the pedestrian crossing
function enabled. The traffic flows have been entered in passenger car units rather
than vehicles and therefore the models are likely to underestimate the capacity of the
junction and the results are therefore considered to be robust.

Page 191



Table 22 - Junction 15: B4443 Lower Road / Stoke Mandeville Relief Road/ SEALR
AM Peak PM Peak

Scenario

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021 (a) Do Nothing 0.61 1.5 0.54 1.2

2021(a) Do Something 0.63 1.7 0.73 2.7

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.63 1.7 0.56 1.3

2021(b) Do Something  0.77 3.4 0.79 3.7

2036 Do Nothing 0.59 1.4 0.63 1

2036 Do Something 0.68 2.1 0.71 24

The results show that the junction will operate with a significant amount of spare
capacity and mitigation measures are therefore not required.

e Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road/SEALR

It has previously been agreed that this junction will be modelled as a three-arm
roundabout with just SEALR and a four arm roundabout in a cumulative scenario with
Hampden Fields and the Southern Link Road. The geometry has been checked and
the junction has now been modelled with the pedestrian crossing function enabled.

Table 30 - Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road / SEALR

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ
2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something 0.98 26.0 0.72 2.6

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.71 25 0.56 1.3

2021(b) Do Something  0.70 22 0.73 2.6

2036 Do Nothing 0.76 3.1 0.66 1.9

2036 Do Something 0.68 2.1 0.70 2.3

The proposed roundabout would operate within capacity in all scenarios except the
2021a AM peak (no Woodlands and associated infrastructure). In this scenario a
maximum RFC of 0.98 is recorded with a queue of 26 vehicles. The TA states that,
as performance improves in all other scenarios, the results are considered

Page 192



acceptable. However, it is our view that further justification is required as to how this
can be acceptable for a new junction on the highway network.

Junction 17: A418/Eastern Link Road North

The junction is currently under construction and will be a three-arm signalised junction
delivered as part of the planning application for the Aylesbury East (Kingsbrook)
development (ref: 10/02649/A0P). It was modelled as a TRANSYT for the Aylesbury
Woodlands development, but has been modelled using LINSIG for the SEALR
application.

The model suggests a slightly different layout than was modelled for the Aylesbury
Woodlands development, where the outside lane from the A418S has been changed
from an ahead/right turn lane to a right turn lane only, while the left turn lane from the
ELR has been changed to a short lane. There are also some minor differences in the
intergreen timings and geometry. A plan should be provided showing any changes
that have been made and a justification of any differences should be provided. The
flows have however been checked and are correct.

This junction is expected to approach full saturation in 2036 and this is worsened
slightly in the AM peak period by the application. However, the TA argues that the
results from Table 31 assume a pedestrian phase in every cycle which is unlikely as
pedestrian flows are likely to be relatively low here. They have therefore also
modelled the junction without a pedestrian phase, Table 32, which shows the junction
to have a sufficient amount of spare capacity. Other scenarios did not have an
increase of 5% or more on a single arm and were therefore not assessed.

Page 193



Table 31 - Junction 17: A418/ ELR signalised junction

: AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max DoS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Nothing 95% 15:1 94% 189

2021(b) Do Something  73% 14.2 12% 16.5

2036 Do Nothing 98% 35.2 97% 34.7

2036 Do Something 99% 38.2 97% 32.7

Table 32 - Junction 17: A418 / ELR signalised junction

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max DoS MaxQ Max DoS Max Q
2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something  Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Nothing 65% 11.2 63% 14.8

2021(b) Do Something 63% 10.0 60% 14.0

2036 Do Nothing 82% 18.3 82% 18.9

2036 Do Something 84% 18.5 81% 18.8

We would like to see the junction modelled with a pedestrian phase every 3 cycles
which is likely to be a more likely reflection of the use of the pedestrian crossing. We
can then confirm our view on whether mitigation is required.

e Junctions 18: ELRn North (Village) Roundabout

The junction is proposed to come forward as a four-arm roundabout delivered as part
of the planning application for the Aylesbury East development (ref:10/02649/A0P).
The roundabout has been modelled as a linked roundabout with Junction 19 ELRn
South using ARCADY within the Junctions9 suite.

Page 194



Table 33 - Junction 18: ELRn North (Village) roundabout

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(a) Do Something  Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(b) Do Nothing 0.37 0.6 0.37 0.6
2021(b) Do Something  0.41 0.7 0.36 0.6

2036 Do Nothing 0.43 0.8 0.61 1.6

2036 Do Something 0.47 09 0.60 1.5

The junction will operate within capacity in all scenarios. Mitigation measures are
therefore not required. However, it should be noted that this junction has been
modelled without pedestrian crossings. The introduction of the crossings is likely to
slightly worsen the results. We therefore require the junction to be re-modelled with a
pedestrian crossing. Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a
single arm and were therefore not assessed.

e Junction 19: ELRn South (Stocklake) Roundabout

The junction is proposed to come forward as a four-arm roundabout delivered as part
of the planning application for the Aylesbury East development (ref:10/02649/A0P).
The roundabout has been modelled as a linked roundabout with Junction 18.

Table 34 - Junction 19: ELRn South (Stocklake) roundabout
AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ
2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021 (a) Do Something

Not Assessed

Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.39 0.6 0.53 1.1
2021(b) Do Something  0.40 0.7 0.48 0.9
2036 Do Nothing 0.73 2.6 0.85 54
2036 Do Something 0.70 24 0.84 5.0

The junction will operate within capacity in all scenarios. Mitigation measures are
therefore not required. However, it should be noted that this junction has been
modelled without pedestrian crossings. The introduction of the crossings is likely to
slightly worsen the results; therefore the junction will need to be re-modelled. Other
scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a single arm and were therefore
not assessed.

Page 195



e Junction 20: ELRs North Roundabout

This junction is proposed as a three-arm roundabout, set up as part of work on the
Eastern Link Road southern section. The results in Table 35 of the TA demonstrate
that the proposed roundabout would operate within capacity in all scenarios assessed
and mitigation measures are therefore not required.

Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a single arm and were
therefore not assessed.

Table 35 - Junction 20: ELRs North roundabout
AM Peak PM Peak
- Max RFC Max Q Max RFC Max Q
2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something  Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.58 1.3 0.47 0.9

2021(b) Do Something  0.53 1.1 0.42 0.7

2036 Do Nothing 0.83 48 0.72 2.6

2036 Do Something 0.80 39 0.70 2.3

As no plan has been provided it has not been possible to check the geometry if this
roundabout. A plan of the junction is therefore required.

e Junction 21: ELRs South roundabout

The junction is proposed as a four-arm roundabout, set up as part of work on the
Eastern Link Road southern section. The results demonstrate that the proposed
roundabout would operate within capacity in all scenarios assessed. Mitigation
measures are therefore not required. Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5%
or more on a single arm and were therefore not assessed.

As no plan has been provided it has not been possible to check the geometry if this
roundabout. A plan of the junction is therefore required.

Page 196



Table 36 - Junction 21: ELRs South roundabout

AM Peak PM Peak
Scenario

Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC Max Q

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Something Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.49 1.0 0.33 0.5

2021(b) Do Something  0.45 0.8 0.33 0.5

2036 Do Nothing 0.75 3.0 0.60 1.5

2036 Do Something 0.76 31 0.61 1.6

e Junction 22: Southern Link Road / New Road

The junction is proposed to come forward as a four-arm signalised junction delivered
as part of the planning application for the Hampden Fields development (ref:
16/00424/A0P).

The model is similar to that produced for the Aylesbury Woodlands and Hampden
Fields scheme, although the minimum green time and the intergreen times have been
changed. The staging has also been amended and some of the lane widths and radii
have been altered. The cycle time has been increased from 90 to 120 seconds. An
explanation of why this model differs from the agreed Woodlands and Hampden
Fields models is required.

Table 37 - Junction 22: Southern Link Road / New Road

. AM Peak PM Peak
E Max DaS MaxQ MaxDoS MaxQ

2018 Base Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021 (a) Do Something Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(b) Do Nothing 63% 10.2 11% 10.7
2021(b) Do Something 1% 13.5 19% 16.4
2036 Do Nothing 84% 17.3 80% 251
2036 Do Something 81% 24.5 86% 25.2

Table 37 in the TA demonstrates that the proposals have minimal effect on the
junction which will still operate within capacity. The results therefore suggest that no
mitigation is required, however we will not be in a position to confirm our acceptance

Page 197



of this until we have received the explanation relating to the differences to the agreed
models for Woodlands and Hampden Fields referred to above.

¢ Junction 23: Southern Link Road / Marroway

The junction is proposed to come forward as a three-arm roundabout delivered as part
of the planning application for the Hampden Fields development (ref: 16/00424/A0P)
and the geometry is consistent with that produced as part of the Hampden Fields
application. Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5% or more on a single arm
and were therefore not assessed.

Table 38 - Junction 23: Southern Link Road / New Road
: AM Peak PM Peak
A Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2018 Base Not Assessed MNot Assessed

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed

2027(a) Do Something  Not Assessed Not Assessed

2021(b) Do Nothing 0.41 0.7 0.41 0.7

2021(b) Do Something  0.55 1.2 0.59 1.4

2036 Do Nothing 0.70 2.3 0.53 1.1

2036 Do Something 0.89 1.1 0.77 3.2

The results illustrate that the proposed roundabout would operate within capacity in all
scenarios although in the 2036 Do Something scenario the operation is identified as
near capacity. However, queues are still relatively low and the junction still operates
within capacity, so no mitigation is required.

e Junction 24: A413 / Eastcote Road

The junction has been modelled using the PICADY module of Junctions9. The
geometry appears to be correct. The modelling suggest that the junction operates
over capacity in the existing situation and will deteriorate in the future model options
with the SEALR.

Page 198



Table 39 - Junction 24: A413 Wendover Road / Eascote Road

) AM Peak PM Peak

o MaxRFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ
2018 Base 433 1648 143 44.1
2021(a) Do Nothing 802 1760 149 56.2

2021(a) Do Something 9999999999 223.0 9999999999 155.0

2021(b) Do Nothing 3.07 2156 2.29 1246
2021(b) Do Something 3l 178.9 11.45 232.8
2036 Do Nothing 3.09 2433 2.16 916
2036 Do Something 1.61 94.7 3.40 145.2

As the junction in the 2036 Do Something scenario is shown to worsen significantly in
the PM peak when compared to the Do Nothing scenario, three mitigation proposals
have been assessed; a left in/left out arrangement, mini-roundabout and traffic
signals. However, a mini roundabout or traffic signals would cause delay to the A413.

Table 40 - Junction 24: A413 Wendover Road / Eascote Road - Left In / Left Out Arrangement
AM Peak PM Peak
o Max RFC MaxQ Max RFC Max Q
2018 Base 1.03 253 0.54 1.2

2021(a) Do Nothing 1.00 19.6 0.62 1.6

2021(a) Do Something 1.50 117.3 1.15 35.2

2021(b) Do Nothing 1.02 24.0 0.68 23

2021(b) Do Something 0.71 2.4 0.79 3.6

2036 Do Nothing 1.10 53:2 0.84 5.0

2036 Do Something 0.60 15 0.57 1.3

A left in/ left out arrangement would significantly improve the junction compared to the
existing situation and operate within capacity in 2036 Do Something scenario.

However, the additional u-turning traffic would have an effect on the neighbouring
roundabouts. Junction 7 A413/ Cambourne Avenue has been assessed with and
without U-turns. The flows have been checked and are correct. Only in the 2021 (a)
scenario would the u-turning traffic have a significant effect which would be
temporary. In the 2036 DS scenario the A413/ Cambourne Avenue roundabout would
still be within capacity with a max RFC of 0.76.

The TA explains that there have been only two collisions recorded at this junction over
the five year period analysed, both ‘slight’ in severity. As a result, there is no existing
collision pattern that could be exacerbated by additional traffic associated with u-
turning at the roundabout.

Page 199



Table 41 - Junction 7: A413 Wendover Road / Camborne Avenue - Additional U-turners
Table 19 (Without U-Turn) With U-Turn
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak AM Peak PM Peak
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2021(a) Do Nothing 0.84 5.1 0.85 56 0.95 14.7 0.89 715
2021(a) Do Something 0.92 10.7 1.02 63.5 1.04 91.0 1.06 125.1
2021(b) Do Nothing 0.68 2.1 0.67 2.0 0.85 54 0.78 3.6
2021(b) Do Something 0.62 1.6 0.72 26 0.75 3.0 0.85 54

2036 Do Nothing Not Assessed 0.93 11.6 0.83 4.8
2036 Do Something Not Assessed 0.66 1.9 0.76 3.1

The TA states that the effect of the u-turning traffic on junction 16, the A413
Wendover Road / SEALR / Southern Link Road junction, is minimal with the junction
operating within capacity and the u-turning traffic resulting in an increase in RFC of
1% in the PM peak hour in the 2036 scenario only. The junction will still operate with a
significant amount of spare capacity. Other scenarios did not have an increase of 5%
or more on a single arm and were therefore not assessed.

The ARCADY for Junction 16 Wendover Road /SEALR junction with no U-turns has
only included the eastern junction, while the base situation without U-turns was
modelled with two junctions as a linked ARCADY. For consistency and to ensure
interaction between the two models is taken into consideration, the linked ARCADY
model should be used to determine the impact of the u-turning traffic. The flows have
been checked and are correct, however there is also a discrepancy in the phi value for
the A413 north between the original model and the model with the u-turning traffic.

Table 42 - Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road / SEALR / Southern Link Road - Additional U-turners

Table 25 (Without U-Turn) With U-Turn
Scenario AM Peak PM Peak AM Peak PM Peak
Max RFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ MaxRFC MaxQ

2021(a) Do Nothing Not Assessed Not Assessed
2021(a) Do Something 0.88 12 0.66 18 0.88 7.0 068 2
2021(b) Do Nothing 0.65 19 0.56 13 0.66 2.0 0.57 1.3
2021(b) Do Something 0.68 271 0.71 25 0.68 2.1 0.71 25
2036 Do Nothing 0.72 2.5 0.66 1.9 0.72 2.5 0.67 2.0
2036 Do Something 0.67 2.0 0.68 22 0.67 2.0 0.69 22

It is unlikely that a left in/ left out arrangement would affect highway safety on the local
road network and the modelling has shown that it would increase capacity at the
junction and u-turners can be accommodated on the adjacent junctions. It is therefore
considered an adequate mitigation measure.

Page 200



In summary the following additional information is required to address the concerns
raised above:

« Evidence that the connection issue with the Southern Link Road has been
addressed.

« The northern Lower Road arm of the Lower Road Roundabout includes a
horizontal deflection with a 90m radius. A justification as to why there is a
departure of DMRB standards is required.

« Swept path drawings for the cul de sac to dwellings 8-28 Lower Road to
demonstrate that a refuse vehicle can enter and exit the cul de sac.

« Junction 2: A41/ New Road also has a more than 5% increase in the 2021A
scenarios and these should therefore also be subject to an assessment.

« The modelling of Junctions 2 and 3 should reflect the agreed Hampden Fields
and Woodlands mitigation, including the Broughton Lane link and should be the
combined model with the New Road junction. Clarification needs to be provided
to confirm what changes have been made to the model for Junctions 2 and 3 in
order to achieve the improved results. The traffic flows used in the model should
be reviewed and updated as appropriate.

« For junctions 4, 5 and 6 some of the flows are incorrect or omitted. This needs
to be corrected.

« The model for Junction 6 is similar, but not the same as the model agreed and
used to test and assess the Hampden Fields development. This model needs to
be identical to the Hampden Fields model or an explanation as to why the model
is not consistent with the Hampden Fields model is required.

« Junction 14 will need to be re-modelled with the right geometry.

« Junctions 18 and 19 will need to be re-modelled with a pedestrian crossing

« Drawings should be provided for Junction 17, 20 and 21 to demonstrate that the
models reflect the drawings.

« Junction 16, the linked ARCADY model should be used to determine the impact
of the u-turning traffic. There is also a discrepancy in the phi value for the A413
north between the original model and the model with the u-turning traffic.

« Junction 22, an explanation of why this model differs from the agreed Woodlands
and Hampden Fields models is required.

- Justification of the acceptability of the assessment results for the A413
Wendover Road/SEALR junction.

Page 201



| trust that these comments have been of assistance.

Yours sincerely

Sarah Halsey

Highways Development
Management Planning Growth &
Sustainability

Page 202



Appendix C: Plans

{ A413 Wendover Road :

Stoke Mandeville
Hospital

‘-_-_-_-_-_-_‘“—-—
National Railway
H’/_,- B4443 Lower Road

esri

Page 203



LONG SECTION
1:2000 @A1

TYPICAL CROSS SECTION
1:100 @A1

Drawing no. 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0040-B Overview and section

Page 204



Appendix D: Schedule of submitted documents

Sheet Layout Overview 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0001 D Updated to include changes to Lower Road
and Wendover Road Roundabouts, widening of southern footway to provide footway/cycleway, passive
provision for future pedestrian/cycle connection to southern footway/cycleway, removal of armillary sphere,
additional agricultural access off Lower Road roundabout, bridge updated to three-span arrangement,
incorporation of UKPN corridor to south and associated amendments to drainage/attenuation.

Application Boundary 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0002 A

Location Plan 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0003 A

General Arrangement 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0100 G As per Overview Plan.

General Arrangement 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0101 G

General Arrangement 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0102 G

General Arrangement 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0103 G

General Arrangement 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0104 G

Topographic Survey 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0105 B Shadow of proposals updated in line with
Overview Plan.

Topographic Survey 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0106 B

Topographic Survey 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0107 B

Topographic Survey 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0108 B

Topographic Survey 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0109 B

Existing Ultilities 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0110 B Shadow of proposals updated in line with Overview
Plan.

Existing Utilities 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0111 B

Existing Utilities 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0112 B

Existing Utilities 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0113 B

Existing Utilities 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0114 A B

Swept Paths 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0115 B Updated to revised geometry

Swept Paths 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0116 B Updated to revised geometry

Swept Paths 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0117 B Updated to revised geometry

Swept Paths 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0118 B Updated to revised geometry

Swept Paths 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0119 B Updated to revised geometry

Swept Paths 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0052 A Additional swept paths requested

Swept Paths 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0053 A Additional swept paths requested

Roundabout Geometries 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0120 B Updated to revised geometry
Roundabout Geometries 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0121 B

Roundabout Geometries 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0122 B

Roundabout Geometries 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0123 C

Proposed Utility Diversions 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0124 B Updates to proposed diversion routes
Proposed Utility Diversions 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0125 B

Proposed Utility Diversions 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0126 B

Proposed Utility Diversions 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0127 B

Proposed Utility Diversions 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0128 B

Proposed Utility Diversion Overview 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0129 B Additional overview drawing
Long-section 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0130 B Updated to show revised bridge

Cross-sections 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0140 B Amendment to reflect reduced verge and increased
width of footway/cycleway on southern side of SEALR.

Site Clearance 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0200 B Updated to reflect revised propiosals including
updated vegetation

clearance Site Clearance 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0201 B for UKPN corridor.

Site Clearance 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0202 B

Site Clearance 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0203 B

Site Clearance 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0204 B

Drainage 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0500 C Updated and replaced by 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-
CE-0015 & 0016

Drainage 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0501 C

Drainage 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0502 C

Drainage 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0503 C

Drainage 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0504 C

Drainage 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0015 - 12 Updated to reflect revised proposals

Drainage 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0016 - 10 Updated to reflect revised proposals

Signing and Lining 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1200 B Updated to reflect revised proposals

Signing and Lining 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1201 B

Page 205



Signing and Lining 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1202 B

Signing and Lining 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1203 B

Signing and Lining 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1204 B

Lighting Layout 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1300 C Updated to reflect revised proposals
Lighting Layout 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1301 C

Lighting Layout 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1302 C

Lighting Layout 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1303 C

Lighting Layout 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-1304 C

Bridge Structure 60535364-M001-101-DWG-101 2 S1_BR_Z Z-DR-CB-0002 & 0003

Bridge Structure 60535364-M001-101-DWG-102 2

Bridge Structure 60535364-M001-101-DWG-103 2

Bridge Structure 60535364-M001-101-DWG-104 2

Bridge Structure 60614526-ACM-SBR-S1_BR_Z ZDR- CB-0002

N/A P01 New drawings showing three-span bridge structure

Bridge Structure 60614526-ACM-SBR-S1_BR_Z_ZDR- CB-0003 P01

Landscape Proposals 60617526-ACM-ELS-S1_ML_ZZ-DRLV- 0001P04.1 Updated landscape proposals,
including inclusion of replacement public open space.

Landscape Proposals 60617526-ACM-ELS-S1_ML_ZZ-DRLV- 0002 P04.1

Landscape Proposals 60617526-ACM-ELS-S1_ML_ZZ-DRLV- 0003 P04.1

Landscape Proposals 60617526-ACM-ELS-S1_ML_ZZ-DRLV- 0004 P04.1

Landscape Proposals 60617526-ACM-ELS-S1_ML_ZZ-DRLV-0005 P04.1

Construction Compounds 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-2000 C

Construction Traffic Routeing 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-2001

County Farm Cottages Vis Splay 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0030 A Additional plan in response to
consultee comments.

Scheme Overview 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0040 N/A B Additional plan showing scheme overview
alongside long section.

Planning Scheme Amendments 60535364-ACM-00-XX-SKE-CE-0060 - lllustrates key changes to the
scheme since planning submission.

Flood Depth 60535364-SHT-0000-C-0070 N/A 1 New drawing showing flood depth difference map
Historic Alignment Plan 60535364-SKE-CE-0012 B Plan comparing current alignment with public
consultation alignment.

Page 206



Appendix E: EIA Summary

The application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement, updated by the ES Addendum.
This encompasses fifteen chapters, appendices and a non-technical summary.

Chapter 1 provides an introduction to the project and includes an overview of the
proposed scheme, information on the need for the proposed scheme and the objectives of
the proposed scheme. It also sets out the legislation and policy framework, the purpose of
the Environmental Statement, the Scope and content of the Environmental Statement and
provides contacts for the agent project team.

Chapter 2 provides further details on the project, the programme should planning
permission be granted the proposed site and its surroundings. The ES Addendum gives
information on the competence of the people undertaking the ES.

Chapter 3 looks at alternatives considered. These include alternative route options as well
as ‘no development’ and ‘do minimum’ alternatives. The ES Addendum provides additional
information on how the alternatives were considered and the final option chosen (option
10, sub option E).

Chapter 4 provides information on methodology. It summaries comments received in the
EIA Scoping Opinion, provides information on the how the baseline conditions were
considered and how effects where assessed. It also sets out the DMRB (Design Manual for
Roads and Bridges matrix for classifying effects and identifies the developments that were
identified as potentially having cumulative effects with the project. Cumulative impacts are
considered within each chapter and conclusions are made in Chapter 14. The ES Addendum
states that no further assessment is required in regard to major accidents and disasters.
The risk of major accidents and/or disasters is not considered to be high, or any more likely
than the risk associated with other dual carriageways and roundabouts and therefore
these are not considered further.

Chapter 5 presents the assessment of effects of the proposed scheme on human health
and the ES Addendum adds to this (including consideration of cumulative effects),
concluding the following:

» Access to healthcare services and other social infrastructure: Construction effects will be
mitigated through the implementation of traffic management measures resulting in an
overall neutral effect on health and wellbeing. During the operation phase, the scheme will
improve connectivity to healthcare services and other community facilities located in the
town centre of Aylesbury and Stoke Mandeville as the congestion reduced in the local road
network in an overall positive effect.

* Access to open space: the scheme will reduce access to open space during the
construction period resulting in a negative effect on health. During the operation phase the
scheme will provide replacement open space accessible from the new shared/cycle
footway resulting in an overall neutral effect on health.

¢ Air Quality, Noise and Neighbourhood Amenity: The scheme will cause temporary
negative effects arising from dust, noise and vibration; however, a number of mitigation
measures will be implemented prior to the commencement of construction to further
reduce these temporary impacts resulting in a neutral effect on the potential health
impact. During the operation phase, air quality is expected to improve around existing
communities due to the reduction in congestion within the local road network having a
positive effect on health and wellbeing. However, noise and vibration is expected to result

Page 207



in a negative health and wellbeing effect on nearby residential receptors. Further
mitigation would be required to reduce the significant noise and vibration effects, to
include potential noise insulation packages to dwellings most affected by the scheme.
Chapter 9 of the ES Addendum provides updates to the noise and vibration assessment
since the March 2020 ES to also reflect changes to future traffic forecasts and data in the
area. Residual and cumulative effects are considered. Table 9.13 gives a summary of long
term operational residual effects identifying that 16 (<1%) properties will experience a high
adverse noise level change and major adverse residual effect and 342 (7%) properties will
experience a medium adverse noise level change and a moderate adverse residual effect.
Further mitigation options including low/very low noise surfacing and improved glazing will
be considered during the detailed design stage (see also Chapter 11 below). Chapter 10 of
the ES Addendum provides an update to the assessment of effects on air quality that are
likely to arise from construction and operation of the scheme, originally carried out as part
of the March 2020 ES, to include impact of updated traffic data. The updated assessment
of air quality based on traffic data for the year 2036 concludes that the scheme will not
result in any significant effects.

e Active travel: the scheme will disrupt and divert the existing PRoW network and cycling
routes during the construction phase resulting in a loss of amenity as users are diverted
from routes within the agricultural fields towards the main roads which is expected to have
a negative effect on the health and wellbeing of users walking on these routes. During the
operation phase, the scheme will provide high quality walking and cycling facilities
including an integrated east-west cycle route which will improve accessibility to open
spaces in the local area which is expected to have a positive effect on the health and
wellbeing of non-motorised users.

* Provision of employment: the scheme will provide temporary local employment
opportunities during the construction period leading to a positive effect on the health and
wellbeing of the local workforce. During the operation phase, the scheme will also improve
accessibility and connectivity to local businesses and employment spaces resulting in an
overall positive effect on the health and wellbeing of the local workforce.

e Social cohesion and lifetime neighbourhoods: the scheme, during the operation phase,
will reduce severance through the reduction in traffic congestion on local road networks
and will enhance walking and cycling facilities and open space provision. This will have a
positive effect on the health and wellbeing of neighbourhoods.

Chapter 6 focusses on Cultural Heritage. The assessment focuses upon the effects of
removing known and potential archaeological remains within the site, and effects on the
setting of listed buildings. The chapter concludes that the scheme is likely to have a
significant residual effect on buried archaeological assets of Roman date, and potentially
Bronze Age date, within the Site, through their removal as a result of construction
activities. A programme of archaeological investigation to identify, excavate, record and
report on these remains has been proposed. It acknowledges this cannot remove impact
the as the archaeological remains are not renewable or replaceable and states that
therefore the residual significance of effect would still be significant.

Chapter 7 focuses on Landscape and Visual Effects and reports the assessment of effects
upon the surrounding landscape character and existing views into the Site. Chapter 8 of the
ES Addendum identifies and assesses the potential effects on landscape and visual
receptors (including a night time assessment) that are likely to arise from the construction

Page 208



and operation of the scheme following comments received from the Authority and as a
result of scheme changes detailed. No significant residual effects are anticipated when the
proposed landscaping is fully established (Year 15 of operation). This is due to the extent of
planting proposed on the embankments helping to screen views and integrate the
Proposed Scheme within the surrounding landscape and the pattern of landcover features.
The night time assessment identifies no likely significant effects during construction, the
first year of operation or at year fifteen. The scheme will be seen in the context of the built
up area of Aylesbury and the existing lighting columns on Wendover Road and Lower Road,
adding to the existing suburban district brightness. In terms of additional cumulative
effects resulting from the scheme, in combination with other built, approved and in
planning developments it is not considered to be significant and while a range of
cumulative effects can be anticipated, these will be attributed to the wider context of the
large mixed use developments and separate sections of the wider Aylesbury orbital route
which will bring about substantial change to the landscape and visual amenity resource
surrounding the scheme.

Chapter 8 focuses on Ecology and Nature Conservation. Chapter 7 of the ES Addendum
gives an update on the assessments following the subsequent protected species surveys
undertaken between March and August 2020. In addition, the assessment considers the
results of the Biodiversity Net Gain Report (October 2019) which was subsequently
updated in November 2020. The initial classification of effects pre-mitigation has identified
significant adverse impacts on foraging and commuting bats as a result of the scheme. In
addition, the initial classification of effects pre-mitigation has identified non-significant
adverse impacts on a range of features which would benefit from additional mitigation
and/or require additional mitigation to avoid an offence under relevant wildlife legislation;
residual effects were also considered. Considering the embedded measures within the
design of the scheme, effects (including residual effects) on ecological features have been
considered not to be significant, with the exception of the removal and fragmentation of
bat commuting and foraging habitat, for which there was considered to be potential for a
moderate adverse effect. Additional measures to ensure that there are no significant
residual effects on commuting and foraging bats, in relation to on-site habitat provision,
are detailed within the LEMP for the Proposed Scheme; considering these measures,
residual effects on commuting and foraging bats are deemed not to be significant.
Additional mitigation measures (including continued management and monitoring
activities) have been identified in relation to habitats (e.g. hedgerows) and species (e.g.
bats, nesting birds).

Chapter 9 focusses on Geology and Soils and reports the impacts of the scheme with
respect to changes in ground conditions, land quality and groundwater and its effects on
people, property and the water environment. It concludes that no likely significant effects
have been identified with regard to the scheme.

Chapter 10 is titled materials and identifies and addresses the potential impacts and effects
of the scheme in relation to the use of material resources and the generation of waste. It
concludes that no likely significant effects on material resources and waste have been
identified.

Chapter 11 is focussed on Noise and Vibration during construction and operation of the
Proposed Scheme. It concludes that with the implementation of mitigation measures
through the final CEMP, no significant effects are predicted during the construction phase.
It predicts major and moderate adverse effects (which are considered significant for a

Page 209



number of properties in all scenarios both within and beyond 1km from the scheme. It
states that low noise road surfacing has the potential to slightly reduce overall scheme
impacts but that implementation of this additional mitigation would not alter the
assessment, and predicted noise levels and resulting effects will remain unchanged. It also
states that no significant effects are predicted for Noise Important Areas.

e Chapter 12 relates to people and communities and relates to the impact of the scheme on
people and communities including; vehicle travellers, pedestrians, equestrians, cyclists,
property, development land, land used by the community and agricultural land. In relation
to driver stress and non-motorised uses it concludes the overall effect of the scheme is not
considered to be significant.

e Chapter 13 focuses on Road Drainage and the Water Environment. Subject to the measures
outlined in the chapter, it concludes that there are no likely significant effects in relation to
road drainage and the water environment have been identified with regard to the scheme
though some slight adverse, but insignificant, effects have been identified.

e Chapter 14 considers the effect interactions in relation to other nearby developments and
land allocations, habitats and notable species, air quality and noise. A number of
potentially significant effects (on pedestrians, cyclists, road users and existing public
amenity space) are identified.

e Chapter 15 summaries the environmental effects.

Chapter 6 of the ES Addendum relates to an assessment of climate change. It is stated that there
will be unavoidable GHG emissions resulting from both the construction and operation of the
scheme as materials, energy and fuel use, and transport would be required. An assessment of the
magnitude and significance of these emissions have been deemed as a minor adverse significance.
The significance of operational emissions in the future may become more significant as the UK
moves towards net zero in 2050. A number of climate change hazards have been identified for the
construction and operation of the scheme, which may lead to range of potential impacts to the
scheme itself. In consideration of the embedded design measures, all residual significance levels
have been determined as not significant. Due to the minor adverse significance of the GHG
emissions and existing mitigation measures proposed, no further mitigation measures are
proposed at this time. Additional mitigation may be required during the operational phase as the
UK moves towards net zero in 2050 and emissions are likely to become more significant. Climate
change vulnerability has been assessed as not significant during construction and operations, in
consideration of the measures already proposed no additional mitigation measures are proposed.

Page 210



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 CM/0037/20 - Proposed Building for Fresh Cooking Oil Packing & Used Cooking Oil Processing - Olleco, Samian Way, Aston Clinton, Buckinghamshire, HP22 5WJ
	5 CC/0015/20 - New dual carriageway link road including: roundabout junction B4443 Lower Road, roundabout junction at A413 Wendover Road, railway bridge, footway/cycleways, noise attenuation barrier, street lighting, earthworks and landscaping between B4443 Lower Road and A413
	1.0 Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
	2.0 Description of Proposed Development
	- To enable satisfactory levels of network performance at the Stoke Road gyratory and the A413, A4010 and B4443 arterial roads after the A4010 realignment is completed;
	- To support the overall quantum of growth within Aylesbury and the surrounding area;
	- To increase the effectiveness of the realigned A4010 as a key north / south corridor; and
	- To secure good local connectivity for all road users for movements to, from, within and around Aylesbury.
	- Furthermore the Proposed Scheme will help relieve pressure on a key blue light route (access to Stoke Mandeville Hospital); and increase provision for walking and cycling.
	3.0 Relevant Planning History
	4.0 Representations
	5.0 Policy Considerations and Evaluation
	Transport Matters
	Landscape and Settlement Character and Visual Impacts:
	Impact on the setting of the  AONB :
	Cumulative Impact:
	Agricultural Land
	Amenity of Local Residents
	WTNP Policy H2 (Development Design in the Neighbourhood Area)
	AVDLP - GP.8 (Protection of the amenity of residents)
	Emerging VALP policy BE3 (Protection of the amenity of residents) and NE5 Pollution, air quality and contaminated land (both considerable weight)
	Surface water flood risk
	Overland Flow Route Mitigation
	 Landscaping of land on the approach to the culvert to improve collection of flow by the culvert to minimise this ponding depth.
	 Additional landscaping could be undertaken to reduce the maximum water depth by storing this flood water over a wider area at the toe of the embankment.
	 More detailed modelling of the ditch on the downstream side of the embankment could show that water would flow away from the outlet of the culvert which would prevent upstream flooding
	 Increase capacity in the ditch to minimise the backwater effect through the culvert
	Groundwater flood risk
	Surface water drainage
	Ditch Diversions
	6.0 Other matters
	a) the development proposed is so substantial, or its cumulative effect would be so significant, that to grant permission would undermine the plan-making process by predetermining decisions about the scale, location or phasing of new development that ...
	b) the emerging plan is at an advanced stage but is not yet formally part of the development plan for the area.
	7.0 Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
	8.0 Working with the applicant / agent
	9.0 Recommendation
	Background
	Updated Transport Assessment Addendum
	 Junction 2: A41 / New Road
	 Junctions 2 & 3: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Richmond Road / Bedgrove (incorporating Broughton Lane) / New Road
	 Junction 4: A41 Aston Clinton Road / A4157 / King Edward Avenue
	 Junction 5: A41 Aston Clinton Road / Park Street / Tesco / Walton Street
	 Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / A413 Wendover Road / Stoke Road (Gyratory)
	 Junction 7: A413 Wendover Road / Camborne Avenue
	 Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road/Winterton Road/Stoke Mandeville Hospital
	 Junction 14: A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way
	 Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road/SEALR
	 Junction 17: A418/Eastern Link Road North
	 Junctions 18 & 19: ELRn North (Village) roundabout and ELRn South (Stocklake) roundabout
	 Junction 22: Southern Link Road / New Road

	 Comments on Design

	Design Changes
	Traffic Impact Scenarios
	 Junction 1: A41 / A41 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesbury Road
	 Junction 2: A41/ New Road/ MDA and Junction 3: A41/ Bedgrove
	 Junction 4: A41 / A4157/ King Edward Avenue
	 Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / Wendover Road / Stoke Road (Walton Street Gyratory)
	 Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road/Winterton Drive/Stoke Mandeville Hospital & Junction 12: B4443 Lower Road / B4443 Mandeville Road / Stadium Approach / Churchill Avenue
	 Junction 13: A418 Oxford Road / Ellen Road
	 Junction 14: A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way
	 Junction 15: B4443 Lower Road/SEALR/ Stoke Mandeville Relief Road
	 Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road/SEALR
	 Junction 17: A418/Eastern Link Road North
	 Junctions 18: ELRn North (Village) Roundabout
	 Junction 19: ELRn South (Stocklake) Roundabout
	 Junction 20: ELRs North Roundabout
	 Junction 21: ELRs South Roundabout
	 Junction 22: Southern Link Road / New Road
	 Junction 23: Southern Link Road / Marroway
	 Junction 24: A413 / Eascote Road
	 Summary

	Response to concerns raised by Network Rail
	Highways Development Management Planning Growth & Sustainability

	Application Number:  CC/0015/20
	Background
	Planning History
	Proposed Development nearby
	Pre-application Discussions
	Comments on Submitted Transport Assessment
	Site Location and Access
	Walking
	Personal Injury Collisions
	Network Patterns
	Design
	Road Safety Audit
	Traffic Impact
	 Junction 1: A41 / A41 Aston Clinton Road / Aylesbury Road
	 Junction 2: A41/ New Road/ MDA and Junction 3: A41/ Bedgrove
	 Junction 4: A41 / A4157/ King Edward Avenue
	 Junction 5: A41 Aston Clinton Road/Park Street/Tesco/Walton Road
	 Junction 6: A413 Walton Street / Wendover Road / Stoke Road (Walton Street Gyratory)

	Junction 7: A413 Wendover Road/Cambourne Avenue
	 Junction 8: A413 Wendover Road/Silver Birch Way
	 Junction 9: A413 Wendover Road/A4010 Station Road
	 Junction 10: A4010 Station Road/B4443 Lower Road/A4010 Risborough Road
	 Junction 11: B4443 Lower Road/Winterton Road/Stoke Mandeville Hospital
	 Junction 13: A418 Oxford Road / Ellen Road
	 Junction 14: A418 Oxford Road / Coldharbour Way
	 Junction 15: B4443 Lower Road/SEALR/ Stoke Mandeville Relief Road
	 Junction 16: A413 Wendover Road/SEALR
	 Junction 17: A418/Eastern Link Road North
	 Junctions 18: ELRn North (Village) Roundabout
	 Junction 19: ELRn South (Stocklake) Roundabout
	 Junction 20: ELRs North Roundabout
	 Junction 21: ELRs South roundabout
	 Junction 22: Southern Link Road / New Road
	 Junction 23: Southern Link Road / Marroway
	 Junction 24: A413 / Eastcote Road

	Highways Development Management Planning Growth & Sustainability


